
 

   

 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

 
 

AGENDA  
 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING  
 

 

SECOND MONTHLY MEETING 
February 26, 2020 

9:00 a.m. 
 
 

Board Conference Room 
1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 350 

Concord, California 
 
 

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 
 

1.  Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2.  Accept comments from the public. 
 

3.  Approve minutes from the January 22, 2020 meeting. 
 

4.  Capital market assumptions review. 
 

5.  Presentation from First Eagle on global markets. 
 

6.  Review of total portfolio performance for period ending December 31, 2019.  
a. Presentation from Verus 
b. Presentation from staff 

 
7.  Annual statement of compliance with Board resolutions. 

8.  Consider and take possible action to:  
a. adopt Board of Retirement Resolution 2020-1 to increase the salary ranges 

by 4% for all unrepresented classifications effective April 1, 2020, with the 
exception of the Chief Executive Officer.  

b.   adopt the CCCERA Position Pay Schedule for unrepresented classifications 
effective April 1, 2020 which reflects the salary range changes in Board of 
Retirement Resolution 2020-1. 

 
 
 
 



 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

9.  Consider authorizing the attendance of Board: 
a. CRCEA Spring Conference, April 6-8, 2020, Visalia, CA. (Note:  Conflict with 

Meeting) 
b. AE Industrial Partners Annual Meeting, April 15-16, 2020, Boca Raton, FL. 
c. 2020 Annual Conference, Siguler Guff, April 29-30, 2020, New York, NY. 

 
10.  Miscellaneous 

a. Staff Report     
b. Outside Professionals’ Report  
c. Trustees’ comments 

 



MINUTES 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 
January 22, 2020 

9:00 a.m. 

Board Conference Room 
1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 350 

Concord, California 

Present: Candace Andersen, Donald Finley, Scott Gordon, Jerry Holcombe, Louie Kroll, Jay 
Kwon, David MacDonald, John Phillips, Mike Sloan, Todd Smithey and Russell 
Watts 

Absent: William Pigeon 

Staff: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer; Christina Dunn, Deputy Chief Executive 
Officer; Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer; Karen Levy, General Counsel; 
Wrally Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer; Anne Sommers, Administrative/HR 
Manager; Henry Gudino, Accounting Manager; and Tim Hoppe, Retirement 
Services Manager 

Outside Professional Support: Representing: 
Eileen Neill Verus Investments 

1. Pledge of Allegiance

The Board, staff and audience joined in the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Accept comments from the public

No member of the public offered comment.

It was the consensus of the Board to move Closed Session to the end of the meeting. 

4. Investment benchmark education

Price reported this investment benchmark educational session is being provided because 
this is the first step toward preparing an asset/liability study.  

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/26/20Agenda Item#3



Page 2 
January 22, 2020 

 

 

Neill reviewed benchmarking goals and why benchmarks matter noting benchmarks enable 
the Board and staff to assist in monitoring whether an investment program is meeting its 
goals.   
 
The next steps in preparing the finalized asset/liability study was discussed. 

 
5. Consider and take possible action to adopt a cost-of-living increase for retirees as of April 

1, 2020 

It was M/S/C to adopt a cost-of-living increase for retirees as of April 1, 2020 as stated in 
Segal’s January 15, 2020 letter and exhibits. (Yes: Andersen, Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, 
Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts) 

6. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board: 

a. There was no action taken on this item. CII Spring 2020 Conference, Council of 
Institutional Investors, March 9-11, 2020, Washington, DC.  

7. Miscellaneous 

(a) Staff Report – 
 
Strohl provided a response to a question from the Board related to the reassignment 
of the LRWL, Inc. agreement to Segal Consulting.  She reported that neither LRWL, 
Inc. nor Segal Consulting have any connections or financial ties to any pension 
administration systems that CCCERA might consider in the future. 
 
She reported the two books recently recommended by Trustee Gordon have been 
ordered and will be added to the Board lending library.  
 
Levy provided a brief update on the federal SECURE Act that recently passed which 
changes the age for minimum required distributions from age 70.5 to age 72 effective 
this year.  She noted an amendment to CCCERA’s Tax Compliance Policy will be 
presented to the Board for their consideration in February. 
 
Price introduced Mitch Taylor, CCCERA’s new Investment Officer.  

 
(b) Outside Professionals’ Report -    

 
None 

 
(c) Trustees’ comments – 

 
None  
 

 
CLOSED SESSION 



Page 3 
January 22, 2020 

 

 

The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957.6. 
 
The Board moved into open session. 
 
3. Conference with Labor Negotiators 

 
There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54957.6. 

 
 
It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting.  (Yes: Andersen, Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, 
MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts) 
 
 
 
             
Todd Smithey, Chairman    David MacDonald, Secretary 
 



FE
BR

U
A

RY
 2

02
0

CC
CE

RA
 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

to
 2

02
0 

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/26/20Agenda Item#4



—
Ea

ch
 y

ea
r, 

Ve
ru

s p
ro

du
ce

s 1
0-

ye
ar

 fo
rw

ar
d 

lo
ok

in
g 

ca
pi

ta
l m

ar
ke

t a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
(“

CM
As

”)
 fo

r e
ve

ry
 m

aj
or

 a
ss

et
 c

la
ss

.  
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

th
re

e 
m

aj
or

 c
om

po
ne

nt
s t

o 
th

e 
CM

As
:


Ex

pe
ct

ed
 R

et
ur

n


Ri

sk
 (V

ol
at

ili
ty

)


Co

rr
el

at
io

n

—
Th

es
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 se
rv

e 
as

 th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

in
pu

t f
or

 th
e 

as
se

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
st

ud
y.

—
Th

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

of
 to

da
y’

s d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

is
 to

 fa
m

ili
ar

ize
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

w
ith

 w
ha

t 
CM

As
 a

re
 a

nd
 h

ow
 th

ey
 a

re
 d

ev
el

op
ed

. 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
02

0
CC

CE
RA

2



D
ri

ve
rs

 o
f r

et
ur

n
—

Th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 re
tu

rn
 is

 a
 fu

nc
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ris
k-

fr
ee

 in
te

re
st

 ra
te

, e
xp

ec
te

d 
be

ta
, a

nd
 a

lp
ha

.


Ri

sk
 fr

ee
 ra

te
 is

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 u
sin

g 
te

n-
ye

ar
 fo

rw
ar

d 
lo

ok
in

g 
Ve

ru
s 

ca
pi

ta
l m

ar
ke

t a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

.


Be

ta
 is

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 u
sin

g 
te

n-
ye

ar
 fo

rw
ar

d 
lo

ok
in

g 
Ve

ru
s c

ap
ita

l m
ar

ke
t a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
.


Al

ph
a 

is 
im

pa
ct

ed
 b

y 
m

an
ag

er
 se

le
ct

io
n 

an
d 

as
se

t a
llo

ca
tio

n 
til

ts
.

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
02

0
CC

CE
RA

6.
5%

1.
9%

4.
6%

?
=

+
+

EX
PE

CT
ED

 R
ET

U
RN

RI
SK

 F
RE

E 
RA

TE
BE

TA
AL

PH
A

Ab
so

lu
te

 
Ri

sk
 

10
.2

%

Sh
ar

pe
 

Ra
tio

 
0.

45

Ve
ru

s 
CM

As
1

3

Ve
ru

s 
CM

As
1

1 
CM

A 
= 

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

. 6
.5

%
 re

pr
es

en
ts

 C
CC

ER
A’

s g
eo

m
et

ric
 re

tu
rn

 fo
re

ca
st

 u
sin

g 
Ve

ru
s’

 1
0-

ye
ar

 c
ap

ita
l m

ar
ke

t a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

.



W
ha

t i
s i

n 
a 

fo
re

ca
st

?

-1
5%

-1
0%

-5
%

0%
5%

10
%

15
%

20
%

25
%

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
02

0
CC

CE
RA

A
 r

et
ur

n 
fo

re
ca

st
 is

 
si

m
pl

y 
th

e 
“a

ve
ra

ge
” 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 
re

tu
rn

A 
vo

la
til

ity
 

fo
re

ca
st

 te
lls

 
us

 h
ow

 
di

ffe
re

nt
 th

e 
re

tu
rn

 m
ig

ht
 

ac
tu

al
ly

 b
e

E
xp

ec
te

d 
re

tu
rn

: 5
.8

%
, s

ta
nd

ar
d 

de
vi

at
io

n:
 1

5.
6%

4

Vo
la

til
ity

(h
ow

 v
ar

ia
bl

e 
is 

th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 o
ut

co
m

e?
)

Ta
il 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s
(H

ow
 o

fte
n 

do
 e

xt
re

m
e 

ev
en

ts
 o

cc
ur

?)

M
ed

ia
n 

(e
xp

ec
te

d 
“a

ve
ra

ge
” 

ou
tc

om
e)



Bu
ild

in
g 

bl
oc

k 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
02

0
CC

CE
RA

Fo
r i

llu
st

ra
tiv

e 
pu

rp
os

es
 o

nl
y

5

EX
PE

CT
ED

 R
ET

U
RN

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 B
LO

CK
S

O
ut

pu
t: 

th
e 

su
m

 o
f t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

bl
oc

ks
 e

qu
al

s 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 re

tu
rn

In
co

m
e

In
fla

tio
n

Re
al

 G
ro

w
th

+
+



Fi
xe

d 
in

co
m

e 
re

tu
rn

 fo
re

ca
st

s

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
02

0
CC

CE
RA

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

*B
an

k 
lo

an
s u

se
s 3

-m
on

th
 U

SD
 L

ib
or

 in
st

ea
d 

of
 th

e 
Tr

ea
su

ry
 y

ie
ld

6

1.
9%

1.
7%

2.
2%

2.
7%

3.
3%

5.
3%

1.
4%

5.
0%

-3
%

-2
%

-1
%0%1%2%3%4%5%6%7%

Ca
sh

U
.S

. T
re

as
ur

y
U

.S
. C

or
e

U
.S

. C
or

e 
Pl

us
U

.S
. H

ig
h 

Yi
el

d
Ba

nk
 L

oa
ns

Gl
ob

al
 C

re
di

t
EM

D 
Ha

rd

In
fla

tio
n

Tr
ea

su
ry

 Y
ie

ld
*

Cr
ed

it 
Sp

re
ad

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
De

fa
ul

t
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 R

et
ur

n



Eq
ui

ty
 re

tu
rn

 fo
re

ca
st

s

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
02

0
CC

CE
RA

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

7

5.
5%

5.
7%

7.
0%

7.
2%

7.
6%

-2
%

-1
%0%1%2%3%4%5%6%7%8%

U
.S

. L
ar

ge
U

.S
. S

m
al

l
In

tl 
De

ve
lo

pe
d 

La
rg

e
In

tl 
De

ve
lo

pe
d 

Sm
al

l
Em

er
gi

ng
 M

ar
ke

ts

Di
vi

de
nd

 Y
ie

ld
In

fla
tio

n
Re

al
 E

ar
ni

ng
s G

ro
w

th
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Ch
an

ge
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 R

et
ur

n



10
-y

ea
r r

et
ur

n 
&

 ri
sk

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

02
0

CC
CE

RA
8

In
ve

st
or

s w
ish

in
g 

to
 p

ro
du

ce
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

ge
om

et
ric

 re
tu

rn
 fo

re
ca

st
s f

or
 th

ei
r p

or
tfo

lio
s 

sh
ou

ld
 u

se
 th

e 
ar

ith
m

et
ic

 re
tu

rn
 fo

re
ca

st
s

pr
ov

id
ed

 h
er

e 
as

 in
pu

ts
 in

to
 th

at
 c

al
cu

la
tio

n,
 ra

th
er

 th
an

 th
e 

sin
gl

e-
as

se
t-

cl
as

s 
ge

om
et

ric
 re

tu
rn

 
fo

re
ca

st
s.

  T
hi

s i
s t

he
 in

du
st

ry
 st

an
da

rd
 a

pp
ro

ac
h,

 b
ut

 re
qu

ire
s 

a 
co

m
pl

ex
 e

xp
la

na
tio

n 
on

ly
 a

 h
ea

vy
 q

ua
nt

 c
ou

ld
 lo

ve
, s

o 
w

e 
ha

ve
ch

os
en

 n
ot

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 fu

rt
he

r d
et

ai
ls 

in
 th

is 
do

cu
m

en
t –

w
e 

w
ill

 h
ap

pi
ly

 p
ro

vi
de

 th
os

e 
de

ta
ils

 to
 

an
y 

re
ad

er
s o

f t
hi

s w
ho

 a
re

 in
te

re
st

ed
. 

*R
et

ur
n 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 d
iff

er
 d

ep
en

di
ng

 o
n 

m
et

ho
d 

of
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

As
se

t C
la

ss
In

de
x 

Pr
ox

y
Te

n 
Ye

ar
 R

et
ur

n 
Fo

re
ca

st
St

an
da

rd
 D

ev
ia

tio
n 

Fo
re

ca
st

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

 
Fo

re
ca

st
 (g

)
Sh

ar
pe

 R
at

io
 

Fo
re

ca
st

 (a
)

10
-Y

ea
r H

is
to

ric
al

 
Sh

ar
pe

 R
at

io
 (g

)
10

-Y
ea

r H
is

to
ric

al
 

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

 (a
)

G
eo

m
et

ric
 

Ar
ith

m
et

ic
 

Eq
ui

tie
s

U
.S

. L
ar

ge
S&

P 
50

0
5.

5%
6.

6%
15

.4
%

0.
23

0.
31

1.
01

1.
02

U
.S

. S
m

al
l

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0

5.
7%

7.
7%

21
.1

%
0.

18
0.

28
0.

62
0.

67
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l D

ev
el

op
ed

M
SC

I E
AF

E
7.

0%
8.

4%
17

.5
%

0.
29

0.
37

0.
30

0.
37

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l S
m

al
l

M
SC

I E
AF

E 
Sm

al
l C

ap
7.

2%
9.

3%
21

.8
%

0.
24

0.
34

0.
46

0.
52

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

M
SC

I E
M

7.
6%

10
.4

%
25

.6
%

0.
22

0.
33

0.
17

0.
25

Gl
ob

al
 E

qu
ity

M
SC

I A
CW

I
6.

4%
7.

7%
16

.8
%

0.
27

0.
34

0.
59

0.
63

Pr
iv

at
e 

Eq
ui

ty
*

Ca
m

br
id

ge
 P

riv
at

e 
Eq

ui
ty

8.
5%

11
.3

%
25

.3
%

0.
26

0.
37

-
-

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e
Ca

sh
30

 D
ay

 T
-B

ill
s

1.
9%

1.
9%

1.
2%

-
-

-
-

U
.S

. T
IP

S
BB

gB
ar

c
U

.S
. T

IP
S 

5-
10

2.
1%

2.
2%

5.
4%

0.
04

0.
06

0.
65

0.
66

U
.S

. T
re

as
ur

y
BB

gB
ar

c 
Tr

ea
su

ry
 7

-1
0 

Ye
ar

1.
7%

1.
9%

6.
7%

-0
.0

3
0.

00
0.

68
0.

69
Gl

ob
al

 S
ov

er
ei

gn
 e

x 
U

.S
.

BB
gB

ar
c 

Gl
ob

al
 T

re
as

ur
y 

ex
 U

.S
.

0.
1%

0.
6%

9.
7%

-0
.1

9
-0

.1
3

0.
10

0.
14

Gl
ob

al
 A

gg
re

ga
te

BB
gB

ar
c

Gl
ob

al
 A

gg
re

ga
te

1.
2%

1.
4%

6.
2%

-0
.1

1
-0

.0
8

0.
39

0.
37

Co
re

 F
ix

ed
 In

co
m

e
BB

gB
ar

c 
U

.S
. A

gg
re

ga
te

 B
on

d
2.

2%
2.

4%
6.

3%
0.

05
0.

08
1.

08
1.

09
Co

re
 P

lu
s F

ix
ed

 In
co

m
e

BB
gB

ar
c

U
.S

. C
or

po
ra

te
 IG

2.
7%

3.
0%

8.
3%

0.
10

0.
14

1.
21

1.
22

Sh
or

t-
Te

rm
 G

ov
’t/

Cr
ed

it
BB

gB
ar

c
U

.S
. G

ov
’t/

Cr
ed

it 
1-

3 
Ye

ar
1.

7%
1.

8%
3.

6%
-0

.0
6

-0
.0

3
1.

16
1.

17
Sh

or
t-

Te
rm

 C
re

di
t

BB
gB

ar
c 

Cr
ed

it 
1-

3 
Ye

ar
1.

9%
2.

0%
3.

6%
0.

01
0.

03
1.

76
1.

78
Lo

ng
-T

er
m

 C
re

di
t

BB
gB

ar
c 

Lo
ng

 U
.S

. C
or

po
ra

te
3.

0%
3.

4%
9.

4%
0.

12
0.

16
0.

93
0.

94
Hi

gh
 Y

ie
ld

 C
or

p.
 C

re
di

t
BB

gB
ar

c 
U

.S
. C

or
po

ra
te

 H
ig

h 
Yi

el
d

3.
3%

4.
0%

11
.3

%
0.

12
0.

18
1.

25
1.

26
Ba

nk
 L

oa
ns

S&
P/

LS
TA

 Le
ve

ra
ge

d 
Lo

an
5.

3%
5.

8%
10

.0
%

0.
34

0.
39

1.
47

1.
50

Gl
ob

al
 C

re
di

t
BB

gB
ar

c 
Gl

ob
al

 C
re

di
t

1.
4%

1.
6%

7.
4%

-0
.0

7
-0

.0
3

0.
77

0.
78

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

 D
eb

t (
Ha

rd
)

JP
M

 E
M

BI
 G

lo
ba

l D
iv

er
sif

ie
d

5.
0%

5.
7%

12
.4

%
0.

25
0.

31
1.

03
1.

03
Em

er
gi

ng
 M

ar
ke

ts
 D

eb
t (

Lo
ca

l)
JP

M
 G

BI
-E

M
 G

lo
ba

l D
iv

er
sif

ie
d

5.
7%

6.
4%

12
.0

%
0.

32
0.

37
0.

17
0.

22
Pr

iv
at

e 
Cr

ed
it

Ba
nk

 L
oa

ns
 +

 1
75

bp
s

7.
0%

7.
5%

10
.0

%
0.

51
0.

56
-

-
O

th
er

Co
m

m
od

iti
es

Bl
oo

m
be

rg
 C

om
m

od
ity

3.
8%

4.
9%

15
.4

%
0.

12
0.

20
-0

.3
6

-0
.2

9
He

dg
e 

Fu
nd

s*
HF

RI
 F

un
d 

W
ei

gh
te

d 
Co

m
po

sit
e

4.
0%

4.
3%

7.
7%

0.
27

0.
31

0.
55

0.
56

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

De
bt

BB
gB

ar
c

CM
BS

 IG
4.

0%
4.

3%
7.

6%
0.

27
0.

31
1.

55
1.

58
Co

re
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e
N

CR
EI

F 
Pr

op
er

ty
6.

6%
7.

3%
12

.4
%

0.
38

0.
44

1.
84

1.
89

Va
lu

e-
Ad

d 
Re

al
 E

st
at

e
N

CR
EI

F 
Pr

op
er

ty
 +

 2
00

bp
s

8.
6%

10
.0

%
17

.7
%

0.
38

0.
46

-
-

O
pp

or
tu

ni
st

ic
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e
N

CR
EI

F 
Pr

op
er

ty
 +

 4
00

bp
s

10
.6

%
12

.9
%

23
.0

%
0.

38
0.

48
-

-
RE

IT
s

W
ils

hi
re

 R
EI

T
6.

6%
8.

2%
19

.1
%

0.
25

0.
33

0.
80

0.
83

Gl
ob

al
 In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

S&
P 

Gl
ob

al
 In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

7.
2%

8.
6%

17
.8

%
0.

30
0.

38
0.

52
0.

56
Ri

sk
 P

ar
ity

Ri
sk

 P
ar

ity
6.

9%
7.

4%
10

.0
%

0.
50

0.
55

-
-

Cu
rr

en
cy

 B
et

a
M

SC
I C

ur
re

nc
y 

Fa
ct

or
 In

de
x 

1.
8%

1.
8%

3.
6%

-0
.0

4
-0

.0
2

0.
19

0.
21

In
fla

tio
n

1.
9%

-
-

-
-

-
-



-1
0%-5

%0%5%10
%

15
%

20
%

25
%

5t
h 

to
 2

5t
h

25
th

 to
 5

0t
h

50
th

 to
 7

5t
h

75
th

 to
 9

5t
h

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 R
et

ur
n

Ra
ng

e 
of

 li
ke

ly
 1

0-
ye

ar
 o

ut
co

m
es

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
02

0
CC

CE
RA

9

10
-Y

EA
R

 R
ET

U
R

N
 9

0%
 C

O
N

FI
D

EN
CE

 I
N

TE
R

V
A

L

Hi
gh

 V
ol

at
ili

ty
Lo

w
 V

ol
at

ili
ty

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

, M
PI



CO
R

R
EL

A
TI

O
N

 I
LL

U
ST

R
A

TI
O

N

Co
rr

el
at

io
ns

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
02

0
CC

CE
RA

A 
co

rr
el

at
io

n 
of

 1
 

in
di

ca
te

s 
tw

o 
as

se
ts

 m
ov

e 
in

 u
ni

so
n,

 a
nd

 th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

di
ve

rs
ifi

ca
tio

n 
be

ne
fit

. 

A 
co

rr
el

at
io

n 
of

 -1
 m

ea
ns

 
th

e 
as

se
ts

 b
eh

av
e 

as
 

pe
rf

ec
t o

pp
os

ite
s.

 

A 
co

rr
el

at
io

n 
of

 0
 m

ea
ns

 
th

e 
as

se
ts

’ b
eh

av
io

r i
s 

no
t 

re
la

te
d.

 

10

0%4%8%12
%

16
%

As
se

t C
la

ss
 A

As
se

t C
la

ss
 B

50
/5

0 
M

ix



Co
rr

el
at

io
n 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
02

0
CC

CE
RA

11

N
ot

e:
 C

or
re

la
tio

n 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

la
st

 te
n 

ye
ar

s.
 P

riv
at

e 
Eq

ui
ty

 a
nd

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

co
rr

el
at

io
ns

 a
re

 e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 d

iff
ic

ul
t t

o 
m

od
el

 –
w

e 
ha

ve
 th

er
ef

or
e 

us
ed

 B
ar

ra
O

ne
co

rr
el

at
io

n 
da

ta
 to

 st
re

ng
th

en
 th

es
e 

co
rr

el
at

io
n 

es
tim

at
es

.

Ca
sh

U
S 

La
rg

e
U

S 
Sm

al
l

In
tl 

La
rg

e
In

tl 
Sm

al
l

EM
G

lo
ba

l 
Eq

ui
ty

PE
U

S 
TI

PS
U

S 
Tr

ea
su

ry
G

lo
ba

l 
So

ve
re

ig
n

U
S 

Co
re

Co
re

 P
lu

s

Sh
or

t-
Te

rm
 

G
ov

't/
Cr

e
di

t

Sh
or

t-
Te

rm
 

Cr
ed

it

Lo
ng

-
Te

rm
 

Cr
ed

it
U

S 
HY

Ba
nk

 
Lo

an
s

G
lo

ba
l 

Cr
ed

it
EM

D 
U

SD
EM

D 
Lo

ca
l

Co
m

m
od

i
tie

s
He

dg
e 

Fu
nd

s
Re

al
 

Es
ta

te
RE

IT
s

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
Ri

sk
 

Pa
rit

y
Cu

rr
en

cy
 

Be
ta

Ca
sh

1.
0

U
S 

La
rg

e
0.

0
1.

0

U
S 

Sm
al

l
-0

.1
0.

9
1.

0

In
tl 

La
rg

e
0.

0
0.

9
0.

7
1.

0

In
tl 

Sm
al

l
-0

.1
0.

8
0.

7
1.

0
1.

0

EM
0.

0
0.

7
0.

6
0.

8
0.

8
1.

0

G
lo

ba
l E

qu
ity

0.
0

1.
0

0.
8

1.
0

0.
9

0.
9

1.
0

PE
-0

.2
0.

6
0.

6
0.

6
0.

6
0.

5
0.

6
1.

0

U
S 

TI
PS

0.
0

0.
0

-0
.1

0.
1

0.
1

0.
2

0.
1

0.
0

1.
0

U
S 

Tr
ea

su
ry

0.
1

-0
.4

-0
.5

-0
.3

-0
.3

-0
.2

-0
.4

-0
.2

0.
7

1.
0

G
lo

ba
l S

ov
er

ei
gn

0.
1

0.
2

0.
0

0.
3

0.
3

0.
4

0.
3

0.
0

0.
5

0.
4

1.
0

U
S 

Co
re

0.
1

-0
.2

-0
.3

-0
.1

-0
.1

0.
0

-0
.1

-0
.1

0.
8

0.
9

0.
5

1.
0

Co
re

 P
lu

s
0.

1
0.

1
0.

0
0.

2
0.

2
0.

3
0.

2
0.

0
0.

8
0.

7
0.

6
0.

9
1.

0
Sh

or
t-

Te
rm

 
G

ov
't/

Cr
ed

it
0.

3
-0

.1
-0

.2
0.

0
0.

0
0.

1
0.

0
-0

.1
0.

7
0.

7
0.

6
0.

8
0.

7
1.

0

Sh
or

t-
Te

rm
 C

re
di

t
0.

2
0.

2
0.

1
0.

4
0.

3
0.

4
0.

3
0.

0
0.

6
0.

4
0.

6
0.

6
0.

8
0.

8
1.

0

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 C

re
di

t
0.

1
0.

0
-0

.1
0.

1
0.

1
0.

2
0.

1
-0

.1
0.

7
0.

7
0.

5
0.

8
1.

0
0.

6
0.

6
1.

0

U
S 

HY
0.

0
0.

7
0.

7
0.

8
0.

8
0.

8
0.

8
0.

4
0.

3
-0

.2
0.

3
0.

1
0.

5
0.

2
0.

6
0.

4
1.

0

Ba
nk

 L
oa

ns
-0

.1
0.

6
0.

6
0.

6
0.

6
0.

6
0.

6
0.

4
0.

1
-0

.3
0.

0
-0

.1
0.

2
-0

.1
0.

3
0.

1
0.

8
1.

0

G
lo

ba
l C

re
di

t
0.

1
0.

5
0.

3
0.

7
0.

7
0.

7
0.

6
0.

2
0.

5
0.

2
0.

8
0.

5
0.

7
0.

5
0.

8
0.

6
0.

7
0.

4
1.

0

EM
D 

U
SD

0.
0

0.
4

0.
3

0.
6

0.
5

0.
7

0.
6

0.
2

0.
5

0.
3

0.
6

0.
5

0.
7

0.
4

0.
6

0.
6

0.
7

0.
3

0.
8

1.
0

EM
D 

Lo
ca

l
0.

1
0.

5
0.

4
0.

7
0.

6
0.

8
0.

6
0.

2
0.

4
0.

1
0.

6
0.

2
0.

5
0.

3
0.

5
0.

4
0.

6
0.

4
0.

8
0.

8
1.

0

Co
m

m
od

iti
es

0.
0

0.
5

0.
5

0.
6

0.
6

0.
6

0.
6

0.
3

0.
1

-0
.3

0.
4

-0
.1

0.
1

0.
1

0.
3

0.
0

0.
6

0.
4

0.
5

0.
4

0.
6

1.
0

He
dg

e 
Fu

nd
s

0.
0

0.
8

0.
7

0.
8

0.
8

0.
7

0.
9

0.
6

0.
1

-0
.3

0.
1

-0
.1

0.
2

0.
0

0.
3

0.
1

0.
7

0.
6

0.
5

0.
4

0.
4

0.
5

1.
0

Re
al

 E
st

at
e

-0
.1

0.
6

0.
5

0.
5

0.
5

0.
4

0.
6

0.
4

0.
2

0.
0

0.
1

0.
1

0.
1

0.
0

0.
1

0.
1

0.
4

0.
3

0.
2

0.
3

0.
3

0.
2

0.
5

1.
0

RE
IT

s
0.

0
0.

6
0.

6
0.

6
0.

5
0.

5
0.

6
0.

4
0.

3
0.

1
0.

3
0.

3
0.

4
0.

2
0.

4
0.

4
0.

6
0.

5
0.

5
0.

5
0.

5
0.

3
0.

5
0.

7
1.

0

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
0.

0
0.

7
0.

6
0.

9
0.

8
0.

8
0.

8
0.

7
0.

3
-0

.1
0.

5
0.

1
0.

4
0.

2
0.

5
0.

3
0.

8
0.

5
0.

7
0.

7
0.

7
0.

5
0.

7
0.

3
0.

7
1.

0

Ri
sk

 P
ar

ity
0.

0
0.

5
0.

4
0.

6
0.

5
0.

6
0.

6
0.

4
0.

6
0.

3
0.

5
0.

5
0.

7
0.

5
0.

6
0.

6
0.

7
0.

4
0.

7
0.

7
0.

6
0.

6
0.

6
0.

3
0.

5
0.

6
1.

0

Cu
rr

en
cy

 B
et

a
0.

0
0.

2
0.

2
0.

1
0.

0
0.

1
0.

1
0.

2
-0

.1
-0

.2
-0

.1
-0

.1
-0

.1
-0

.1
0.

0
-0

.1
0.

2
0.

1
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

1
0.

1
0.

0
0.

2
0.

1
0.

0
1.

0



A
 S

IM
PL

E 
2 

A
SS

ET
 E

FF
IC

IE
N

T 
FR

O
N

TI
ER

: 
ST

O
CK

S 
&

 B
O

N
D

S

H
ow

 it
 a

ll 
co

m
es

 to
ge

th
er

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
02

0
CC

CE
RA

W
he

n 
as

se
ts

 b
eh

av
e 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t f

ro
m

 o
ne

 
an

ot
he

r, 
th

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 

ou
tc

om
e 

is
 b

et
te

r t
ha

n 
th

e 
su

m
 o

f i
ts

 p
ar

ts
. 

12

0/
10

0

20
/8

0

40
/6

0

60
/4

0

70
/3

0
80

/2
0

10
0/

0

0.
0%

1.
0%

2.
0%

3.
0%

4.
0%

5.
0%

6.
0%

7.
0%

4.
0%

6.
0%

8.
0%

10
.0

%
12

.0
%

14
.0

%
16

.0
%

18
.0

%

Return

Ri
sk

; S
td

De
v

10
0%

 
gl

ob
al

 
eq

ui
ty

10
0%

 U
S 

Bo
nd

s

Gl
ob

al
 

St
oc

ks
Co

re
 P

lu
s 

Bo
nd

s

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 R
et

ur
n:

6.
4%

2.
7%

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 R
is

k:
16

.8
%

8.
3%

Co
rr

el
at

io
n:

0.
20

    
    

 



20
20

 v
s. 

20
19

 re
tu

rn
 fo

re
ca

st

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
02

0
CC

CE
RA

13

N
ot

e:
 y

ea
r-

ov
er

-y
ea

r c
ha

ng
e 

of
 th

e 
se

le
ct

 g
ro

up
 o

f a
ss

et
 c

la
ss

es
 a

bo
ve

 is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

20
20

 C
M

A 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy

-0
.3

%

0.
3%

-0
.7

%

0.
7%

-1
.0

%

-0
.3

%

-0
.9

%
-1

.0
%

-0
.7

%

-1
.1

%

-1
.4

%

-1
.1

%
-1

.3
%

-2
.4

%

-0
.6

%
-0

.7
%

-1
.7

%

-1
.2

%

-0
.4

%
-0

.4
%

0.
5%

0.
5%

-0
.6

%

-3
.0

%

-2
.5

%

-2
.0

%

-1
.5

%

-1
.0

%

-0
.5

%

0.
0%

0.
5%

1.
0%



CC
CE

RA
 p

or
tfo

lio
 fo

re
ca

st
CC

CE
R

A
 F

FP
TA

R
G

ET
S

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
02

0
CC

CE
RA

14

G
ro

w
th

66
%

Li
qu

id
ity

24
%

Di
ve

rs
ify

in
g

10
%

20
20

 1
0-

ye
ar

 C
ap

ita
l M

ar
ke

t P
ro

je
ct

io
ns

M
ed

ia
n 

Re
tu

rn
:

6.
5%

Ri
sk

:
10

.2
%

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

0.
45

20
19

 1
0-

ye
ar

 
es

tim
at

e:
 7

.1
%

20
20

 1
0-

ye
ar

 
es

tim
at

e:
 6

.5
%

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

W
ith

 a
 2

01
9 

re
al

ize
d 

re
tu

rn
 o

f 1
4.

6%
, t

he
 re

tu
rn

 w
ou

ld
 n

ee
d 

to
 

av
er

ag
e 

6.
25

%
 fo

r y
ea

rs
 2

-1
0 

fo
r t

hi
s 1

0-
ye

ar
 fo

re
ca

st
 to

 b
e 

co
rr

ec
t



Ap
pe

nd
ix

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
02

0
CC

CE
RA

15



N
O

VE
M

BE
R 

20
19

20
20

 C
ap

ita
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns



VE
RU

SI
N

VE
ST

M
EN

TS
.C

O
M

SE
AT

TL
E 

 2
06

-6
22

-3
70

0
LO

S 
AN

G
EL

ES
  3

10
-2

97
-1

77
7

SA
N

 F
RA

N
CI

SC
O

  4
15

-3
62

-3
48

4

Ta
bl

e 
of

 C
on

te
nt

s

2

Su
m

m
ar

y
3

In
fla

tio
n

10

Fi
xe

d 
in

co
m

e
12

Eq
ui

tie
s

18

Al
te

rn
at

iv
es

22

Ap
pe

nd
ix

31

Co
ns

ul
tin

g 
| 

O
ut

so
ur

ce
d 

CI
O

 (O
CI

O
) |

 R
isk

 A
dv

iso
ry

 |
 P

riv
at

e 
M

ar
ke

ts



Su
m

m
ar

y

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

3



M
et

ho
do

lo
gy

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

4

*L
on

g-
te

rm
 h

ist
or

ic
al

 v
ol

at
ili

ty
 d

at
a 

is 
ad

ju
st

ed
 fo

r a
ut

oc
or

re
la

tio
n 

(s
ee

 A
pp

en
di

x)
**

Th
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

cr
ed

it 
pr

em
iu

m
 is

 g
en

er
at

ed
 b

y 
ill

iq
ui

di
ty

, i
ss

ue
r s

ize
, a

nd
 la

ck
 o

f c
re

di
t r

at
in

g

CO
RE

 IN
PU

TS
—

W
e 

us
e 

a 
fu

nd
am

en
ta

l b
ui

ld
in

g 
bl

oc
k 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
se

ve
ra

l i
np

ut
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
hi

st
or

ic
al

 d
at

a 
an

d 
ac

ad
em

ic
 re

se
ar

ch
 to

 c
re

at
e 

as
se

t c
la

ss
 re

tu
rn

 fo
re

ca
st

s.
 

—
Fo

r m
os

t a
ss

et
 c

la
ss

es
, w

e 
us

e 
th

e 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 h
ist

or
ic

al
 v

ol
at

ili
ty

 a
ft

er
 a

dj
us

tin
g 

fo
r a

ut
oc

or
re

la
tio

n.
—

Co
rr

el
at

io
ns

 b
et

w
ee

n 
as

se
t c

la
ss

es
 a

re
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
la

st
 1

0 
ye

ar
s.

 F
or

 il
liq

ui
d 

as
se

ts
, s

uc
h 

as
 p

riv
at

e 
eq

ui
ty

 a
nd

pr
iv

at
e 

re
al

 e
st

at
e,

 w
e 

us
e 

Ba
rr

aO
ne

co
rr

el
at

io
n 

es
tim

at
es

.  
 

As
se

t
Re

tu
rn

 M
et

ho
do

lo
gy

Vo
la

til
ity

 M
et

ho
do

lo
gy

*

In
fla

tio
n

25
%

 w
ei

gh
t t

o 
th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f M

ic
hi

ga
n 

Su
rv

ey
 5

-1
0 

ye
ar

 a
he

ad
 in

fla
tio

n 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
Su

rv
ey

 o
f P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l F

or
ec

as
te

rs
(F

ed
 S

ur
ve

y)
, a

nd
 th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 5
0%

 to
 th

e 
m

ar
ke

t’s
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

n 
fo

r i
nf

la
tio

n 
as

 o
bs

er
ve

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
10

-y
ea

r T
IP

S 
br

ea
ke

ve
n 

ra
te

-

Ca
sh

Re
al

yi
el

d 
es

tim
at

e 
+ 

in
fla

tio
n 

fo
re

ca
st

Lo
ng

-t
er

m
 v

ol
at

ili
ty

Bo
nd

s
N

om
in

al
 b

on
ds

:c
ur

re
nt

 y
ie

ld
; R

ea
l b

on
ds

: r
ea

l y
ie

ld
 +

 in
fla

tio
n 

fo
re

ca
st

Lo
ng

-t
er

m
 v

ol
at

ili
ty

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l B
on

ds
Cu

rr
en

t y
ie

ld
Lo

ng
-t

er
m

 v
ol

at
ili

ty

Cr
ed

it
Cu

rr
en

to
pt

io
n-

ad
ju

st
ed

 s
pr

ea
d 

+ 
U

.S
. 1

0-
ye

ar
 T

re
as

ur
y 

–
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

de
fa

ul
t r

at
e

Lo
ng

-t
er

m
 v

ol
at

ili
ty

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l C
re

di
t

Cu
rr

en
to

pt
io

n-
ad

ju
st

ed
 s

pr
ea

d 
+ 

fo
re

ig
n 

10
-y

ea
r T

re
as

ur
y 

–
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

de
fa

ul
t r

at
e

Lo
ng

-t
er

m
 v

ol
at

ili
ty

Pr
iv

at
e 

Cr
ed

it
Ba

nk
 lo

an
 fo

re
ca

st
+ 

1.
75

%
 p

riv
at

e 
cr

ed
it 

pr
em

iu
m

**
Lo

ng
-t

er
m

 v
ol

at
ili

ty

Eq
ui

ty
Cu

rr
en

t y
ie

ld
 +

 re
al

 e
ar

ni
ng

s g
ro

w
th

 (h
ist

or
ic

al
 a

ve
ra

ge
) +

  i
nf

la
tio

n 
on

 e
ar

ni
ng

s 
(in

fla
tio

n 
fo

re
ca

st
)+

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
P/

E 
ch

an
ge

Lo
ng

-t
er

m
 v

ol
at

ili
ty

In
tl 

D
ev

el
op

ed
 E

qu
ity

Cu
rr

en
t y

ie
ld

 +
 re

al
 e

ar
ni

ng
s g

ro
w

th
 (h

ist
or

ic
al

 a
ve

ra
ge

) +
  i

nf
la

tio
n 

on
 e

ar
ni

ng
s 

(in
tl.

 in
fla

tio
n 

fo
re

ca
st

)+
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

P/
E 

ch
an

ge
Lo

ng
-t

er
m

 v
ol

at
ili

ty

Pr
iv

at
e

Eq
ui

ty
U

S 
la

rg
e 

ca
p 

do
m

es
tic

 e
qu

ity
fo

re
ca

st
 *

 1
.8

5 
be

ta
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t
1.

2 
* 

Lo
ng

-t
er

m
 v

ol
at

ili
ty

 o
f U

.S
. s

m
al

l c
ap

Co
m

m
od

iti
es

Co
lla

te
ra

l r
et

ur
n 

(c
as

h)
 +

 s
po

t r
et

ur
n 

(in
fla

tio
n 

fo
re

ca
st

) +
 ro

ll 
re

tu
rn

 (a
ss

um
ed

 to
 b

e 
ze

ro
)

Lo
ng

-t
er

m
 v

ol
at

ili
ty

H
ed

ge
 F

un
ds

Re
tu

rn
co

m
in

g 
fr

om
 tr

ad
iti

on
al

 b
et

as
 +

 1
5-

ye
ar

 h
ist

or
ic

al
 id

io
sy

nc
ra

tic
 re

tu
rn

Lo
ng

-t
er

m
 v

ol
at

ili
ty

Co
re

 R
ea

lE
st

at
e

Ca
p

ra
te

 +
 re

al
 in

co
m

e 
gr

ow
th

–
ca

pe
x 

+ 
in

fla
tio

n 
fo

re
ca

st
 

65
%

 o
f R

EI
T 

vo
la

til
ity

RE
IT

s
Co

re
 re

al
 e

st
at

e
Lo

ng
-t

er
m

 v
ol

at
ili

ty

Va
lu

e-
Ad

d
Re

al
 E

st
at

e
Co

re
 re

al
 e

st
at

e 
+ 

2%
Vo

la
til

ity
 to

 p
ro

du
ce

 S
ha

rp
e 

Ra
tio

 (g
) e

qu
al

 to
 c

or
e 

re
al

 e
st

at
e

O
pp

or
tu

ni
st

ic
Re

al
 E

st
at

e
Co

re
 re

al
 e

st
at

e 
+ 

4%
Vo

la
til

ity
 to

 p
ro

du
ce

 S
ha

rp
e 

Ra
tio

 (g
) e

qu
al

 to
 c

or
e 

re
al

 e
st

at
e

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
Cu

rr
en

t y
ie

ld
 +

 re
al

 in
co

m
e 

gr
ow

th
 +

 in
fla

tio
n 

on
 e

ar
ni

ng
s 

(in
fla

tio
n 

fo
re

ca
st

)
Lo

ng
-t

er
m

 v
ol

at
ili

ty

Ri
sk

 P
ar

ity
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 S

ha
rp

e 
Ra

tio
 *

 ta
rg

et
 v

ol
at

ili
ty

 +
 c

as
h 

ra
te

Ta
rg

et
 v

ol
at

ili
ty



10
-y

ea
r r

et
ur

n 
&

 ri
sk

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns 20

20
Ca

pi
ta

l M
ar

ke
t A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
5

In
ve

st
or

s w
ish

in
g 

to
 p

ro
du

ce
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

ge
om

et
ric

 re
tu

rn
 fo

re
ca

st
s f

or
 th

ei
r p

or
tfo

lio
s 

sh
ou

ld
 u

se
 th

e 
ar

ith
m

et
ic

 re
tu

rn
 fo

re
ca

st
s

pr
ov

id
ed

 h
er

e 
as

 in
pu

ts
 in

to
 th

at
 c

al
cu

la
tio

n,
 ra

th
er

 th
an

 th
e 

sin
gl

e-
as

se
t-

cl
as

s 
ge

om
et

ric
 re

tu
rn

 
fo

re
ca

st
s.

  T
hi

s i
s t

he
 in

du
st

ry
 st

an
da

rd
 a

pp
ro

ac
h,

 b
ut

 re
qu

ire
s 

a 
co

m
pl

ex
 e

xp
la

na
tio

n 
on

ly
 a

 h
ea

vy
 q

ua
nt

 c
ou

ld
 lo

ve
, s

o 
w

e 
ha

ve
ch

os
en

 n
ot

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 fu

rt
he

r d
et

ai
ls 

in
 th

is 
do

cu
m

en
t –

w
e 

w
ill

 h
ap

pi
ly

 p
ro

vi
de

 th
os

e 
de

ta
ils

 to
 

an
y 

re
ad

er
s o

f t
hi

s w
ho

 a
re

 in
te

re
st

ed
. 

*R
et

ur
n 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 d
iff

er
 d

ep
en

di
ng

 o
n 

m
et

ho
d 

of
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

As
se

t C
la

ss
In

de
x 

Pr
ox

y
Te

n 
Ye

ar
 R

et
ur

n 
Fo

re
ca

st
St

an
da

rd
 D

ev
ia

tio
n 

Fo
re

ca
st

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

 
Fo

re
ca

st
 (g

)
Sh

ar
pe

 R
at

io
 

Fo
re

ca
st

 (a
)

10
-Y

ea
r H

is
to

ric
al

 
Sh

ar
pe

 R
at

io
 (g

)
10

-Y
ea

r H
is

to
ric

al
 

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

 (a
)

G
eo

m
et

ric
 

Ar
ith

m
et

ic
 

Eq
ui

tie
s

U
.S

. L
ar

ge
S&

P 
50

0
5.

5%
6.

6%
15

.4
%

0.
23

0.
31

1.
01

1.
02

U
.S

. S
m

al
l

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0

5.
7%

7.
7%

21
.1

%
0.

18
0.

28
0.

62
0.

67
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l D

ev
el

op
ed

M
SC

I E
AF

E
7.

0%
8.

4%
17

.5
%

0.
29

0.
37

0.
30

0.
37

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l S
m

al
l

M
SC

I E
AF

E 
Sm

al
l C

ap
7.

2%
9.

3%
21

.8
%

0.
24

0.
34

0.
46

0.
52

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

M
SC

I E
M

7.
6%

10
.4

%
25

.6
%

0.
22

0.
33

0.
17

0.
25

Gl
ob

al
 E

qu
ity

M
SC

I A
CW

I
6.

4%
7.

7%
16

.8
%

0.
27

0.
34

0.
59

0.
63

Pr
iv

at
e 

Eq
ui

ty
*

Ca
m

br
id

ge
 P

riv
at

e 
Eq

ui
ty

8.
5%

11
.3

%
25

.3
%

0.
26

0.
37

-
-

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e
Ca

sh
30

 D
ay

 T
-B

ill
s

1.
9%

1.
9%

1.
2%

-
-

-
-

U
.S

. T
IP

S
BB

gB
ar

c
U

.S
. T

IP
S 

5-
10

2.
1%

2.
2%

5.
4%

0.
04

0.
06

0.
65

0.
66

U
.S

. T
re

as
ur

y
BB

gB
ar

c 
Tr

ea
su

ry
 7

-1
0 

Ye
ar

1.
7%

1.
9%

6.
7%

-0
.0

3
0.

00
0.

68
0.

69
Gl

ob
al

 S
ov

er
ei

gn
 e

x 
U

.S
.

BB
gB

ar
c 

Gl
ob

al
 T

re
as

ur
y 

ex
 U

.S
.

0.
1%

0.
6%

9.
7%

-0
.1

9
-0

.1
3

0.
10

0.
14

Gl
ob

al
 A

gg
re

ga
te

BB
gB

ar
c

Gl
ob

al
 A

gg
re

ga
te

1.
2%

1.
4%

6.
2%

-0
.1

1
-0

.0
8

0.
39

0.
37

Co
re

 F
ix

ed
 In

co
m

e
BB

gB
ar

c 
U

.S
. A

gg
re

ga
te

 B
on

d
2.

2%
2.

4%
6.

3%
0.

05
0.

08
1.

08
1.

09
Co

re
 P

lu
s F

ix
ed

 In
co

m
e

BB
gB

ar
c

U
.S

. C
or

po
ra

te
 IG

2.
7%

3.
0%

8.
3%

0.
10

0.
14

1.
21

1.
22

Sh
or

t-
Te

rm
 G

ov
’t/

Cr
ed

it
BB

gB
ar

c
U

.S
. G

ov
’t/

Cr
ed

it 
1-

3 
Ye

ar
1.

7%
1.

8%
3.

6%
-0

.0
6

-0
.0

3
1.

16
1.

17
Sh

or
t-

Te
rm

 C
re

di
t

BB
gB

ar
c 

Cr
ed

it 
1-

3 
Ye

ar
1.

9%
2.

0%
3.

6%
0.

01
0.

03
1.

76
1.

78
Lo

ng
-T

er
m

 C
re

di
t

BB
gB

ar
c 

Lo
ng

 U
.S

. C
or

po
ra

te
3.

0%
3.

4%
9.

4%
0.

12
0.

16
0.

93
0.

94
Hi

gh
 Y

ie
ld

 C
or

p.
 C

re
di

t
BB

gB
ar

c 
U

.S
. C

or
po

ra
te

 H
ig

h 
Yi

el
d

3.
3%

4.
0%

11
.3

%
0.

12
0.

18
1.

25
1.

26
Ba

nk
 L

oa
ns

S&
P/

LS
TA

 Le
ve

ra
ge

d 
Lo

an
5.

3%
5.

8%
10

.0
%

0.
34

0.
39

1.
47

1.
50

Gl
ob

al
 C

re
di

t
BB

gB
ar

c 
Gl

ob
al

 C
re

di
t

1.
4%

1.
6%

7.
4%

-0
.0

7
-0

.0
3

0.
77

0.
78

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

 D
eb

t (
Ha

rd
)

JP
M

 E
M

BI
 G

lo
ba

l D
iv

er
sif

ie
d

5.
0%

5.
7%

12
.4

%
0.

25
0.

31
1.

03
1.

03
Em

er
gi

ng
 M

ar
ke

ts
 D

eb
t (

Lo
ca

l)
JP

M
 G

BI
-E

M
 G

lo
ba

l D
iv

er
sif

ie
d

5.
7%

6.
4%

12
.0

%
0.

32
0.

37
0.

17
0.

22
Pr

iv
at

e 
Cr

ed
it

Ba
nk

 L
oa

ns
 +

 1
75

bp
s

7.
0%

7.
5%

10
.0

%
0.

51
0.

56
-

-
O

th
er

Co
m

m
od

iti
es

Bl
oo

m
be

rg
 C

om
m

od
ity

3.
8%

4.
9%

15
.4

%
0.

12
0.

20
-0

.3
6

-0
.2

9
He

dg
e 

Fu
nd

s*
HF

RI
 F

un
d 

W
ei

gh
te

d 
Co

m
po

sit
e

4.
0%

4.
3%

7.
7%

0.
27

0.
31

0.
55

0.
56

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

De
bt

BB
gB

ar
c

CM
BS

 IG
4.

0%
4.

3%
7.

6%
0.

27
0.

31
1.

55
1.

58
Co

re
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e
N

CR
EI

F 
Pr

op
er

ty
6.

6%
7.

3%
12

.4
%

0.
38

0.
44

1.
84

1.
89

Va
lu

e-
Ad

d 
Re

al
 E

st
at

e
N

CR
EI

F 
Pr

op
er

ty
 +

 2
00

bp
s

8.
6%

10
.0

%
17

.7
%

0.
38

0.
46

-
-

O
pp

or
tu

ni
st

ic
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e
N

CR
EI

F 
Pr

op
er

ty
 +

 4
00

bp
s

10
.6

%
12

.9
%

23
.0

%
0.

38
0.

48
-

-
RE

IT
s

W
ils

hi
re

 R
EI

T
6.

6%
8.

2%
19

.1
%

0.
25

0.
33

0.
80

0.
83

Gl
ob

al
 In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

S&
P 

Gl
ob

al
 In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

7.
2%

8.
6%

17
.8

%
0.

30
0.

38
0.

52
0.

56
Ri

sk
 P

ar
ity

Ri
sk

 P
ar

ity
6.

9%
7.

4%
10

.0
%

0.
50

0.
55

-
-

Cu
rr

en
cy

 B
et

a
M

SC
I C

ur
re

nc
y 

Fa
ct

or
 In

de
x 

1.
8%

1.
8%

3.
6%

-0
.0

4
-0

.0
2

0.
19

0.
21

In
fla

tio
n

1.
9%

-
-

-
-

-
-



Co
rr

el
at

io
n 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

6

N
ot

e:
 C

or
re

la
tio

n 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

la
st

 te
n 

ye
ar

s.
 P

riv
at

e 
Eq

ui
ty

 a
nd

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

co
rr

el
at

io
ns

 a
re

 e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 d

iff
ic

ul
t t

o 
m

od
el

 –
w

e 
ha

ve
 th

er
ef

or
e 

us
ed

 B
ar

ra
O

ne
co

rr
el

at
io

n 
da

ta
 to

 st
re

ng
th

en
 th

es
e 

co
rr

el
at

io
n 

es
tim

at
es

.

Ca
sh

U
S 

La
rg

e
U

S 
Sm

al
l

In
tl 

La
rg

e
In

tl 
Sm

al
l

EM
G

lo
ba

l 
Eq

ui
ty

PE
U

S 
TI

PS
U

S 
Tr

ea
su

ry
G

lo
ba

l 
So

ve
re

ig
n

U
S 

Co
re

Co
re

 P
lu

s

Sh
or

t-
Te

rm
 

G
ov

't/
Cr

e
di

t

Sh
or

t-
Te

rm
 

Cr
ed

it

Lo
ng

-
Te

rm
 

Cr
ed

it
U

S 
HY

Ba
nk

 
Lo

an
s

G
lo

ba
l 

Cr
ed

it
EM

D 
U

SD
EM

D 
Lo

ca
l

Co
m

m
od

i
tie

s
He

dg
e 

Fu
nd

s
Re

al
 

Es
ta

te
RE

IT
s

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
Ri

sk
 

Pa
rit

y
Cu

rr
en

cy
 

Be
ta

Ca
sh

1.
0

U
S 

La
rg

e
0.

0
1.

0

U
S 

Sm
al

l
-0

.1
0.

9
1.

0

In
tl 

La
rg

e
0.

0
0.

9
0.

7
1.

0

In
tl 

Sm
al

l
-0

.1
0.

8
0.

7
1.

0
1.

0

EM
0.

0
0.

7
0.

6
0.

8
0.

8
1.

0

G
lo

ba
l E

qu
ity

0.
0

1.
0

0.
8

1.
0

0.
9

0.
9

1.
0

PE
-0

.2
0.

6
0.

6
0.

6
0.

6
0.

5
0.

6
1.

0

U
S 

TI
PS

0.
0

0.
0

-0
.1

0.
1

0.
1

0.
2

0.
1

0.
0

1.
0

U
S 

Tr
ea

su
ry

0.
1

-0
.4

-0
.5

-0
.3

-0
.3

-0
.2

-0
.4

-0
.2

0.
7

1.
0

G
lo

ba
l S

ov
er

ei
gn

0.
1

0.
2

0.
0

0.
3

0.
3

0.
4

0.
3

0.
0

0.
5

0.
4

1.
0

U
S 

Co
re

0.
1

-0
.2

-0
.3

-0
.1

-0
.1

0.
0

-0
.1

-0
.1

0.
8

0.
9

0.
5

1.
0

Co
re

 P
lu

s
0.

1
0.

1
0.

0
0.

2
0.

2
0.

3
0.

2
0.

0
0.

8
0.

7
0.

6
0.

9
1.

0
Sh

or
t-

Te
rm

 
G

ov
't/

Cr
ed

it
0.

3
-0

.1
-0

.2
0.

0
0.

0
0.

1
0.

0
-0

.1
0.

7
0.

7
0.

6
0.

8
0.

7
1.

0

Sh
or

t-
Te

rm
 C

re
di

t
0.

2
0.

2
0.

1
0.

4
0.

3
0.

4
0.

3
0.

0
0.

6
0.

4
0.

6
0.

6
0.

8
0.

8
1.

0

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 C

re
di

t
0.

1
0.

0
-0

.1
0.

1
0.

1
0.

2
0.

1
-0

.1
0.

7
0.

7
0.

5
0.

8
1.

0
0.

6
0.

6
1.

0

U
S 

HY
0.

0
0.

7
0.

7
0.

8
0.

8
0.

8
0.

8
0.

4
0.

3
-0

.2
0.

3
0.

1
0.

5
0.

2
0.

6
0.

4
1.

0

Ba
nk

 L
oa

ns
-0

.1
0.

6
0.

6
0.

6
0.

6
0.

6
0.

6
0.

4
0.

1
-0

.3
0.

0
-0

.1
0.

2
-0

.1
0.

3
0.

1
0.

8
1.

0

G
lo

ba
l C

re
di

t
0.

1
0.

5
0.

3
0.

7
0.

7
0.

7
0.

6
0.

2
0.

5
0.

2
0.

8
0.

5
0.

7
0.

5
0.

8
0.

6
0.

7
0.

4
1.

0

EM
D 

U
SD

0.
0

0.
4

0.
3

0.
6

0.
5

0.
7

0.
6

0.
2

0.
5

0.
3

0.
6

0.
5

0.
7

0.
4

0.
6

0.
6

0.
7

0.
3

0.
8

1.
0

EM
D 

Lo
ca

l
0.

1
0.

5
0.

4
0.

7
0.

6
0.

8
0.

6
0.

2
0.

4
0.

1
0.

6
0.

2
0.

5
0.

3
0.

5
0.

4
0.

6
0.

4
0.

8
0.

8
1.

0

Co
m

m
od

iti
es

0.
0

0.
5

0.
5

0.
6

0.
6

0.
6

0.
6

0.
3

0.
1

-0
.3

0.
4

-0
.1

0.
1

0.
1

0.
3

0.
0

0.
6

0.
4

0.
5

0.
4

0.
6

1.
0

He
dg

e 
Fu

nd
s

0.
0

0.
8

0.
7

0.
8

0.
8

0.
7

0.
9

0.
6

0.
1

-0
.3

0.
1

-0
.1

0.
2

0.
0

0.
3

0.
1

0.
7

0.
6

0.
5

0.
4

0.
4

0.
5

1.
0

Re
al

 E
st

at
e

-0
.1

0.
6

0.
5

0.
5

0.
5

0.
4

0.
6

0.
4

0.
2

0.
0

0.
1

0.
1

0.
1

0.
0

0.
1

0.
1

0.
4

0.
3

0.
2

0.
3

0.
3

0.
2

0.
5

1.
0

RE
IT

s
0.

0
0.

6
0.

6
0.

6
0.

5
0.

5
0.

6
0.

4
0.

3
0.

1
0.

3
0.

3
0.

4
0.

2
0.

4
0.

4
0.

6
0.

5
0.

5
0.

5
0.

5
0.

3
0.

5
0.

7
1.

0

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
0.

0
0.

7
0.

6
0.

9
0.

8
0.

8
0.

8
0.

7
0.

3
-0

.1
0.

5
0.

1
0.

4
0.

2
0.

5
0.

3
0.

8
0.

5
0.

7
0.

7
0.

7
0.

5
0.

7
0.

3
0.

7
1.

0

Ri
sk

 P
ar

ity
0.

0
0.

5
0.

4
0.

6
0.

5
0.

6
0.

6
0.

4
0.

6
0.

3
0.

5
0.

5
0.

7
0.

5
0.

6
0.

6
0.

7
0.

4
0.

7
0.

7
0.

6
0.

6
0.

6
0.

3
0.

5
0.

6
1.

0

Cu
rr

en
cy

 B
et

a
0.

0
0.

2
0.

2
0.

1
0.

0
0.

1
0.

1
0.

2
-0

.1
-0

.2
-0

.1
-0

.1
-0

.1
-0

.1
0.

0
-0

.1
0.

2
0.

1
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

1
0.

1
0.

0
0.

2
0.

1
0.

0
1.

0



-1
0%-5

%0%5%10
%

15
%

20
%

25
%

5t
h 

to
 2

5t
h

25
th

 to
 5

0t
h

50
th

 to
 7

5t
h

75
th

 to
 9

5t
h

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 R
et

ur
n

Ra
ng

e 
of

 li
ke

ly
 1

0-
ye

ar
 o

ut
co

m
es

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

7

10
-Y

EA
R

 R
ET

U
R

N
 9

0%
 C

O
N

FI
D

EN
CE

 I
N

TE
R

V
A

L

Hi
gh

 V
ol

at
ili

ty
Lo

w
 V

ol
at

ili
ty

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

, M
PI



20
20

 v
s. 

20
19

 re
tu

rn
 fo

re
ca

st

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

8

N
ot

e:
 y

ea
r-

ov
er

-y
ea

r c
ha

ng
e 

of
 th

e 
se

le
ct

 g
ro

up
 o

f a
ss

et
 c

la
ss

es
 a

bo
ve

 is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

20
20

 C
M

A 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy

-0
.3

%

0.
3%

-0
.7

%

0.
7%

-1
.0

%

-0
.3

%

-0
.9

%
-1

.0
%

-0
.7

%

-1
.1

%

-1
.4

%

-1
.1

%
-1

.3
%

-2
.4

%

-0
.6

%
-0

.7
%

-1
.7

%

-1
.2

%

-0
.4

%
-0

.4
%

0.
5%

0.
5%

-0
.6

%

-3
.0

%

-2
.5

%

-2
.0

%

-1
.5

%

-1
.0

%

-0
.5

%

0.
0%

0.
5%

1.
0%



Re
le

va
nt

 fo
re

ca
st

 ch
an

ge
s

—
Re

tu
rn

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

 fe
ll 

br
oa

dl
y 

ac
ro

ss
 m

os
t a

ss
et

 c
la

ss
es

 a
s b

on
d 

yi
el

ds
 m

ov
ed

 lo
w

er
, e

qu
iti

es
 re

co
ve

re
d 

fr
om

 th
ei

r 2
01

8 
en

d-
of

-y
ea

r d
ra

w
do

w
n,

 a
nd

 v
al

ua
tio

ns
 b

ec
am

e 
ric

he
r.

Th
is 

ef
fe

ct
 re

su
lte

d 
in

 a
 d

ec
re

as
e 

of
 b

et
w

ee
n 

0.
7%

-1
.0

%
 to

 n
on

-U
.S

. 
eq

ui
ty

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

. 

—
M

ar
ke

t p
ric

in
g 

in
di

ca
te

s 
lo

w
er

 in
fla

tio
n 

ov
er

 th
e 

ne
xt

 d
ec

ad
e.

 T
he

 1
0y

r U
.S

. T
IP

S 
br

ea
ke

ve
n 

in
fla

tio
n 

ra
te

 fe
ll 

fr
om

 1
.7

%
 to

 
1.

5%
 y

ea
r-

to
-d

at
e,

 w
hi

le
 th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f M

ic
hi

ga
n 

In
fla

tio
n 

Ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 S
ur

ve
y 

fe
ll 

fr
om

 2
.5

%
 to

 2
.4

%
. I

nf
la

tio
n 

is 
an

 
im

po
rt

an
t c

om
po

ne
nt

 to
 th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f a
ss

et
 c

la
ss

es
 su

ch
 a

s e
qu

iti
es

, r
ea

l e
st

at
e,

 a
nd

 c
om

m
od

iti
es

. R
et

ur
n 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 fo
r t

he
se

 a
ss

et
 c

la
ss

es
 h

as
 c

om
e 

do
w

n 
by

 0
.1

%
 to

 0
.2

%
 to

 re
fle

ct
 th

is 
in

fla
tio

n 
tr

en
d.

 It
 is

 im
po

rt
an

t t
o 

no
te

 
th

at
 lo

w
er

 in
fla

tio
n 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 d
ec

re
as

e 
no

m
in

al
re

tu
rn

s,
 b

ut
 d

o 
no

t i
m

pa
ct

 re
al

 re
tu

rn
s.

 

—
Cr

ed
it 

sp
re

ad
s d

ro
pp

ed
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ye
ar

 a
s t

he
 a

ss
et

 c
la

ss
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 st
ro

ng
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, w

hi
ch

 re
su

lte
d 

in
 lo

w
er

 re
tu

rn
 

fo
re

ca
st

s f
or

 cr
ed

it 
as

se
ts

. C
or

e 
fix

ed
 in

co
m

e 
sp

re
ad

s f
el

l f
ro

m
72

 b
ps

 to
 6

2 
bp

s,
 a

nd
 h

ig
h 

yi
el

d 
sp

re
ad

s f
el

l f
ro

m
 5

29
 b

ps
 to

 
39

6 
bp

s.

—
Th

e 
sh

or
t e

nd
 o

f t
he

 y
ie

ld
 c

ur
ve

 fe
ll 

as
 th

e 
Fe

de
ra

l R
es

er
ve

 re
ve

rs
ed

 c
ou

rs
e,

 a
nd

 U
.S

. m
ar

ke
ts

 m
ov

ed
 to

w
ar

ds
 a

 d
ec

re
as

in
g 

in
te

re
st

 ra
te

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t. 

Th
e 

U.
S.

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
fe

d 
fu

nd
s r

at
e 

dr
op

pe
d 

fr
om

 2
.3

%
 a

t t
he

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f t
he

 y
ea

r t
o 

1.
9%

 in
 

Se
pt

em
be

r. 
Th

e 
th

re
e-

m
on

th
 U

.S
. d

ol
la

r L
IB

O
R 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
ra

te
 fe

ll 
fr

om
 2

.8
%

 to
 2

.1
%

.

—
Em

er
gi

ng
 m

ar
ke

t h
ar

d 
an

d 
lo

ca
l c

ur
re

nc
y 

de
bt

 fo
re

ca
st

s h
av

e 
bo

th
 d

ec
lin

ed
, f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
st

ro
ng

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 y
ea

r-
to

-d
at

e.
 

Ha
rd

 c
ur

re
nc

y-
de

no
m

in
at

ed
 d

eb
t s

pr
ea

ds
 to

 U
.S

. T
re

as
ur

y 
yi

el
ds

 fe
ll 

fr
om

 4
21

 b
ps

 to
 3

51
 b

ps
, w

hi
le

 y
ie

ld
s o

f l
oc

al
-

de
no

m
in

at
ed

 d
eb

t f
el

l f
ro

m
 7

.2
%

 to
 6

.0
%

. 

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

Al
l d

at
a 

ci
te

d 
ab

ov
e 

is 
as

 o
f 9

/3
0/

19

9



In
fla

tio
n

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

10



W
e 

us
e 

a 
w

ei
gh

te
d 

av
er

ag
e 

of
 m

ar
ke

t e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

 (5
0%

), 
co

ns
um

er
 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 (2
5%

), 
an

d 
pr

of
es

sio
na

l f
or

ec
as

ts
 (2

5%
) t

o 
cr

ea
te

 a
 1

0-
ye

ar
 

in
fla

tio
n 

fo
re

ca
st

. T
he

 m
ar

ke
t’s

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

 fo
r 1

0-
ye

ar
 in

fla
tio

n 
ca

n 
be

 
in

fe
rr

ed
 b

y 
ta

ki
ng

 th
e 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
U.

S.
 1

0-
ye

ar
 T

re
as

ur
y 

yi
el

d 
an

d 
th

e 
10

-y
ea

r T
re

as
ur

y 
In

fla
tio

n-
Pr

ot
ec

te
d 

(T
IP

S)
 y

ie
ld

 (r
ef

er
re

d 
to

 a
s 

th
e 

br
ea

ke
ve

n 
in

fla
tio

n 
ra

te
).

In
fla

tio
n 

dr
ift

ed
 u

pw
ar

d 
in

 2
01

9,
 re

ac
hi

ng
 th

e 
le

ve
ls 

no
t s

ee
n 

in
 th

e 
pa

st
 

de
ca

de
. H

ow
ev

er
, i

nv
es

to
rs

 g
en

er
al

ly
 e

xp
ec

t t
he

 lo
w

 in
fla

tio
n 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t t

o 
co

nt
in

ue
 w

el
l i

nt
o 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
. B

re
ak

ev
en

 ra
te

s r
os

e 
in

 th
e 

fir
st

 q
ua

rt
er

 b
ut

 th
en

 tr
en

de
d 

do
w

nw
ar

d 
in

 Q
2 

an
d 

Q
3,

 li
ke

ly
 a

ffe
ct

ed
 b

y 

pe
ss

im
ism

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

U.
S.

 e
co

no
m

y. 
O

ve
ra

ll,
 in

fla
tio

n 
le

ve
ls 

re
m

ai
n 

m
ild

, 
re

la
tiv

e 
to

 p
as

t e
co

no
m

ic
 c

yc
le

s.
 

Co
ns

um
er

 in
fla

tio
n 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
ve

ry
 sl

ig
ht

ly
 fr

om
 2

.7
%

 to
 2

.8
%

 
in

 S
ep

te
m

be
r, 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f M
ic

hi
ga

n 
Co

ns
um

er
 In

fla
tio

n 
Ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
 S

ur
ve

y. 
In

fla
tio

n 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
 fr

om
 th

e 
Su

rv
ey

 o
f 

Pr
of

es
sio

na
l F

or
ec

as
te

rs
 fe

ll 
fr

om
 2

.4
%

 to
 2

.3
%

 -
th

is 
m

ea
su

re
 h

as
 

hi
st

or
ic

al
ly

 b
ee

n 
fa

irl
y 

st
ab

le
, e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 in
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ts
 ch

ar
ac

te
riz

ed
 b

y 
su

pp
re

ss
ed

 in
fla

tio
n 

vo
la

til
ity

. 

O
ur

 in
fla

tio
n 

fo
re

ca
st

 d
ec

re
as

ed
 sl

ig
ht

ly
 fr

om
 2

.0
%

 to
 1

.9
%

.

IN
FL

A
TI

O
N

 E
X

PE
CT

A
TI

O
N

S
U

.S
. 

10
-Y

R
 R

O
LL

IN
G

 A
V

ER
A

G
E 

IN
FL

A
TI

O
N

 S
IN

CE
 

19
23

FO
R

EC
A

ST

In
fla

tio
n

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

So
ur

ce
: U

. o
f M

ic
hi

ga
n,

 P
hi

lly
 F

ed
, a

s o
f 9

/3
0/

19
So

ur
ce

: B
lo

om
be

rg
, a

s o
f 9

/3
0/

19
So

ur
ce

: V
er

us
, a

s o
f 9

/3
0/

19

11

10
-Y

ea
r F

or
ec

as
t

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f M
ic

hi
ga

n 
Su

rv
ey

 
(2

5%
 w

ei
gh

t)
+2

.4
%

Su
rv

ey
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l 
Fo

re
ca

st
er

s 
(2

5%
 w

ei
gh

t)
+2

.2
%

U
S 

10
-Y

ea
r T

IP
S 

Br
ea

ke
ve

n
Ra

te
 (5

0%
 w

ei
gh

t)
+1

.5
%

In
fla

tio
n 

Fo
re

ca
st

1.
9%

1.
0%

2.
0%

3.
0%

4.
0%

De
c-

11
De

c-
12

De
c-

13
De

c-
14

De
c-

15
De

c-
16

De
c-

17
De

c-
18

U
S 

Te
n 

Ye
ar

 B
re

ak
ev

en
 In

fla
tio

n 
Ra

te
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f M

ic
hi

ga
n 

Su
rv

ey
 5

-1
0 

In
fla

tio
n 

Ex
pe

ct
at

io
n 

(m
ea

n)
Su

rv
ey

 o
f P

ro
fe

sio
na

l F
or

ec
as

te
rs

02040608010
0

12
0

14
0

-3
.5

%
-1

.5
%

0.
5%

2.
5%

4.
5%

6.
5%

8.
5%

Count of Inflation Bucket

In
fla

tio
n 

Bu
ck

et

Av
er

ag
e:

3.
1%

Fo
re

ca
st

:1
.9

%



Fi
xe

d 
in

co
m

e

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

12



A
V

ER
A

G
E 

R
EA

L 
R

ET
U

R
N

U
.S

. 
TR

EA
SU

R
Y 

YI
EL

D
 C

U
R

V
E

FO
R

EC
A

ST

Ca
sh

Th
e 

U.
S.

 T
re

as
ur

y 
yi

el
d 

cu
rv

e 
fu

rt
he

r f
la

tt
en

ed
 in

 th
e 

la
tt

er
 h

al
f o

f t
he

 
ye

ar
, i

nv
er

tin
g 

te
m

po
ra

ril
y 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

10
-a

nd
 2

-y
ea

r y
ie

ld
s.

 B
y 

ot
he

r 
m

ea
su

re
s,

 su
ch

 a
s t

he
 sp

re
ad

 b
et

w
ee

n 
10

-y
ea

r a
nd

 3
-m

on
th

 y
ie

ld
s,

 
th

e 
cu

rv
e 

re
m

ai
ns

 in
ve

rt
ed

. F
ro

m
 th

e 
tim

e 
of

 in
ve

rs
io

n,
 th

e 
U.

S.
 

ec
on

om
y 

ha
s h

ist
or

ic
al

ly
 e

nt
er

ed
 re

ce
ss

io
n 

w
ith

in
 1

-3
 y

ea
rs

. H
ow

ev
er

, 
un

pr
ec

ed
en

te
d 

m
on

et
ar

y 
po

lic
y 

an
d 

ce
nt

ra
l b

an
k 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t i

n 
th

e 
m

ar
ke

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
ha

vi
ng

 a
n 

ou
ts

ize
d 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
fix

ed
 in

co
m

e 
pr

ic
in

g,
 

w
hi

ch
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
ud

dy
in

g 
th

is 
sig

na
l.

O
ve

r r
ol

lin
g 

te
n-

ye
ar

 ti
m

e 
pe

rio
ds

, t
he

 a
ve

ra
ge

 h
ist

or
ic

al
 re

al
 re

tu
rn

 to
 

ca
sh

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
14

%
 o

f t
he

 re
al

 re
tu

rn
 to

 lo
ng

-t
er

m
 b

on
ds

. 

By
 a

pp
ly

in
g 

th
is 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 re

al
 re

tu
rn

 re
la

tio
ns

hi
p,

 w
e 

ar
riv

e 
at

 a
 -3

 b
ps

 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 re

al
 re

tu
rn

 to
 c

as
h 

(1
4%

 o
f o

ur
 -2

5 
bp

s 1
0-

ye
ar

 U
.S

. T
re

as
ur

y 
re

al
 re

tu
rn

 fo
re

ca
st

) a
s r

ea
l y

ie
ld

s a
re

 n
ow

 n
eg

at
iv

e.

Ad
di

ng
 o

ur
 in

fla
tio

n 
fo

re
ca

st
 o

f 1
.9

%
 re

su
lts

 in
 a

 n
om

in
al

 re
tu

rn
 to

 
ca

sh
 o

f 1
.9

%
.

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

So
ur

ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg

So
ur

ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg

, a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

, a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

13

10
-Y

ea
r F

or
ec

as
t

Ca
sh

+1
.8

8%

In
fla

tio
n 

Fo
re

ca
st

-1
.9

1%

Re
al

Re
tu

rn
-0

.0
3%

0.
0%

0.
5%

1.
0%

1.
5%

2.
0%

2.
5%

3.
0%

Ca
sh

Lo
ng

 B
on

d

14
%

 o
f L

on
g 

Bo
nd

-1012345

1M
3M

6M
1Y

2Y
3Y

5Y
7Y

10
Y

12
Y

15
Y

20
Y

30
Y

U
S 

Tr
ea

su
ry

 C
ur

ve
 9

/3
0/

19
U

S 
Tr

ea
su

ry
 C

ur
ve

 1
2/

31
/1

8

U
S 

Tr
ea

su
ry

 C
ur

ve
 1

2/
31

/1
0

U
S 

Tr
ea

su
ry

 C
ur

ve
 1

2/
31

/0
5



U
.S

. 
10

-Y
R

 T
R

EA
SU

R
Y 

YI
EL

D
U

.S
. 

TR
EA

SU
R

Y 
YI

EL
D

 C
U

R
V

E
FO

R
EC

A
ST

Ra
te

s
W

e 
fo

re
ca

st
 th

e 
re

tu
rn

 fr
om

 ra
te

s b
as

ed
 u

po
n 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 1

0-
ye

ar
 

Tr
ea

su
ry

 y
ie

ld
, w

ith
 a

ll 
ca

sh
 fl

ow
s r

ei
nv

es
te

d 
at

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t y

ie
ld

. T
he

 
10

-y
ea

r y
ie

ld
 fe

ll 
fr

om
 2

.7
%

 to
 1

.7
%

 th
ro

ug
h 

Se
pt

em
be

r. 

U.
S.

 T
re

as
ur

y 
yi

el
ds

 re
m

ai
n 

hi
gh

 re
la

tiv
e 

to
 o

th
er

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 n

at
io

ns
, 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 Ja

pa
n 

an
d 

G
er

m
an

y.
 U

.S
. y

ie
ld

s m
ar

ch
ed

 u
pw

ar
d 

in
 2

01
7 

an
d 

20
18

, b
ut

 re
ve

rs
ed

 sh
ar

pl
y 

in
 2

01
9 

as
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
 fo

r U
.S

. 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 so

ur
ed

 a
nd

 th
e 

Fe
de

ra
l R

es
er

ve
 s

hi
ft

ed
 to

 a
n 

ea
sin

g 
st

an
ce

. T
he

 U
.S

. y
ie

ld
 c

ur
ve

 re
m

ai
ns

 su
rp

ris
in

gl
y 

fla
t. 

De
ve

lo
pe

d 
w

or
ld

 c
en

tr
al

 b
an

ks
 h

av
e 

sh
ift

ed
 th

ei
r n

ar
ra

tiv
e 

fr
om

 
tig

ht
en

in
g 

to
 e

as
in

g.
 D

isc
us

sio
ns

 h
av

e 
ta

ke
n 

pl
ac

e 
ov

er
 fi

sc
al

 st
im

ul
us

 
or

 p
er

ha
ps

 re
ne

w
ed

 q
ua

nt
ita

tiv
e 

ea
sin

g.
 It

 is
 u

nc
le

ar
 h

ow
 p

ot
en

t a
 

re
tu

rn
 to

 m
on

et
ar

y 
ea

sin
g 

w
ou

ld
 b

e,
 n

ow
 th

at
 in

te
re

st
 ra

te
s h

av
e 

be
en

 lo
w

 (o
r n

eg
at

iv
e)

 fo
r s

om
e 

tim
e.

 

In
 th

e 
U.

S.
, f

ur
th

er
 ra

te
 c

ut
s a

re
 e

xp
ec

te
d,

 w
ith

 ra
te

 st
ab

ili
za

tio
n 

po
ss

ib
ly

 o
cc

ur
rin

g 
in

 la
te

 2
02

0.
 It

 is
 p

os
sib

le
 th

at
 th

e 
ne

xt
 re

ce
ss

io
n 

m
ay

 b
rin

g 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
in

te
re

st
 ra

te
s t

o 
th

e 
U.

S.
, i

n 
lin

e 
w

ith
 se

cu
la

rly
 lo

w
 

in
te

re
st

 ra
te

s e
lse

w
he

re
.

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

So
ur

ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg

, a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

So
ur

ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg

, a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

, a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

14

10
-Y

ea
r F

or
ec

as
t

U
.S

. 1
0-

Ye
ar

Tr
ea

su
ry

+1
.7

%

In
fla

tio
n 

Fo
re

ca
st

-1
.9

%

Re
al

Re
tu

rn
-0

.2
%

-1
%0%1%2%3%4%5%

1M
3M

6M
1Y

2Y
3Y

5Y
7Y

10
Y

12
Y

15
Y

20
Y

30
Y

U
S 

Tr
ea

su
ry

 C
ur

ve
 9

/3
0/

19
U

S 
Tr

ea
su

ry
 C

ur
ve

 1
2/

31
/1

8

U
S 

Tr
ea

su
ry

 C
ur

ve
 1

2/
31

/1
0

U
S 

Tr
ea

su
ry

 C
ur

ve
 1

2/
31

/0
5

0.
0%

0.
5%

1.
0%

1.
5%

2.
0%

2.
5%

3.
0%

3.
5%

Se
p-

16
Se

p-
17

Se
p-

18
Se

p-
19



N
O

M
IN

A
L 

YI
EL

D
 V

S.
 R

EA
L

IN
FL

A
TI

O
N

 E
X

PE
CT

A
TI

O
N

S
FO

R
EC

A
ST

Re
al

 ra
te

s
TI

PS
 p

ro
vi

de
 h

ig
h 

se
ns

iti
vi

ty
 to

 d
ur

at
io

n 
(in

te
re

st
 ra

te
 ri

sk
) o

ve
r s

ho
rt

 
pe

rio
ds

 a
nd

 tr
ac

k 
in

fla
tio

n 
(C

PI
) f

ai
rly

 w
el

l o
ve

r l
on

ge
r p

er
io

ds
. 

Ch
an

gi
ng

 in
fla

tio
n 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

, d
em

an
d 

fo
r i

nf
la

tio
n 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n,
 a

nd
 

ra
te

 m
ov

em
en

ts
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 th
e 

pr
ic

e 
vo

la
til

ity
 o

f T
IP

S.
 C

ur
re

nt
ly,

 
fu

tu
re

 in
fla

tio
n 

is 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

m
ild

, t
he

re
 is

 lo
w

 d
em

an
d 

fo
r 

in
fla

tio
n 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n,
 a

nd
 in

te
re

st
 ra

te
s a

re
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 fa

ll.
 T

hi
s 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t m

ay
 b

e 
m

ut
in

g 
th

e 
pr

ic
e 

of
 T

IP
S.

Th
e 

U.
S.

 1
0-

ye
ar

 re
al

 y
ie

ld
 fe

ll 
st

ea
di

ly
 th

ro
ug

h 
Q

3,
 a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 U
.S

. T
IP

S 
Br

ea
ke

ve
n 

ra
te

s.
 In

fla
tio

n 
ro

se
 sl

ig
ht

ly,
 d

ep
re

ss
in

g 
re

al
 y

ie
ld

s.
 

Br
ea

ke
ve

n 
ra

te
s r

os
e 

in
 th

e 
fir

st
 q

ua
rt

er
 b

ut
 tr

en
de

d 
do

w
nw

ar
d 

in
 Q

2 
an

d 
Q

3,
 li

ke
ly

 im
pa

ct
ed

 b
y 

pe
ss

im
ism

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

do
m

es
tic

 e
co

no
m

y.
 

To
 a

rr
iv

e 
at

 a
 n

om
in

al
 1

0-
ye

ar
 fo

re
ca

st
, w

e 
ad

d 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t r
ea

l T
IP

S 
yi

el
d 

to
 o

ur
 1

0-
ye

ar
 in

fla
tio

n 
fo

re
ca

st
. O

ur
 re

al
 ra

te
s f

or
ec

as
t f

el
l 

m
ar

ke
dl

y 
fr

om
 1

.0
%

 to
 0

.1
%

 a
s n

om
in

al
 in

te
re

st
 ra

te
 d

ro
pp

ed
 m

uc
h 

fu
rt

he
r t

ha
n 

in
fla

tio
n 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

. 20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

So
ur

ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg

, a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

  
So

ur
ce

: B
lo

om
be

rg
, a

s o
f 9

/3
0/

19
So

ur
ce

: V
er

us
, a

s o
f 9

/3
0/

19
 

15

10
-Y

ea
r F

or
ec

as
t

U
.S

. 1
0-

Ye
ar

TI
PS

 R
ea

l Y
ie

ld
+0

.1
4%

In
fla

tio
n 

Fo
re

ca
st

+1
.9

1%

N
om

in
al

 R
et

ur
n

2.
05

%

-2
%0%2%4%6%

Ap
r-

01
Ap

r-
04

M
ar

-0
7

M
ar

-1
0

Fe
b-

13
Ja

n-
16

Ja
n-

19
U

SA
 C

PI
U

S 
Br

ea
ke

ve
n 

10
 Y

ea
r

U
M

ic
h 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 P

ric
e

-1
%0%1%2%3%4%

Ja
n-

13
Ap

r-
14

Ju
l-1

5
O

ct
-1

6
Ja

n-
18

Ap
r-

19

U
S 

N
om

in
al

 Y
ie

ld
U

S 
Re

al
 Y

ie
ld

N
om

in
al

 - 
Re

al



U
.S

. 
CO

R
E 

CR
ED

IT
 S

PR
EA

D
R

O
LL

IN
G

 E
X

CE
SS

 R
ET

U
R

N
 (

10
-Y

R
)

FO
R

EC
A

ST

Co
re

 fi
xe

d
Cr

ed
it 

fix
ed

 in
co

m
e 

re
tu

rn
 is

 c
om

po
se

d 
of

 a
 b

on
d 

te
rm

 p
re

m
iu

m
 

(d
ur

at
io

n)
 a

nd
 c

re
di

t s
pr

ea
d.

 T
he

 b
on

d 
te

rm
 p

re
m

iu
m

 is
 re

pr
es

en
te

d 
by

 th
e 

10
-y

ea
r U

.S
. T

re
as

ur
y 

yi
el

d.
 

W
e 

us
e 

de
fa

ul
t r

at
es

 a
nd

 c
re

di
t s

pr
ea

ds
 fo

r e
ac

h 
re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

fix
ed

 
in

co
m

e 
ca

te
go

ry
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 o
ur

 1
0-

ye
ar

 re
tu

rn
 fo

re
ca

st
. O

ur
 d

ef
au

lt 
ra

te
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
is 

de
riv

ed
 fr

om
 a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f s

ou
rc

es
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
hi

st
or

ic
al

 d
at

a 
an

d 
ac

ad
em

ic
 re

se
ar

ch
. T

he
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

de
fa

ul
t t

ha
t i

s 
su

bt
ra

ct
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

re
tu

rn
 fo

re
ca

st
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
ou

r a
ss

um
ed

 d
ef

au
lt 

an
d 

re
co

ve
ry

 ra
te

s.

Sp
re

ad
s t

ig
ht

en
ed

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
ye

ar
, w

hi
ch

 re
su

lte
d 

in
 lo

w
er

 re
tu

rn
 

fo
re

ca
st

s f
or

 c
re

di
t a

ss
et

s.
 C

or
e 

fix
ed

 in
co

m
e 

sp
re

ad
s r

em
ai

n 
be

lo
w

 
th

ei
r 3

0-
ye

ar
 a

ve
ra

ge
 o

f 1
.2

5%
. W

id
en

in
g 

cr
ed

it 
sp

re
ad

s a
re

 ty
pi

ca
l o

f 
la

te
-c

yc
le

 b
eh

av
io

r, 
as

 in
ve

st
or

s d
em

an
d 

gr
ea

te
r c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

fo
r 

hi
gh

er
 p

er
ce

iv
ed

 c
re

di
t r

isk
. R

ec
en

t a
ct

iv
ity

 su
gg

es
ts

 in
ve

st
or

s a
re

 n
ot

 
ye

t c
on

ce
rn

ed
 a

bo
ut

 la
te

-c
yc

le
 c

re
di

t m
ar

ke
t i

ss
ue

s.
 

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

So
ur

ce
: B

ar
cl

ay
s,

 a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

So
ur

ce
: B

ar
cl

ay
s,

 a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

, a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

 

16

10
-Y

ea
r F

or
ec

as
t

Ba
rc

la
ys

 U
.S

. O
pt

io
n-

Ad
ju

st
ed

 S
pr

ea
d

+0
.6

%

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
De

fa
ul

t
-0

.1
%

U
.S

. 1
0-

Ye
ar

 T
re

as
ur

y
+1

.7
%

N
om

in
al

Re
tu

rn
2.

2%

In
fla

tio
n 

Fo
re

ca
st

-1
.9

%

Re
al

 R
et

ur
n

0.
3%

-1
.00.
0

1.
0

2.
0 De

c-
88

De
c-

94
De

c-
00

De
c-

06
De

c-
12

De
c-

18

Percent (%)

Ba
rc

la
ys

 U
S 

Ag
g 

Bo
nd

 - 
BC

 In
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 T
re

as
ur

y
Av

er
ag

e 
ex

ce
ss

 re
tu

rn

0%1%2%3%

Ju
n-

89
Ju

n-
94

Ju
n-

99
Ju

n-
04

Ju
n-

09
Ju

n-
14

Ju
n-

19

U
S 

Co
re

 S
pr

ea
d

Av
er

ag
e 

US
 C

or
e 

Sp
re

ad



Cr
ed

it 
su

m
m

ar
y

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

17

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

Co
re

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 

Cr
ed

it
G

lo
ba

l C
re

di
t

Hi
gh

 Y
ie

ld
Ba

nk
Lo

an
s

EM
 D

eb
t 

(U
SD

)
EM

 D
eb

t 
(L

oc
al

)
Pr

iv
at

e 
Cr

ed
it

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

De
bt

In
de

x
BB

gB
ar

cU
.S

.
Ag

gr
eg

at
e

BB
gB

ar
cL

on
g 

U
.S

. C
or

po
ra

te
BB

gB
ar

cG
lo

ba
l 

Cr
ed

it
BB

gB
ar

cU
.S

. H
ig

h 
Yi

el
d

S&
P 

LS
TA

JP
M

 E
M

BI
 

JP
M

 G
BI

-E
M

S&
P

LT
SA

 +
 

1.
75

%
BB

gB
ar

cC
M

BS
 

IG

M
et

ho
d

O
AS

 +
 U

.S
.

10
-Y

ea
r

O
AS

 +
 U

.S
.

10
-Y

ea
r

O
AS

 +
 G

lo
ba

l
10

-Y
ea

r 
Tr

ea
su

rie
s

O
AS

 +
 U

.S
.

10
-Y

ea
r

LI
BO

R 
+ 

Sp
re

ad
O

AS
 +

 U
.S

. 
10

-Y
ea

r
Cu

rr
en

t Y
ie

ld
Ba

nk
Lo

an
s+

 
1.

75
%

 p
riv

at
e 

pr
em

iu
m

LI
BO

R 
+ 

Sp
re

ad

Sp
re

ad
 to

In
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 
U

.S
. T

re
as

ur
y

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 U

.S
. 

Tr
ea

su
ry

Gl
ob

al
 L

on
g-

Te
rm

 T
re

as
ur

ie
s

In
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 U
.S

. 
Tr

ea
su

ry
LI

BO
R

In
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 
U

.S
. T

re
as

ur
y

-
-

LI
BO

R

De
fa

ul
t 

As
su

m
pt

io
n

-0
.5

%
-4

.5
%

-3
.0

%
-3

.8
%

-3
.5

%
-0

.5
%

-0
.5

%
-

-3
.7

%

Re
co

ve
ry

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n
80

%
95

%
40

%
40

%
90

%
60

%
40

%
-

47
%

Sp
re

ad
0.

6%
1.

5%
2.

0%
4.

0%
3.

6%
3.

5%
-

-
4.

0%

Yi
el

d
-

-
-

-
-

-
6.

0%
-

-

Ri
sk

Fr
ee

 Y
ie

ld
1.

7%
1.

7%
1.

1%
1.

7%
2.

1%
1.

7%
-

-
2.

0%

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
De

fa
ul

t
-0

.1
%

-0
.2

%
-1

.8
%

-2
.3

%
-0

.4
%

-0
.2

%
-0

.3
%

-
-2

.0
%

N
om

in
al

 R
et

ur
n

2.
2%

3.
0%

1.
4%

3.
4%

5.
3%

5.
0%

5.
7%

7.
1%

4.
0%

In
fla

tio
n

Fo
re

ca
st

1.
9%

1.
9%

1.
9%

1.
9%

1.
9%

1.
9%

1.
9%

1.
9%

1.
9%

Re
al

 R
et

ur
n

0.
3%

1.
1%

-0
.6

%
1.

4%
3.

4%
3.

1%
3.

8%
5.

2%
2.

1%



Eq
ui

tie
s

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

18



In
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

ns
 in

 th
e 

eq
ui

ty
 sp

ac
e 

ca
n 

be
 b

ro
ke

n 
do

w
n 

in
to

 e
ar

ni
ng

s 
gr

ow
th

, d
iv

id
en

d 
yi

el
d,

 in
fla

tio
n,

 a
nd

 re
pr

ic
in

g.
 O

ve
r t

he
 v

er
y 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
, 

re
pr

ic
in

g 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 a
 sm

al
l p

or
tio

n 
of

 re
tu

rn
 to

 e
qu

ity
 in

ve
st

or
s,

 b
ut

 o
ve

r 
sh

or
te

r t
im

e 
fr

am
es

, t
he

 im
pa

ct
s o

n 
re

tu
rn

 c
an

 v
ar

y 
co

ns
id

er
ab

ly
.

If 
in

ve
st

or
s a

re
 w

ill
in

g 
to

 p
ay

 m
or

e 
fo

r e
ar

ni
ng

s,
 it

 c
ou

ld
 si

gn
al

 th
at

 in
ve

st
or

s 
ar

e 
m

or
e 

co
nf

id
en

t i
n 

po
sit

iv
e 

ea
rn

in
gs

 g
ro

w
th

 g
oi

ng
 fo

rw
ar

d,
 w

hi
le

 th
e 

op
po

sit
e 

is 
tr

ue
 if

 in
ve

st
or

s p
ay

 le
ss

 fo
r e

ar
ni

ng
s.

 It
 is

 so
m

ew
ha

t s
ur

pr
isi

ng
 

th
at

 in
ve

st
or

 c
on

fid
en

ce
 v

ar
ie

s s
o 

m
uc

h 
gi

ve
n 

th
at

 th
e 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 e

ar
ni

ng
s 

gr
ow

th
 is

 re
la

tiv
el

y 
st

ab
le

. 

In
ve

st
or

 c
on

fid
en

ce
 in

 e
ar

ni
ng

s g
ro

w
th

 c
an

 b
e 

m
ea

su
re

d 
us

in
g 

bo
th

 th
e 

Sh
ill

er
 P

/E
 ra

tio
 a

nd
 th

e 
tr

ai
lin

g 
12

-m
on

th
 P

/E
 ra

tio
. W

e 
ta

ke
 a

n 
av

er
ag

e 
of

 
th

es
e 

tw
o 

va
lu

at
io

ns
 m

et
ric

s w
he

n 
de

te
rm

in
in

g 
ou

r r
ep

ric
in

g 
as

su
m

pt
io

n.
 In

 
sh

or
t, 

if 
th

e 
P/

E 
ra

tio
 is

 to
o 

hi
gh

 (l
ow

) r
el

at
iv

e 
to

 h
ist

or
y,

 w
e 

ex
pe

ct
 fu

tu
re

 
re

tu
rn

s t
o 

be
 lo

w
er

 (h
ig

he
r)

 th
an

 th
e 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 a

ve
ra

ge
. I

m
pl

ic
it 

in
 th

is 
an

al
ys

is 
is 

th
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

th
at

 P
/E

’s
 w

ill
 e

xh
ib

it 
m

ild
 m

ea
n 

re
ve

rs
io

n 
ov

er
 1

0 
ye

ar
s.

 

W
e 

m
ak

e 
a 

co
ns

er
va

tiv
e 

re
pr

ic
in

g 
es

tim
at

e 
gi

ve
n 

ho
w

 w
id

el
y 

re
pr

ic
in

g 
ca

n 
va

ry
 o

ve
r t

im
e.

 W
e 

th
en

 sk
ew

 th
e 

re
pr

ic
in

g 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t b
ec

au
se

 th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 in
de

x 
pr

ic
e 

is 
la

rg
er

 w
ith

 e
ac

h 
in

cr
em

en
ta

l r
ise

 in
 

va
lu

at
io

ns
 w

he
n 

P/
E’

s a
re

 lo
w

, c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 w
he

n 
th

ey
 a

re
 h

ig
h.

TR
A

IL
IN

G
 1

0-
YR

 S
&

P 
50

0 
R

ET
U

R
N

 C
O

M
PO

SI
TI

O
N

U
.S

. 
LA

R
G

E 
SH

IL
LE

R
 P

/E
P/

E 
R

EP
R

IC
IN

G
 A

SS
U

M
PT

IO
N

Eq
ui

tie
s

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

So
ur

ce
: S

hi
lle

r, 
St

an
da

rd
 &

 P
oo

r’s
, a

s o
f 9

/3
0/

19
So

ur
ce

: S
hi

lle
r, 

S&
P 

50
0,

 a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

 

19

Av
er

ag
e 

P/
E

Pe
rc

en
til

e 
Bu

ck
et

Lo
w

er
 P

/E
U

pp
er

 P
/E

Re
pr

ic
in

g 
As

su
m

pt
io

n
Lo

w
er

 1
0%

-
10

2.
00

%

10
%

 -
20

%
10

13
1.

50
%

20
%

 -
30

%
13

15
0.

75
%

30
%

 -
45

%
15

18
0.

50
%

45
%

 -
55

%
18

19
0.

0%

55
%

 -
70

%
19

21
-0

.2
5%

70
%

 -
80

%
21

22
-0

.5
0%

80
%

 -
90

%
22

24
-0

.7
5%

To
p 

10
%

24
-

-1
.0

0%

05101520253035404550 Ja
n-

35
Ja

n-
55

Ja
n-

75
Ja

n-
95

Ja
n-

15

-2
0%

-1
0%0%10

%

20
%

30
% Ja

n-
36

Ja
n-

56
Ja

n-
76

Ja
n-

96
Ja

n-
16

Di
vi

de
nd

 Y
ie

ld
In

fla
tio

n 
Gr

ow
th

Re
al

 E
ar

ni
ng

s G
ro

w
th

Re
pr

ic
in

g 
Re

tu
rn

10
 Y

r. 
Ro

lli
ng

 R
et

ur
n



G
lo

ba
l E

qu
ity

 is
 a

 c
om

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 U

.S
. l

ar
ge

, i
nt

er
na

tio
na

l d
ev

el
op

ed
, 

an
d 

em
er

gi
ng

 m
ar

ke
t e

qu
iti

es
.  

W
e 

ca
n 

th
er

ef
or

e 
co

m
bi

ne
 o

ur
 e

xi
st

in
g 

re
tu

rn
 fo

re
ca

st
s f

or
 e

ac
h 

of
 th

es
e 

as
se

t c
la

ss
es

 to
 a

rr
iv

e 
at

 o
ur

 g
lo

ba
l 

eq
ui

ty
 re

tu
rn

 fo
re

ca
st

. 

W
e 

us
e 

th
e 

M
SC

I A
CW

I I
nd

ex
 a

s o
ur

 b
en

ch
m

ar
k 

fo
r g

lo
ba

l e
qu

ity
 a

nd
 

ap
pl

y 
th

e 
co

un
tr

y 
w

ei
gh

ts
 o

f t
hi

s i
nd

ex
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

w
ei

gh
tin

gs
 

fo
r o

ur
 g

lo
ba

l e
qu

ity
 re

tu
rn

 c
al

cu
la

tio
n.

 A
s w

ith
 o

th
er

 e
qu

ity
 a

ss
et

 
cl

as
se

s,
 w

e 
us

e 
th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
al

 st
an

da
rd

 d
ev

ia
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

be
nc

hm
ar

k 
(M

SC
I A

CW
I I

nd
ex

) f
or

 o
ur

 v
ol

at
ili

ty
 fo

re
ca

st
.

Th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 g
lo

ba
l e

qu
iti

es
 a

re
 d

riv
en

 b
y 

th
e 

ric
hn

es
s/

ch
ea

pn
es

s 
of

 th
e 

un
de

rly
in

g 
m

ar
ke

ts
, a

s i
nd

ic
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t p
ric

e-
to

-
ea

rn
in

gs
 ra

tio
. 

O
ur

 re
tu

rn
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

bl
oc

ks
 p

ro
du

ce
 a

 lo
ca

l r
et

ur
n 

fo
re

ca
st

 fo
r 

in
te

rn
at

io
na

l e
qu

iti
es

. F
or

 in
ve

st
or

s w
ho

 w
ish

 to
 in

co
rp

or
at

e 
m

ar
ke

t 
im

pl
ie

d 
cu

rr
en

cy
 m

ov
em

en
ts

 in
to

 th
e 

re
tu

rn
 fo

re
ca

st
, p

le
as

e 
se

e 
th

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 e

xp
la

na
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

. 

G
LO

B
A

L 
EQ

U
IT

Y 
P/

E 
R

A
TI

O
 H

IS
TO

R
Y

M
A

R
KE

T 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

CE
 (

3-
YR

 R
O

LL
IN

G
)

FO
R

EC
A

ST

G
lo

ba
l e

qu
ity

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

So
ur

ce
: M

SC
I, 

as
 o

f 9
/3

0/
19

So
ur

ce
: M

SC
I, 

St
an

da
rd

 &
 P

oo
r’s

, a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

, a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

20

M
ar

ke
t

W
ei

gh
t

CM
A 

re
tu

rn

U
.S

. L
ar

ge
54

.2
%

5.
5%

De
ve

lo
pe

d 
La

rg
e

32
.4

%
7.

0%

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

10
.3

%
7.

6%

Ca
na

da
3.

1%
8.

9%

Gl
ob

al
 E

qu
ity

 F
or

ec
as

t 
6.

4%

-2
0

-1
0010203040 De

c-
08

De
c-

10
De

c-
12

De
c-

14
De

c-
16

De
c-

18

Annualized Return (%)

U
S 

La
rg

e
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l D

ev
el

op
ed

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

0510152025303540 M
ar

-9
5

M
ar

-0
1

M
ar

-0
7

M
ar

-1
3

M
ar

-1
9

Cu
rr

en
t P

E
Av

er
ag

e 
PE

Ri
ch

er Ch
ea

pe
r

Av
er

ag
e 

= 
20

.0



Eq
ui

ty
 su

m
m

ar
y

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

21

Da
ta

 a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

*A
ve

ra
ge

 tr
ai

lin
g 

P/
E 

fr
om

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
12

 m
on

th
s i

s u
se

d
N

O
TE

: F
or

 a
ll 

eq
ui

tie
s,

 w
e 

ex
cl

ud
e 

da
ta

 p
rio

r t
o 

19
72

, w
hi

ch
 a

llo
w

s f
or

 a
 m

or
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 c

om
pa

ris
on

 b
et

w
ee

n 
da

ta
 se

ts

U
.S

. L
ar

ge
U

.S
. S

m
al

l
EA

FE
EA

FE
 S

m
al

l
EM

In
de

x
S&

P 
50

0
Ru

ss
el

l 2
00

0
M

SC
I E

AF
E 

La
rg

e
M

SC
I E

AF
E 

Sm
al

l
M

SC
I E

M

M
et

ho
d

Bu
ild

in
g

Bl
oc

k 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
: c

ur
re

nt
 d

iv
id

en
d 

yi
el

d 
+ 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 a

ve
ra

ge
 re

al
 e

ar
ni

ng
s g

ro
w

th
 +

 in
fla

tio
n 

on
 e

ar
ni

ng
s +

 re
pr

ic
in

g 

Cu
rr

en
t S

hi
lle

r P
/E

 R
at

io
29

.0
45

.1
17

.5
-

10
.5

Re
gu

la
rP

/E
 R

at
io

19
.5

41
.0

16
.7

18
.7

*
13

.3

20
19

 S
hi

lle
rP

/E
 C

ha
ng

e
+1

.8
%

+5
.6

%
+9

.4
%

-
+4

.0
%

20
19

Re
gu

la
r P

/E
 C

ha
ng

e
+1

4.
0%

-8
.3

%
+2

4.
6%

-2
1.

4%
+1

4.
9%

Cu
rr

en
t S

hi
lle

r P
/E

 P
er

ce
nt

ile
 R

an
k

81
%

93
%

34
%

-
18

%

Cu
rr

en
t R

eg
ul

ar
 P

/E
 P

er
ce

nt
ile

 R
an

k
74

%
90

%
46

%
18

%
*

34
%

Av
er

ag
e 

of
 P

/E
 M

et
ho

ds
’P

er
ce

nt
ile

 R
an

k
77

%
92

%
40

%
18

%
*

26
%

20
19

 Y
TD

 R
et

ur
n

20
.5

%
14

.2
%

12
.8

%
12

.1
%

5.
9%

Sh
ill

er
 P

E 
Hi

st
or

y
19

82
19

88
19

82
N

ot
 E

no
ug

h 
Hi

st
or

y
20

05

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 A

ve
ra

ge
Sh

ill
er

 P
/E

22
.9

31
.1

22
.6

-
15

.1

Cu
rr

en
t D

iv
id

en
d 

Yi
el

d
2.

0%
1.

8%
3.

5%
2.

7%
3.

0%

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 A

ve
ra

ge
 R

ea
l E

ar
ni

ng
s G

ro
w

th
2.

1%
3.

1%
1.

9%
1.

9%
1.

9%

In
fla

tio
n 

on
 E

ar
ni

ng
s

1.
9%

1.
9%

1.
1%

1.
1%

1.
9%

Re
pr

ic
in

g 
Ef

fe
ct

(E
st

im
at

e)
-0

.5
%

-1
.0

%
0.

5%
1.

5%
0.

8%

N
om

in
al

 R
et

ur
n

5.
5%

5.
7%

7.
0%

7.
2%

7.
6%

In
fla

tio
n

Fo
re

ca
st

1.
9%

1.
9%

1.
9%

1.
1%

1.
9%

Re
al

 R
et

ur
n

3.
6%

3.
8%

5.
1%

6.
1%

5.
7%



Al
te

rn
at

iv
es

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

22



PR
IV

A
TE

 E
Q

U
IT

Y 
EX

CE
SS

 R
ET

U
R

N
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(P
E 

–
U

.S
. 

SM
A

LL
 C

A
P

EQ
U

IT
Y)

PR
IV

A
TE

 E
Q

U
IT

Y 
IM

PL
EM

EN
TA

TI
O

N
 F

O
R

EC
A

ST
S

PR
IV

A
TE

 E
Q

U
IT

Y 
U

N
IV

ER
SE

 F
O

R
EC

A
ST

Pr
iv

at
e 

eq
ui

ty
Pr

iv
at

e 
eq

ui
ty

 a
nd

 p
ub

lic
 e

qu
ity

 re
tu

rn
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
co

rr
el

at
ed

 
hi

st
or

ic
al

ly
 b

ec
au

se
 th

e 
un

de
rly

in
g 

ec
on

om
ic

 fo
rc

es
 d

riv
in

g 
th

es
e 

as
se

t 
cl

as
s r

et
ur

ns
 a

re
 q

ui
te

 si
m

ila
r. 

Th
e 

re
tu

rn
 re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
tw

o 
ca

n 
va

ry
 in

 th
e 

sh
or

t-
te

rm
, b

ut
 o

ve
r t

he
 lo

ng
-t

er
m

 in
ve

st
or

s h
av

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

 p
re

m
iu

m
, d

riv
en

 b
y 

le
ve

ra
ge

, c
on

ce
nt

ra
te

d 
fa

ct
or

 e
xp

os
ur

e 
(s

m
al

le
r a

nd
 u

nd
er

va
lu

ed
 c

om
pa

ni
es

), 
sk

ill
, a

nd
 p

os
sib

ly
 il

liq
ui

di
ty

. 

Hi
st

or
ic

al
ly,

 th
e 

be
ta

 o
f p

riv
at

e 
eq

ui
ty

 re
la

tiv
e 

to
 p

ub
lic

 e
qu

iti
es

 h
as

 
be

en
 h

ig
h.

 W
e 

us
e 

a 
be

ta
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
of

 1
.8

5 
to

 U
.S

. l
ar

ge
 c

ap
 e

qu
iti

es
 

in
 o

ur
 c

ap
ita

l m
ar

ke
t f

or
ec

as
t.

Pr
iv

at
e 

eq
ui

ty
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 ty

pi
ca

lly
 d

iff
er

s 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

ap
pr

oa
ch

. W
e 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
10

-y
ea

r f
or

ec
as

t f
or

 th
e 

en
tir

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
eq

ui
ty

 u
ni

ve
rs

e 
of

 8
.5

%
. D

ire
ct

 p
riv

at
e 

eq
ui

ty
 p

ro
gr

am
s 

ha
ve

 h
ist

or
ic

al
ly

 o
ut

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 th

e 
br

oa
de

r u
ni

ve
rs

e 
by

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

1.
0%

, a
nd

 w
e 

fo
re

ca
st

 d
ire

ct
 p

riv
at

e 
eq

ui
ty

 a
cc

or
di

ng
ly

 w
ith

 a
 fo

re
ca

st
 

of
 9

.5
%

. P
riv

at
e 

eq
ui

ty
 fu

nd
-o

f-f
un

d 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

ha
ve

 h
ist

or
ic

al
ly

 la
gg

ed
 

th
e 

un
iv

er
se

 b
y 

1.
0%

, a
nd

 w
e 

fo
re

ca
st

 p
riv

at
e 

eq
ui

ty
 F

oF
at

 7
.5

%
 to

 
re

fle
ct

 th
is 

dr
ag

. 

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

So
ur

ce
: C

am
br

id
ge

, R
us

se
ll,

 a
s o

f 3
/3

1/
19

 
So

ur
ce

: V
er

us
, a

s o
f 9

/3
0/

19
 

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

, a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

23

10
-Y

ea
r F

or
ec

as
t

U
.S

. L
ar

ge
 C

ap
Fo

re
ca

st
+5

.5
%

1.
85

 B
et

a 
M

ul
tip

lie
r

+3
.0

%

N
om

in
al

 R
et

ur
n

+8
.5

%

In
fla

tio
n 

Fo
re

ca
st

-1
.9

%

Re
al

 R
et

ur
n

+6
.6

%

10
-Y

ea
r F

or
ec

as
t

Pr
iv

at
e 

Eq
ui

ty
 U

ni
ve

rs
e 

Fo
re

ca
st

+8
.5

%

Pr
iv

at
e 

Eq
ui

ty
 F

oF
Fo

re
ca

st
+7

.5
%

Pr
iv

at
e 

Eq
ui

ty
 D

ire
ct

 F
or

ec
as

t
+9

.5
%

5.
1%

-0
.5

%

6.
0%

4.
0%

-2
%

-1
%0%1%2%3%4%5%6%7%

5 
Ye

ar
10

 Y
ea

r
15

 Y
ea

r
20

 Y
ea

r

Ca
m

br
id

ge
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s U
S 

PE
 R

et
ur

n 
- R

us
se

ll 
20

00
 R

et
ur

n



H
ED

G
E 

FU
N

D
 F

O
R

EC
A

ST

H
ed

ge
 fu

nd
s

He
dg

e 
fu

nd
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 v

ar
ia

tio
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

tim
e 

ca
n 

be
 p

ar
tly

 
ex

pl
ai

ne
d 

by
 p

ub
lic

 m
ar

ke
t b

et
as

 (e
x:

 e
qu

ity
, r

at
es

, c
re

di
t, 

co
m

m
od

iti
es

) a
nd

 p
ar

tly
 e

xp
la

in
ed

 b
y 

no
n-

pu
bl

ic
 s

ou
rc

es
 o

f r
et

ur
n 

(e
x:

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
be

ta
s,

 sk
ill

, l
uc

k)
. C

er
ta

in
 h

ed
ge

 fu
nd

 st
ra

te
gi

es
 ca

n 
be

 
m

os
tly

 e
xp

la
in

ed
 b

y 
pu

bl
ic

 m
ar

ke
t b

et
as

, w
hi

le
 o

th
er

 ty
pe

s o
f h

ed
ge

 
fu

nd
 st

ra
te

gi
es

 a
re

 d
riv

en
 m

os
tly

 b
y 

no
n-

pu
bl

ic
 s

ou
rc

es
 o

f r
et

ur
n.

 

To
 fo

re
ca

st
 h

ed
ge

 fu
nd

 re
tu

rn
s,

 w
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 h
ist

or
ic

al
 

he
dg

e 
fu

nd
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
at

tr
ib

ut
ed

 to
 p

ub
lic

 m
ar

ke
t 

be
ta

s,
 a

nd
 th

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 h
ed

ge
 fu

nd
 re

tu
rn

s t
ha

t c
an

no
t b

e 
at

tr
ib

ut
ed

 
to

 p
ub

lic
 m

ar
ke

t b
et

a.
 T

hi
s m

ea
ns

 o
ur

 fo
re

ca
st

 h
as

 tw
o 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s:

 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 m

ar
ke

t r
et

ur
n 

(e
xp

la
in

ed
 re

tu
rn

) a
nd

 th
e 

no
n-

pu
bl

ic
 m

ar
ke

t 
re

tu
rn

 (u
ne

xp
la

in
ed

 re
tu

rn
). 

To
 fo

re
ca

st
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 m
ar

ke
t b

et
a 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 h

ed
ge

 fu
nd

s,
 w

e 
ta

ke
 th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
al

 se
ns

iti
vi

ty
 o

f h
ed

ge
 fu

nd
s 

to
 e

qu
ity

, r
at

es
, c

re
di

t, 
an

d 
co

m
m

od
iti

es
 a

nd
 p

ai
r t

he
se

 w
ith

 o
ur

 c
ur

re
nt

 1
0-

ye
ar

 p
ub

lic
 m

ar
ke

t 
fo

re
ca

st
s f

or
 e

ac
h 

as
se

t c
la

ss
. T

o 
fo

re
ca

st
 th

e 
no

n-
pu

bl
ic

 m
ar

ke
t r

et
ur

n 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 h
ed

ge
 fu

nd
s (

un
ex

pl
ai

ne
d 

re
tu

rn
) w

e 
sim

pl
y 

as
su

m
e 

th
e 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 th

es
e 

so
ur

ce
s 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 
ov

er
 th

e 
ne

xt
 1

0 
ye

ar
s.

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

, a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

, a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

24

HE
DG

E 
FU

N
D 

PU
BL

IC
 M

AR
KE

T 
SO

U
RC

ES
 O

F 
RE

TU
RN

 
(E

XP
LA

IN
ED

 R
ET

U
RN

)

Eq
ui

ty

Ra
te

s

Cr
ed

it

Co
m

m
od

iti
es

HE
DG

E 
FU

N
D 

N
O

N
-P

U
BL

IC
 S

O
U

RC
ES

 O
F 

RE
TU

RN
 

(U
N

EX
PL

AI
N

ED
 R

ET
U

RN
)

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

be
ta

s

Sk
ill

Lu
ck

10
-Y

ea
r F

or
ec

as
t

Pu
bl

ic
 M

ar
ke

t %
 o

f R
et

ur
n

+2
.2

%

N
on

-P
ub

lic
 M

ar
ke

t %
 o

f 
Re

tu
rn

+1
.8

%

N
om

in
al

 R
et

ur
n

+4
.0

%

In
fla

tio
n 

Fo
re

ca
st

-1
.9

%

Re
al

 R
et

ur
n

+2
.1

%

FO
R

EC
A

ST

4.
0%

0%1%2%3%4%5%

Re
tu

rn
Eq

ui
ty

Cr
ed

it
Ra

te
s

Co
m

m
od

iti
es

U
ne

xp
la

in
ed

Fo
re

ca
st



TR
A

IL
IN

G
 1

0-
YR

 N
CR

EI
F

R
ET

U
R

N
 C

O
M

PO
SI

TI
O

N
PR

IV
A

TE
 R

EA
L 

ES
TA

TE
R

EI
TS

Pr
iv

at
e 

co
re

 re
al

 e
st

at
e/

RE
IT

S
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 N
CR

EI
F 

pr
op

er
ty

 in
de

x 
ca

n 
be

 d
ec

om
po

se
d 

in
to

 a
n 

in
co

m
e 

re
tu

rn
 (c

ap
 ra

te
) a

nd
 c

ap
ita

l r
et

ur
n.

 T
he

 re
tu

rn
 c

om
in

g 
fr

om
 

in
co

m
e 

ha
s h

ist
or

ic
al

ly
 b

ee
n 

m
or

e 
st

ab
le

 th
an

 th
e 

re
tu

rn
 d

er
iv

ed
 fr

om
 

ca
pi

ta
l c

ha
ng

es
.

Th
e 

ca
p 

ra
te

 is
 th

e 
ra

tio
 o

f e
ar

ni
ng

s l
es

s e
xp

en
se

s t
o 

pr
ic

e,
 a

nd
 d

oe
s 

no
t i

nc
lu

de
 e

xt
ra

or
di

na
ry

 e
xp

en
se

s.
 A

 m
or

e 
ac

cu
ra

te
 m

ea
su

re
 o

f t
he

 
yi

el
d 

in
ve

st
or

s r
ec

ei
ve

 sh
ou

ld
 in

cl
ud

e 
no

n-
re

cu
rr

in
g 

ca
pi

ta
l 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s;

 w
e 

as
su

m
e 

a 
2.

0%
 c

ap
ex

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

. W
e 

al
so

 a
ss

um
e 

in
co

m
e 

gr
ow

th
 w

ill
 tr

ac
k 

in
fla

tio
n 

as
 h

ig
he

r p
ric

es
 a

re
 p

as
se

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
to

 re
nt

s.
 

Pr
iv

at
e 

re
al

 e
st

at
e 

an
d 

RE
IT

s h
av

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 v

er
y 

sim
ila

r r
et

ur
ns

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

. I
nv

es
to

rs
 sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ca
re

fu
l w

he
n 

co
m

pa
rin

g 
ris

k-
ad

ju
st

ed
 re

tu
rn

s 
of

 p
ub

lic
ly

 tr
ad

ed
 a

ss
et

s t
o 

re
tu

rn
s o

f a
pp

ra
isa

l p
ric

ed
 

as
se

ts
, d

ue
 to

 sm
oo

th
in

g 
ef

fe
ct

s.
 W

hi
le

 p
riv

at
e 

re
al

 e
st

at
e 

ap
pe

ar
s 

to
 

be
 le

ss
 v

ol
at

ile
 th

an
 R

EI
Ts

, t
he

 tr
ue

 ri
sk

s t
o 

in
ve

st
or

s a
re

 v
er

y 
sim

ila
r.

W
e 

as
su

m
e 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
s o

f l
ev

er
ag

e 
an

d 
liq

ui
di

ty
 o

ffs
et

 e
ac

h 
ot

he
r. 

Th
er

ef
or

e,
 o

ur
 re

tu
rn

 fo
re

ca
st

 is
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

fo
r p

riv
at

e 
re

al
 e

st
at

e 
an

d 
RE

IT
s.

 

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

So
ur

ce
: N

CR
EI

F,
 a

s o
f 6

/3
0/

19
So

ur
ce

: V
er

us
, a

s o
f 9

/3
0/

19
    

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

, a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

25

Pr
iv

at
e 

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

10
-

Ye
ar

 F
or

ec
as

t

Cu
rr

en
tC

ap
 R

at
e

+4
.4

%

Re
al

 In
co

m
e

G
ro

w
th

+2
.3

%

Ca
pe

x 
As

su
m

pt
io

n
-2

.0
%

In
fla

tio
n

+1
.9

%

N
om

in
al

 R
et

ur
n

6.
6%

In
fla

tio
n 

Fo
re

ca
st

-1
.9

%

Re
al

 R
et

ur
n

4.
7%

10
-Y

ea
r F

or
ec

as
t

N
om

in
al

 R
et

ur
n 

Fo
re

ca
st

6.
6%

In
fla

tio
n 

Fo
re

ca
st

-1
.9

%

Re
al

 R
et

ur
n

4.
7%

-5
%0%5%10
%

15
% De

c-
87

De
c-

92
De

c-
97

De
c-

02
De

c-
07

De
c-

12
De

c-
17

10
 Y

ea
r N

CR
EI

F 
Pr

op
er

ty
 C

ap
ita

l R
et

ur
n

10
 Y

ea
r N

CR
EI

F 
Pr

op
er

ty
 In

co
m

e 
Re

tu
rn

10
 Y

ea
r N

CR
EI

F 
Pr

op
er

ty
 T

ot
al

 R
et

ur
n



Va
lu

e-
ad

d 
&

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
st

ic
 re

al
 e

st
at

e
Va

lu
e-

ad
d 

re
al

 e
st

at
e 

in
cl

ud
es

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s w

hi
ch

 a
re

 in
 n

ee
d 

of
 re

no
va

tio
n,

 
re

po
sit

io
ni

ng
, a

nd
/o

r l
ea

se
-u

p.
 P

ro
pe

rt
ie

s m
ay

 a
lso

 b
e 

cl
as

sif
ie

d 
as

 v
al

ue
-a

dd
 

du
e 

to
 th

ei
r l

ow
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

an
d/

or
 lo

ca
tio

n.
 O

pp
or

tu
ni

st
ic

 re
al

 e
st

at
e 

ca
n 

al
so

 
in

cl
ud

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 d
ist

re
ss

ed
 o

r v
er

y 
co

m
pl

ex
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
. G

re
at

er
 

am
ou

nt
s o

f l
ev

er
ag

e 
ar

e 
us

ua
lly

 e
m

pl
oy

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
es

e 
st

ra
te

gi
es

. L
ev

er
ag

e 
in

cr
ea

se
s b

et
a 

(r
isk

) b
y 

ex
pa

nd
in

g 
th

e 
pu

rc
ha

sin
g 

po
w

er
 o

f p
ro

pe
rt

y 
m

an
ag

er
s v

ia
 a

 g
re

at
er

 d
eb

t l
oa

d,
 w

hi
ch

 m
ag

ni
fie

s g
ai

ns
 o

r l
os

se
s.

 In
cr

ea
se

d 
de

bt
 a

lso
 re

su
lts

 in
 g

re
at

er
 in

te
re

st
 ra

te
 se

ns
iti

vi
ty

. A
n 

in
cr

ea
se

/d
ec

re
as

e 
in

 
in

te
re

st
 ra

te
s m

ay
 re

su
lt 

in
 a

 w
rit

e-
up

/w
rit

e-
do

w
n 

of
 fi

xe
d 

ra
te

 d
eb

t, 
sin

ce
 

de
bt

 h
ol

di
ng

s a
re

 ty
pi

ca
lly

 m
ar

ke
d-

to
-m

ar
ke

t.

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f v

al
ue

-a
dd

 re
al

 e
st

at
e 

is 
co

m
po

se
d 

of
 th

e 
un

de
rly

in
g 

pr
iv

at
e 

re
al

 e
st

at
e 

m
ar

ke
t r

et
ur

ns
, p

lu
s a

 p
re

m
iu

m
 fo

r a
dd

iti
on

al
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
ris

k,
 

w
hi

ch
 is

 m
od

el
ed

 h
er

e 
as

 2
00

 b
ps

 a
bo

ve
 o

ur
 c

or
e 

re
al

 e
st

at
e 

re
tu

rn
 fo

re
ca

st
. 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f o

pp
or

tu
ni

st
ic

 re
al

 e
st

at
e 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 re

st
 fu

rt
he

r o
ut

 o
n 

th
e 

ris
k 

sp
ec

tr
um

, i
s m

od
el

ed
 a

s 4
00

 b
ps

 a
bo

ve
 th

e 
co

re
 re

al
 e

st
at

e 
re

tu
rn

 
fo

re
ca

st
. 

Ad
di

tio
na

l e
xp

ec
te

d 
re

tu
rn

s a
bo

ve
 c

or
e 

re
al

 e
st

at
e 

ar
e 

ju
st

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

hi
gh

er
 

in
he

re
nt

 ri
sk

 o
f p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s w
hi

ch
 n

ee
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t (

op
er

at
io

na
l o

r 
ph

ys
ic

al
), 

pr
ic

e 
di

sc
ou

nt
s b

ui
lt 

in
to

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s l

oc
at

ed
 in

 n
on

-c
or

e 
m

ar
ke

ts
, 

ill
iq

ui
di

ty
, a

nd
 th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 o
f r

ea
l e

st
at

e 
m

an
ag

er
s t

o 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 s
ou

rc
e 

at
tr

ac
tiv

e 
de

al
s i

n 
th

is 
le

ss
-t

ha
n-

ef
fic

ie
nt

 m
ar

ke
tp

la
ce

. 

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

So
ur

ce
: N

CR
EI

F,
 B

lo
om

be
rg

, a
s o

f 6
/3

0/
19

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

, a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

26

CA
P 

R
A

TE
 S

PR
EA

D
S

Va
lu

e-
Ad

d 
10

-Y
ea

r 
Fo

re
ca

st
O

pp
or

tu
ni

st
ic

 1
0-

Ye
ar

Fo
re

ca
st

Pr
em

iu
m

 a
bo

ve
 c

or
e

+2
.0

%
+4

.0
%

Cu
rr

en
tC

ap
 R

at
e

+4
.4

%
+4

.4
%

Re
al

 In
co

m
e 

Gr
ow

th
+2

.3
%

+2
.3

%

Ca
pe

x 
As

su
m

pt
io

n
-2

.0
%

-2
.0

%

In
fla

tio
n

+1
.9

%
+1

.9
%

N
om

in
al

 R
et

ur
n

8.
6%

10
.6

%

In
fla

tio
n 

Fo
re

ca
st

-1
.9

%
-1

.9
%

Re
al

 R
et

ur
n

6.
7%

8.
7%

FO
R

EC
A

ST

0%2%4%6%8%10
% M

ar
-9

5
M

ar
-0

0
M

ar
-0

5
M

ar
-1

0
M

ar
-1

5

Ca
p 

Ra
te

 S
pr

ea
d

Ca
p 

Ra
te

10
-Y

ea
r T

re
as

ur
y 

Yi
el

d



5-
YR

 R
O

LL
IN

G
 R

ET
U

R
N

 C
O

M
PO

SI
TI

O
N

A
D

V
A

N
CE

D
 E

CO
N

O
M

Y 
R

EA
L 

G
D

P 
G

R
O

W
TH

FO
R

EC
A

ST

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 in
cl

ud
es

 a
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f i
nv

es
tm

en
t t

yp
es

 a
cr

os
s a

 su
bs

et
 o

f 
in

du
st

rie
s.

 T
he

re
 is

 n
ot

 o
ne

 d
ef

in
iti

on
 fo

r w
ha

t c
an

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
. T

he
 a

ss
et

 c
la

ss
 h

as
 g

ro
w

n 
dr

am
at

ic
al

ly
 in

 th
e 

la
st

 
de

ca
de

 a
s i

nv
es

to
rs

 so
ug

ht
 a

ss
et

s t
ha

t m
ig

ht
 p

ro
vi

de
 m

or
e 

at
tr

ac
tiv

e 
yi

el
d 

re
la

tiv
e 

to
 fi

xe
d 

in
co

m
e 

al
on

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 in

fla
tio

n 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n.

  

Si
m

ila
r t

o 
re

al
 e

st
at

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t, 
in

co
m

e 
pl

ay
s a

 si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 ro

le
 in

 th
e 

re
tu

rn
s i

nv
es

to
rs

 re
ce

iv
e.

 In
co

m
e 

yi
el

ds
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 lo
w

er
 th

an
 

av
er

ag
e 

du
e 

to
 h

ig
he

r p
ric

es
 a

nd
 c

om
pe

tit
io

n 
in

 th
e 

sp
ac

e,
 w

hi
ch

 

m
ig

ht
 re

as
on

ab
ly

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 tr

an
sla

te
 in

to
 lo

w
er

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
fu

tu
re

 
re

tu
rn

s.
 

Du
e 

to
 th

e 
di

sc
ou

nt
 ra

te
 e

ffe
ct

, i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

as
se

t v
al

ua
tio

ns
 w

ou
ld

 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 b

e 
ne

ga
tiv

el
y 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

m
at

er
ia

l i
nc

re
as

es
 in

 in
te

re
st

 ra
te

s.
 

Be
ca

us
e 

le
ve

ra
ge

 is
 u

se
d 

in
 th

is 
sp

ac
e,

 h
ig

he
r i

nt
er

es
t r

at
es

 w
ou

ld
 a

lso
 

im
pa

ct
 in

ve
st

or
s i

n 
th

e 
fo

rm
 o

f h
ig

he
r b

or
ro

w
in

g 
co

st
s.

 

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

So
ur

ce
: S

&
P 

G
lo

ba
l I

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
In

de
x,

 a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

So
ur

ce
: I

M
F,

 a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

, a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

, m
ay

 n
ot

 su
m

 d
ue

 to
 ro

un
di

ng
 

27

10
-Y

ea
r F

or
ec

as
t

In
fla

tio
n

1.
7%

Yi
el

d
4.

1%

In
co

m
e 

Gr
ow

th
1.

5%

N
om

in
al

 R
et

ur
n

7.
2%

Gl
ob

al
 In

fla
tio

n 
Fo

re
ca

st
-1

.7
%

Re
al

 R
et

ur
n

5.
5%

-1
0%-5

%0%5%10
%

15
%

20
% De

c-
09

De
c-

11
De

c-
13

De
c-

15
De

c-
17

In
co

m
e 

Re
tu

rn
Pr

ic
e 

Re
tu

rn
To

ta
l R

et
ur

n

-4
%

-2
%0%2%4%6%

19
80

19
85

19
90

19
95

20
00

20
05

20
10

20
15

Ad
va

nc
ed

 E
co

no
m

y 
Re

al
 G

DP
 G

ro
w

th

10
-Y

ea
r A

ve
ra

ge



TR
A

IL
IN

G
 1

0Y
R

 B
LO

O
M

B
ER

G
 C

O
M

M
O

D
IT

Y 
R

ET
U

R
N

 C
O

M
PO

SI
TI

O
N

 (
%

)
B

LO
O

M
B

ER
G

 C
O

M
M

O
D

IT
Y 

R
ET

U
R

N
 

CO
M

PO
SI

TI
O

N
 (

%
)

FO
R

EC
A

ST

Co
m

m
od

iti
es

Co
m

m
od

ity
 re

tu
rn

s c
an

 b
e 

de
co

m
po

se
d 

in
to

 th
re

e 
so

ur
ce

s:
 c

ol
la

te
ra

l 
re

tu
rn

 (c
as

h)
, s

po
t c

ha
ng

es
 (i

nf
la

tio
n)

, a
nd

 ro
ll 

yi
el

d.
 

Ro
ll 

re
tu

rn
 is

 g
en

er
at

ed
 b

y 
ei

th
er

 b
ac

kw
ar

da
tio

n 
or

 c
on

ta
ng

o 
pr

es
en

t 
in

 fu
tu

re
s m

ar
ke

ts
. B

ac
kw

ar
da

tio
n 

oc
cu

rs
 w

he
n 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
s p

ric
e 

is 
be

lo
w

 th
e 

sp
ot

 p
ric

e,
 w

hi
ch

 re
su

lts
 in

 p
os

iti
ve

 y
ie

ld
.  

Co
nt

an
go

 o
cc

ur
s 

w
he

n 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

s p
ric

e 
is 

ab
ov

e 
th

e 
sp

ot
 p

ric
e,

 a
nd

 th
is 

re
su

lts
 in

 a
 lo

ss
 

to
 c

om
m

od
ity

 in
ve

st
or

s.
 H

ist
or

ic
al

ly,
 fu

tu
re

s m
ar

ke
ts

 h
av

e 
flu

ct
ua

te
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

ba
ck

w
ar

da
tio

n 
an

d 
co

nt
an

go
 b

ut
 w

ith
 a

 n
et

-z
er

o 
ef

fe
ct

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
ve

ry
 lo

ng
-t

er
m

 (s
in

ce
 1

87
7)

. T
he

re
fo

re
, r

ol
l r

et
ur

n 
is 

as
su

m
ed

 to
 

be
 ze

ro
 in

 o
ur

 fo
re

ca
st

. O
ve

r t
he

 m
os

t r
ec

en
t 1

0-
ye

ar
 p

er
io

d,
 ro

ll 
re

tu
rn

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ne

ga
tiv

e,
 th

ou
gh

 th
is 

is 
lik

el
y 

th
e 

re
su

lt 
of

 m
ul

tip
le

 
co

m
m

od
ity

 c
ris

es
 a

nd
 a

 d
iff

ic
ul

t m
ar

ke
t e

nv
iro

nm
en

t. 

O
ur

 1
0-

ye
ar

 c
om

m
od

ity
 fo

re
ca

st
 c

om
bi

ne
s c

ol
la

te
ra

l (
ca

sh
) r

et
ur

n 
w

ith
 

sp
ot

 re
tu

rn
 (i

nf
la

tio
n)

 to
 a

rr
iv

e 
at

 th
e 

no
m

in
al

 re
tu

rn
, a

nd
 s

ub
tr

ac
ts

 
ou

t i
nf

la
tio

n 
to

 a
rr

iv
e 

at
 th

e 
re

al
 re

tu
rn

.

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

So
ur

ce
: M

PI
, B

lo
om

be
rg

, a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

So
ur

ce
: M

PI
, B

lo
om

be
rg

, a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

, a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

28

10
-Y

ea
r F

or
ec

as
t

Co
lla

te
ra

l R
et

ur
n 

(C
as

h)
+1

.9
%

Ro
ll 

Re
tu

rn
+0

.0
%

Sp
ot

 R
et

ur
n 

(In
fla

tio
n)

+1
.9

%

N
om

in
al

 R
et

ur
n

3.
8%

In
fla

tio
n 

Fo
re

ca
st

-1
.9

%

Re
al

 R
et

ur
n

1.
9%

-2
0%

-1
0%0%10

%

20
%

30
% De

c-
00

De
c-

05
De

c-
10

De
c-

15
10

 Y
ea

r U
S 

In
fla

tio
n 

G
ro

w
th

10
 Y

ea
r C

ol
la

te
ra

l R
et

ur
n

10
 Y

ea
r S

po
t R

et
ur

n
10

 Y
ea

r R
ol

l R
et

ur
n

10
 Y

ea
r A

nn
ua

liz
ed

 R
et

ur
n

0.
9%

-4
.3

%

-7
.2

%

-1
2%-8

%

-4
%0%4%8%12
%

La
st

 2
0 

Ye
ar

s
La

st
 1

0 
Ye

ar
s

La
st

 5
 Y

ea
rs

Ro
ll 

Yi
el

d 
Re

tu
rn

Ca
sh

 R
et

ur
n

U
S 

In
fla

tio
n 

G
ro

w
th

Sp
ot

 R
et

ur
n

Bl
oo

m
be

rg
 C

om
m

od
ity

 R
et

ur
n



Cu
rr

en
cy

 b
et

a 
is 

a 
lo

ng
-s

ho
rt

 p
or

tfo
lio

 o
f G

10
 c

ur
re

nc
ie

s c
on

st
ru

ct
ed

 
by

 in
ve

st
in

g 
in

 th
re

e 
eq

ua
lly

 w
ei

gh
te

d 
fa

ct
or

s:
 c

ar
ry

, m
om

en
tu

m
, a

nd
 

va
lu

e.
 A

 si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f a
ca

de
m

ic
 re

se
ar

ch
 h

as
 c

on
cl

ud
ed

 th
at

 
th

es
e 

fa
ct

or
s d

em
an

d 
a 

ris
k 

pr
em

iu
m

 in
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

cy
 m

ar
ke

t. 
St

ud
ie

s 
ha

ve
 a

lso
 sh

ow
n 

th
at

 c
ur

re
nc

y 
be

ta
 e

xp
la

in
s a

 h
ig

h 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 a
ct

iv
e 

cu
rr

en
cy

 m
an

ag
er

s’
 re

tu
rn

s,
 in

di
ca

tin
g 

it 
m

ay
 b

e 
a 

go
od

 n
eu

tr
al

 
st

ar
tin

g 
po

in
t o

r b
en

ch
m

ar
k 

fo
r c

ur
re

nc
y 

in
ve

st
in

g.
 C

ur
re

nc
y 

be
ta

 
po

rt
fo

lio
s g

ai
n 

ex
po

su
re

 to
 th

e 
ca

rr
y,

 m
om

en
tu

m
, a

nd
 v

al
ue

 fa
ct

or
s i

n 
a 

sy
st

em
at

ic
 a

nd
 tr

an
sp

ar
en

t m
an

ne
r. 

Fo
r m

or
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 c

ur
re

nc
y 

be
ta

, p
le

as
e 

co
nt

ac
t y

ou
r c

on
su

lta
nt

. 

W
e 

m
od

el
 e

ac
h 

fa
ct

or
 in

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
cy

 b
et

a 
po

rt
fo

lio
 se

pa
ra

te
ly,

 a
nd

 
th

en
 ta

ke
 a

 w
ei

gh
te

d 
av

er
ag

e 
to

 g
et

 a
n 

ov
er

al
l r

et
ur

n 
fo

re
ca

st
. F

or
 th

e 
ca

rr
y 

po
rt

fo
lio

, t
he

 m
ai

n 
dr

iv
er

 o
f r

et
ur

ns
 is

 th
e 

yi
el

d 
an

 in
ve

st
or

 
re

ce
iv

es
 fr

om
 h

ol
di

ng
 c

ur
re

nc
ie

s w
ith

 re
la

tiv
el

y 
hi

gh
er

 in
te

re
st

 ra
te

s.
 

W
e 

th
er

ef
or

e 
us

e 
a 

12
-m

on
th

 a
ve

ra
ge

 o
f t

he
 p

or
tfo

lio
’s 

yi
el

d 
as

 th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 re
tu

rn
. F

or
 v

al
ue

, o
ur

 re
tu

rn
 fo

re
ca

st
 a

ss
um

es
 a

 c
er

ta
in

 le
ve

l 
of

 m
ea

n 
re

ve
rs

io
n 

to
 P

PP
 fa

ir 
va

lu
e 

ba
se

d 
on

 h
ist

or
ic

al
 d

at
a.

 L
as

tly
, f

or
 

m
om

en
tu

m
, w

e 
sim

pl
y 

as
su

m
e 

th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 re

tu
rn

 d
ue

 to
 

la
ck

 o
f l

on
g-

te
rm

 fu
nd

am
en

ta
l r

et
ur

n 
dr

iv
er

s.
 S

ho
rt

-t
er

m
 v

ol
at

ili
ty

 
le

ve
ls 

ty
pi

ca
lly

 d
riv

e 
re

tu
rn

s i
n 

th
e 

m
om

en
tu

m
 p

or
tfo

lio
, w

hi
ch

 is
 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

to
 m

od
el

 in
 a

 1
0-

ye
ar

 re
tu

rn
 fo

re
ca

st
. 

3-
YE

A
R

 R
O

LL
IN

G
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

CE
CU

R
R

EN
CY

 B
ET

A
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
CT

IO
N

R
ET

U
R

N
 F

O
R

EC
A

ST

Cu
rr

en
cy

 b
et

a

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

So
ur

ce
: M

SC
I, 

as
 o

f 9
/3

0/
19

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

, a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

 

29

Ca
rr

y

M
om

en
tu

m

Va
lu

e

Fa
ct

or
W

ei
gh

t
Re

tu
rn

 
Fo

re
ca

st
W

ei
gh

te
d 

re
tu

rn

Ca
rr

y
33

.3
%

2.
7%

0.
9%

M
om

en
tu

m
33

.3
%

-0
.2

%
-0

.1
%

Va
lu

e
33

.3
%

2.
8%

0.
9%

Cu
rr

en
cy

 B
et

a
1.

8%

-1
0%-5

%0%5%10
%

15
%

20
% Ja

n-
03

Ja
n-

06
Ja

n-
09

Ja
n-

12
Ja

n-
15

Ja
n-

18
Cu

rr
en

cy
 F

ac
to

r M
ix

Ca
rr

y
M

om
en

tu
m

Va
lu

e



Ri
sk

 p
ar

ity
 is

 b
ui

lt 
up

on
 th

e 
ph

ilo
so

ph
y 

of
 a

llo
ca

tin
g 

to
 ri

sk
 p

re
m

ia
 ra

th
er

 
th

an
 to

 a
ss

et
 c

la
ss

es
. B

ec
au

se
 ri

sk
 p

ar
ity

 b
y 

de
fin

iti
on

 a
im

s t
o 

di
ve

rs
ify

 
ris

k,
 th

e 
ac

tu
al

 a
ss

et
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

ca
n 

ap
pe

ar
 v

er
y 

di
ffe

re
nt

 fr
om

 tr
ad

iti
on

al
 

as
se

t c
la

ss
 a

llo
ca

tio
n.

W
e 

m
od

el
 ri

sk
 p

ar
ity

 u
sin

g 
an

 a
ss

um
ed

 S
ha

rp
e 

Ra
tio

 o
f 0

.5
, w

hi
ch

 
co

ns
id

er
s t

he
 h

ist
or

ic
al

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f r

isk
 p

ar
ity

. T
hi

s a
ss

um
ed

 S
ha

rp
e 

Ra
tio

 is
 h

ig
he

r t
ha

n 
ot

he
r a

ss
et

 c
la

ss
 fo

re
ca

st
s,

 b
ut

 is
 c

on
sis

te
nt

 w
ith

 
th

es
e 

fo
re

ca
st

s b
ec

au
se

 p
or

tf
ol

io
so

f a
ss

et
s 

te
nd

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 m

at
er

ia
lly

 
hi

gh
er

 S
ha

rp
e 

Ra
tio

s t
ha

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

 a
ss

et
s.

 

Th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 re
tu

rn
 o

f R
isk

 P
ar

ity
 is

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
y 

th
is 

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

 
fo

re
ca

st
, a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 a
 1

0%
 v

ol
at

ili
ty

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n.

W
e 

us
ed

 a
 1

0-
ye

ar
 h

ist
or

ic
al

 re
tu

rn
 st

re
am

 fr
om

 a
 m

ar
ke

t-
le

ad
in

g 
pr

od
uc

t 
to

 re
pr

es
en

t r
isk

 p
ar

ity
 co

rr
el

at
io

ns
 re

la
tiv

e 
to

 th
e 

be
ha

vi
or

s o
f e

ac
h 

as
se

t 
cl

as
s.

 R
isk

 p
ar

ity
 fu

nd
s a

re
 su

gg
es

te
d 

to
 b

e 
be

tt
er

 a
bl

e 
to

 w
ith

st
an

d 
va

rio
us

 d
iff

ic
ul

t e
co

no
m

ic
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ts
 -

re
du

ci
ng

 v
ol

at
ili

ty
 w

ith
ou

t 
sa

cr
ifi

ci
ng

 re
tu

rn
, o

ve
r l

on
ge

r p
er

io
ds

. 

It 
is 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

to
 a

rr
iv

e 
at

 a
 si

ng
le

 m
od

el
 fo

r r
isk

 p
ar

ity
 , 

sin
ce

 st
ra

te
gi

es
 ca

n 
di

ffe
r s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 a

cr
os

s f
irm

s/
st

ra
te

gi
es

.  
Ri

sk
 p

ar
ity

 a
lm

os
t a

lw
ay

s 
re

qu
ire

s e
xp

lic
it 

le
ve

ra
ge

. T
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f l

ev
er

ag
e 

w
ill

 d
ep

en
d 

on
 th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
st

ra
te

gy
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

st
yl

e,
 a

s w
el

l a
s e

xp
ec

te
d 

co
rr

el
at

io
ns

 
an

d 
vo

la
til

ity
. 

V
S.

 T
R

A
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
A

SS
ET

 C
LA

SS
ES

TR
A

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

A
SS

ET
 A

LL
O

CA
TI

O
N

R
IS

K 
PA

R
IT

Y

Ri
sk

 p
ar

ity

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

So
ur

ce
: M

or
ni

ng
st

ar
, A

Q
R,

 a
s o

f 9
/3

0/
19

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

N
ot

e:
 R

isk
 p

ar
ity

 is
 m

od
el

ed
 h

er
e 

us
in

g 
th

e 
AQ

R 
G

RP
-E

L 1
0%

 V
ol

at
ili

ty
 fu

nd
. P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 is

 b
ac

k 
te

st
ed

 p
rio

r t
o 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

5

30

Eq
ui

ty
 

Ri
sk

In
te

re
st

 
Ra

te
 R

is
k

Cr
ed

it
 

Ri
sk

In
fl

at
io

n 
Ri

sk

Eq
ui

ty
 

Ri
sk

In
te

re
st

 
Ra

te
 R

is
k

Cr
ed

it
 

Ri
sk

In
fl

at
io

n 
Ri

sk

-3
0%

-2
0%

-1
0%0%10

%

20
%

30
%

40
% De

c-
93

De
c-

98
De

c-
03

De
c-

08
De

c-
13

De
c-

18

S&
P 

50
0

Ba
rc

la
ys

 U
S 

Ag
g 

Bo
nd

Ri
sk

 P
ar

ity
 1

0%
 V

ol
Bl

oo
m

be
rg

 C
om

m
od

ity



Ap
pe

nd
ix

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

31



30
-y

ea
r r

et
ur

n 
&

 ri
sk

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns 20

20
Ca

pi
ta

l M
ar

ke
t A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
32

In
ve

st
or

s 
w

ish
in

g 
to

 p
ro

du
ce

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
ge

om
et

ric
 re

tu
rn

 fo
re

ca
st

s 
fo

r t
he

ir 
po

rt
fo

lio
s 

sh
ou

ld
 u

se
 th

e 
ar

ith
m

et
ic

 re
tu

rn
 fo

re
ca

st
s

pr
ov

id
ed

 h
er

e 
as

 in
pu

ts
 in

to
 th

at
 c

al
cu

la
tio

n,
 r

at
he

r t
ha

n 
th

e 
sin

gl
e-

as
se

t-
cl

as
s 

ge
om

et
ric

 re
tu

rn
 fo

re
ca

st
s.

  T
hi

s 
is 

th
e 

in
du

st
ry

 
st

an
da

rd
 a

pp
ro

ac
h,

 b
ut

 re
qu

ire
s 

a 
co

m
pl

ex
 e

xp
la

na
tio

n 
on

ly
 a

 h
ea

vy
 q

ua
nt

 c
ou

ld
 lo

ve
, s

o 
w

e 
ha

ve
 c

ho
se

n 
no

t t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

fu
rt

he
rd

et
ai

ls 
in

 th
is 

do
cu

m
en

t –
w

e 
w

ill
 h

ap
pi

ly
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

os
e 

de
ta

ils
 to

 a
ny

 re
ad

er
s 

of
 th

is 
w

ho
 a

re
 in

te
re

st
ed

. 
*P

riv
at

e 
Eq

ui
ty

 a
nd

 H
ed

ge
 F

un
d 

re
tu

rn
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
 d

iff
er

 if
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

di
re

ct
 p

ro
gr

am
 v

er
su

s 
a 

fu
nd

 o
f f

un
ds

 v
eh

ic
le

—
O

cc
as

io
na

lly
 in

ve
st

or
s 

m
ay

 h
av

e 
a 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ne
ed

 fo
r l

on
ge

r-
te

rm
 c

ap
ita

l m
ar

ke
t f

or
ec

as
ts

. W
e 

ha
ve

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

 se
t o

f 3
0-

ye
ar

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 to
 m

ee
t t

ho
se

 n
ee

ds
.

—
Th

e 
re

tu
rn

 fo
re

ca
st

s b
el

ow
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
on

st
ru

ct
ed

 u
sin

g 
ou

r e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

ild
in

g 
bl

oc
k 

ap
pr

oa
ch

, b
ut

 w
ith

 lo
ng

er
-t

er
m

 in
pu

ts
. R

isk
s a

nd
 c

or
re

la
tio

ns
 a

re
 e

st
im

at
ed

 u
sin

g 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 a
s o

ur
 1

0-
ye

ar
 fo

re
ca

st
s,

 u
sin

g 
fu

ll-
hi

st
or

y 
au

to
co

rr
el

at
io

n-
ad

ju
st

ed
 re

al
ize

d 
ris

k 
an

d 
pa

st
 1

0 
ye

ar
 re

al
ize

d 
co

rr
el

at
io

ns
.

—
Th

es
e 

re
tu

rn
 fi

gu
re

s m
us

t b
e 

th
ou

gh
t o

f s
ep

ar
at

el
y 

fr
om

 o
ur

 1
0-

ye
ar

 fo
re

ca
st

s,
 a

nd
 a

re
 n

ot
 m

ea
nt

 to
 im

pl
y 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 fo
r t

he
 2

0
ye

ar
s b

ey
on

d 
ou

r 1
0 

ye
ar

 fo
re

ca
st

s.
 

—
Pl

ea
se

 re
ac

h 
ou

t t
o 

yo
ur

 V
er

us
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 w
ith

 q
ue

st
io

ns
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

w
he

th
er

 3
0-

ye
ar

 C
ap

ita
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 m
ig

ht
 b

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 fo
r y

ou
r n

ee
ds

. 
As

se
t C

la
ss

In
de

x 
Pr

ox
y

Th
irt

y 
Ye

ar
 R

et
ur

n 
Fo

re
ca

st
St

an
da

rd
 D

ev
ia

tio
n 

Fo
re

ca
st

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

 F
or

ec
as

t (
g)

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

 F
or

ec
as

t (
a)

G
eo

m
et

ric
 

Ar
ith

m
et

ic
 

Eq
ui

tie
s

U
.S

. L
ar

ge
S&

P 
50

0
5.

5%
6.

6%
15

.4
%

0.
25

0.
32

U
.S

. S
m

al
l

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0

6.
1%

8.
1%

21
.1

%
0.

21
0.

30
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l D

ev
el

op
ed

M
SC

I E
AF

E
6.

7%
8.

0%
17

.5
%

0.
29

0.
36

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l S
m

al
l

M
SC

I E
AF

E 
Sm

al
l C

ap
6.

2%
8.

3%
21

.8
%

0.
21

0.
31

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

M
SC

I E
M

6.
8%

9.
6%

25
.6

%
0.

20
0.

31
G

lo
ba

l E
qu

ity
M

SC
I A

CW
I

6.
0%

7.
3%

16
.8

%
0.

26
0.

34
Pr

iv
at

e 
Eq

ui
ty

*
Ca

m
br

id
ge

 P
riv

at
e 

Eq
ui

ty
8.

7%
11

.5
%

25
.3

%
0.

28
0.

39
Fi

xe
d 

In
co

m
e

Ca
sh

30
 D

ay
 T

-B
ill

s
1.

7%
1.

7%
1.

2%
-

-
U

.S
. T

IP
S

BB
gB

ar
c 

U
.S

. T
IP

S 
5 

-1
0

2.
1%

2.
3%

5.
4%

0.
08

0.
11

U
.S

. T
re

as
ur

y
BB

gB
ar

c 
Tr

ea
su

ry
 7

-1
0 

Ye
ar

2.
1%

2.
3%

6.
7%

0.
07

0.
10

U
.S

. 3
0-

ye
ar

 T
re

as
ur

ie
s

BB
gB

ar
c 

U
.S

. T
re

as
ur

y 
20

+ 
Ye

ar
2.

1%
2.

9%
12

.5
%

0.
04

0.
10

G
lo

ba
l S

ov
er

ei
gn

 e
x 

U
.S

.
BB

gB
ar

c 
G

lo
ba

l T
re

as
ur

y 
ex

 U
.S

.
0.

7%
1.

1%
9.

7%
-0

.1
0

-0
.0

6
G

lo
ba

l A
gg

re
ga

te
BB

gB
ar

c
G

lo
ba

l A
gg

re
ga

te
1.

1%
1.

3%
6.

2%
-0

.0
9

-0
.0

6
Co

re
 F

ix
ed

 In
co

m
e

BB
gB

ar
c 

U
.S

. A
gg

re
ga

te
 B

on
d

3.
0%

3.
2%

6.
3%

0.
21

0.
24

Co
re

 P
lu

s 
Fi

xe
d 

In
co

m
e

BB
gB

ar
c 

U
.S

. C
or

po
ra

te
 IG

3.
6%

4.
0%

8.
3%

0.
24

0.
28

Sh
or

t-
Te

rm
 G

ov
’t/

Cr
ed

it
BB

gB
ar

c 
U

.S
. G

ov
’t/

Cr
ed

it 
1 

-3
 y

ea
r

2.
3%

2.
3%

3.
6%

0.
17

0.
18

Sh
or

t-
Te

rm
 C

re
di

t
BB

gB
ar

c 
Cr

ed
it 

1-
3 

Ye
ar

2.
9%

2.
9%

3.
6%

0.
33

0.
35

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 C

re
di

t
BB

gB
ar

c 
Lo

ng
 U

.S
. C

or
po

ra
te

3.
5%

3.
9%

9.
4%

0.
20

0.
24

Hi
gh

 Y
ie

ld
 C

or
p.

 C
re

di
t

BB
gB

ar
c 

U
.S

. C
or

po
ra

te
 H

ig
h 

Yi
el

d
5.

3%
5.

9%
11

.3
%

0.
32

0.
37

Ba
nk

 L
oa

ns
S&

P/
LS

TA
 L

ev
er

ag
ed

 L
oa

n
4.

7%
5.

2%
10

.0
%

0.
30

0.
35

G
lo

ba
l C

re
di

t
BB

gB
ar

c 
G

lo
ba

l C
re

di
t

0.
8%

1.
1%

7.
4%

-0
.1

2
-0

.0
8

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

 D
eb

t (
Ha

rd
)

JP
M

 E
M

BI
 G

lo
ba

l D
iv

er
sif

ie
d

6.
1%

6.
8%

12
.4

%
0.

35
0.

41
Em

er
gi

ng
 M

ar
ke

ts
 D

eb
t (

Lo
ca

l)
JP

M
 G

BI
 E

M
 G

lo
ba

l D
iv

er
sif

ie
d

5.
7%

6.
4%

12
.0

%
0.

34
0.

39
Pr

iv
at

e 
Cr

ed
it

Ba
nk

 L
oa

ns
 +

 1
75

bp
s

6.
4%

6.
9%

10
.0

%
0.

48
0.

52
O

th
er

Co
m

m
od

iti
es

Bl
oo

m
be

rg
 C

om
m

od
ity

3.
2%

4.
4%

15
.4

%
0.

10
0.

18
He

dg
e 

Fu
nd

s*
HF

RI
 F

un
d 

W
ei

gh
te

d 
Co

m
po

sit
e

4.
5%

4.
8%

7.
7%

0.
37

0.
40

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

De
bt

BB
gB

ar
c

IG
 C

M
BS

4.
1%

4.
4%

7.
6%

0.
32

0.
35

Co
re

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e

N
CR

EI
F 

Pr
op

er
ty

6.
8%

7.
5%

12
.4

%
0.

41
0.

47
Va

lu
e-

Ad
d 

Re
al

 E
st

at
e

N
CR

EI
F 

Pr
op

er
ty

 +
 2

00
bp

s
8.

8%
10

.2
%

17
.7

%
0.

40
0.

48
O

pp
or

tu
ni

st
ic

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e

N
CR

EI
F 

Pr
op

er
ty

 +
 4

00
bp

s
10

.8
%

13
.0

%
23

.0
%

0.
40

0.
49

RE
IT

s
W

ils
hi

re
 R

EI
T

6.
8%

8.
4%

19
.1

%
0.

27
0.

35
G

lo
ba

l I
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e

S&
P 

G
lo

ba
l I

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e
7.

0%
8.

4%
17

.8
%

0.
30

0.
38

Ri
sk

 P
ar

ity
Ri

sk
 P

ar
ity

7.
1%

7.
6%

10
.0

%
0.

54
0.

59
Cu

rr
en

cy
 B

et
a

M
SC

I C
ur

re
nc

y 
Fa

ct
or

 In
de

x
2.

2%
2.

2%
3.

6%
0.

14
0.

15
In

fla
tio

n
1.

6%
-

-
-

-



10
-y

ea
r r

et
ur

n 
fo

re
ca

st
s w

ith
 cu

rr
en

cy
 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t

Te
n 

Ye
ar

 R
et

ur
n 

Fo
re

ca
st

 (G
eo

m
et

ric
)

St
an

da
rd

 D
ev

ia
tio

n 
Fo

re
ca

st
As

se
t C

la
ss

In
de

x 
Pr

ox
y

CM
A 

Fo
re

ca
st

Cu
rr

en
cy

 A
dj

us
tm

en
t

To
ta

l

Eq
ui

tie
s

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l D
ev

el
op

ed
 E

qu
ity

 U
nh

ed
ge

d
M

SC
I E

AF
E

7.
0%

1.
8%

8.
8%

17
.5

%

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l D
ev

el
op

ed
 E

qu
ity

 H
ed

ge
d

M
SC

I E
AF

E 
He

dg
ed

7.
0%

1.
8%

8.
8%

15
.7

%

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l S
m

al
l E

qu
ity

 U
nh

ed
ge

d
M

SC
I E

AF
E 

Sm
al

l C
ap

 
7.

2%
1.

8%
9.

0%
21

.8
%

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l S
m

al
l E

qu
ity

 H
ed

ge
d

M
SC

I E
AF

E 
Sm

al
l C

ap
 H

ed
ge

d
7.

2%
1.

8%
9.

0%
19

.2
%

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e

Gl
ob

al
 S

ov
er

ei
gn

 e
x 

U
.S

. U
nh

ed
ge

d
BB

gB
ar

c G
lo

ba
l T

re
as

ur
y 

ex
 U

.S
.

0.
1%

1.
7%

1.
8%

9.
7%

Gl
ob

al
 S

ov
er

ei
gn

 e
x 

U
.S

. H
ed

ge
d

BB
gB

ar
c G

lo
ba

l T
re

as
ur

y 
ex

 U
.S

. H
ed

ge
d

0.
1%

1.
7%

1.
8%

3.
8%

Gl
ob

al
 C

re
di

t U
nh

ed
ge

d
BB

gB
ar

c G
lo

ba
l C

re
di

t
1.

4%
0.

5%
1.

9%
7.

4%

Gl
ob

al
 C

re
di

t H
ed

ge
d

BB
gB

ar
c G

lo
ba

l C
re

di
t H

ed
ge

d
1.

4%
0.

5%
1.

9%
5.

0%

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
cy

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t i

s t
he

 m
ar

ke
t i

m
pl

ie
d 

pr
ic

e 
ch

an
ge

 fo
r m

aj
or

 cu
rr

en
cy

 p
ai

rs
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

fo
rw

ar
d 

co
nt

ra
ct

 p
ric

in
g.

 S
in

ce
 th

e
m

ar
ke

t i
m

pl
ie

d 
sp

ot
 p

ric
e 

ch
an

ge
 

an
d 

th
e 

co
st

/g
ai

n 
fr

om
 h

ed
gi

ng
 a

re
 b

ot
h 

de
riv

ed
 fr

om
 p

ric
in

g 
in

 th
e 

fo
rw

ar
d 

m
ar

ke
t, 

th
ey

 a
re

 o
ne

 a
nd

 th
e 

sa
m

e.
 T

he
re

fo
re

, t
he

cu
rr

en
cy

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t i

s t
he

 sa
m

e 
fo

r 
bo

th
 u

nh
ed

ge
d 

an
d 

he
dg

ed
 fo

re
ca

st
s.

 S
ee

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
sli

de
s f

or
 th

e 
m

or
e 

de
ta

il 
on

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
cy

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
.

33



Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

cy
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

34

O
ur

 fu
nd

am
en

ta
l b

ui
ld

in
g 

bl
oc

k 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 p

ro
du

ce
s a

 re
tu

rn
 fo

re
ca

st
 in

 lo
ca

l c
ur

re
nc

y.
 In

 o
rd

er
 to

 c
re

at
e 

us
ea

bl
e 

fo
re

ca
st

s f
or

 
no

n-
U.

S.
 d

ol
la

r-
de

no
m

in
at

ed
 a

ss
et

s,
 w

e 
m

us
t m

ak
e 

an
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
ab

ou
t f

ut
ur

e 
fo

re
ig

n 
ex

ch
an

ge
 ra

te
s.

 

D
om

es
tic

 
Cu

rr
en

cy
 

(n
ow

)

D
om

es
tic

 
Cu

rr
en

cy
 

(la
te

r)

Do
m

es
tic

 
cu

rr
en

cy

Fo
re

ig
n 

Cu
rr

en
cy

 
(n

ow
)

Fo
re

ig
n 

Cu
rr

en
cy

 
(la

te
r)

Fo
re

ig
n 

cu
rr

en
cy

CU
RR

EN
CY

 E
XP

O
SU

RE
AS

SE
T 

EX
PO

SU
RE

Sh
ar

es
 

(n
ow

)

Sh
ar

es
 

(la
te

r)

Time

St
ep

 1
: F

or
ec

as
t t

he
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

re
tu

rn
 o

f 
th

e 
fo

re
ig

n 
as

se
t i

n 
lo

ca
l c

ur
re

nc
y 

te
rm

s

St
ep

 2
: M

ak
e 

an
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
on

 th
e 

en
di

ng
 

fo
re

ig
n 

cu
rr

en
cy

 e
xc

ha
ng

e 
ra

te



—
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

tw
o 

op
tio

ns
 to

 a
dj

us
t a

 lo
ca

l c
ur

re
nc

y 
re

tu
rn

 fo
re

ca
st

 to
 a

 U
.S

. d
ol

la
r f

or
ec

as
t: 

m
ak

e 
a 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ex
ch

an
ge

 ra
te

 fo
re

ca
st

 o
r t

ak
e 

m
ar

ke
t p

ric
in

g 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 
cu

rv
e 


It 

is 
im

po
rt

an
t t

o 
no

te
 th

at
 ig

no
rin

g 
cu

rr
en

cy
 is

 m
ak

in
g 

a 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
th

at
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t e
xc

ha
ng

e 
ra

te
 w

ill
 b

e 
un

ch
an

ge
d 

ov
er

 th
e 

ne
xt

 1
0 

ye
ar

s,
 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 ra

re
ly

 b
ee

n 
th

e 
ca

se
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 h
ist

or
y

—
M

ar
ke

ts
 p

ric
e 

fu
tu

re
 e

xc
ha

ng
e 

ra
te

s i
n 

th
e 

fo
rw

ar
d 

m
ar

ke
t, 

w
hi

ch
 re

pr
es

en
ts

 th
e 

SP
O

T 
cu

rr
en

cy
 p

ric
e 

fo
r F

O
RW

AR
D 

de
liv

er
y 

—
Fo

rw
ar

d 
cu

rr
en

cy
 c

on
tr

ac
ts

 a
re

 p
ric

ed
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

in
te

re
st

 ra
te

 d
iff

er
en

tia
l b

et
w

ee
n 

tw
o 

cu
rr

en
ci

es
 –

in
te

re
st

 ra
te

 d
iff

er
en

tia
ls 

re
fle

ct
 a

 si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

am
ou

nt
 o

f i
nf

or
m

at
io

n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

gr
ow

th
, i

nf
la

tio
n,

 a
nd

 m
on

et
ar

y 
po

lic
y 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

—
A 

cu
rr

en
cy

 w
ith

 a
 h

ig
he

r i
nt

er
es

t r
at

e 
is 

pr
ic

ed
 to

 d
ep

re
ci

at
e 

re
la

tiv
e 

to
 a

 c
ur

re
nc

y 
w

ith
 a

 lo
w

er
 in

te
re

st
 ra

te
—

W
e 

ad
ju

st
 o

ur
 lo

ca
l c

ur
re

nc
y 

re
tu

rn
 fo

re
ca

st
s b

as
ed

 o
n 

fo
rw

ar
d 

m
ar

ke
t p

ric
in

g 
be

ca
us

e 
w

e 
be

lie
ve

 th
is 

is 
th

e 
ne

ut
ra

l, 
“n

o 
op

in
io

n”
 p

os
iti

on
, r

at
he

r t
ha

n 
m

ak
in

g 
a 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

fo
re

ca
st

—
Hi

st
or

ic
al

ly
, t

hi
s c

ur
re

nc
y 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t h

as
 h

ad
 a

 p
os

iti
ve

 re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

w
ith

 1
0-

ye
ar

 fo
rw

ar
d 

ex
ch

an
ge

 ra
te

 m
ov

em
en

ts

10
-Y

EA
R

 R
O

LL
IN

G
 A

B
SO

LU
TE

 C
U

R
R

EN
CY

 I
M

PA
CT

CU
R

R
EN

CY
 A

D
JU

ST
M

EN
T 

V
S.

 F
O

R
W

A
R

D
 U

SD
 M

O
V

EM
EN

T 

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

cy
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

So
ur

ce
: V

er
us

, M
SC

I, 
as

 o
f 9

/3
0/

19
    

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
So

ur
ce

: V
er

us
, B

lo
om

be
rg

, u
sin

g 
da

ta
 si

nc
e 

19
89

, b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
M

SC
I E

AF
E 

In
de

x

35

R²
 =

 0
.2

9

-5
%

-4
%

-3
%

-2
%

-1
%0%1%2%3%

-4
%

-3
%

-2
%

-1
%

0%
1%

10-Year Forward USD Move

Cu
rr

en
cy

 A
dj

us
tm

en
t

0%1%2%3%4%5%

De
c-

01
De

c-
03

De
c-

05
De

c-
07

De
c-

09
De

c-
11

De
c-

13
De

c-
15

De
c-

17

Ab
so

lu
te

 C
ur

re
nc

y 
Im

pa
ct

 (M
SC

I E
AF

E)
Av

er
ag

e



Au
to

co
rr

el
at

io
n 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t

—
W

e 
ad

ju
st

 a
ll 

vo
la

til
ity

 fo
re

ca
st

s t
ha

t u
se

 th
e 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 h

ist
or

ic
al

 v
ol

at
ili

ty
 fo

r a
ut

oc
or

re
la

tio
n.

 

—
Au

to
co

rr
el

at
io

n 
oc

cu
rs

 w
he

n 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 re
tu

rn
s 

of
 a

 ti
m

e 
se

rie
s a

re
 d

es
cr

ib
ed

 (p
os

iti
ve

ly
 c

or
re

la
te

d)
 

by
 p

as
t r

et
ur

ns
. 

—
Ti

m
e 

se
rie

s w
ith

 p
os

iti
ve

 a
ut

oc
or

re
la

tio
n 

ex
hi

bi
t a

rt
ifi

ci
al

ly
 lo

w
 v

ol
at

ili
ty

, w
hi

le
 ti

m
e 

se
rie

s w
ith

 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
au

to
co

rr
el

at
io

n 
ex

hi
bi

t a
rt

ifi
ci

al
ly

 h
ig

h 
vo

la
til

ity
. 

—
M

an
y 

as
se

t c
la

ss
es

 th
at

 w
e 

te
st

ed
 sh

ow
ed

 p
os

iti
ve

 a
ut

oc
or

re
la

tio
n,

 m
ea

ni
ng

 th
e 

vo
la

til
ity

 fo
re

ca
st

s 
th

at
 w

e 
us

e 
in

 th
e 

fo
re

ca
st

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s a

re
 to

o 
lo

w
 fo

r t
ho

se
 a

ss
et

 c
la

ss
es

.

—
Th

e 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

is 
pr

oc
es

s w
as

 th
at

 s
ev

er
al

 a
ss

et
 c

la
ss

es
 h

av
e 

hi
gh

er
 v

ol
at

ili
ty

 fo
re

ca
st

s t
ha

n 
if 

w
e 

ha
d 

m
ad

e 
no

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t f

or
 a

ut
oc

or
re

la
tio

n.

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

Ru
ss

el
l 2

00
0 

au
to

co
rr

el
at

io
n,

 
am

on
g 

m
an

y 
as

se
t c

la
ss

es
, i

s 
st

at
is

tic
al

ly
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt

36



N
ot

ic
es

 &
 d

is
cl

os
ur

es
Pa

st
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 is

 n
o 

gu
ar

an
te

e 
of

 fu
tu

re
 re

su
lts

. T
hi

s r
ep

or
t o

r p
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
is 

pr
ov

id
ed

 fo
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
na

l p
ur

po
se

s o
nl

y 
an

d 
is 

di
re

ct
ed

 to
 in

st
itu

tio
na

l c
lie

nt
s a

nd
 

el
ig

ib
le

 in
st

itu
tio

na
l c

ou
nt

er
pa

rt
ie

s o
nl

y 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

re
lie

d 
up

on
 b

y 
re

ta
il 

in
ve

st
or

s.
 N

ot
hi

ng
 h

er
ei

n 
co

ns
tit

ut
es

 in
ve

st
m

en
t, 

le
ga

l, 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

or
 ta

x 
ad

vi
ce

, o
r a

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
to

 b
uy

, s
el

l o
r h

ol
d 

a 
se

cu
rit

y 
or

 p
ur

su
e 

a 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 in
ve

st
m

en
t v

eh
ic

le
 o

r a
ny

 tr
ad

in
g 

st
ra

te
gy

. T
he

 o
pi

ni
on

s a
nd

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ex
pr

es
se

d 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

t a
s o

f 
th

e 
da

te
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

or
 c

ite
d 

on
ly

 a
nd

 a
re

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
ch

an
ge

 w
ith

ou
t n

ot
ic

e.
 T

hi
s i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

is 
ob

ta
in

ed
 fr

om
 so

ur
ce

s d
ee

m
ed

 re
lia

bl
e,

 b
ut

 th
er

e 
is 

no
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

or
 

w
ar

ra
nt

y 
as

 to
 it

s a
cc

ur
ac

y,
 co

m
pl

et
en

es
s o

r r
el

ia
bi

lit
y.

  T
hi

s r
ep

or
t o

r p
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

us
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

re
ci

pi
en

t f
or

 a
dv

er
tis

in
g 

or
 sa

le
s p

ro
m

ot
io

n 
pu

rp
os

es
. 

Th
e 

m
at

er
ia

l m
ay

 in
cl

ud
e 

es
tim

at
es

, o
ut

lo
ok

s,
 p

ro
je

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 “f
or

w
ar

d-
lo

ok
in

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

.”
 S

uc
h 

st
at

em
en

ts
 ca

n 
be

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 te

rm
in

ol
og

y 
su

ch
 a

s 
“b

el
ie

ve
s,

” 
“e

xp
ec

ts
,”

 “m
ay

,”
 “w

ill
,”

 “
sh

ou
ld

,”
 “

an
tic

ip
at

es
,”

 o
r t

he
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

of
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 fo
re

go
in

g 
 o

r c
om

pa
ra

bl
e 

te
rm

in
ol

og
y,

 o
r b

y 
di

sc
us

sio
n 

of
 st

ra
te

gy
, o

r 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 su

ch
 a

s e
co

no
m

ic
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 u
nd

er
ly

in
g 

ot
he

r s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. N
o 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
ca

n 
be

 g
iv

en
 th

at
 fu

tu
re

 re
su

lts
 d

es
cr

ib
ed

 o
r i

m
pl

ie
d 

by
 a

ny
 fo

rw
ar

d 
lo

ok
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
. A

ct
ua

l e
ve

nt
s m

ay
 d

iff
er

 si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 fr
om

 th
os

e 
pr

es
en

te
d.

 In
ve

st
in

g 
en

ta
ils

 ri
sk

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g

po
ss

ib
le

 lo
ss

 o
f p

rin
ci

pa
l. 

Ri
sk

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
an

d 
m

od
el

s d
o 

no
t p

ro
m

ise
 a

ny
 le

ve
l o

f p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
r g

ua
ra

nt
ee

 a
ga

in
st

 lo
ss

 o
f p

rin
ci

pa
l. 

 

“V
ER

U
S 

AD
VI

SO
RY

™
 a

nd
 a

ny
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
de

sig
ns

 a
re

 th
e 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f V

er
us

 A
dv

iso
ry

, I
nc

. 
Ad

di
tio

na
l i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

is 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

up
on

 re
qu

es
t. 

20
20

Ca
pi

ta
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

37



1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520     Phone: (925) 521-3960      Fax: (925) 521-3969     cccera.org 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: February 26, 2020 

To: CCCERA Board 

From: Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer 

Subject: Market Review from Matt McLennan of First Eagle 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Overview 
CCCERA conducts a full asset/liability study once every five years.  As our last study was 
completed in 2015, we are gearing up for the next study to be presented to the Board later this 
year.  A critical portion of these studies are the return and risk expectations for the asset classes 
that the Board will consider.  In order to provide a comprehensive view of the world, I have 
invited several of our investment managers to share their views of global risk and 
opportunities. Today we will we be joined by Matt McLennan of First Eagle. 

First Eagle Strategy 
First Eagle manages a global equity strategy with a strong emphasis on downside risk control.  
We expect the strategy to outperform its equity benchmark over a market cycle, but the 
pattern of returns should be less volatile (i.e., lose less when the market falls, and participate to 
a lesser extent when the market rallies).  When the portfolio management team believes that 
they cannot find stocks they like at attractive valuations, they can invest in bonds, cash or gold 
as stores of value until they identify an attractive stock.  This puts First Eagle in a unique 
position to have a global view of risk and an opinion on the relative attractiveness of several 
asset classes and geographies.   

Biography 
Matt is head of the Global Value team and a portfolio manager of the Global Value, 
International Value, US Value and Gold strategies. He joined First Eagle in September 2008 to 
lead the Global Value team. Previously, Matt worked for Goldman Sachs Asset Management 
(GSAM) in London, where he served as co-portfolio manager of Global Equity Partners, a group 
he co-founded in 2003 that ran a focused global equity portfolio for offshore private wealth 
clients. Earlier in his career, Matt was equity chief investment officer of the Investment Strategy 
Group for Goldman Sachs’ private client business. He joined Goldman Sachs in Sydney in 1994. 
Matt started his career in 1991 in Brisbane, Australia, with the Queensland Investment 
Corporation and was ultimately responsible for the firm’s international equity exposure.  

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/26/20Agenda Item#5



Fi
rs

t E
ag

le
 In

ve
st

m
en

t M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

LL
C

13
45

 A
ve

nu
e 

of
 th

e 
Am

er
ic

as
N

ew
 Y

or
k,

 N
Y 

10
10

5

Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

E
m

pl
oy

ee
s’ 

Re
tir

em
en

t A
ss

oc
iat

io
n

M
at

th
ew

 M
cL

en
na

n,
 C

FA
H

ea
d 

of
 th

e 
G

lo
ba

l V
alu

e 
Te

am
Po

rtf
ol

io
 M

an
ag

er

Cl
air

e 
M

ill
er

 H
ar

e
H

ea
d 

of
 In

st
itu

tio
na

l R
ela

tio
ns

hi
p 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
6,

 2
02

0

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/26/20Agenda Item#5



Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

Th
e 

Ch
all

en
ge

 o
f 

a 
Ri

sin
g 

M
on

et
ar

y 
Ti

de

Pa
ge

 2

U
S 

M
2 

G
ro

w
th

 v
s.

 R
et

ur
n 

fro
m

 C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

R
ei

nv
es

tm
en

t i
n 

T-
Bi

lls

048121620

19
71

19
75

19
79

19
83

19
87

19
91

19
95

19
99

20
03

20
07

20
11

20
15

20
19

U
S 

M
2 

gr
ow

th
C

um
ul

at
iv

e 
R

et
ur

n 
fro

m
 R

e-
in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

T-
bi

lls

So
ur

ce
: H

av
er

, B
lo

om
be

rg
 a

s 
of

 1
2/

31
/2

01
9.

 



Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

Th
e 

M
er

its
 o

f 
O

w
ni

ng
 E

nt
er

pr
ise

Pa
ge

 3

M
SC

I W
or

ld
 a

nd
 U

S 
M

2 
(In

de
xe

d 
Va

lu
es

) 1
98

2 
–

Pr
es

en
t

0

50
0

1,
00

0

1,
50

0

2,
00

0 Au
g-

82
Au

g-
87

Au
g-

92
Au

g-
97

Au
g-

02
Au

g-
07

Au
g-

12
Au

g-
17

Au
g-

22050
0

1,
00

0

1,
50

0

2,
00

0
M

SC
I W

or
ld

 (A
ug

us
t 1

98
2 

= 
10

0)
U

S 
M

2 
(A

ug
us

t 1
98

2 
= 

10
0)

So
ur

ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg

 a
s 

of
 1

2/
23

/2
01

9.
 



Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

Th
e 

Fu
tu

re
 is

 U
nc

er
ta

in

Pa
ge

 4

S&
P 

50
0 

an
d 

U
S 

M
2 

La
te

 1
96

0’
s 

to
 th

e 
Ea

rly
 1

98
0’

s

5010
0

15
0

20
0

25
0

30
0

35
0

40
0 Ja

n-
68

Ja
n-

70
Ja

n-
72

Ja
n-

74
Ja

n-
76

Ja
n-

78
Ja

n-
80

Ja
n-

82

SP
X 

(J
an

 1
96

8 
= 

10
0)

 U
S 

M
2 

(J
an

 1
96

8 
= 

10
0)

So
ur

ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg

. D
at

a 
re

tri
ev

ed
 1

0/
9/

20
19

 



Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

G
lo

ba
l C

yc
lic

al 
Re

co
ve

ry
 A

pp
ea

rs
 to

 H
av

e 
A

lre
ad

y 
O

cc
ur

re
d

Pa
ge

 5

U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t R

at
es

 (%
)

2%4%6%8%10
%

12
% 20

00
20

01
20

02
20

03
20

04
20

05
20

06
20

07
20

08
20

09
20

10
20

11
20

12
20

13
20

14
20

15
20

16
20

17
20

18
20

19

U
S

EA
Ja

pa
n

BR
IC

s*

So
ur

ce
: H

av
er

/ I
M

F 
W

EO
, N

at
io

na
l a

nd
 E

U
 A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s.
 D

at
a 

re
tri

ev
ed

 1
/7

/2
02

0.
* B

R
IC

s 
se

rie
s 

is
 a

 G
D

P-
w

ei
gh

te
d 

av
er

ag
e.

 In
di

a 
da

ta
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

an
d 

in
cl

ud
ed

 a
s 

of
 2

00
7.



Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

So
ve

re
ig

n 
D

eb
t t

o 
G

D
P 

in
 th

e 
W

es
t

Pa
ge

 6

N
et

 S
ov

er
ei

gn
 D

eb
t t

o 
G

D
P

02040608010
0

12
0

14
0

16
0

U
S

Eu
ro

 A
re

a
Ja

pa
n

20
01

20
07

20
13

20
19

f

So
ur

ce
: H

av
er

/IM
F 

W
EO

, d
at

a 
as

 o
f O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
9.

 



Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

Ch
in

a’s
 C

re
di

t B
oo

m

Pa
ge

 7

C
om

pa
rin

g 
C

hi
na

 &
 U

S 
C

re
di

t B
oo

m
s

Ba
nk

in
g 

Sy
st

em
 A

ss
et

s

$0$5$1
0

$1
5

$2
0

19
96

20
07

20
18

U
S 

H
H

U
S 

C
or

po
ra

te
C

hi
na

 H
H

C
hi

na
 C

or
po

ra
te

$ 
tri

llio
n

C
hi

na

U
S

Eu
ro

 A
re

a

U
K

 

Ja
pa

n

$0$1
0

$2
0

$3
0

$4
0

$5
0

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

$ 
tri

llio
n

So
ur

ce
: (

le
ft 

ch
ar

t) 
H

av
er

/ B
IS

, D
eu

ts
ch

e 
Ba

nk
, F

irs
t E

ag
le

 In
ve

st
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t; 
(ri

gh
t c

ha
rt)

 H
av

er
/ N

at
io

na
l A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s,
Fi

rs
t E

ag
le

 In
ve

st
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t.
D

at
a 

th
ro

ug
h 

12
/3

1/
18

.



Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

M
ea

su
rin

g 
Ri

sk
 P

er
ce

pt
io

n

Pa
ge

 8

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f S
to

ck
s 

C
lo

si
ng

 A
bo

ve
 2

00
-D

ay
 M

ov
in

g 
Av

er
ag

e 
(a

s 
of

 1
/7

/2
02

0)

C
BO

E 
Vo

la
til

ity
 In

de
x 

(a
s 

of
 1

/7
/2

02
0)

02040608010
0 Ju

n-
09

Ju
n-

10
Ju

n-
11

Ju
n-

12
Ju

n-
13

Ju
n-

14
Ju

n-
15

Ju
n-

16
Ju

n-
17

Ju
n-

18
Ju

n-
19

0102030405060 Ju
n-

09
Ju

n-
10

Ju
n-

11
Ju

n-
12

Ju
n-

13
Ju

n-
14

Ju
n-

15
Ju

n-
16

Ju
n-

17
Ju

n-
18

Ju
n-

19

So
ur

ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg

.



Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

M
on

ey
 S

to
ck

 v
s. 

Pr
ice

 o
f 

G
ol

d 
(In

de
xe

d 
Va

lu
es

)

Pa
ge

 9

0

50
0

1,
00

0

1,
50

0

2,
00

0

2,
50

0

3,
00

0

3,
50

0

4,
00

0

4,
50

0

5,
00

0

5,
50

0 19
70

19
75

19
80

19
85

19
90

19
95

20
00

20
05

20
10

20
15

20
20

050
0

1,
00

0

1,
50

0

2,
00

0

2,
50

0

3,
00

0

3,
50

0

4,
00

0

4,
50

0

5,
00

0

5,
50

0
U

S 
M

2 
(J

an
 1

97
0 

= 
10

0)
Pr

ic
e 

of
 G

ol
d 

(J
an

 1
97

0 
= 

10
0)

So
ur

ce
: D

at
a 

re
tri

ev
ed

 1
/7

/2
02

0.



Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

Re
al 

In
te

re
st

 R
at

es
 a

nd
 G

ol
d

Pa
ge

 1
0

-2-10123456

10
0

20
0

30
0

40
0

50
0

60
0

70
0

80
0

90
0 19

97
19

99
20

01
20

03
20

05
20

07
20

09
20

11
20

13
20

15
20

17
20

19

G
ol

d 
Pr

ic
e 

In
fla

tio
n 

Ad
ju

st
ed

 ($
/o

z,
 lh

s)
U

S 
10

yr
 T

IP
S 

(%
, r

hs
)

So
ur

ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg

 a
s 

of
 1

/8
/2

02
0.



Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

G
ol

d 
as

 a
 P

ot
en

tia
l H

ed
ge

Pa
ge

 1
1

0%5%10
%

15
%

20
%

25
%

30
%  1

96
9

 1
97

3
 1

97
7

 1
98

1
 1

98
5

 1
98

9
 1

99
2

 1
99

6
 2

00
0

 2
00

4
 2

00
8

 2
01

2
 2

01
5

 A
ug

-1
9

G
ol

d 
re

la
tiv

e 
to

 W
or

ld
 G

D
P 

pe
r c

ap
ita

M
SC

I A
C

W
I r

el
at

iv
e 

to
 W

or
ld

 G
D

P 
pe

r c
ap

ita

So
ur

ce
: M

SC
I D

at
ab

as
e,

 B
lo

om
be

rg
, W

or
ld

 B
an

k,
 U

.S
. B

ur
ea

u 
of

 th
e 

C
en

su
s 

as
 o

f  
1/

8/
20

20
.

Fo
r i

llu
st

ra
tiv

e 
pu

rp
os

es
 o

nl
y.

 N
ot

 m
ea

nt
 to

 c
om

pa
re

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 F

irs
t E

ag
le

 G
lo

ba
l V

al
ue

 S
tra

te
gy

 o
r t

he
 M

SC
I A

C
W

I t
o

th
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 o

f g
ol

d.
 



Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

4.
0

5.
0

6.
0 19

91
19

93
19

95
19

97
19

99
20

01
20

03
20

05
20

07
20

09
20

11
20

13
20

15
20

17
20

19

S
&

P
 5

00
TO

PI
X

Ja
pa

n:
 O

ne
 o

f 
th

e 
Ch

ea
pe

st
 M

ajo
r M

ar
ke

ts
 in

 th
e 

W
or

ld

Pa
ge

 1
2

Pr
ic

e 
to

 B
oo

k

As
 o

f 1
2/

31
/2

01
9.

 S
ou

rc
e:

 F
irs

t E
ag

le
 In

ve
st

m
en

t M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 F

ac
tS

et
.



Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

0

0.
5

1.
0

1.
5

2.
0

2.
5

3.
0

3.
5

4.
0 19

91
19

93
19

95
19

97
19

99
20

01
20

03
20

05
20

07
20

09
20

11
20

13
20

15
20

17
20

19

S
&

P
 5

00
TO

PI
X

Ja
pa

n:
 O

ne
 o

f 
th

e 
Ch

ea
pe

st
 M

ajo
r M

ar
ke

ts
 in

 th
e 

W
or

ld

Pa
ge

 1
3

D
iv

id
en

d 
Yi

el
d

As
 o

f 1
2/

31
/2

01
9.

 S
ou

rc
e:

 F
irs

t E
ag

le
 In

ve
st

m
en

t M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 F

ac
tS

et
.



Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

Ja
pa

n 
(T

O
PI

X
) M

ay
 P

ro
ve

 to
 b

e 
G

oo
d 

H
un

tin
g 

G
ro

un
d 

Fo
r V

alu
e

Pa
ge

 1
4

62
.3

3%

36
.0

4%
34

.0
2%

18
.0

0%

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

TO
PI

X
FT

S
E

 (U
K

) A
ll 

S
ha

re
s

C
D

A
X

 (G
er

m
an

y)
S

&
P

 5
00

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f C
om

pa
ni

es
 W

ith
 C

as
h 

N
et

 o
f D

eb
t

So
ur

ce
: F

ac
tS

et
. A

s 
of

 1
2/

31
/2

01
9.

 S
ee

 d
ef

in
iti

on
s 

on
 p

ag
e 

21
.



Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

Ap
pe

nd
ix

Pa
ge

 1
5



Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

St
ra

te
gy

 O
ve

rv
iew

Pa
ge

 1
6

Ap
pe

nd
ix

G
lo

ba
l V

alu
e

Ra
ng

e 
of

 H
ol

di
ng

s
10

0–
15

0

St
yle

Va
lu

e

A
pp

ro
ac

h
Bo

tto
m

-U
p 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l

Be
nc

hm
ar

k 
A

gn
os

tic

In
ce

pt
io

n
Ja

nu
ar

y 
19

79

H
ist

or
ic

al 
Po

rtf
ol

io
 T

ur
no

ve
r

10
–2

0%

M
ar

ke
t C

ap
ita

liz
at

io
n

A
ll

Se
ct

or
/C

ou
nt

ry
 C

on
st

ra
in

ts
N

on
e

N
on

-E
qu

ity
 S

ec
ur

iti
es

 In
clu

de
G

ol
d

Ca
sh

 a
nd

 C
as

h 
E

qu
iv

ale
nt

s
Fi

xe
d 

In
co

m
e

Cu
rr

en
cy

 H
ed

ge
s

Th
e 

po
rtf

ol
io

 is
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

m
an

ag
ed

 a
nd

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 c

ha
ng

e.
 T

he
 a

bo
ve

 a
re

 n
ot

 in
ve

st
m

en
t g

ui
de

lin
es

 o
r r

es
tri

ct
io

ns
. R

an
ge

 o
f h

ol
di

ng
s 

is
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
e.

Al
l i

nv
es

tm
en

ts
 in

vo
lv

e 
th

e 
ris

k 
of

 lo
ss

 o
f p

rin
ci

pa
l. 

Ad
di

tio
na

l r
is

k 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
fo

r t
hi

s 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

re
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

ap
pe

nd
ix

. 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r p
er

io
ds

 p
rio

r t
o 

01
-J

an
-2

00
0 

oc
cu

rre
d 

w
hi

le
 a

 p
rio

r p
or

tfo
lio

 m
an

ag
er

 o
f t

he
 s

tra
te

gy
 w

as
 a

ffi
lia

te
d 

w
ith

 a
no

th
er

 fi
rm

.I
nc

ep
tio

n 
da

te
 s

ho
w

n 
is

 w
he

n 
th

is
 p

rio
r p

or
tfo

lio
 

m
an

ag
er

 a
ss

um
ed

 p
or

tfo
lio

 m
an

ag
em

en
t r

es
po

ns
ib

ilit
ie

s.



Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

In
ve

st
m

en
t T

ea
m

 —
G

lo
ba

l V
alu

e 
St

ra
te

gy

Pa
ge

 1
7

Ap
pe

nd
ix

Ju
lie

n 
A

lb
er

tin
i(

17
 ye

ar
s)

Be
ver

ag
es,

 co
mm

erc
ial

 se
rv

ice
s, 

div
ers

ifi
ed

 
ind

us
tri

als
, h

ea
lth

ca
re 

Be
nj

am
in

 B
ah

r, 
CF

A
(1

4 
yea

rs)
A

gri
cu

ltu
ra

l c
om

mo
dit

ies
, a

ut
om

ob
ile

s, 
ba

nk
s &

 
oth

er 
fin

an
cia

ls,
 ch

em
ica

ls,
 en

erg
y E

&
P

A
lan

 B
ar

r, 
CF

A
(2

9 
yea

rs)
Fo

res
t p

ro
du

cts
 &

 pa
pe

r, 
no

n-
foo

d c
on

su
me

r 
pr

od
uc

ts,
 re

tai
l

M
ax

 B
el

m
on

t, 
CF

A
(1

1 
yea

rs)
Pr

eci
ou

s m
eta

ls,
 a

ero
sp

ac
e &

 d
efe

ns
e

M
an

ish
 G

up
ta

* 
(1

4 
yea

rs)
Te

ch
no

log
y, 

me
dia

, t
ele

com
mu

nic
at

ion
s, 

log
ist

ics

Ch
ris

tia
n 

H
ec

k,
 C

FA
 (8

 ye
ar

s)
G

am
ing

, l
od

gin
g &

 le
isu

re,
 he

alt
hc

ar
e, 

ind
us

tri
als

, r
eta

il,
 te

ch
no

log
y

Th
om

as
 K

er
ts

os
 (1

3 
yea

rs)
Pr

eci
ou

s m
eta

ls,
 m

ar
in

e t
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n

Jo
hn

 M
as

i, 
CF

A
 (1

0 
yea

rs)
Co

mm
erc

ial
 ve

hic
les

 &
 tr

uc
ks

, d
ive

rsi
fie

d 
ind

us
tri

als
, i

nfr
as

tru
ctu

re,
 in

su
ra

nc
e, 

ut
ili

tie
s

G
eo

rg
e 

Ro
ss

, C
FA

*
(1

7 
yea

rs)
In

ves
tm

en
t g

ra
de

 cr
ed

it,
 m

eta
ls 

&
 m

in
in

g, 
mi

ds
tre

am
 en

erg
y &

 in
fra

str
uc

tu
re,

 oi
l 

eq
ui

pm
en

t s
erv

ice
s &

 di
str

ibu
tio

n, 
pa

ck
ag

in
g

E
liz

ab
et

h 
To

bi
n 

(3
3 

yea
rs)

H
old

ing
 co

mp
an

ies

D
av

id
 W

an
g 

(9
 ye

ar
s)

Bu
ild

ing
 m

ate
ria

ls 
&

 pr
od

uc
ts,

 he
alt

hca
re,

 
ho

ldi
ng

com
pa

nie
s, 

pa
ck

ag
ed

 fo
od

, r
ea

le
sta

te

M
ar

k 
W

rig
ht

, C
FA

 (2
5 

yea
rs)

Ba
nk

s, 
cre

dit
 ca

rd
s &

 p
ay

me
nt

s, 
foo

d &
 

tob
ac

co

E
qu

ity

( )
 =

 in
du

str
y y

ea
rs 

of
 ex

pe
rie

nc
e

M
at

t M
cL

en
na

n,
 C

FA
 (2

8 
yea

rs)
 

H
ea

d 
of

 G
lo

ba
l V

alu
e 

Te
am

 
Po

rt
fo

lio
 M

an
ag

er

K
im

ba
ll 

Br
oo

ke
r, 

Jr.
 (2

7 
yea

rs)
 

D
ep

ut
y 

H
ea

d 
of

 G
lo

ba
l V

alu
e 

Te
am

Po
rt

fo
lio

 M
an

ag
er

 

M
an

ish
 G

up
ta

*
(1

4 
yea

rs)
 

A
ss

oc
iat

e 
Po

rt
fo

lio
 M

an
ag

er
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

Re
se

ar
ch

M
at

t L
am

ph
ie

r, 
CF

A
(2

5 
yea

rs)
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f 
Re

se
ar

ch

Je
an

-M
ar

ie
 E

ve
ill

ar
d 

(5
7 

yea
rs)

Se
ni

or
 A

dv
iso

r

Br
uc

e 
G

re
en

w
ald

, P
hD

(4
0 

yea
rs)

Se
ni

or
 A

dv
iso

r

Ta
no

 S
an

to
s, 

Ph
D

(2
3 

Ye
ar

s)
Se

ni
or

 A
dv

iso
r

Se
ni

or
 A

dv
iso

rs

Fi
rs

t E
ag

le
’s 

in
du

st
ry

 c
ov

er
ag

e s
tr

uc
tu

re
 p

ro
vi

de
s b

ala
nc

e b
et

w
ee

n 
ge

ne
ra

lis
t &

 sp
ec

ial
ist

s, 
m

ain
ta

in
s c

om
pa

ra
tiv

e 
ad

va
nt

ag
e w

hi
le

 m
iti

ga
tin

g 
be

ha
vi

ou
ra

l b
ias

.

* 
Ce

rta
in

 m
em

be
rs 

of
 th

e i
nv

est
me

nt
 te

am
 h

old
 du

al 
ro

les
.

Tr
ad

in
g

E
dw

ar
d 

M
ei

gs
, C

FA
(3

1 
yea

rs)

Se
an

 S
le

in
, C

FA
 (3

1 
yea

rs)

St
ef

an
ie

 B
ac

hh
ub

er
, C

FA
 (3

3 
yea

rs)

K
ev

in
 K

uz
io

, C
FA

 (2
6 

yea
rs)

A
nd

re
w

 B
ah

l, 
CF

A
 (1

7 
yea

rs)

Li
na

 K
ab

ar
ia,

 C
FA

 (1
3 

yea
rs)

H
ig

h 
Y

ie
ld

Id
an

na
 A

pp
io

, P
hD

 (2
1 

yea
rs)

Ca
m

ill
e 

Br
ya

n 
(1

3 
yea

rs)

E
m

ily
 H

ow
ar

d 
(9

 ye
ar

s)

So
ve

re
ig

n 
D

eb
t, 

FX

A
dr

ian
 Jo

ne
s (

31
 ye

ar
s)

G
eo

rg
e 

Ro
ss

, C
FA

* 
(1

7 
yea

rs)

In
ve

st
m

en
t G

ra
de

 D
eb

t

D
ou

g 
D

iP
as

qu
ale

 (3
1 

yea
rs)

Jo
se

ph
 D

ar
ga

n 
(2

7 
yea

rs)

M
ik

e 
G

ra
zi

de
i(

20
 ye

ar
s)

D
eb

bi
e 

Lu
sm

an
 (2

5 
yea

rs)

M
ah

ok
o

H
ik

ita
(1

7 
yea

rs)

Re
se

ar
ch

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns



Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

In
ve

st
m

en
t O

bj
ec

tiv
e 

an
d 

Re
su

lts

W
e 

se
ek

 to
 a

ch
iev

e 
at

tra
ct

iv
e 

re
al 

re
tu

rn
s o

ve
r t

im
e 

w
hi

le 
av

oi
di

ng
 th

e 
pe

rm
an

en
t i

m
pa

irm
en

t o
f 

ca
pi

ta
l. 

Pa
ge

 1
8

In
ve

st
m

en
t P

ro
ce

ss

H
ist

or
ica

l N
et

 R
es

ult
s (

01
-Ja

n-
19

79
 to

 3
1-

D
ec

-2
01

9)

R
et

ur
n 

(a
nn

ua
liz

ed
)

S
td

. D
ev

. (
an

nu
al

iz
ed

)

10
.2

%

14
.6

%

0246810121416

G
lo

ba
l V

al
ue

M
SC

I W
or

ld
 (N

et
)

13
.4

%

9.
7%

0246810121416

G
lo

ba
l V

al
ue

M
SC

I W
or

ld
 (N

et
)

Pa
st

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 n

ot
 in

di
ca

tiv
e 

of
 fu

tu
re

 r
es

ul
ts

.
Fu

ll p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 d
is

cl
os

ur
es

 fo
r t

he
 a

bo
ve

 in
 th

e 
A

pp
en

di
x.

 A
ll f

ig
ur

es
 b

ey
on

d 
on

e 
ye

ar
 a

re
 a

nn
ua

liz
ed

.
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r p
er

io
ds

 p
rio

r t
o 

01
-J

an
-2

00
0 

oc
cu

rr
ed

 w
hi

le
 a

 p
rio

r p
or

tfo
lio

 m
an

ag
er

 o
f t

he
 s

tra
te

gy
 w

as
 a

ff
ilia

te
d 

w
ith

 a
no

th
er

 fi
rm

. 
A

ll i
nv

es
tm

en
ts

 in
vo

lv
e 

th
e 

ris
k 

of
 lo

ss
 o

f p
rin

ci
pa

l. 
A

dd
itio

na
l r

is
k 

di
sc

lo
su

re
s 

fo
r t

hi
s 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
re

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
ap

pe
nd

ix
. 

G
en

er
at

ed
 p

os
iti

ve
 a

bs
ol

ut
e 

re
tu

rn
s 

in
 3

7 
of

 4
1 

ca
le

nd
ar

 y
ea

rs
 

 



Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

N
et

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 U

p 
an

d 
D

ow
n 

M
ar

ke
ts

Pa
ge

 1
9

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 H

is
to

ry
Up Markets Down Markets

A
s o

f 3
1-

D
ec

-2
01

9

Po
rt

fo
lio

2
16

.2
%

Be
nc

hm
ar

k2
19

.2
%

Up
si

de
 

Ca
pt

ur
e²

85
%

Po
rt

fo
lio

2
-2

.4
%

Be
nc

hm
ar

k2
-8

.0
%

Do
w

ns
id

e 
Ca

pt
ur

e²
30

%

¹R
ef

le
ct

s 
fu

ll c
al

en
da

r y
ea

rs
 ²C

al
cu

la
te

d 
us

in
g 

qu
ar

te
rly

 re
tu

rn
s.

 A
nn

ua
liz

ed
 fo

r p
er

io
ds

 o
ve

r o
ne

 y
ea

r.
Pa

st
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 is

 n
ot

 in
di

ca
tiv

e 
of

 fu
tu

re
 re

su
lts

.
Fu

ll p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 d
is

cl
os

ur
es

 fo
r t

he
 a

bo
ve

 in
 th

e 
A

pp
en

di
x.

 A
ll f

ig
ur

es
 b

ey
on

d 
on

e 
ye

ar
 a

re
 a

nn
ua

liz
ed

.
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r p
er

io
ds

 p
rio

r t
o 

01
-J

an
-2

00
0 

oc
cu

rr
ed

 w
hi

le
 a

 p
rio

r p
or

tfo
lio

 m
an

ag
er

 o
f t

he
 s

tra
te

gy
 w

as
 a

ff
ilia

te
d 

w
ith

 a
no

th
er

 fi
rm

. 

Up
 M

ar
ke

t R
et

ur
n 

(%
)2

Do
w

n 
M

ar
ke

t R
et

ur
n 

(%
)2

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

 G
lo

ba
l V

al
ue

 M
SC

I W
or

ld
 (N

et
)

-5
0%

-4
0%

-3
0%

-2
0%

-1
0%0%10
%

20
%

 G
lo

ba
l V

al
ue

 M
SC

I W
or

ld
 (N

et
)

U
p 

M
ar

ke
ts

(3
1 

C
al

. Y
rs

.)¹

D
ow

n 
M

ar
ke

ts
(1

0 
C

al
. Y

ea
rs

)¹



Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

Ri
sk

 D
isc

lo
su

re
s a

nd
 D

ef
in

iti
on

s

Pa
ge

 2
0

Ap
pe

nd
ix

Ri
sk

 D
isc

lo
su

re
s

Ri
sk

 o
f l

os
s

Ri
sk

s 
of

 fo
re

ig
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

Ri
sk

s 
of

 in
ve

st
in

g 
in

 g
ol

d

Ri
sk

s 
of

 v
al

ue
 in

ve
st

in
g

A
ll 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 in
vo

lve
 th

e 
ris

k 
of

 lo
ss

 o
f p

rin
ci

pa
l.

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l i
nv

es
tm

en
ts

 m
ay

 in
vo

lve
 ri

sk
 o

f c
ap

ita
l l

os
s 

fro
m

 u
nf

av
or

ab
le

 fl
uc

tu
at

io
n 

in
 c

ur
re

nc
y 

va
lu

es
, f

ro
m

 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 in
 g

en
er

al
ly

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
, o

r f
ro

m
 s

oc
ia

l, 
ec

on
om

ic
 o

r p
ol

iti
ca

l i
ns

ta
bi

lit
y 

in
 

ot
he

r n
at

io
ns

. I
n 

em
er

gi
ng

 m
ar

ke
ts

, t
he

se
 ri

sk
s 

ar
e 

he
ig

ht
en

ed
. 

In
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
go

ld
 a

nd
 g

ol
d-

re
la

te
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 p
re

se
nt

 c
er

ta
in

 ri
sk

s,
 a

nd
 re

tu
rn

s 
on

 g
ol

d 
re

la
te

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 h

av
e 

tra
di

tio
na

lly
 b

ee
n 

m
or

e 
vo

la
til

e 
th

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 in

 b
ro

ad
er

 e
qu

ity
 o

r d
eb

t m
ar

ke
ts

.

Th
e 

pr
in

ci
pa

l r
is

k 
of

 in
ve

st
in

g 
in

 v
al

ue
 s

to
ck

s 
is

 th
at

 th
e 

pr
ic

e 
of

 th
e 

se
cu

rit
y 

m
ay

 n
ot

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
its

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 
va

lu
e 

or
 m

ay
 d

ec
lin

e 
in

 v
al

ue
.

Be
nc

hm
ar

k 
D

ef
in

iti
on

M
SC

I W
or

ld
 In

de
x

Th
e 

M
S

C
I W

or
ld

 In
de

x 
is

 a
 w

id
el

y 
fo

llo
w

ed
, u

nm
an

ag
ed

 g
ro

up
 o

f s
to

ck
s 

fro
m

 2
3 

in
te

rn
at

io
na

l m
ar

ke
ts

 a
nd

 
is

 n
ot

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r p
ur

ch
as

e.
 T

he
 in

de
x 

pr
ov

id
es

 to
ta

l r
et

ur
ns

 in
 U

S
 d

ol
la

rs
 w

ith
 n

et
 d

ivi
de

nd
s 

re
in

ve
st

ed
.



Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

N
ot

e:
 In

di
ce

s 
ar

e 
un

m
an

ag
ed

 a
nd

 d
o 

no
t i

nc
ur

 m
an

ag
em

en
t f

ee
s 

or
 o

th
er

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
ex

pe
ns

es
. O

ne
 c

an
no

t i
nv

es
t d

ire
ct

ly
 in

 a
n 

in
de

x.

Th
e 

S&
P 

50
0 

In
de

x 
is

 a
 w

id
el

y 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 u
nm

an
ag

ed
 in

de
x 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
sa

m
pl

e 
of

 5
00

 le
ad

in
g 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 in

 le
ad

in
g 

se
ct

or
s 

of
 th

e 
U

.S
.e

co
no

m
y 

an
d 

is
 n

ot
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r p
ur

ch
as

e.
 A

lth
ou

gh
 th

e 
S&

P 
50

0 
fo

cu
se

s 
on

 th
e 

la
rg

e-
ca

p 
se

gm
en

t o
f t

he
 m

ar
ke

t, 
w

ith
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
80

%
 c

ov
er

ag
e 

of
 U

.S
. e

qu
iti

es
, i

t i
s 

al
so

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

a 
pr

ox
y 

fo
r t

he
 to

ta
l m

ar
ke

t. 
Th

e 
S&

P 
50

0 
In

de
x 

in
cl

ud
es

 d
iv

id
en

ds
 re

in
ve

st
ed

. 

Th
e 

To
ky

o 
St

oc
k 

Pr
ic

e 
In

de
x 

(T
O

PI
X)

 is
 a

 fr
ee

-fl
oa

t a
dj

us
te

d 
m

ar
ke

t c
ap

ita
liz

at
io

n-
w

ei
gh

te
d 

in
de

x 
th

at
 is

 c
al

cu
la

te
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 a
ll 

th
e 

do
m

es
tic

 c
om

m
on

 s
to

ck
s 

lis
te

d 
on

 th
e 

TS
E 

Fi
rs

t S
ec

tio
n.

 T
O

PI
X 

sh
ow

s 
th

e 
m

ea
su

re
 o

f c
ur

re
nt

 m
ar

ke
t c

ap
ita

liz
at

io
n 

as
su

m
in

g 
th

at
 m

ar
ke

t c
ap

ita
liz

at
io

n 
as

 o
f t

he
 b

as
e 

da
te

 (J
an

ua
ry

 4
 ,1

96
8)

 is
 1

00
 p

oi
nt

s.
 T

hi
s 

is
 a

 
m

ea
su

re
 o

f t
he

 o
ve

ra
ll 

tre
nd

 in
 th

e 
st

oc
k 

m
ar

ke
t, 

an
d 

is
 u

se
d 

as
 a

 b
en

ch
m

ar
k 

fo
r i

nv
es

tm
en

t i
n 

ja
pa

n 
st

oc
ks

.

Th
e 

FT
SE

 A
ll-

W
or

ld
 In

de
x 

is
 a

 m
ar

ke
t-c

ap
ita

liz
at

io
n 

w
ei

gh
te

d 
in

de
x 

re
pr

es
en

tin
g 

th
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 la
rg

e 
an

d 
m

id
 c

ap
 s

to
ck

s 
fro

m
 th

e 
FT

SE
 G

lo
ba

l E
qu

ity
 In

de
x 

Se
rie

s 
an

d 
co

ve
rs

 9
0-

95
%

 o
f t

he
 in

ve
st

ab
le

 m
ar

ke
t c

ap
ita

liz
at

io
n.

 T
he

 in
de

x 
co

ve
rs

 D
ev

el
op

ed
 a

nd
 E

m
er

gi
ng

 m
ar

ke
ts

 a
nd

 is
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

as
 th

e 
ba

si
s 

fo
r i

nv
es

tm
en

t p
ro

du
ct

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 

fu
nd

s,
 d

er
iv

at
iv

es
 a

nd
 e

xc
ha

ng
e-

tra
de

d 
fu

nd
s.

Th
e

FT
SE

 A
ll-

Sh
ar

e 
In

de
x 

is
 a

 c
ap

ita
liz

at
io

n-
w

ei
gh

te
d 

in
de

x,
 c

om
pr

is
in

g 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

60
0 

of
 m

or
e 

th
an

 2
,0

00
 c

om
pa

ni
es

 tr
ad

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 S
to

ck
 E

xc
ha

ng
e.

 It
 a

im
s 

to
 

re
pr

es
en

t a
t l

ea
st

 9
8%

 o
f t

he
 fu

ll 
ca

pi
ta

l v
al

ue
 o

f a
ll 

U
K 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 th

at
 q

ua
lif

y 
as

 e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r i

nc
lu

si
on

. 

Th
e 

C
D

AX
®

 in
de

x 
co

m
pr

is
es

 th
e 

sh
ar

es
 o

f a
ll 

do
m

es
tic

 c
om

pa
ni

es
 li

st
ed

 in
 th

e 
Pr

im
e 

an
d 

G
en

er
al

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
se

gm
en

ts
. I

t t
hu

s 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 th
e 

G
er

m
an

 e
qu

ity
 m

ar
ke

t i
n 

its
 

en
tir

et
y,

 i.
e.

 a
ll 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 li

st
ed

 a
t t

he
 F

ra
nk

fu
rt 

St
oc

k 
Ex

ch
an

ge
, a

nd
 is

 th
er

ef
or

e 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
fo

r r
es

ea
rc

h 
an

d 
an

al
ys

is
. 

EV
/E

B
IT

D
A 

(E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Va
lu

e 
to

 E
B

IT
D

A)
–

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 m

ea
su

re
 o

f h
ow

 c
he

ap
 o

r e
xp

en
si

ve
 th

e 
ag

gr
eg

at
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 th
e 

w
ho

le
 b

us
in

es
s.

 D
ef

in
ed

 a
s 

th
e 

Su
m

 o
f c

on
st

itu
en

t 
En

te
rp

ris
e 

Va
lu

e 
/ S

um
 o

f c
on

st
itu

en
t L

TM
 E

BI
TD

A.
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
Va

lu
e 

fo
r e

ac
h 

co
ns

tit
ue

nt
 is

 th
e 

su
m

 o
f i

ts
 c

om
m

on
 e

qu
ity

 a
t m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 +

 to
ta

l d
eb

t +
 p

re
fe

rre
d 

eq
ui

ty
 +

 a
ny

 
ac

cu
m

ul
at

ed
 m

in
or

ity
 in

te
re

st
 –

ca
sh

.

Th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sh
ow

n 
is

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 c

ha
ng

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 m

ar
ke

t a
nd

 o
th

er
 c

on
di

tio
ns

. T
he

 o
pi

ni
on

s 
ex

pr
es

se
d 

ar
e 

no
t n

ec
es

sa
ril

y 
th

os
e 

of
 th

e 
fir

m
. T

he
se

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

re
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

fo
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
na

l p
ur

po
se

 o
nl

y.
 T

he
se

 o
pi

ni
on

s 
ar

e 
no

t i
nt

en
de

d 
to

 b
e 

a 
fo

re
ca

st
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

ev
en

ts
, a

 g
ua

ra
nt

ee
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

re
su

lts
, o

r i
nv

es
tm

en
t a

dv
ic

e.
 A

ny
 s

ta
tis

tic
s 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
he

re
in

 h
av

e 
be

en
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

fro
m

 s
ou

rc
es

 b
el

ie
ve

d 
to

 b
e 

re
lia

bl
e,

 b
ut

 th
e 

ac
cu

ra
cy

 o
f t

hi
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
gu

ar
an

te
ed

. T
he

 v
ie

w
s 

ex
pr

es
se

d 
he

re
in

 m
ay

 c
ha

ng
e 

at
 a

ny
 

tim
e 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 to

 th
e 

da
te

 o
f i

ss
ue

 h
er

eo
f. 

Th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 is
 n

ot
 to

 b
e 

co
ns

tru
ed

 a
s 

a 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
or

 a
n 

of
fe

r t
o 

bu
y 

or
 s

el
l o

r t
he

 s
ol

ic
ita

tio
n 

of
 a

n 
of

fe
r t

o 
bu

y 
or

 s
el

l a
ny

 fu
nd

 o
r s

ec
ur

ity
.

Fi
rs

t E
ag

le
 In

ve
st

m
en

t M
an

ag
em

en
t i

s 
th

e 
br

an
d 

na
m

e 
fo

r F
irs

t E
ag

le
 In

ve
st

m
en

t M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

LL
C

 a
nd

 it
s 

su
bs

id
ia

ry
 in

ve
st

m
en

t a
dv

is
er

s.

Pa
ge

 2
1

D
isc

lo
su

re
s

Ap
pe

nd
ix



Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

D
isc

lo
su

re
s

Pa
ge

 2
2

Ap
pe

nd
ix

G
lo

ba
l V

al
ue

 C
om

po
si

te
 c

on
ta

in
s 

fu
lly

 d
is

cr
et

io
na

ry
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

in
ve

st
ed

 in
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 
as

se
t c

la
ss

es
 fr

om
 m

ar
ke

ts
 in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

St
at

es
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

w
or

ld
. T

o 
ac

hi
ev

e 
its

 o
bj

ec
tiv

e,
 m

an
ag

em
en

t w
ill 

no
rm

al
ly

 in
ve

st
 in

 c
om

m
on

 s
to

ck
s 

(a
nd

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 

co
nv

er
tib

le
 in

to
 c

om
m

on
 s

to
ck

s)
 o

f U
S 

an
d 

fo
re

ig
n 

co
m

pa
ni

es
. F

or
 c

om
pa

ris
on

 
pu

rp
os

es
, t

he
 c

om
po

si
te

 is
 m

ea
su

re
d 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 M

SC
I W

or
ld

 E
qu

ity
 (N

et
) I

nd
ex

. 
R

et
ur

ns
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f f

or
ei

gn
 c

ur
re

nc
y 

ex
ch

an
ge

 ra
te

s.
 T

he
 e

xc
ha

ng
e 

ra
te

 
so

ur
ce

 o
f t

he
 c

om
po

si
te

 is
 B

lo
om

be
rg

 4
 p

m
 E

ST
. T

he
 e

xc
ha

ng
e 

ra
te

 s
ou

rc
e 

of
 th

e 
be

nc
hm

ar
k 

is
 R

eu
te

rs
 4

 p
m

 G
M

T.
 T

he
 a

ss
et

 m
ix

 o
f t

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

in
 th

e 
co

m
po

si
te

 m
ay

 
no

t b
e 

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
M

SC
I W

or
ld

 E
qu

ity
 (N

et
) I

nd
ex

. I
nd

ic
es

 d
o 

no
t i

nc
ur

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t f
ee

s 
or

 o
th

er
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

ex
pe

ns
es

. I
nv

es
tm

en
ts

 c
an

no
t b

e 
m

ad
e 

di
re

ct
ly

 
in

to
 a

n 
in

de
x.

 

Pr
io

r t
o 

07
-D

ec
-2

00
9,

 F
irs

t E
ag

le
 In

ve
st

m
en

t M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

LL
C

 w
as

 k
no

w
n 

as
 

Ar
nh

ol
d 

an
d 

S.
 B

le
ic

hr
oe

de
r A

dv
is

er
s,

 L
LC

. 

Fi
rs

t E
ag

le
 In

ve
st

m
en

t M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

LL
C

 c
la

im
s 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

G
lo

ba
l 

In
ve

st
m

en
t P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 (G
IP

S®
) a

nd
 h

as
 p

re
pa

re
d 

an
d 

pr
es

en
te

d 
th

is
 

re
po

rt 
in

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

G
IP

S 
st

an
da

rd
s.

 F
irs

t E
ag

le
 In

ve
st

m
en

t M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

LL
C

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 v

er
ifi

ed
 fo

r t
he

 p
er

io
ds

 0
1-

Ja
n-

19
96

 th
ro

ug
h 

31
-D

ec
-

20
18

. 

Ve
rif

ic
at

io
n 

as
se

ss
es

 w
he

th
er

 (1
) t

he
 fi

rm
 h

as
 c

om
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

 a
ll 

th
e 

co
m

po
si

te
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 G

IP
S 

st
an

da
rd

s 
on

 a
 fi

rm
-w

id
e 

ba
si

s 
an

d 
(2

) t
he

 
fir

m
’s

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 a
re

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 c
al

cu
la

te
 a

nd
 p

re
se

nt
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
G

IP
S 

st
an

da
rd

s.
 T

he
 G

lo
ba

l V
al

ue
 C

om
po

si
te

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ex

am
in

ed
 

fo
r t

he
 p

er
io

ds
 0

1-
Ja

n-
20

00
 th

ro
ug

h 
31

-D
ec

-2
01

8.
 T

he
 v

er
ifi

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
ex

am
in

at
io

n 
re

po
rts

 a
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
up

on
 re

qu
es

t. 

Fi
rs

t E
ag

le
 In

ve
st

m
en

t M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

LL
C

 is
 a

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t S
EC

 re
gi

st
er

ed
 

in
ve

st
m

en
t a

dv
is

er
.  

Th
e 

fir
m

 m
ai

nt
ai

ns
 a

 c
om

pl
et

e 
lis

t a
nd

 d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 c

om
po

si
te

s,
 

w
hi

ch
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
up

on
 re

qu
es

t. 
 T

he
 G

IP
S 

de
fin

ed
 fi

rm
 d

oe
s 

no
t i

nc
lu

de
 th

e 
Pr

iv
at

e 
C

re
di

t b
us

in
es

s.
  

R
es

ul
ts

 a
re

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
fu

lly
 d

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
un

de
r m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
os

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

fir
m

. T
ot

al
 re

tu
rn

s 
of

 th
e 

co
m

po
si

te
 a

nd
 b

en
ch

m
ar

k 
ar

e 
pr

es
en

te
d 

ne
t o

f e
st

im
at

ed
 fo

re
ig

n 
w

ith
ho

ld
in

g 
ta

xe
s 

on
 d

iv
id

en
ds

, i
nt

er
es

t, 
an

d 
ca

pi
ta

l 
ga

in
s.

 M
SC

I u
se

s 
w

ith
ho

ld
in

g 
ta

x 
ra

te
s 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 to

 L
ux

em
bo

ur
g 

ho
ld

in
g 

co
m

pa
ni

es
, 

as
 L

ux
em

bo
ur

g 
ap

pl
ie

s 
th

e 
hi

gh
es

t r
at

e.
 W

ith
ho

ld
in

g 
ta

xe
s 

m
ay

 v
ar

y 
ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 th

e 
in

ve
st

or
’s

 d
om

ic
ile

.  

D
er

iv
at

iv
es

 m
ay

 m
ak

e 
up

 a
 m

at
er

ia
l p

ar
t o

f t
he

 c
om

po
si

te
 s

tra
te

gy
. T

he
 c

om
po

si
te

 
m

ay
 in

ve
st

 in
 s

tru
ct

ur
ed

 n
ot

es
, t

he
 v

al
ue

 o
f w

hi
ch

 is
 li

nk
ed

 to
 th

e 
pr

ic
e 

of
 g

ol
d 

or
 s

ilv
er

 
to

 h
ed

ge
 a

ga
in

st
 m

ar
ke

t c
on

di
tio

ns
. T

he
 u

se
 o

f s
tru

ct
ur

ed
 n

ot
es

 is
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
m

ar
ke

t c
on

di
tio

ns
. S

tru
ct

ur
ed

 n
ot

es
 a

re
 p

ur
ch

as
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

la
rg

e 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 b

an
ks

 w
ith

 s
tro

ng
 c

re
di

t r
at

in
gs

. T
he

 c
om

po
si

te
 fr

eq
ue

nt
ly

 u
se

s 
cu

rre
nc

y 
fo

rw
ar

ds
 to

 h
ed

ge
 c

ur
re

nc
y 

ex
po

su
re

. 

Th
e 

an
nu

al
 c

om
po

si
te

 d
is

pe
rs

io
n 

pr
es

en
te

d 
is

 a
n 

eq
ua

l-w
ei

gh
te

d 
st

an
da

rd
 d

ev
ia

tio
n 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 fo

r t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
in

 th
e 

co
m

po
si

te
 fo

r t
he

 e
nt

ire
 y

ea
r. 

 

Pa
st

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 n

ot
 in

di
ca

tiv
e 

of
 fu

tu
re

 re
su

lts
.  

Th
e 

U
S 

D
ol

la
r i

s 
th

e 
cu

rre
nc

y 
us

ed
 to

 e
xp

re
ss

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

. R
et

ur
ns

 a
re

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 

gr
os

s 
an

d 
ne

t o
f m

an
ag

em
en

t f
ee

s 
an

d 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
re

in
ve

st
m

en
t o

f a
ll 

in
co

m
e.

 N
et

 o
f 

fe
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 w

as
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
us

in
g 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t a

pp
lic

ab
le

 m
an

ag
em

en
t f

ee
 o

f 
0.

75
%

 a
pp

lie
d 

m
on

th
ly

. A
ct

ua
l r

et
ur

ns
 w

ill 
be

 re
du

ce
d 

by
 in

ve
st

m
en

t a
dv

is
or

y 
fe

es
 a

nd
 

ot
he

r e
xp

en
se

s 
th

at
 m

ay
 b

e 
in

cu
rre

d 
in

 th
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

. T
he

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t m
an

ag
em

en
t f

ee
 s

ch
ed

ul
e 

is
 0

.7
5%

 o
n 

as
se

ts
. A

ct
ua

l i
nv

es
tm

en
t a

dv
is

or
y 

fe
es

 in
cu

rre
d 

by
 c

lie
nt

s 
m

ay
 v

ar
y.

  

Th
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
of

 fe
es

 p
ro

du
ce

s 
a 

co
m

po
un

di
ng

 e
ffe

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
to

ta
l r

at
e 

of
 re

tu
rn

 n
et

 o
f 

m
an

ag
em

en
t f

ee
s.

 A
s 

an
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

f i
nv

es
tm

en
t m

an
ag

em
en

t f
ee

s 
on

 th
e 

to
ta

l v
al

ue
 o

f a
 c

lie
nt

’s
 p

or
tfo

lio
 a

ss
um

in
g 

(a
) q

ua
rte

rly
 fe

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t, 
(b

) $
1,

00
0,

00
0 

in
ve

st
m

en
t, 

(c
) p

or
tfo

lio
 re

tu
rn

 o
f 8

%
 a

 y
ea

r, 
an

d 
(d

) 1
.0

0%
 a

nn
ua

l i
nv

es
tm

en
t a

dv
is

or
y 

fe
e 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
$1

0,
41

6 
in

 th
e 

fir
st

 y
ea

r, 
an

d 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 $
59

,8
16

 o
ve

r f
iv

e 
ye

ar
s 

an
d 

$1
43

,4
30

 o
ve

r t
en

 y
ea

rs
. A

ct
ua

l i
nv

es
tm

en
t a

dv
is

or
y 

fe
es

 in
cu

rre
d 

by
 c

lie
nt

s 
m

ay
 v

ar
y.

 P
ol

ic
ie

s 
fo

r v
al

ui
ng

 p
or

tfo
lio

s,
 c

al
cu

la
tin

g 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

, a
nd

 p
re

pa
rin

g 
co

m
pl

ia
nt

 p
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

up
on

 re
qu

es
t. 

Th
e 

G
lo

ba
l V

al
ue

 C
om

po
si

te
 w

as
 c

re
at

ed
 0

1-
Ja

n-
19

79
. P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 p
rio

r 
to

 0
1-

Ja
n-

20
00

, i
s 

fo
r a

 U
S 

m
ut

ua
l f

un
d 

th
at

 w
as

 m
an

ag
ed

 b
y 

Je
an

-M
ar

ie
 E

ve
illa

rd
 

w
hi

le
 h

e 
w

as
 a

ffi
lia

te
d 

w
ith

 a
no

th
er

 fi
rm

 a
nd

 h
ad

 p
or

tfo
lio

 m
an

ag
em

en
t r

es
po

ns
ib

ilit
y.

 
Fi

rs
t E

ag
le

 In
ve

st
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
LL

C
 a

cq
ui

re
d 

th
is

 p
rio

r f
irm

 a
nd

 b
ec

am
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t a

dv
is

er
 to

 th
e 

U
S 

m
ut

ua
l f

un
d 

on
 3

1-
D

ec
-1

99
9.

 O
n 

27
-M

ar
-2

00
9,

 M
r. 

Ev
ei

lla
rd

 tr
an

si
tio

ne
d 

fro
m

 h
av

in
g 

po
rtf

ol
io

 m
an

ag
em

en
t r

es
po

ns
ib

ilit
ie

s 
to

 a
 s

en
io

r 
ad

vi
so

ry
 ro

le
 to

 F
irs

t E
ag

le
 In

ve
st

m
en

t M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

LL
C

, a
 p

os
iti

on
 h

e 
al

so
 h

el
d 

fro
m

 
01

-J
an

-2
00

5 
to

 2
3-

M
ar

-2
00

7.
  



Fo
r I

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l U

se
 O

nl
y

D
isc

lo
su

re
s

Pa
ge

 2
3

Ap
pe

nd
ix

Ye
ar

 E
nd

To
ta

l F
irm

 A
ss

et
s 

(U
SD

 M
illi

on
s)

C
om

po
si

te
 

As
se

ts
 

(U
SD

 M
illi

on
s)

Nu
m

be
r o

f 
Ac

co
un

ts
C

om
po

si
te

G
ro

ss
C

om
po

si
te

Ne
t

M
SC

I W
or

ld
(N

et
)

3Y
 e

x-
po

st
 S

td
. 

D
ev

.
C

om
po

si
te

3Y
 e

x-
po

st
 S

td
. 

D
ev

.
M

SC
I W

or
ld

C
om

po
si

te
 

D
is

pe
rs

io
n

20
18

91
,8

90
55

,7
82

13
-7

.5
5%

-8
.2

4%
-8

.7
1%

7.
35

%
10

.3
8%

0.
20

%
20

17
11

6,
05

7
67

,6
00

14
14

.6
8%

13
.8

2%
22

.4
0%

7.
42

%
10

.2
3%

0.
60

%
20

16
99

,0
86

58
,4

16
17

11
.8

1%
10

.9
8%

7.
51

%
8.

09
%

10
.9

2%
1.

10
%

20
15

92
,3

69
53

,5
49

19
0.

16
%

-0
.5

9%
-0

.8
7%

7.
67

%
10

.8
0%

0.
50

%
20

14
99

,4
70

58
,0

75
20

4.
13

%
3.

35
%

4.
94

%
7.

83
%

10
.2

3%
0.

60
%

20
13

92
,5

11
53

,9
10

15
16

.9
0%

16
.0

3%
26

.6
8%

9.
48

%
13

.5
4%

0.
90

%
20

12
72

,9
16

41
,8

59
12

13
.7

6%
12

.9
1%

15
.8

3%
11

.7
4%

16
.7

4%
0.

50
%

20
11

59
,6

46
33

,8
06

8
0.

95
%

0.
19

%
-5

.5
4%

13
.8

7%
20

.1
5%

N.
A.

20
10

51
,9

61
27

,4
83

Fi
ve

 o
r F

ew
er

18
.8

8%
18

.0
0%

11
.7

6%
N.

A.
20

09
38

,9
10

20
,1

39
Fi

ve
 o

r F
ew

er
24

.3
1%

23
.3

8%
29

.9
9%

N.
A.

20
08

31
,6

05
16

,8
97

Fi
ve

 o
r F

ew
er

-2
0.

17
%

-2
0.

77
%

-4
0.

71
%

N.
A.

20
07

43
,8

79
21

,5
17

Fi
ve

 o
r F

ew
er

11
.1

4%
10

.3
1%

9.
04

%
N.

A.
20

06
43

,0
89

20
,3

45
Fi

ve
 o

r F
ew

er
21

.8
7%

20
.9

6%
20

.0
7%

N.
A.

20
05

35
,2

10
16

,0
49

Fi
ve

 o
r F

ew
er

16
.3

0%
15

.4
3%

9.
49

%
N.

A.
20

04
26

,3
15

10
,6

86
Fi

ve
 o

r F
ew

er
19

.8
5%

18
.9

5%
14

.7
2%

N.
A.

20
03

15
,4

81
4,

86
0

Fi
ve

 o
r F

ew
er

39
.4

7%
38

.4
3%

33
.1

1%
N.

A.
20

02
6,

70
3

2,
22

4
Fi

ve
 o

r F
ew

er
11

.7
2%

10
.8

9%
-1

9.
89

%
N.

A.
20

01
5,

27
4

1,
67

1
Fi

ve
 o

r F
ew

er
11

.7
6%

10
.9

3%
-1

6.
82

%
N.

A.
20

00
5,

94
4

1,
68

0
Fi

ve
 o

r F
ew

er
11

.2
2%

10
.3

9%
-1

3.
18

%
N.

A.
19

99
1,

92
4

Fi
ve

 o
r F

ew
er

21
.0

4%
20

.1
4%

24
.9

3%
N.

A.

N.
A.

 –
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 n
ot

 s
ta

tis
tic

al
ly

 m
ea

ni
ng

fu
l d

ue
 to

 a
n 

in
su

ffi
ci

en
t n

um
be

r o
f p

or
tfo

lio
s 

in
 th

e 
co

m
po

si
te

 fo
r t

he
 e

nt
ire

 y
ea

r.



PE
R
IO

D
 E
N
D
IN

G
: 
D
EC

EM
B
ER

 3
1,
 2
01

9

In
ve
st
m
en

t P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 R
ev
ie
w
 fo

r

Co
nt
ra
 C
os
ta
 C
ou

nt
y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’
 R
et
ire

m
en

t A
ss
oc
ia
tio

n

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/26/20Agenda Item#6a.



VE
RU

SI
N
VE

ST
M
EN

TS
.C
O
M

SE
A
TT

LE
  2

06
‐6
22

‐3
70

0
LO

S 
A
N
G
EL
ES

  3
00

‐2
97

‐1
77

7
SA

N
 F
RA

N
CI
SC

O
  4

15
‐3
62

‐3
48

4

Ta
bl

e 
of

 C
on

te
nt

s

In
ve

st
m

en
t L

an
ds

ca
pe

TA
B
 I

In
ve

st
m

en
t P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

R
ev

ie
w

TA
B
 I
I



1S
T
Q
U
A
RT

ER
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe



CA
PI
TA

L 
M
A
R
KE

T 
A
SS

U
M
PT

IO
N
S

W
H
Y 
B
EN

CH
M
A
R
KS

 M
A
TT

ER
R
IS
K 
IN

 M
A
N
A
G
ER

 S
EL

EC
TI
O
N

Re
ce

nt
 V

er
us

 re
se

ar
ch

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

2

So
m
e 
im

po
rt
an

t d
ev
el
op

m
en

ts
 o
cc
ur
re
d 
in
 

th
e 
la
st
 y
ea

r. 
Du

rin
g 
ou

r 2
02

0 
Ca

pi
ta
l M

ar
ke
t 

As
su
m
pt
io
ns
 w
eb

in
ar
, w

e 
di
sc
us
se
d:

―
M
ar
ke
t m

ov
em

en
ts
 o
f 2

01
9 
an

d 
ho

w
 th

es
e 

sh
ift
s h

av
e 
af
fe
ct
ed

 o
ur
 lo

ng
‐t
er
m
 o
ut
lo
ok

―
Th

e 
im

pa
ct
 o
f f
al
lin

g 
in
te
re
st
 ra

te
s o

n 
fix
ed

 
in
co
m
e 
ex
pe

ct
at
io
ns

―
W
hy

 it
 is
 im

po
rt
an

t t
o 
di
ffe

re
nt
ia
te
 b
et
w
ee

n 
sh
or
te
r‐
te
rm

 a
nd

 lo
ng

er
‐t
er
m
 fo

re
ca
st
in
g 

ex
er
ci
se
s

In
 th

is 
To

pi
cs
 o
f I
nt
er
es
t p

ap
er
, w

e 
se
ek
 to

 
ou

tli
ne

 th
e 
im

po
rt
an

ce
 o
f b

en
ch
m
ar
k 

se
le
ct
io
n 
w
ith

in
 th

e 
in
ve
st
m
en

t p
ro
ce
ss
. 

Th
e 
w
hi
te
 p
ap

er
 a
dd

re
ss
es
 th

e 
fo
llo

w
in
g 

po
in
ts
:

―
Be

nc
hm

ar
ks
 w
hi
ch
 a
pp

ea
r s
im

ila
r c

an
 

be
ha

ve
 v
er
y 
di
ffe

re
nt
ly
, e
ve
n 
ov

er
 lo

ng
 

pe
rio

ds
 o
f t
im

e

―
U
nc
on

sid
er
ed

 b
en

ch
m
ar
k 
se
le
ct
io
n 
ca
n 

in
tr
od

uc
e 
un

co
m
pe

ns
at
ed

 tr
ac
ki
ng

 e
rr
or

―
To

ol
s a

va
ila
bl
e 
to
 in

ve
st
or
s t
o 
as
sis

t i
n 

de
te
rm

in
in
g 
ap

pr
op

ria
te
 b
en

ch
m
ar
k 

in
de

xe
s

In
 o
ur
 la
te
st
 T
op

ic
s o

f I
nt
er
es
t p

ap
er
, w

e 
pr
ov

id
e 
a 
fr
am

ew
or
k 
fo
r a

ss
es
sin

g 
th
e 

ca
nd

id
ac
y 
of
 a
 m

an
ag
er
 fo

r p
or
tf
ol
io
 

in
cl
us
io
n 
an

d 
co
ns
id
er
 th

e 
im

pl
ic
at
io
ns
 o
f 

on
e 
m
an

ag
er
 v
er
su
s a

lte
rn
at
iv
es
. I
t 

ad
dr
es
se
s t
he

 fo
llo

w
in
g 
qu

es
tio

ns
:

―
Do

es
 th

e 
m
an

ag
er
 a
dd

 a
 d
es
ire

d 
ex
po

su
re
?

―
Do

es
 th

e 
m
an

ag
er
 e
xh
ib
it 
sk
ill
?

―
W
ha

t d
oe

s t
he

 m
an

ag
er
 a
dd

 to
 th

e 
br
oa

de
r p

or
tf
ol
io
 re

la
tiv

e 
to
 o
th
er
 

ca
nd

id
at
es
?

V
is

it:
 h

tt
ps

://
w

w
w

.v
er

us
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
.c

om
/in

si
gh

ts
/

A
nn

ua
l o

ut
lo

ok
s

T
op

ic
s 

of
 in

te
re

st
s

Co
ns
ul
tin

g 
| 
O
ut
so
ur
ce
d 
CI
O
 (O

CI
O
) |

 R
isk

 A
dv
iso

ry
 |
 P
riv

at
e 
M
ar
ke
ts



VE
RU

SI
N
VE

ST
M
EN

TS
.C
O
M

SE
A
TT

LE
  2

06
‐6
22

‐3
70

0
LO

S 
A
N
G
EL
ES

  3
10

‐2
97

‐1
77

7
SA

N
 F
RA

N
CI
SC

O
  4

15
‐3
62

‐3
48

4

Ta
bl

e 
of

 co
nt

en
ts

3

E
co

no
m

ic
 e

nv
ir

on
m

en
t

6

Fi
xe

d 
in

co
m

e 
ra

te
s 

&
 c

re
di

t
17

E
qu

ity
23

O
th

er
 a

ss
et

s
34

A
pp

en
di

x
36



4t
h

qu
ar

te
r s

um
m

ar
y

TH
E 
EC

O
N
O
M
IC
 C
LI
M
A
TE

—
Re

al
 G
DP

 g
re
w
 a
t a

 2
.1
%
 ra

te
 y
ea

r‐
ov
er
‐y
ea

r i
n 
th
e 
th
ird

 
qu

ar
te
r (
2.
1%

 q
ua

rt
er
ly
 a
nn

ua
liz
ed

 ra
te
). 
Fa
lli
ng

 im
po

rt
s 

an
d 
w
ea

k 
fix
ed

 in
ve
st
m
en

t (
‐0
.2
%
 c
on

tr
ib
ut
io
n)
 a
ct
ed

 a
s 
a 

dr
ag
 o
n 
gr
ow

th
, w

hi
le
 p
er
so
na

l c
on

su
m
pt
io
n 
co
nt
in
ue

d 
to
 

as
 th

e 
gr
ea
te
st
 d
riv

er
 o
f g

ro
w
th
. p

. 7

—
U.
S.
 a
nd

 C
hi
ne

se
 n
eg
ot
ia
to
rs
 si
gn

ed
 th

e 
“p
ha

se
 o
ne

” 
tr
ad

e 
ag
re
em

en
t, 
an

d 
Bo

ris
 Jo

hn
so
n’
s 
Co

ns
er
va
tiv

e 
Pa
rt
y 
in
 th

e 
U.
K.
 w
on

 a
 d
ec
isi
ve
 v
ic
to
ry
. T
he

se
 e
ve
nt
s a

pp
ea

r t
o 
ha

ve
 

re
m
ov
ed

 so
m
e 
un

ce
rt
ai
nt
y 
fr
om

 th
e 
ge
op

ol
iti
ca
l l
an

ds
ca
pe

 
ov
er
 th

e 
sh
or
t‐
to
 in
te
rm

ed
ia
te
‐te

rm
. p

. 1
5

PO
R
TF

O
LI
O
 I
M
PA

CT
S

—
G
lo
ba

l e
qu

ity
 m

ar
ke
ts
 e
xh
ib
ite

d 
st
ro
ng

 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

th
ro
ug

h 
Q
4,
 a
nd

 U
.S
. e

qu
ity

 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 w
as
 in

‐li
ne

 (M
SC

I 
AC

W
I +
9.
0%

, S
&
P 
50

0 
+9

.1
%
). 
Em

er
gi
ng

 m
ar
ke
ts
 w
er
e 
th
e 

to
p 
pe

rf
or
m
in
g 
as
se
t c

la
ss
 (+

11
.8
%
).

p.
 4
0

—
U.
S.
 h
ea

dl
in
e 
in
fla

tio
n 
in
cr
ea

se
d 
2.
3%

 Y
oY

 in
 D
ec
em

be
r, 

al
on

gs
id
e 
th
e 
co
re
 in

fla
tio

n 
gr
ow

th
 fi
gu

re
, a
nd

 u
p 
fr
om

 
1.
7%

 in
 S
ep

te
m
be

r. 
Al
th
ou

gh
 th

is 
w
as
 a
 n
ot
ab

le
 ju

m
p 
in
 

th
e 
in
fla

tio
n 
ra
te
, i
nv
es
to
rs
 a
pp

ea
r m

or
e 
co
nc
er
ne

d 
ab

ou
t 

gl
ob

al
 d
ef
la
tio

na
ry
 fo

rc
es
, a
s 
in
di
ca
te
d 
by

 th
e 
10

yr
 U
.S
. 

TI
PS
 B
re
ak
ev
en

 In
fla

tio
n 
Ra

te
 o
f 1

.7
3%

. C
yc
lic
al
 p
ric

e 
pr
es
su
re
s r
em

ai
n 
su
rp
ris
in
gl
y 
ab

se
nt
 fr
om

 th
e 
cu
rr
en

t 
en

vi
ro
nm

en
t.
p.
 9

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

TH
E
IN

V
ES

TM
EN

T
CL

IM
A
TE

—
In
 O
ct
ob

er
, t
he

 F
ed

er
al
 O
pe

n 
M
ar
ke
t C

om
m
itt
ee

 c
ut
 

in
te
re
st
 ra

te
s b

y 
0.
25

%
 to

 a
 n
ew

 ra
ng

e 
of
 1
.5
0 
–
1.
75

%
. 

Th
is 
m
ar
ke
d 
th
e 
th
ird

 c
on

se
cu
tiv

e 
ra
te
 c
ut
 b
y 
th
e 

co
m
m
itt
ee

.p
. 1

8

—
G
lo
ba

l s
ov
er
ei
gn

 b
on

d 
yi
el
ds
 p
ic
ke
d 
up

 m
od

es
tly

 in
 Q
4,
 o
n 

hi
gh

er
 in
fla

tio
n 
an

d 
gr
ow

th
 p
ro
sp
ec
ts
. T
he

 d
ol
la
r v

al
ue

 o
f 

ne
ga
tiv

e‐
yi
el
di
ng

 o
ut
st
an

di
ng

 d
eb

t f
el
l f
ro
m
 n
ea
rly

 $
15

 
tr
ill
io
n 
to
 ju

st
 a
bo

ve
 $
11

 tr
ill
io
n.
 C
en

tr
al
 b
an

ke
rs
 a
pp

ea
le
d 

fo
r f
isc

al
 a
ct
io
n,
 c
iti
ng

 th
e 
lim

ite
d 
ca
pa

ci
ty
 o
f m

on
et
ar
y 

po
lic
y 
to
 su

st
ai
n 
fu
rt
he

r e
co
no

m
ic
 e
xp
an

sio
n.
 p
. 1

8

A
SS

ET
A
LL

O
CA

TI
O
N

IS
SU

ES

—
M
os
t r
isk

 a
ss
et
s 
pr
ov
id
ed

 si
za
bl
e 
ga
in
s i
n 
Q
4.
 G
lo
ba

l 
eq

ui
tie

s d
el
iv
er
ed

 +
9.
0%

, U
.S
. h

ig
h 
yi
el
d 
in
cr
ea

se
d 
+2

.6
%
, 

an
d 
Em

er
gi
ng

 M
ar
ke
t L
oc
al
 D
eb

t r
os
e 
+5

.2
%
. L
on

ge
r 

du
ra
tio

n 
fix
ed

 in
co
m
e 
sa
w
 lo

ss
es
 a
s 
in
te
re
st
 ra

te
s 

re
bo

un
de

d.
p.
 4
0

—
Th

e 
U.
S.
 d
ol
la
r w

ea
ke
ne

d 
‐0
.5
%
 a
ga
in
st
 b
ot
h 
de

ve
lo
pe

d 
an

d 
em

er
gi
ng

 c
ur
re
nc
ie
s i
n 
Q
4,
 re

ve
rs
in
g 
m
ov
es
 o
f t
he

 
pr
io
r q

ua
rt
er
. D

ol
la
r v

ol
at
ili
ty
 re

m
ai
ns
 lo
w
 re

la
tiv

e 
to
 th

e 
bi
g 
sw

in
gs
 th

at
 o
cc
ur
re
d 
th
ro
ug

ho
ut
 2
01

4‐
20

18
.p

. 3
5

—
Al
th
ou

gh
 ri
sk
 a
ss
et
s 
ap

pe
ar
 to

 h
av
e 
ro
ck
et
ed

 h
ig
he

r i
n 

20
19

, w
hi
ch
 m

ay
 c
re
at
e 
co
nc
er
ns
 o
ve
r v

al
ua

tio
ns
, i
t i
s 

im
po

rt
an

t t
o 
no

te
 th

at
 m

uc
h 
of
 th

is 
pe

rf
or
m
an

ce
 w
as
 d
ue

 
to
 a
ss
et
s 
re
co
ve
rin

g 
fr
om

 a
 sh

ar
p 
fa
ll 
in
 la
te
‐2
01

8.
 p
. 2

5

4

A
 n

eu
tr

al
 r

is
k 

st
an

ce
 m

ay
 b

e 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
in

 
to

da
y’

s 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t



W
ha

t d
ro

ve
 th

e 
m

ar
ke

t i
n 

Q
4?

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

YE
A
R
‐E
N
D
 L
IQ

U
ID

IT
Y 
O
FF

ER
ED

 U
P 
B
Y 
TH

E 
N
EW

 Y
O
R
K 
FE

D
 (
B
IL
LI
O
N
S)

FO
R
W

A
R
D
 P
R
IC
E/

EA
R
N
IN

G
S 
R
A
TI
O
 (
B
LE

N
D
ED

 1
2‐
M
O
N
TH

 E
A
R
N
IN

G
S)

5

So
ur
ce
: N

ew
 Y
or
k 
Fe
d,
 a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9.

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a

s o
f 1

1/
30

/1
9

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a

s o
f 1

2/
31

/1
9.

U
.S
. 
M
O
N
TH

LY
 T
R
A
D
E 
D
EF

IC
IT
 (
B
IL
LI
O
N
S)

“A
s 
m
ar
ke

ts
 c
lim

b 
hi
gh

er
, a

re
 st
oc
ks
 b
ec
om

in
g 
ov

er
va
lu
ed

?”

BL
EN

D
ED

 F
O
RW

AR
D
 1
2‐
M
O
N
TH

 P
/E
 R
AT

IO
 O
F 
TH

E 
S&

P 
50

0 
IN
D
EX

Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

17
.0
x

16
.6
x

16
.9
x

17
.3
x

17
.8
x

18
.3
x

Ar
tic

le
 S
ou

rc
e:
 C
N
BC

, D
ec
em

be
r 3

0t
h , 
20

19

“F
ed

 ‘p
re
pa

re
d 
to
 a
dj
us
t’ 
ba

la
nc
e 
sh
ee

t t
o 
pr
ev
en

t r
ep

o 
m
ar
ke

t f
la
re
‐u
p”

M
O
N
TH

LY
 C
H
AN

G
E 
IN
 T
H
E 
SI
ZE
 O
F 
TH

E 
FE
D
 B
AL

AN
CE

 S
H
EE

T 
($
BI
LL
IO
N
S)

Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

‐4
7.
7

‐1
9.
2

97
.8

16
2.
1

33
.1

11
2.
7

Ar
tic

le
 S
ou

rc
e:
 Y
ah

oo
 C
an

ad
a 
Fi
na

nc
e,
 D
ec
em

be
r 1

1t
h , 
20

19

“C
hi
na

’s
 p
or
k 
pr
ic
e 
ju
m
ps
 1
10

 p
er
 c
en

t, 
se
nd

in
g 
co
ns
um

er
 in

fla
tio

n 
ro
ck
et
in
g 
to
 e
ig
ht
‐y
ea

r h
ig
h”

CH
IN
A 
CP

I I
N
FL
AT

IO
N
 (Y

oY
 %
 C
H
AN

G
E)

Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

2.
8

2.
8

3.
0

3.
8

4.
5

4.
5

Ar
tic

le
 S
ou

rc
e:
 S
ou

th
 C
hi
na

 M
or
ni
ng

 P
os
t, 
De

ce
m
be

r 1
0t

h , 
20

19

“U
.S
. t
ra
de

 d
ef
ic
it 
fa
lls
 7
.6
%
 in

 O
ct
ob

er
 to

 1
6‐
m
on

th
 lo

w
 o
n 
de

cl
in
e 
in
 

Ch
in
es
e 
im

po
rt
s”

U
.S
. F
ED

ER
AL

 T
RA

D
E 
D
EF
IC
IT
 ($

BI
LL
IO
N
S)

Ju
n

Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov

53
.7

52
.7

53
.5

51
.1

46
.9

43
.1

Ar
tic

le
 S
ou

rc
e:
 M

ar
ke
tW

at
ch
, D

ec
em

be
r 5

th
, 2
01

9
 $
‐

 $
20

 $
40

 $
60

 $
80

Ja
n‐
92

Ja
n‐
98

Ja
n‐
04

Ja
n‐
10

Ja
n‐
16

51015202530

Ja
n‐
90

Ja
n‐
96

Ja
n‐
02

Ja
n‐
08

Ja
n‐
14

S&
P 
50

0 
In
de

x
30

‐y
ea
r a

ve
ra
ge

$4
9 

$4
3 

$4
3 

$5
4 

$3
1 

$2
9 

$1
8 

$2
7 

$2
6 

$2
5 

$2
5 

$2
5 

$5
0 

$3
5 

$3
5 

$3
5 

$1
10

 

$1
50

 

$0$5
0

$1
00

$1
50

$2
00

11
/2
5

12
/2

12
/9

12
/1
6

12
/1
9

12
/2
3

12
/2
6

12
/3
0

12
/3
1

De
m
an

d
Su

pp
ly



Ec
on

om
ic

 e
nv

ir
on

m
en

t

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

6



U
.S

. e
co

no
m

ic
s s

um
m

ar
y

—
Re

al
 G
DP

 g
re
w
 a
t a

 2
.1
%
 ra

te
 y
ea

r‐
ov
er
‐y
ea

r i
n 
th
e 
th
ird

 q
ua

rt
er
 (2

.0
%
 

qu
ar
te
rly

 a
nn

ua
liz
ed

 ra
te
). 
Fa
lli
ng

 
im

po
rt
s a

nd
 w
ea

k 
fix
ed

 in
ve
st
m
en

t 
(‐0

.2
%
 c
on

tr
ib
ut
io
n)
 a
ct
ed

 a
s 
a 

dr
ag
 o
n 
gr
ow

th
, w

hi
le
 p
er
so
na

l 
co
ns
um

pt
io
n 
co
nt
in
ue

d 
to
 b
e 
th
e 

gr
ea
te
st
 d
riv

er
 o
f g

ro
w
th
.

—
U.
S.
 h
ea

dl
in
e 
in
fla

tio
n 
ca
m
e 
in
 a
t 

2.
3%

 Y
oY

 in
 D
ec
em

be
r, 
in
 li
ne

 w
ith

 
th
e 
co
re
 in

fla
tio

n 
gr
ow

th
 fi
gu

re
. 

De
sp
ite

 m
or
e 
th
an

 1
0 
ye
ar
s o

f 
ec
on

om
ic
 e
xp
an

sio
n,
 c
yc
lic
al
 p
ric

e 
pr
es
su
re
s s

ee
m
 su

rp
ris
in
gl
y 
ab

se
nt
 

fr
om

 th
e 
cu
rr
en

t e
nv
iro

nm
en

t. 
In
ve
st
or
s a

pp
ea

r m
or
e 
co
nc
er
ne

d 
ab

ou
t g

lo
ba

l d
ef
la
tio

na
ry
 fo

rc
es
. 

—
Th

e 
U.
S.
 la
bo

r m
ar
ke
t s
ho

w
ed

 
fu
rt
he

r s
tr
en

gt
h 
in
 th

e 
fo
ur
th
 

qu
ar
te
r a

nd
 u
ne

m
pl
oy
m
en

t 
re
m
ai
ne

d 
at
 5
0‐
ye
ar
 lo
w
s 
of
 3
.5
%
. 

—
Co

ns
um

er
 se

nt
im

en
t i
nd

ic
at
or
s 

re
m
ai
n 
ne

ar
 a
ll‐
tim

e‐
hi
gh

s a
nd

 
im

pr
ov
ed

 sl
ig
ht
ly
 o
ve
r t
he

 q
ua

rt
er
.

—
Am

er
ic
an

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 
ar
e 
in
 a
 

st
ro
ng

 fi
na

nc
ia
l p
os
iti
on

, w
ith

 
ba

la
nc
e 
sh
ee

ts
 th

at
 a
pp

ea
r 

in
cr
ea

sin
gl
y 
ro
bu

st
. A

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f 

Q
3,
 U
.S
. h

ou
se
ho

ld
 d
eb

t 
ou

ts
ta
nd

in
g 
w
as
 e
qu

al
 to

 a
bo

ut
 

74
%
 o
f G

DP
, t
he

 h
ea

lth
ie
st
 le
ve
l 

sin
ce
 Q
4 
20

01
.

—
U.
S.
 a
nd

 C
hi
ne

se
 n
eg
ot
ia
to
rs
 

sig
ne

d 
th
e 
“p
ha

se
 o
ne

” 
ag
re
em

en
t 

on
 tr
ad

e,
 a
nd

 B
or
is 
Jo
hn

so
n’
s 

Co
ns
er
va
tiv

e 
Pa
rt
y 
w
on

 a
 d
ec
isi
ve
 

vi
ct
or
y 
in
 th

e 
U.
K.
 T
he

se
 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
ts
 m

ay
 e
as
e 
so
m
e 
of
 

th
e 
ec
on

om
ic
 u
nc
er
ta
in
ty
 a
cr
os
s 

th
e 
gl
ob

al
 e
co
no

m
y,
 p
ro
vi
di
ng

 a
 

ta
ilw

in
d 
to
 fu

tu
re
 g
ro
w
th
.

—
Ex
ist
in
g 
ho

m
e 
sa
le
s 
gr
ew

 +
2.
7%

 
Yo
Y 
in
 N
ov
em

be
r. 
N
ew

 h
om

e 
sa
le
s,
 

a 
fa
r s
m
al
le
r p

or
tio

n 
of
 th

e 
ov
er
al
l 

m
ar
ke
t, 
gr
ew

 a
t a

 st
ro
ng

er
 ra

te
 o
f 

+1
6.
9%

 Y
oY
, a
s 
co
ns
tr
uc
tio

n 
ac
tiv

ity
 

fu
rt
he

r a
cc
el
er
at
ed

. R
isi
ng

 
ho

m
eb

ui
ld
er
 a
ct
iv
ity

 in
 re

ce
nt
 

ye
ar
s m

ay
 e
as
e 
so
m
e 
of
 th

e 
lo
w
 

in
ve
nt
or
y 
pr
es
su
re
s i
n 
th
e 
cu
rr
en

t 
m
ar
ke
t e

nv
iro

nm
en

t.

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

7

M
os
t R

ec
en

t
12

 M
on

th
s P

rio
r

G
DP

 (Y
oY

)
2.
1%

9/
30

/1
9

3.
1%

9/
30

/1
8

In
fla

tio
n

(C
PI
 Y
oY
, C

or
e)

2.
3%

12
/3
1/
19

2.
2%

12
/3
1/
18

Ex
pe

ct
ed

In
fla

tio
n 

(5
yr
‐5
yr
 fo

rw
ar
d)

1.
8%

12
/3
1/
19

1.
8%

12
/3
1/
18

Fe
d 
Fu

nd
s T

ar
ge
t 

Ra
ng

e
1.
50

 –
1.
75

%
12

/3
1/
19

2.
25

 –
2.
50

%
12

/3
1/
18

10
Ye
ar
 R
at
e

1.
9%

12
/3
1/
19

2.
7%

12
/3
1/
18

U
‐3
 U
ne

m
pl
oy
m
en

t
3.
5%

12
/3
1/
19

3.
9%

12
/3
1/
18

U
‐6
 U
ne

m
pl
oy
m
en

t
6.
7%

12
/3
1/
19

7.
6%

12
/3
1/
18



G
D

P 
gr

ow
th

Re
al
 G
DP

 g
re
w
 a
t a

 2
.1
%
 ra

te
 y
ea

r‐
ov
er
‐y
ea

r i
n 
th
e 
th
ird

 
qu

ar
te
r (
2.
1%

 q
ua

rt
er
ly
 a
nn

ua
liz
ed

 ra
te
). 
Fa
lli
ng

 im
po

rt
s 

de
tr
ac
te
d 
‐0
.3
%
 fr
om

 th
e 
ov
er
al
l G

DP
 p
rin

t, 
al
on

g 
w
ith

 w
ea

k 
fix
ed

 in
ve
st
m
en

t (
‐0
.2
%
 c
on

tr
ib
ut
io
n)
. P
er
so
na

l 
co
ns
um

pt
io
n,
 th

e 
la
rg
es
t c
om

po
ne

nt
 o
f g

ro
ss
 d
om

es
tic

 
pr
od

uc
t, 
co
nt
in
ue

d 
to
 d
riv

e 
th
e 
ec
on

om
y 
fo
rw

ar
d.
 T
he

 U
.S
. 

ec
on

om
y 
is 
pa

ci
ng

 n
ea
r t
he

 2
.0
%
 ra

te
 th

at
 e
co
no

m
ist
s 

ge
ne

ra
lly
 e
xp
ec
t f
or
 fu

ll 
ye
ar
 2
02

0.

W
hi
le
 tr
ad

e 
po

lic
ie
s 
an

d 
co
nf
lic
t l
ik
el
y 
re
su
lte

d 
in
 a
 m

ild
 d
ra
g 

on
 e
co
no

m
ic
 g
ro
w
th
 in

 2
01

9,
 th

e 
U.
S.
 a
nd

 C
hi
na

 h
av
e 
sig

ne
d 

th
e 
“p
ha

se
 o
ne

” 
tr
ad

e 
de

al
. A

 p
ar
tia

l t
ra
de

 re
so
lu
tio

n,
 o
r a

t 
le
as
t a

n 
in
di
ca
tio

n 
th
at
 n
eg
ot
ia
tio

ns
 a
re
 h
ea

de
d 
in
 a
 m

or
e 

po
sit
iv
e 
di
re
ct
io
n,
 c
ou

ld
 p
ro
vi
de

 a
 li
ft
 to

 th
e 
ec
on

om
y 
an

d 
m
ar
ke
ts
.

O
n 
Ja
nu

ar
y 
17

th
, t
he

 F
ed

er
al
 R
es
er
ve
 B
an

k 
of
 A
tla

nt
a 

G
DP

N
ow

fo
re
ca
st
 in

di
ca
te
d 
G
DP

 g
ro
w
th
 o
f 1

.8
%
 in

 th
e 
fo
ur
th
 

qu
ar
te
r. 
Th

is 
fo
re
ca
st
 d
ip
pe

d 
re
ce
nt
ly
 d
ue

 to
 w
ea

k 
pe

rs
on

al
 

co
ns
um

pt
io
n 
ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s.

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 9
/3
0/
19

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

So
ur
ce
: B

EA
, a

nn
ua

liz
ed

 q
ua

rt
er
ly
 ra

te
, a
s o

f 9
/3
0/
19

8

U
.S
. 
R
EA

L 
G
D
P 
G
R
O
W

TH
 (
YO

Y)
U
.S
. 
G
D
P 
G
R
O
W

TH
 A

TT
R
IB

U
TI
O
N
 

‐6
%

‐3
%0%3%6%9%12
% De

c‐
55

De
c‐
65

De
c‐
75

De
c‐
85

De
c‐
95

De
c‐
05

De
c‐
15

1%2%3%4%

Se
p‐
17

Se
p‐
18

Se
p‐
19

3.
2

2.
9

2.
2

4.
2

3.
4

2.
2

3.
1

2.
0

2.
1

‐3‐1135

Q
3 
17

Q
4 
17

Q
1 
18

Q
2 
18

Q
3 
18

Q
4 
18

Q
1 
19

Q
2 
19

Q
3 
19

U.S. Real GDP Growth (QoQ)

Co
ns
um

pt
io
n

In
ve
st
m
en

t
G
ov

er
nm

en
t

Ex
po

rt
s

Im
po

rt
s

In
ve
nt
or
ie
s



‐4
%0%4%8%12
%

16
% De

c‐
70

Se
p‐
84

M
ay
‐9
8

Ja
n‐
12

U
S 
CP

I E
x 
Fo

od
 &
 E
ne

rg
y

U
S 
CP

I

U.
S.
 h
ea

dl
in
e 
in
fla

tio
n 
in
cr
ea

se
d 
2.
3%

 Y
oY

 in
 D
ec
em

be
r, 
in
 

lin
e 
w
ith

 th
e 
co
re
 in

fla
tio

n 
gr
ow

th
 fi
gu

re
, a
nd

 u
p 
fr
om

 1
.7
%
 

in
 S
ep

te
m
be

r. 
Al
th
ou

gh
 th

is 
is 
a 
no

ta
bl
e 
ju
m
p 
in
 th

e 
in
fla

tio
n 

ra
te
, i
nv
es
to
rs
 a
pp

ea
r m

or
e 
co
nc
er
ne

d 
ab

ou
t g

lo
ba

l 
de

fla
tio

na
ry
 fo

rc
es
. C

yc
lic
al
 p
ric

e 
pr
es
su
re
s r
em

ai
n 

su
rp
ris
in
gl
y 
ab

se
nt
 fr
om

 th
e 
cu
rr
en

t e
nv
iro

nm
en

t. 

Du
rin

g 
th
e 
qu

ar
te
r, 
th
e 
m
ar
ke
t’s
 p
ric

in
g 
of
 in

fla
tio

n 
in
cr
ea

se
d 

fr
om

 a
 lo

w
 o
f 1

.4
8%

 to
 1
.7
3%

. W
hi
le
 th

e 
br
ea

ke
ve
n 
ra
te
 h
as
 

ris
en

 m
at
er
ia
lly
 fr
om

 it
s c

yc
le
 lo
w
 o
f 1

.1
8%

 a
ch
ie
ve
d 
in
 

Fe
br
ua

ry
 2
01

6,
 it
 re

m
ai
ns
 d
ep

re
ss
ed

 b
y 
hi
st
or
ic
al
 st
an

da
rd
s.
 

Co
ns
um

er
 e
xp
ec
ta
tio

ns
 m

ov
ed

 in
 th

e 
op

po
sit
e 
di
re
ct
io
n,
 

fa
lli
ng

 fr
om

 2
.7
%
 a
t t
he

 b
eg
in
ni
ng

 o
f t
he

 y
ea

r t
o 
2.
3%

 in
 

De
ce
m
be

r.

W
e 
be

lie
ve
 it
 is
 li
ke
ly
 th

at
 in
fla

tio
n 
w
ill
 re

m
ai
n 
su
bd

ue
d.
 B
ut
 

it 
is 
al
so
 w
or
th
 n
ot
in
g 
th
at
 if
 in

fla
tio

n 
or
 in

fla
tio

n 
fe
ar
s 

re
tu
rn
ed

 to
 th

e 
m
ar
ke
ts
, t
hi
s m

ig
ht
 p
la
ce
 c
en

tr
al
 b
an

ks
 in

 a
 

pe
ril
ou

s p
os
iti
on

. I
t i
s 
do

ub
tf
ul
 th

at
 c
en

tr
al
 b
an

ks
 c
ou

ld
 h
ik
e 

in
te
re
st
 ra

te
s f
or
 a
ny
 su

st
ai
ne

d 
pe

rio
d 
of
 ti
m
e 
w
ith

ou
t r
isk

in
g 

re
ce
ss
io
n.
 

U
.S
. 
CP

I 
(Y

O
Y)

U
.S
. 
B
R
EA

K
EV

EN
 I
N
FL

A
TI
O
N
 R
A
TE

IN
FL

A
TI
O
N
 E
X
PE

CT
A
TI
O
N
S

In
fla

tio
n

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

So
ur
ce
: F
RE

D,
 a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

9

0%1%2%3%4%5%6%7%

De
c‐
01

De
c‐
04

De
c‐
07

De
c‐
10

De
c‐
13

De
c‐
16

De
c‐
19

U
S 
Br
ea
ke
ve
n 
10

 Y
ea

r
U
M
ic
h 
Ex
pe

ct
ed

 C
ha

ng
e 
in
 P
ric

e

1.
00

1.
20

1.
40

1.
60

1.
80

2.
00

2.
20 De

c‐
15

De
c‐
16

De
c‐
17

De
c‐
18

De
c‐
19

Breakeven Inflation Rate (%) 

U
.S
. 1

0y
r T

IP
S

0%2%4%

De
c‐
17

M
ay
‐1
9



Th
e 
U.
S.
 la
bo

r m
ar
ke
t c
on

tin
ue

d 
to
 sh

ow
 st
re
ng

th
 in
 Q
4 
an

d 
un

em
pl
oy
m
en

t r
em

ai
ne

d 
at
 5
0‐
ye
ar
 lo
w
s 
of
 3
.5
%
. Y
ea

r‐
ov
er
‐

ye
ar
 g
ro
w
th
 in

 n
on

‐fa
rm

 p
ay
ro
ll 
ad

di
tio

ns
 sl
ow

ed
 to

 it
s 

lo
w
es
t l
ev
el
 si
nc
e 
Se
pt
em

be
r 2

01
7 
at
 1
.4
%
. N

ea
rly

 1
.2
4 
jo
bs
 

ar
e 
no

w
 a
va
ila
bl
e 
pe

r u
ne

m
pl
oy
ed

 w
or
ke
r i
n 
th
e 
la
bo

r f
or
ce
, 

w
hi
ch
 su

gg
es
ts
 th

er
e 
is 
a 
lim

ite
d 
re
m
ai
ni
ng

 su
pp

ly
 o
f w

or
ke
rs
 

to
 m

ee
t b

us
in
es
s h

iri
ng

 d
em

an
ds
. 

Av
er
ag
e
ho

ur
ly
 e
ar
ni
ng

s f
or
 p
ro
du

ct
io
n 
an

d 
no

ns
up

er
vi
so
ry
 

em
pl
oy
ee

s g
re
w
 3
.0
%
ye
ar
‐o
ve
r‐
ye
ar

in
 D
ec
em

be
r, 
ou

tp
ac
in
g 

in
fla

tio
n 
(2
.3
%
). 
Su

st
ai
ne

d 
re
al
 w
ag
e 
gr
ow

th
 w
ou

ld
 su

pp
or
t 

se
nt
im

en
t, 
w
hi
ch
 is
 n
ea

r c
yc
le
 h
ig
hs
. 

O
ne

 p
la
us
ib
le
 c
as
e 
fo
r s
tr
on

g 
co
ns
um

pt
io
n 
to
 c
on

tin
ue

 
hi
ng

es
 o
n 
th
e 
fa
ct
 th

at
 se

ve
ra
l k
ey
 u
ne

m
pl
oy
m
en

t r
at
es
 a
re
 

ne
ar
 h
ist
or
ic
 lo
w
s.
 T
he

 u
ne

m
pl
oy
m
en

t r
at
e 
fo
r w

or
ke
rs
 w
ho

 
ar
e 
at
 le
as
t 2

5 
ye
ar
s o

ld
 a
nd

 la
ck
 h
ig
h 
sc
ho

ol
 d
ip
lo
m
as
 (5

.3
%
) 

is 
at
 a
n 
at
 a
ll‐
tim

e‐
lo
w
 le
ve
l s
in
ce
 th

e 
da

ta
 w
as
 fi
rs
t r
ec
or
de

d 
in
 th

e 
ye
ar
 2
00

0.
 T
yp

ic
al
ly,
 w
or
ke
rs
 w
ith

 le
ss
 e
du

ca
tio

n 
ea

rn
 

le
ss
 in

 n
om

in
al
 te

rm
s,
 b
ut
 h
av
e 
a 
hi
gh

er
 m

ar
gi
na

l p
ro
pe

ns
ity

 
to
 c
on

su
m
e 
pe

r e
ac
h 
do

lla
r e

ar
ne

d.
 T
he

se
 re

ce
nt
 in
cr
ea

se
s 
in
 

em
pl
oy
m
en

t f
or
 th

os
e 
w
or
ke
rs
 w
ho

 a
re
 m

or
e 
lik
el
y 
to
 sp

en
d 

m
ay
 le
ad

 to
 o
ut
siz

ed
 p
os
iti
ve
 im

pa
ct
s o

n 
ec
on

om
ic
 g
ro
w
th
.

0%4%8%12
%

16
%

20
% Ju

n‐
05

Ju
n‐
07

Ju
n‐
09

M
ay
‐1
1
M
ay
‐1
3
M
ay
‐1
5
Ap

r‐
17

Ap
r‐
19

U
3

U
6

U
.S
. 
U
N
EM

PL
O
YM

EN
T

N
O
N
‐F
A
R
M
 P
A
YR

O
LL

 G
R
O
W

TH
 (
YO

Y)
U
.S
. 
W

A
G
E 
G
R
O
W

TH

La
bo

r m
ar

ke
t

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

U
.S

. l
ab

or
 

m
ar

ke
t r

em
ai

ns
 

st
ro

ng
, t

ho
ug

h 
fu

rt
he

r u
ps

id
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

lim
ite

d 

So
ur
ce
: F
RE

D,
 a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

So
ur
ce
: B

LS
, a

s 1
2/
31

/1
9 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

So
ur
ce
: F
RE

D,
 a
so

f 1
1/
30

/1
9

10

3%4%5%

De
c‐
17

De
c‐
18

De
c‐
19

‐505101520

Ja
n‐
65

Ja
n‐
75

Ja
n‐
85

Ja
n‐
95

Ja
n‐
05

Ja
n‐
15

% Growth YoY

U
SA

 C
PI

Av
er
ag
e 
H
ou

rly
 E
ar
ni
ng

s o
f P

ro
du

ct
io
n 
&
 N
on

su
pe

rv
iso

ry
 E
m
pl
oy

ee
s

024 Ja
n‐
16

Ju
l‐1

7
Ja
n‐
19

‐1
0%‐5
%0%5%10
%

15
%

20
% M

ar
‐4
0

M
ar
‐5
5

M
ar
‐7
0

M
ar
‐8
5

M
ar
‐0
0

M
ar
‐1
5

1.
0%

1.
5%

2.
0%

Ja
n‐
19

Ju
l‐1

9



U
.S

. u
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: F
RE

D,
 a
s o

f 1
1/
30

/1
9

Th
e 

U
.S

. j
ob

 
m

ar
ke

t i
s 

ve
ry

 
st

ro
ng

, f
or

 a
ll 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
ed

uc
at

io
n

11

0246810121416

Ja
n‐
00

Ja
n‐
02

Ja
n‐
04

Ja
n‐
06

Ja
n‐
08

Ja
n‐
10

Ja
n‐
12

Ja
n‐
14

Ja
n‐
16

Ja
n‐
18

Unemployment Rate (%)

Le
ss
 th

an
 a
 H
ig
h 
Sc
ho

ol
 D
ip
lo
m
a,
 2
5 
ye
ar
s a

nd
 o
ve
r

Hi
gh

 S
ch
oo

l G
ra
du

at
es
, N

o 
Co

lle
ge
, 2

5 
ye
ar
s a

nd
 o
ve
r

Co
lle
ge
 G
ra
du

at
es
: B

ac
he

lo
r's
 D
eg
re
e 
an

d 
Hi
gh

er
, 2

5 
ye
ar
s a

nd
 o
ve
r

Co
lle
ge
 G
ra
du

at
es
 ‐ 
M
as
te
r's
 D
eg
re
e,
 2
5 
ye
ar
s a

nd
 o
ve
r

Co
lle
ge
 G
ra
du

at
es
 ‐ 
Do

ct
or
al
 D
eg
re
e,
 2
5 
ye
ar
s a

nd
 o
ve
r



R
EA

L 
R
ET

A
IL
 S
A
LE

S 
G
R
O
W

TH
 (
YO

Y)
E‐
CO

M
M
ER

CE
 S
A
LE

S 
G
R
O
W

TH
 (
Q
U
A
R
TE

R
LY

 Y
O
Y)

12
‐M

O
N
TH

 G
R
O
W

TH
 I
N
 C
O
N
SU

M
ER

 C
R
ED

IT

Th
e 

co
ns

um
er

Th
e 
U
.S
. c
on

su
m
er
 c
on

tin
ue

d 
to
 p
us
h 
th
e 
U
.S
. e
co
no

m
y 

fo
rw

ar
d,
 su

pp
or
te
d 
by

 lo
w
 u
ne

m
pl
oy

m
en

t, 
so
lid

 w
ag
e 
ga
in
s,
 

an
d 
hi
gh

 se
nt
im

en
t. 
Am

er
ic
an

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s a

re
 in

 a
 st
ro
ng

  
fin

an
ci
al
 p
os
iti
on

, w
ith

 b
al
an

ce
 sh

ee
ts
 th

at
 a
pp

ea
r r
ob

us
t. 
At
 

th
e 
en

d 
of
 Q
3,
 U
.S
. h

ou
se
ho

ld
 d
eb

t o
ut
st
an

di
ng

 w
as
 e
qu

al
 to

 
ab

ou
t 7

4%
 o
f G

DP
, t
he

 h
ea

lth
ie
st
 le
ve
l s
in
ce
 Q
4 
20

01
.

Re
ta
il 
sa
le
s g

ro
w
th
 sl
id
 a
 b
it 
in
 re

al
 te

rm
s,
 b
ut
 m

uc
h 
of
 th

is 
m
ov

e 
w
as
 d
ue

 to
 a
 p
ic
ku

p 
in
 in
fla

tio
n.
 T
he

 p
ric

e 
of
 a
 b
ar
re
l o
f 

W
TI
 c
ru
de

 o
il 
ro
se
 fr
om

 $
53

 to
 $
61

, h
el
pi
ng

 to
 p
ro
pe

l y
ea

r‐
ov

er
‐y
ea
r g

ro
w
th
 in

 h
ea
dl
in
e 
in
fla

tio
n 
fr
om

 1
.7
%
 to

 2
.3
%
. 

O
ve
ra
ll,
 re

ta
il 
sa
le
s g

ro
w
th
 re

m
ai
ns
 so

lid
, a
nd

 h
as
 b
ee

n 
bo

os
te
d

re
ce
nt
ly
 b
y 
a 
su
rg
e 
in
 e
‐c
om

m
er
ce
 sa

le
s.
 C
yb

er
 M

on
da

y 
sa
le
s 

gr
ew

 n
ea
rly

 2
0%

 th
is 
ye
ar
, h

itt
in
g 
a 
re
co
rd
 $
9.
4 
bi
lli
on

 U
.S
. 

do
lla
rs
 a
cc
or
di
ng

 to
 d
at
a 
fr
om

 A
do

be
 A
na

ly
tic

s.
 S
ho

pp
er
s’
 c
ar
ts
 

w
er
e 
al
so
 a
bo

ut
 6
%
 la
rg
er
 a
t c

he
ck
ou

t t
ha

n 
th
ey
 w
er
e 
la
st
 y
ea

r, 
pe

rh
ap

s h
in
tin

g 
at
 a
 m

or
e 
op

tim
ist
ic
 c
on

su
m
er
 o
ut
lo
ok

.

Cr
ed

it 
co
nd

iti
on

s r
em

ai
n 
be

ni
gn

. C
re
di
t‐
ca
rd
 b
or
ro
w
in
g 
tic

ke
d 

do
w
n 
sli
gh

tly
 a
nd

 w
as
 o
ffs

et
 b
y 
fa
st
er
 g
ro
w
th
 in

 a
ut
o 
an

d 
st
ud

en
t l
oa

ns
. S
om

e 
m
ig
ht
 c
on

sid
er
 c
re
di
t‐
ca
rd
 d
eb

t “
w
or
se
 

de
bt
” 
an

d 
au

to
 a
nd

 st
ud

en
t l
oa

n 
de

bt
 “
be

tt
er
 d
eb

t”
 in
 th

at
 

pr
ud

en
t i
nv

es
tm

en
ts
 in
 tr
an

sp
or
ta
tio

n 
an

d 
hu

m
an

 c
ap

ita
l a
re
 

lik
el
y 
hi
gh

er
‐r
et
ur
ni
ng

 th
an

 u
ltr
a‐
sh
or
t‐
te
rm

 c
on

su
m
pt
io
n.

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: F
RE

D,
 a
s o

f 1
1/
30

/1
9

So
ur
ce
: U

.S
. C

en
su
s B

ur
ea

u,
 B
lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 9
/3
0/
19

So
ur
ce
: F
ed

er
al
 R
es
er
ve
, B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 1
1/
30

/1
9

12

Av
er
ag

e

‐1
0%‐5
%0%5%10
%

15
%

20
%

25
%

30
% Se

p‐
04

Se
p‐
07

Se
p‐
10

Se
p‐
13

Se
p‐
16

Se
p‐
19

 $
(1
50

)

 $
(1
00

)

 $
(5
0)

 $
‐

 $
50

 $
10

0

 $
15

0

 $
20

0

 $
25

0

 $
30

0 Ja
n‐
91

Ja
n‐
97

Ja
n‐
03

Ja
n‐
09

Ja
n‐
15

Billions

‐1
5%

‐1
0%‐5
%0%5%10
% Ja

n‐
93

Ja
n‐
99

Ja
n‐
05

Ja
n‐
11

Ja
n‐
17



Co
ns
um

er
 se

nt
im

en
t i
nd

ic
at
or
s r
em

ai
n 
ne

ar
 a
ll‐
tim

e‐
hi
gh

s 
an

d 
im

pr
ov
ed

 sl
ig
ht
ly
 a
s 
a 
nu

m
be

r o
f c
lo
se
ly
‐fo

llo
w
ed

 
ge
op

ol
iti
ca
l s
to
ry
lin

es
 a
pp

ea
re
d 
to
 m

ov
e 
cl
os
er
 to

 re
so
lu
tio

n.
 

Th
e 
U.
S.
 a
nd

 C
hi
na

 “
ph

as
e 
on

e”
 tr
ad

e 
de

al
, a
nd

 th
e 
vi
ct
or
y 
of
 

Bo
ris
 Jo

hn
so
n’
s 
Co

ns
er
va
tiv

e 
Pa
rt
y 
in
 th

e 
U.
K.
 a
pp

ea
rs
 to

 
ha

ve
 a
t l
ea

st
 re

m
ov
ed

 so
m
e 
un

ce
rt
ai
nt
y 
fr
om

 th
e 

ge
op

ol
iti
ca
l l
an

ds
ca
pe

 o
ve
r t
he

 sh
or
t‐
to
 in

te
rm

ed
ia
te
‐te

rm
.

O
ve
r t
he

 q
ua

rt
er
, t
he

 d
iff
er
en

ce
 b
et
w
ee

n 
th
e 
se
nt
im

en
t

re
ad

in
g 
fo
r t
he

 to
p 
th
ird

 o
f i
nc
om

e 
ea

rn
er
s a

nd
 th

e 
bo

tt
om

 

th
ird

 o
f i
nc
om

e 
ea

rn
er
s m

ov
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 
10

th
pe

rc
en

til
e 
to
 

th
e 
65

th
pe

rc
en

til
e 
of
 m

on
th
ly
 p
er
io
ds
 si
nc
e 
20

01
, i
nd

ic
at
in
g 

a 
w
id
en

in
g 
in
 th

e 
ga
p 
be

tw
ee

n 
th
e 
“h
av
es
” 
an

d 
“h
av
e‐
no

ts
”.

Co
ns
um

er
s v

ie
w
 th

e 
ec
on

om
ic
 c
on

di
tio

ns
 fo

r b
uy

in
g 
bi
g‐

tic
ke
t h

ou
se
ho

ld
 it
em

s s
uc
h 
as
 fu

rn
itu

re
, r
ef
rig

er
at
or
s a

nd
 

te
le
vi
sio

ns
 a
s 
cl
os
e 
to
 a
s 
fa
vo
ra
bl
e 
as
 th

ey
 h
av
e 
be

en
 o
ve
r 

th
e 
co
ur
se
 o
f t
he

 e
xp
an

sio
n.
 T
hi
s 
be

lie
f a

pp
ea

rs
 to

 b
e 
ro
ot
ed

 
in
 d
ua

l e
xp
ec
ta
tio

ns
 fo

r j
ob

 se
cu
rit
y 
an

d 
re
al
 w
ag
e 
ga
in
s.
 

CO
N
SU

M
ER

 S
EN

TI
M
EN

T 
B
Y 
IN

CO
M
E 
B
R
A
CK

ET
CO

N
D
IT
IO

N
S 
FO

R
 B
U
YI
N
G
 B
IG

‐T
IC
KE

T 
IT
EM

S 
(%

)
CO

N
SU

M
ER

 F
EA

R
 G

A
U
G
E

Se
nt

im
en

t

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: U

ni
ve
rs
ity

 o
f M

ic
hi
ga

n,
 a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

So
ur
ce
: U

ni
ve
rs
ity

 o
f M

ic
hi
ga

n,
 a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9 

So
ur
ce
: U

ni
ve
rs
ity

 o
f M

ic
hi
ga

n,
 a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

13

40506070809010
0

11
0

12
0 De

c‐
00

De
c‐
03

De
c‐
06

De
c‐
09

De
c‐
12

De
c‐
15

De
c‐
18

To
p 
33

%
M
id
dl
e 
33

%
Bo

tt
om

 3
3%

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

Ja
n‐
00

Ja
n‐
04

Ja
n‐
08

Ja
n‐
12

Ja
n‐
16

G
oo

d 
tim

e
U
nc
er
ta
in

Ba
d 
tim

e

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
% Ja

n‐
03

Ja
n‐
06

Ja
n‐
09

Ja
n‐
12

Ja
n‐
15

Ja
n‐
18

Ex
pe

rie
nc
in
g 
re
al
 in

co
m
e 
ga
in
s o

ve
r t
he

 n
ex
t y

ea
r

Lo
sin

g 
jo
b 
ov

er
 th

e 
ne

xt
 5
 y
ea

rs



U
.S
. 
H
O
M
E 
SA

LE
S 
(Y

O
Y)

H
O
U
SI
N
G
 S
TA

R
TS

 &
 P
ER

M
IT
S

H
O
M
EO

W
N
ER

SH
IP
 R
A
TE

H
ou

si
ng

 
In
 th

e 
fir
st
 h
al
f o

f 2
01

9 
th
e 
ho

us
in
g 
m
ar
ke
t a

pp
ea
re
d 
to
 b
e 

co
ol
in
g 
of
f, 
co
m
in
g 
do

w
n 
fr
om

 a
 st
ro
ng

 b
oo

m
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut
 th

e 
re
ce
nt
 e
co
no

m
ic
 e
xp
an

sio
n.
 T
he

 a
ve
ra
ge
 h
om

e 
sa
le
s p

ric
e 
is 

do
w
n 
‐8
%
 fr
om

 th
e 
hi
gh

s o
f l
at
e‐
20

17
, a
lth

ou
gh

 o
th
er
 v
ar
ia
bl
es
 

su
ch
 a
s t
he

 ty
pe

s a
nd

 lo
ca
tio

n 
of
 h
om

es
 so

ld
 c
an

 im
pa

ct
 th

es
e 

nu
m
be

rs
. H

om
eb

ui
ld
in
g 
ac
tiv

ity
 ti
ck
ed

 u
p 
in
 th

e 
se
co
nd

 h
al
f o

f 
th
e 
ye
ar
 a
s h

om
eb

ui
ld
er
 se

nt
im

en
t j
ol
te
d 
hi
gh

er
 in
 2
01

9.
 

Ex
ist
in
g 
ho

m
e 
sa
le
s g

re
w
 +
2.
7%

 Y
oY

 in
 N
ov

em
be

r. 
N
ew

 h
om

e 
sa
le
s,
 a
 fa

r s
m
al
le
r p

or
tio

n 
of
 th

e 
ov

er
al
l m

ar
ke
t, 
gr
ew

 a
t a

 
st
ro
ng

er
 ra

te
 o
f +

16
.9
%
 Y
oY

, a
s c

on
st
ru
ct
io
n 
ac
tiv

ity
 fu

rt
he

r 
ac
ce
le
ra
te
d.
 R
isi
ng

 h
om

eb
ui
ld
er
 a
ct
iv
ity

 in
 re

ce
nt
 y
ea

rs
 m

ay
 

ea
se
 so

m
e 
of
 th

e 
lo
w
 in

ve
nt
or
y 
pr
es
su
re
s i
n 
th
e 
cu
rr
en

t m
ar
ke
t 

en
vi
ro
nm

en
t.

Th
e 
ho

us
in
g 
bo

om
 h
as
 c
on

tr
ib
ut
ed

 to
 a
 re

bo
un

d 
in
 th

e 
U
.S
. 

ho
m
eo

w
ne

rs
hi
p 
ra
te
. A

 d
ec
ad

e‐
lo
ng

 tr
en

d 
aw

ay
 fr
om

 b
uy

in
g 

an
d 
to
w
ar
ds
 re

nt
in
g 
ap

pe
ar
s t
o 
ha

ve
 re

ve
rs
ed

 in
 m

id
‐2
01

6.
 

Si
nc
e 
th
at
 ti
m
e,
 th

e 
ra
te
 o
f h

om
eo

w
ne

rs
hi
p 
ha

s r
ise

n 
to
 6
4.
7%

 
fr
om

 a
 lo

w
 o
f 6

3.
1%

. 

It 
is 
al
w
ay
s h

el
pf
ul
 to

 re
m
em

be
r t
ha

t h
om

e 
pr
ic
e 
tr
en

ds
 c
an

 
va
ry
 m

ea
ni
ng

fu
lly
 b
y 
lo
ca
tio

n,
 w
hi
ch
 m

ea
ns
 n
at
io
na

l s
ta
tis
tic

s 
ar
e 
so
m
et
im

es
 d
iff
ic
ul
t t
o 
in
te
rp
re
t a

t a
 lo

ca
l l
ev
el
.

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: F
RE

D,
 a
s o

f 1
1/
30

/1
9 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, N

AH
B,
 a
s o

f 1
1/
30

/1
9 
(s
ee
 a
pp

en
di
x)
 

So
ur
ce
: F
RE

D,
 a
s o

f 9
/3
0/
19

14

 (5
0)

 (4
0)

 (3
0)

 (2
0)

 (1
0) ‐

 1
0

 2
0

 3
0

 4
0

 5
0

19
99

20
04

20
09

20
14

20
19

Growth (%)

U
S 
N
ew

 O
ne

 F
am

ily
 H
ou

se
s S

ol
d

U
S 
Ex
ist
in
g 
H
om

es
 S
al
es
 Y
oY

 S
A

0

50
0

10
00

15
00

20
00

25
00

30
00

35
00 Fe

b‐
66

Ju
n‐
79

O
ct
‐9
2

Fe
b‐
06

Ju
n‐
19

Ho
us
in
g 
St
ar
ts

Ho
us
in
g 
Pe

rm
its

10
00

16
00

Ja
n‐
18

Ja
n‐
19

626364656667686970

19
84

19
89

19
94

19
99

20
04

20
09

20
14

20
19

Ho
m
eo

w
ne

rs
hi
p 
Ra

te
 (%

)



In
te

rn
at

io
na

l e
co

no
m

ic
s s

um
m

ar
y

—
Th

e 
gr
ow

th
 o
f i
nt
er
na

tio
na

l 
de

ve
lo
pe

d 
ec
on

om
ie
s 
re
m
ai
ns
 in

 a
 

ra
ng

e 
of
 0
.5
%
 to

 2
.0
%
, n

ea
r t
he

 
2.
1%

 g
ro
w
th
 ra

te
 o
f t
he

 sl
ow

in
g 

U.
S.
 e
co
no

m
y.

—
In
 Ja

nu
ar
y,
 th

e 
IM

F 
fo
re
ca
st
ed

 2
.9
%
 

gl
ob

al
 g
ro
w
th
 in

 2
01

9 
an

d 
an

 
ac
ce
le
ra
tio

n 
to
 3
.3
%
 in

 2
02

0.
 T
he

se
 

gr
ow

th
 e
xp
ec
ta
tio

ns
 w
er
e 
0.
1%

 
lo
w
er
 th

an
 th

e 
pr
ev
io
us
 q
ua

rt
er
’s 

re
po

rt
, a
nd

 w
er
e 
m
os
tly

 a
 re

su
lt 
of
 

do
w
nw

ar
d 
ad

ju
st
m
en

ts
 to

 
em

er
gi
ng

 m
ar
ke
ts
 e
xp
ec
ta
tio

ns
.

—
In
fla

tio
n 
co
nt
in
ue

s t
o 
be

 m
ut
ed

 
ac
ro
ss
 in

te
rn
at
io
na

l d
ev
el
op

ed
 

m
ar
ke
ts
, k
ee

pi
ng

 m
or
e 
op

tio
ns
 o
n 

th
e 
ta
bl
e 
fo
r c

en
tr
al
 b
an

ks
 to

 st
ep

 
in
 a
s 
ne

ed
ed

 w
ith

 a
cc
om

m
od

at
iv
e 

po
lic
y.
 

—
Th

e 
U.
K.
 g
en

er
al
 e
le
ct
io
n 
in
 

De
ce
m
be

r r
es
ul
te
d 
in
 a
 la
nd

sli
de

 
vi
ct
or
y 
fo
r B

or
is 
Jo
hn

so
n.
 T
he

 
el
ec
tio

n,
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 
co
ns
ol
id
at
io
n 
of
 

To
ry
 p
ar
ty
 p
ow

er
, e

ffe
ct
iv
el
y 

gu
ar
an

te
es
 th

at
 B
re
xi
t w

ill
 

ul
tim

at
el
y 
be

 c
ar
rie

d 
ou

t.

—
W
hi
le
 th

e 
gl
ob

al
 e
co
no

m
y 
ha

s 
ex
hi
bi
te
d 
m
ild

 g
ro
w
th
, l
ab

or
 

m
ar
ke
ts
 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 ti
gh

te
n 
ac
ro
ss
 

th
e 
bo

ar
d.
 B
y 
tr
ad

iti
on

al
 

un
em

pl
oy
m
en

t m
ea

su
re
s,
 jo

b 
m
ar
ke
ts
 a
re
 n
ow

 st
ro
ng

er
 th

an
 p
re
‐

20
08

 le
ve
ls 
in
 m

os
t m

aj
or
 

ec
on

om
ie
s.
 

—
U.
S.
 a
nd

 C
hi
ne

se
 n
eg
ot
ia
to
rs
 si
gn

ed
 

th
e 
“p
ha

se
 o
ne

” 
ag
re
em

en
t o

n 
tr
ad

e,
 a
nd

 th
e 
de

ci
siv

e 
vi
ct
or
y 
of
 

Bo
ris
 Jo

hn
so
n’
s 
Co

ns
er
va
tiv

e 
Pa
rt
y 

in
 th

e 
U.
K.
 a
pp

ea
rs
 to

 h
av
e 
at
 le
as
t 

re
m
ov
ed

 so
m
e 
un

ce
rt
ai
nt
y 
fr
om

 
th
e 
ge
op

ol
iti
ca
l l
an

ds
ca
pe

 o
ve
r t
he

 
sh
or
t‐
to
 in

te
rm

ed
ia
te
‐t
er
m
.

—
Ch

in
a 
ha

s e
xp
er
ie
nc
ed

 a
 si
gn

ifi
ca
nt
 

ju
m
p 
in
 in
fla

tio
n 
to
 4
.5
%
 a
s 
an

 
ou

tb
re
ak
 o
f A

fr
ic
an

 sw
in
e 
fe
ve
r 

re
su
lte

d 
in
 a
 d
ou

bl
in
g 
of
 p
or
k 

pr
ic
es
. T
hi
s 
co
m
pa

re
s 
to
 a
 5
‐y
ea

r 
av
er
ag
e 
in
fla

tio
n 
ra
te
 o
f 1

.9
%
. A

n 
ac
ce
le
ra
tio

n 
of
 in
fla

tio
n 
m
ay
 c
re
at
e 

iss
ue

s 
fo
r C

hi
ne

se
 le
ad

er
sh
ip
 in

 a
n 

al
re
ad

y‐
slo

w
in
g 
ec
on

om
y.

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

15

Ar
ea

G
D
P 

(R
ea

l, 
Yo

Y)
In
fla

tio
n 

(C
PI
, Y

oY
) 

U
ne

m
pl
oy

m
en

t

U
ni
te
d 
St
at
es

2.
1%

9/
30

/1
9

2.
3%

12
/3
1/
19

3.
5%

12
/3
1/
19

Eu
ro
zo
ne

1.
2%

9/
30

/1
9

1.
3%

12
/3
1/
19

7.
5%

11
/3
0/
19

Ja
pa

n
1.
7%

9/
30

/1
9

0.
9%

12
/3
1/
19

2.
2%

11
/3
0/
19

BR
IC
S 

N
at
io
ns

4.
9%

9/
30

/1
9

4.
4%

12
/3
1/
19

5.
1%

9/
30

/1
9

Br
az
il

1.
2%

9/
30

/1
9

4.
3%

12
/3
1/
19

11
.2
%

11
/3
0/
19

Ru
ss
ia

1.
7%

9/
30

/1
9

3.
1%

12
/3
1/
19

4.
6%

11
/3
0/
19

In
di
a

4.
5%

9/
30

/1
9

7.
4%

12
/3
1/
19

8.
5%

12
/3
1/
17

Ch
in
a

6.
0%

9/
30

/1
9

4.
5%

12
/3
1/
19

3.
6%

9/
30

/1
9



R
EA

L 
G
D
P 
G
R
O
W

TH
 (
YO

Y)
IN

FL
A
TI
O
N
 (
CP

I 
YO

Y)
U
N
EM

PL
O
YM

EN
T 
R
A
TE

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l e
co

no
m

ic
s

Th
e 
U
ni
te
d 
St
at
es
 g
re
w
 a
t a

 p
ac
e 
of
 2
.1
%
 y
ea

r‐
ov
er
‐y
ea

r i
n 

th
e 
th
ird

 q
ua

rt
er
, m

ov
in
g 
m
or
e 
cl
os
el
y 
in
 li
ne

 w
ith

 o
th
er
 

de
ve
lo
pe

d 
na

tio
ns
 w
hi
ch
 h
av
e 
po

st
ed

 g
ro
w
th
 o
f 1

.0
%
‐2
.0
%
.

W
hi
le
 th

e 
gl
ob

al
 e
co
no

m
y 
ha

s e
xh
ib
ite

d 
m
ild

 g
ro
w
th
, l
ab

or
 

m
ar
ke
ts
 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 ti
gh

te
n 
ac
ro
ss
 th

e 
bo

ar
d.
 B
y 
tr
ad

iti
on

al
 

un
em

pl
oy
m
en

t m
ea

su
re
s,
 jo

b 
m
ar
ke
ts
 a
re
 n
ow

 st
ro
ng

er
 th

an
 

pr
e‐
20

08
 le
ve
ls 
in
 m

os
t m

aj
or
 e
co
no

m
ie
s.

In
fla

tio
n 
ha

s r
em

ai
ne

d 
su
bd

ue
d 
ac
ro
ss
 in

te
rn
at
io
na

l 
de

ve
lo
pe

d 
m
ar
ke
ts
, a
nd

 m
an

y 
pu

nd
its
 h
av
e 
vi
ew

ed
 th

e 
m
ild

 
in
fla

tio
n 
da

ta
 a
s 
a 
cu
e 
fo
r c

en
tr
al
 b
an

ks
 to

 st
ep

 in
 a
nd

 

at
te
m
pt
 to

 b
ol
st
er
 e
co
no

m
ic
 g
ro
w
th
 th

ro
ug

h 
m
or
e 

ac
co
m
m
od

at
iv
e 
po

lic
y.
 In

fla
tio

n 
re
m
ai
ns
 m

ut
ed

 in
 e
m
er
gi
ng

 
ec
on

om
ie
s,
 a
nd

 m
os
t e

co
no

m
ie
s 
ar
e 
ex
pe

rie
nc
in
g 
CP

I b
el
ow

 
th
e 
5‐
ye
ar
 a
ve
ra
ge
. 

Ch
in
a’
s i
nf
la
tio

n 
ra
te
 h
as
 b
ec
om

e 
an

 o
ut
lie
r, 
ju
m
pi
ng

 to
 4
.5
%
 

as
 a
n 
ou

tb
re
ak
 o
f A

fr
ic
an

 sw
in
e 
fe
ve
r r
es
ul
te
d 
in
 a
 d
ou

bl
in
g 

of
 p
or
k 
pr
ic
es
 in

 th
e 
co
un

tr
y 
du

rin
g 
th
e 
ye
ar
. T
hi
s 
co
m
pa

re
s 

to
 a
 5
‐y
ea

r a
ve
ra
ge
 in
fla

tio
n 
ra
te
 o
f 1

.9
%
. P

ric
es
 o
f o

th
er
 

m
ea
ts
 in

 C
hi
na

 h
av
e 
al
so
 in

cr
ea

se
d 
on

 h
ei
gh

te
ne

d 
de

m
an

d 
fo
r p

or
k 
su
bs
tit
ut
es
. A

n 
ac
ce
le
ra
tio

n 
of
 in

fla
tio

n 
m
ay
 c
re
at
e 

iss
ue

s 
fo
r C

hi
ne

se
 le
ad

er
sh
ip
 in

 a
n 
al
re
ad

y‐
slo

w
in
g 
ec
on

om
y.

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 9
/3
0/
19

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, i
nf
la
tio

n 
ra
ng

e 
of
 p
as
t 5

 y
ea

rs
, a
s o

f 1
1/
30

/1
9

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 1
1/
30

/1
9 
or
 m

os
t r
ec
en

t r
el
ea

se

16

‐6
%

‐3
%0%3%6%9%12
% Se

p‐
03

Se
p‐
06

Se
p‐
09

Se
p‐
12

Se
p‐
15

Se
p‐
18

U
.S
.

Ja
pa

n
Eu

ro
zo
ne

BR
IC
S

0%2%4%

Ju
n‐
18

De
c‐
18

0%2%4%6%8%10
%

12
%

14
% De

c‐
03

Se
p‐
06

Ju
n‐
09

M
ar
‐1
2

De
c‐
14

Se
p‐
17

U
.S
.

Eu
ro
zo
ne

Ja
pa

n
BR

IC
S

‐5
%0%5%10
%

15
%

20
%

25
%

30
%

Br
az
il

So
ut
h

Af
ric

a
Ru

ss
ia

Ch
ile

So
ut
h

Ko
re
a

Ch
in
a

Tu
rk
ey

Cu
rr
en

t I
nf
la
tio

n 
Le
ve
l



Fi
xe

d 
in

co
m

e 
ra

te
s &

 cr
ed

it

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

17



In
te

re
st

 ra
te

 e
nv

ir
on

m
en

t
—

Th
e 
gl
ob

al
 so

ve
re
ig
n 
bo

nd
 ra

lly
 lo
st
 

st
ea

m
 in

 Q
4 
as
 in

fla
tio

n 
an

d 
gr
ow

th
 

pr
os
pe

ct
s m

ild
ly
 re

fla
te
d.
 C
en

tr
al
 

ba
nk
er
s a

t t
he

 E
ur
op

ea
n 
Ce

nt
ra
l 

Ba
nk

 a
nd

 th
e 
Fe
de

ra
l R
es
er
ve
 

sig
na

le
d 
th
at
 p
ol
ic
y 
w
ou

ld
 li
ke
ly
 

re
m
ai
n 
on

 h
ol
d 
in
 th

e 
ab

se
nc
e 
of
 

sig
ni
fic
an

t e
co
no

m
ic
 d
ev
el
op

m
en

ts
.

—
G
lo
ba

l t
en

‐y
ea

r s
ov
er
ei
gn

 b
on

d 
yi
el
ds
 p
ic
ke
d 
up

 m
od

er
at
el
y,
 m

os
t 

sig
ni
fic
an

tly
 in
 E
ur
op

e.
 O
ve
r t
he

 
qu

ar
te
r, 
th
e 
U.
S.
‐d
ol
la
r v

al
ue

 o
f 

gl
ob

al
 o
ut
st
an

di
ng

 n
eg
at
iv
e‐
yi
el
di
ng

 
de

bt
 fe

ll 
fr
om

 n
ea
rly

 $
15

 tr
ill
io
n 
to
 

ju
st
 a
bo

ve
 $
11

 tr
ill
io
n.

—
In
 O
ct
ob

er
, t
he

 F
ed

er
al
 O
pe

n 
M
ar
ke
t C

om
m
itt
ee

 c
ut
 th

e 
ra
ng

e 
fo
r 

its
 b
en

ch
m
ar
k 
in
te
re
st
 ra

te
 b
y 

0.
25

%
 to

 a
 n
ew

 ra
ng

e 
of
 1
.5
0 
to
 

1.
75

%
. 

—
Di
ve
rs
ity

 o
f o

pi
ni
on

 a
m
on

g 
FO

M
C 

pa
rt
ic
ip
an

ts
 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
pa

th
 o
f 

in
te
re
st
 ra

te
s h

as
 fa

de
d.
 M

os
t 

m
em

be
rs
 n
ow

 e
xp
ec
t r
at
es
 to

 
re
m
ai
n 
fla

t i
n 
20

20
, a

nd
 m

ov
e 
ba

ck
 

to
w
ar
d 
2.
50

%
 o
ve
r t
he

 lo
ng

er
 te

rm
.

—
Th

e 
N
ew

 Y
or
k 
Fe
d 
co
nd

uc
te
d 
a 

se
rie

s 
of
 te

rm
 re

pu
rc
ha

se
 

op
er
at
io
ns
 a
im

ed
 a
t p

ro
vi
di
ng

 
su
ffi
ci
en

t l
iq
ui
di
ty
 fo

r f
irm

s t
o 
ge
t 

th
ro
ug

h 
th
e 
ye
ar
‐e
nd

 tu
rn
 w
he

n 
de

m
an

d 
fo
r c

as
h 
ty
pi
ca
lly
 su

rg
es
. 

Th
e 
Fe
d 
ba

la
nc
e 
sh
ee

t g
re
w
 b
y 

$3
00

B 
in
 Q
4,
 a
nd

 a
na

ly
st
s c

on
tin

ue
 

to
 d
eb

at
e 
w
he

th
er
 th

e 
Fe
d’
s 

in
vo
lv
em

en
t i
n 
re
po

 m
ar
ke
ts
 sh

ou
ld
 

be
 c
on

sid
er
ed

 “
te
ch
ni
ca
l”
 o
r 

“s
tim

ul
at
iv
e”
 in
 n
at
ur
e.

—
Th

e 
G
ov
er
ni
ng

 C
ou

nc
il 
of
 th

e 
EC

B 
de

ci
de

d 
to
 le
av
e 
ke
y 
in
te
re
st
 ra

te
s 

un
ch
an

ge
d 
an

d 
co
nf
irm

ed
 th

at
 n
et
 

as
se
t p

ur
ch
as
es
 to

 th
e 
tu
ne

 o
f €

20
 

bi
lli
on

 p
er
 m

on
th
 h
ad

 b
eg
un

 in
 

N
ov
em

be
r. 

—
In
 C
hr
ist
in
e 
La
ga
rd
e’
s f
irs
t m

aj
or
 

m
ov
e 
as
 P
re
sid

en
t, 
sh
e 
an

no
un

ce
d 

th
e 
EC

B’
s f
irs
t S

tr
at
eg
ic
 P
ol
ic
y 
re
vi
ew

 
sin

ce
 2
00

3,
 w
hi
ch
 w
ill
 b
eg
in
 in
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 
an

d 
w
ill
 a
dd

re
ss
 a
 w
id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of
 to

pi
cs
, i
nc
lu
di
ng

: l
ow

 
in
fla

tio
n,
 th

e 
pr
ic
e‐
st
ab

ili
ty
 g
oa

l, 
cl
im

at
e 
ch
an

ge
, a
nd

 c
ry
pt
oc
ur
re
nc
y.

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

18

Ar
ea

Sh
or
tT

er
m
 (3

M
)

10
‐Y
ea

r

U
ni
te
d 
St
at
es

1.
54

%
1.
92

%

G
er
m
an

y
(0
.7
8%

)
(0
.1
9%

)

Fr
an

ce
(0
.6
5%

)
0.
12

%

Sp
ai
n

(0
.6
1%

)
0.
47

%

Ita
ly

(0
.3
4%

)
1.
41

%

G
re
ec
e

0.
26

%
1.
47

%

U.
K.

0.
69

%
0.
82

%

Ja
pa

n
(0
.1
0%

)
(0
.0
1%

)

Au
st
ra
lia

0.
94

%
1.
37

%

Ch
in
a

2.
43

%
3.
14

%

Br
az
il

4.
30

%
6.
79

%

Ru
ss
ia

4.
95

%
6.
36

%



Yi
el

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

19

YI
EL

D
 C
U
R
V
E 
CH

A
N
G
ES

 O
V
ER

 L
A
ST

 F
IV

E 
YE

A
R
S

IM
PL

IE
D
 C
H
A
N
G
ES

 O
V
ER

 N
EX

T 
YE

A
R
 

U
.S
. 
YI
EL

D
 C
U
R
V
E

G
LO

B
A
L 
G
O
V
ER

N
M
EN

T 
YI
EL

D
 C
U
R
V
ES

‐0
.4

‐0
.3

‐0
.2

‐0
.10.
0

0.
1

0.
2

0.
3

0.
4

0.
5

1M
3M

6M
1Y

2Y
3Y

4Y
5Y

7Y
9Y

10
Y

12
Y

15
Y

20
Y

30
Y

Yield Change (%)

U
S 
Tr
ea

su
ry

U
K 
Tr
ea

su
ry

Ja
pa

n 
Tr
ea

su
ry

G
er
m
an

y 
Tr
ea

su
ry

Ca
na

da
 T
re
as
ur
y

Fr
an

ce
 T
re
as
ur
y

Ita
ly
 T
re
as
ur
y

‐1
%0%1%2%3%

1M
3M

6M
1Y

2Y
3Y

4Y
5Y

7Y
9Y

10
Y

12
Y

15
Y

20
Y

30
Y

U
ni
te
d 
St
at
es
 C
ur
ve
 1
2/
31

/1
9

Ja
pa

n 
Cu

rv
e 
12

/3
1/
19

Ca
na

da
 C
ur
ve
 1
2/
31

/1
9

G
er
m
an

y 
Cu

rv
e 
12

/3
1/
19

U
K 
Cu

rv
e 
12

/3
1/
19

Fr
an

ce
 C
ur
ve
 1
2/
31

/1
9

Ita
ly
 C
ur
ve
 1
2/
31

/1
9

Au
st
ra
lia
 C
ur
ve
 1
2/
31

/1
9

‐2
%

‐1
%0%1%2%

1M
3M

6M
1Y

2Y
3Y

4Y
5Y

7Y
9Y

10
Y

12
Y

15
Y

20
Y

30
Y

U
S 
Tr
ea

su
ry

Ja
pa

n 
Tr
ea

su
ry

Ca
na

da
 T
re
as
ur
y

G
er
m
an

y 
Tr
ea

su
ry

U
K 
Tr
ea

su
ry

Fr
an

ce
 T
re
as
ur
y

Ita
ly
 T
re
as
ur
y

Au
st
ra
lia
 T
re
as
ur
y

‐1
%0%1%2%3%4%5%

1M
3M

6M
1Y

2Y
3Y

5Y
7Y

10
Y

20
y

30
Y

U
S 
Tr
ea

su
ry
 C
ur
ve
 1
2/
31

/1
9

U
S 
Tr
ea

su
ry
 C
ur
ve
 1
2/
31

/1
8

U
S 
Tr
ea

su
ry
 C
ur
ve
 1
2/
31

/1
7

U
S 
Tr
ea

su
ry
 C
ur
ve
 1
2/
31

/1
0



M
ar
ke

t

Cr
ed

it 
Sp

re
ad

 (O
AS

)

12
/3
1/
19

12
/3
1/
18

Lo
ng

 U
.S
. C

or
p

1.
4%

2.
0%

U
.S
. I
nv
 G
ra
de

 
Co

rp
0.
9%

1.
5%

U
.S
. H

ig
h 
Yi
el
d

3.
4%

5.
3%

U
.S
. B

an
k 
Lo
an

s*
4.
4%

5.
1%

SP
R
EA

D
S

H
IG

H
 Y
IE
LD

 S
EC

TO
R
 S
PR

EA
D
S 
(B

PS
)

Cr
ed

it 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: B

ar
cl
ay
s,
 B
lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a

s o
f 1

2/
31

/1
9

So
ur
ce
: B

ar
cl
ay
s,
 C
re
di
t S

ui
ss
e,
 B
lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

*D
isc

ou
nt
 m

ar
gi
n 
(4
‐y
ea

r l
ife

)

20

Cr
ed

it 
en

jo
ye
d 
a 
po

sit
iv
e 
20

19
 d
riv

en
 b
y 
tig

ht
en

in
g 
sp
re
ad

s.
 B
ot
h 

in
ve
st
m
en

t g
ra
de

 a
nd

 b
el
ow

‐in
ve
st
m
en

t g
ra
de

 a
ss
et
s r
em

ai
ne

d 
so
m
ew

ha
t s
ta
bl
e 
ov

er
 th

e 
pe

rio
d.
 In

 h
ig
h 
yi
el
d,
 C
CC

s a
nd

 e
ne

rg
y‐

re
la
te
d 
bo

nd
s w

er
e 
th
e 
be

st
 p
er
fo
rm

er
s d

ur
in
g 
Q
4.
 H
ig
h 
yi
el
d 

sp
re
ad

s t
ig
ht
en

ed
 m

ea
ni
ng

fu
lly
 o
ve
r t
he

 y
ea

r a
nd

 th
e 
qu

ar
te
r (
19

0 
bp

s a
nd

 3
7 
bp

s,
 re

sp
ec
tiv

el
y)
. I
nv

es
tm

en
t g

ra
de

 b
on

ds
 a
lso

 e
nj
oy

ed
 

po
sit
iv
e 
pe

rf
or
m
an

ce
 fu

el
ed

 b
y 
th
is 
ye
ar
’s
 ra

te
 ra

lly
, a
tt
ra
ct
iv
e 
pr
of
it 

m
ar
gi
ns
, a
nd

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
de

m
an

d 
fr
om

 in
ve
st
or
s f
or
 h
ig
he

r q
ua

lit
y 

cr
ed

it.
 

In
 th

e 
fo
ur
th
 q
ua

rt
er
, h

ig
h 
yi
el
d 
bo

nd
s h

av
e 
re
tu
rn
ed

 +
3.
4%

, 
m
at
er
ia
lly
 o
ut
pe

rf
or
m
in
g 
ba

nk
 lo

an
s (
+1

.7
%
) a

nd
 in

ve
st
m
en

t g
ra
de

 
cr
ed

it 
(+
1.
1%

). 
 In

 2
01

9,
 h
ig
h 
yi
el
d 
bo

nd
s h

av
e 
re
tu
rn
ed

 +
14

.4
%
, 

m
at
er
ia
lly
 o
ut
pe

rf
or
m
in
g 
ba

nk
 lo

an
s (
+8

.6
%
) a

nd
 sl
ig
ht
ly
 

ou
tp
er
fo
rm

in
g 
in
ve
st
m
en

t g
ra
de

 c
re
di
t (
+1

3.
8%

). 
Ba

nk
 lo

an
s h

av
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc
ed

 o
ut
flo

w
s f
or
 m

uc
h 
of
 th

e 
ye
ar
 d
riv

en
 b
y 
le
ss
en

in
g 

de
m
an

d 
fo
r t
he

 a
ss
et
 c
la
ss
. 

Ba
se
d 
on

 c
on

ce
rn
s o

ve
r l
at
e‐
cy
cl
e 
be

ha
vi
or
 in

 c
re
di
t m

ar
ke
ts
, w

e 
do

 
no

t b
el
ie
ve
 in

ve
st
or
s a

re
 b
ei
ng

 a
de

qu
at
el
y 
co
m
pe

ns
at
ed

 fo
r c

re
di
t 

ris
k.
 L
at
e‐
cy
cl
e 
vo

la
til
ity

 te
nd

s t
o 
co
in
ci
de

 w
ith

 w
id
en

in
g 
cr
ed

it 
sp
re
ad

s a
nd

 h
ig
he

r p
ro
pe

ns
ity

 fo
r d

ef
au

lt 
ac
tiv

ity
. A

n 
un

de
rw

ei
gh

t t
o 

U
.S
. i
nv
es
tm

en
t g

ra
de

, h
ig
h 
yi
el
d 
cr
ed

it,
 a
nd

 b
an

k 
lo
an

s m
ay
 b
e 

w
ar
ra
nt
ed

, w
ith

 a
n 
ov

er
w
ei
gh

t t
o 
em

er
gi
ng

 m
ar
ke
t d

eb
t w

hi
ch
 

ap
pe

ar
s t
o 
of
fe
r m

or
e 
at
tr
ac
tiv

e 
va
lu
e.
 T
hi
s p

os
iti
on

in
g 
sh
ou

ld
 re

su
lt 

in
 a
n 
ov

er
al
l n

eu
tr
al
 c
re
di
t r
isk

 st
an

ce
.  
W
ith

in
 U
.S
. m

ar
ke
ts
, h

ig
he

r 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 m
or
e 
liq

ui
d 
as
se
ts
 a
pp

ea
r m

os
t a

tt
ra
ct
iv
e.
 

0%5%10
%

15
%

20
% Ju

n‐
01

Ju
n‐
05

Ju
n‐
09

Ju
n‐
13

Ju
n‐
17

Ba
rc
la
ys
 L
on

g 
U
S 
Co

rp
.

Ba
rc
la
ys
 U
S 
Ag

g.
Ba

rc
la
ys
 U
S 
H
Y

Bl
oo

m
be

rg
 U
S 
HY

 E
ne

rg
y

IG
 E
ne

rg
y

20
0

50
0

80
0

11
00

14
00 De

c‐
14

M
ay
‐1
6

Se
p‐
17

Fe
b‐
19

Bl
oo

m
be

rg
 U
S 
HY

 E
ne

rg
y

U
SD

 H
Y 
Co

ns
Di
sc
. O

AS
U
SD

 H
Y 
Fi
na

nc
ia
ls 
Sn

r O
AS

U
SD

 H
Y 
Co

m
m
. O

AS
U
SD

 H
Y 
Co

m
m
. O

AS
U
SD

 H
Y 
M
at
er
ia
ls 
O
AS

U
SD

 H
Y 
Te
ch
no

lo
gy
 O
AS

U
SD

 H
Y 
In
du

st
ria

l O
AS

U
SD

 H
Y 
He

al
th
Ca

re
 O
AS

U
SD

 H
Y 
Co

ns
St
ap

le
 O
AS



H
ig

h 
yi

el
d 

–
w

ha
t’s

 in
 it

?
Th

e 
hi
gh

 y
ie
ld
 m

ar
ke
t r
al
lie
d 
in
 2
01

9 
to
 p
ro
vi
de

 d
ou

bl
e 
di
gi
t 

po
sit
iv
e 
re
tu
rn
s f
or
 o
nl
y 
th
e 
fo
ur
th
 ti
m
e 
sin

ce
 th

e 
20

08
‐2
00

9 
gl
ob

al
 fi
na

nc
ia
l c
ris
is.
 H
ow

ev
er
, t
he

 m
ar
ke
t w

as
 c
ha

ra
ct
er
ize

d 
by

 si
gn

ifi
ca
nt
 d
iv
er
ge
nc
es
 a
s 
in
ve
st
or
s r
ot
at
ed

 in
to
 u
pp

er
‐t
ie
r 

cr
ed

its
 re

la
tiv

e 
to
 lo

w
er
‐t
ie
r c

re
di
ts
 d
ue

 to
 v
ol
at
ili
ty
 a
nd

 
ge
op

ol
iti
ca
l u

nc
er
ta
in
ty
 p
ic
ki
ng

 u
p 
du

rin
g 
th
e 
ye
ar
. T
hi
s 
w
as
 

ev
id
en

ce
d 
by
 th

e 
ra
tio

 o
f C

CC
/B
B 
cr
ed

it 
sp
re
ad

 le
ve
ls,
 w
hi
ch
 

cl
im

be
d 
to
 le
ve
ls 
la
st
 se

en
 tw

o 
de

ca
de

s a
go

.  
In
ve
st
or
s 

ge
ne

ra
lly
 se

e 
CC

C 
cr
ed

its
 a
s a

 p
ro
xy
 fo

r l
es
s 
liq

ui
d 
an

d/
or
 

m
or
e 
co
m
pl
ex
 si
tu
at
io
ns
 a
nd

 ri
sk
s,
 e
sp
ec
ia
lly
 re

la
tiv

e 
to
 th

e 
BB

 se
gm

en
t. 

Th
e 
di
st
re
ss
ed

 m
ar
ke
t w

as
 n
eg
at
iv
el
y 
im

pa
ct
ed

 b
y 
in
ve
st
or
 

di
st
as
te
 fo

r l
es
s 
liq

ui
d 
ris
k 
du

rin
g 
th
e 
ye
ar
. T
hi
s 
w
as
 

pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
ly
 tr
ue

 in
 th

e 
en

er
gy
 se

ct
or
, a
nd

 in
 c
er
ta
in
 re

ta
il 
an

d 
he

al
th
ca
re
 in
du

st
rie

s.
 S
el
lin

g 
pr
es
su
re
s p

ea
ke
d 
in
 N
ov
em

be
r 

as
 th

e 
ris
ki
es
t s
eg
m
en

t o
f t
he

 h
ig
h 
yi
el
d 
m
ar
ke
t s
uf
fe
re
d 

lo
ss
es
 in

 e
xc
es
s 
of
 th

os
e 
ex
pe

rie
nc
ed

 d
ur
in
g 
th
e 
20

18
 y
ea

r‐
en

d 
dr
aw

do
w
n.
 M

ar
ke
t p

ar
tic

ip
an

ts
 p
ul
le
d 
m
on

ey
 fr
om

 th
e 

sp
ac
e,
 w
hi
ch
 re

su
lte

d 
in
 si
gn

ifi
ca
nt
 re

de
m
pt
io
ns
 a
m
on

gs
t 

di
st
re
ss
ed

‐fo
cu
se
d 
he

dg
e 
fu
nd

s a
nd

 e
ve
n 
cl
os
ur
es
 o
f h

ed
ge
 

fu
nd

s t
ha

t h
ad

 p
re
vi
ou

sly
 su

cc
es
sf
ul
ly
 n
av
ig
at
ed

 th
e 
gl
ob

al
 

fin
an

ci
al
 c
ris
is.
 

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: S
ta
nd

ar
d 
&
 P
oo

r’s
, J
.P
. M

or
ga

n,
 W

al
l S
tr
ee
t J
ou

rn
al
, a

s o
f 1

2/
31

/1
9

21

CC
C/

B
B
 S
PR

EA
D
 R
A
TI
O

H
IG

H
 Y
IE
LD

 V
S.
 H

IG
H
 Y
IE
LD

 D
IS
TR

ES
SE

D
 (
IN

D
EX

ED
 1
2/

31
/2

01
8=

10
0)

0.
0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

4.
0

5.
0

6.
0

7.
0 Ja
n‐
97

Ja
n‐
02

Ja
n‐
07

Ja
n‐
12

Ja
n‐
17

8085909510
0

10
5

11
0

11
5

12
0 De

c‐
18

M
ar
‐1
9

Ju
n‐
19

Se
p‐
19

De
c‐
19

S&
P 
U
.S
. H

ig
h 
Yi
el
d 
Co

rp
or
at
e 
Bo

nd
 In

de
x

S&
P 
U
.S
. H

ig
h 
Yi
el
d 
Co

rp
or
at
e 
Di
st
re
ss
ed

 B
on

d 
In
de

x



De
fa
ul
t a

ct
iv
ity

 fo
r 2

01
9 
w
as
 s
lig
ht
ly
 h
ig
he

r t
ha

n 
20

18
 b
y 

ro
ug

hl
y 
0.
8%

. T
hi
s 
w
as
 m

ai
nl
y 
du

e 
to
 e
le
va
te
d 
de

fa
ul
ts
 in
 

co
m
m
od

ity
‐r
el
at
ed

 in
du

st
rie

s s
uc
h 
as
 e
ne

rg
y 
an

d 
m
et
al
s/
m
in
in
g.
 T
he

 p
ar
‐w

ei
gh

te
d 
de

fa
ul
t r
at
e 
fo
r h

ig
h 
yi
el
d 

en
de

d 
th
e 
ye
ar
 a
t 2

.6
%
 a
nd

 re
m
ai
ne

d 
be

lo
w
 it
s 
lo
ng

‐t
er
m
 

av
er
ag
e 
ra
ng

e 
of
 3
.0
‐3
.5
%
. 

Fo
r l
oa

ns
, t
he

 p
ar
‐w

ei
gh

te
d 
de

fa
ul
t r
at
e 
fo
r 2

01
9 
w
as
 1
.6
%
 a
nd

 
re
m
ai
ne

d 
be

lo
w
 th

e 
lo
ng

‐t
er
m
 a
ve
ra
ge
 o
f 3

.1
%
, a
cc
or
di
ng

 to
 

da
ta
 fr
om

 J.
P.
 M

or
ga
n.
 N
ot
ab

ly,
 d
ef
au

lts
 in

 c
om

m
od

ity
‐r
el
at
ed

 
se
ct
or
s 
ac
co
un

te
d 
fo
r e

ss
en

tia
lly
 h
al
f o

f t
he

 y
ea

r’s
 

de
fa
ul
t/
di
st
re
ss
ed

 a
ct
iv
ity
. 

G
ro
ss
 h
ig
h 
yi
el
d 
iss

ue
 a
ct
iv
ity

 fo
r 2

01
9 
w
as
 $
28

7 
bi
lli
on

 w
hi
ch
 

w
as
 u
p 
52

%
 fr
om

 a
 y
ea

r a
go

. L
oa

n 
m
ar
ke
t i
ss
ua

nc
e 
is 

sig
ni
fic
an

tly
 b
eh

in
d 
la
st
 y
ea

r’s
 p
ac
e,
 li
ke
ly
 in
flu

en
ce
d 
by
 lo
w
er
 

de
m
an

d 
fo
r f
lo
at
in
g 
ra
te
 se

cu
rit
ie
s n

ow
 th

at
 th

e 
Fe
de

ra
l 

Re
se
rv
e 
ha

s p
au

se
d 
m
on

et
ar
y 
tig

ht
en

in
g.
 G
ro
ss
 lo

an
 is
su
an

ce
 is
 

es
se
nt
ia
lly
 d
ow

n 
44

%
 fr
om

 a
 y
ea

r a
go

 a
lth

ou
gh

 th
er
e 
w
as
 a
n 

in
cr
ea

se
 in

 is
su
an

ce
 a
t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r. 

H
Y 
D
EF

A
U
LT

 R
A
TE

 (
R
O
LL

IN
G
 1
‐Y

EA
R
)

U
.S
. 
H
Y 
SE

CT
O
R
 D

EF
A
U
LT

S 
(L
A
ST

 1
2 
M
O
N
TH

S)
G
LO

B
A
L 
IS
SU

A
N
CE

 (
$ 
B
IL
LI
O
N
S)

D
ef

au
lt 

&
 is

su
an

ce

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: B

of
A
M
er
ril
l L
yn
ch
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

So
ur
ce
: B

of
A
M
er
ril
l L
yn
ch
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9 
–
pa

r w
ei
gh

te
d

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, B

of
A
M
er
ril
l L
yn
ch
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9 

22

0%2%4%

Ja
n‐
18

Ja
n‐
19

05101520 Ja
n‐
01

Ja
n‐
04

Ja
n‐
07

Ja
n‐
10

Ja
n‐
13

Ja
n‐
16

Ja
n‐
19

Default (%)

De
ve
lo
pe

d 
M
ar
ke
t H

ig
h 
Yi
el
d

U
S 
Hi
gh

 Y
ie
ld

U
S 
Ex
 C
om

m
od

iti
es

024 Ja
n‐
18

Au
g‐
18

M
ar
‐1
9

0
2

4
6

8
10

Au
to
m
ot
iv
e

Ca
pi
ta
l G

oo
ds

Fi
na

nc
ia
ls

G
am

in
g

He
al
th
 C
ar
e

Ho
te
ls
 &
 L
ei
su
re

Tr
an

sp
or
ta
tio

n
U
til
iti
es

Co
m
m
er
ci
al
 S
er
vi
ce
s

Re
al
 E
st
at
e

M
ed

ia
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

Re
ta
il

Co
ns
um

er
 P
ro
du

ct
s

M
at
er
ia
ls

Te
le
co
m
m
un

ic
at
io
ns

En
er
gy

Fo
od

U
S 
Hi
gh

 Y
ie
ld
 1
yr
 d
ef
au

lt 
ra
te

05010
0

15
0

20
0

25
0

30
0

35
0

40
0

45
0

2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

$ Billion

G
lo
ba

l B
an

k 
Lo
an

 Is
su
an

ce
G
lo
ba

l H
Y 
Is
su
an

ce



Eq
ui

ty

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

23



Eq
ui

ty
 e

nv
ir

on
m

en
t

Q
TD

 T
O
TA

L 
RE

TU
RN

1 
YE

AR
 T
O
TA

L 
RE

TU
RN

(u
nh

ed
ge
d)

(h
ed

ge
d)

(u
nh

ed
ge
d)

(h
ed

ge
d)

U
S 
La
rg
e 
Ca

p 
   
   
  

(S
&
P 
50

0)
9.
1%

31
.5
%

U
S 
Sm

al
l C

ap
   
   
   

(R
us
se
ll 
20

00
)

9.
9%

25
.5
%

U
S 
La
rg
e 
Va

lu
e

(R
us
se
ll 
10

00
 V
al
ue

)
7.
4%

26
.5
%

U
S 
La
rg
e 
G
ro
w
th

(R
us
se
ll 
10

00
 G
ro
w
th
)

10
.6
%

36
.4
%

In
te
rn
at
io
na

l L
ar
ge

(M
SC

I E
AF

E)
8.
2%

5.
8%

22
.0
%

24
.6
%

Eu
ro
zo
ne

   
   
   
   
 

(E
ur
o 
St
ox
x 
50

)
8.
3%

5.
9%

25
.9
%

32
.1
%

U
.K
.  
   
   
   
   
   
 

(F
TS
E 
10

0)
10

.8
%

3.
0%

22
.1
%

19
.5
%

Ja
pa

n 
   
   
   
   
   
  

(N
IK
KE

I 2
25

)
8.
2%

9.
6%

21
.9
%

23
.5
%

Em
er
gi
ng

 M
ar
ke
ts

(M
SC

I E
m
er
gi
ng

 M
ar
ke
ts
)

11
.8
%

9.
5%

18
.4
%

17
.7
%

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: R

us
se
ll 
In
ve
st
m
en

ts
, M

SC
I, 
ST
O
XX

, F
TS
E,
 N
ik
ke
i, 
as
 o
f 1

2/
31

/1
9

—
G
lo
ba

l e
qu

ity
 m

ar
ke
ts
 e
xh
ib
ite

d 
st
ro
ng

 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 th

ro
ug

h 
Q
4,
 

an
d 
U.
S.
 e
qu

ity
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 w
as
 

in
‐li
ne

 (M
SC

I A
CW

I +
9.
0%

, S
&
P 
50

0 
+9

.1
%
). 
Em

er
gi
ng

 m
ar
ke
ts
 w
er
e 

th
e 
to
p 
pe

rf
or
m
in
g 
as
se
t c

la
ss
 

(+
11

.8
%
).

—
G
lo
ba

l c
ur
re
nc
y 
vo
la
til
ity

 h
as
 b
ee

n 
m
ut
ed

 o
ve
r t
he

 la
st
 fe

w
 y
ea

rs
, 

w
hi
ch
 h
as
 m

ad
e 
ig
no

rin
g 
cu
rr
en

cy
 

ex
po

su
re
 le
ss
 c
on

se
qu

en
tia

l. 
Ex
pe

ct
in
g 
lo
w
 c
ur
re
nc
y 
vo
la
til
ity

 to
 

pe
rs
ist
 m

ay
 b
e 
an

 a
ss
um

pt
io
n 
th
at
 

ge
ts
 in
ve
st
or
s i
nt
o 
tr
ou

bl
e.

—
U
nh

ed
ge
d 
U.
S.
 in
ve
st
or
s i
n 
U.
K.
 

eq
ui
tie

s o
ut
pe

rf
or
m
ed

 th
ei
r 

he
dg

ed
 p
ee

rs
 b
y 
7.
8%

 in
 Q
4,
 a
s 
a 

st
ro
ng

er
 p
ou

nd
 st
er
lin

g 
do

m
in
at
ed

 
th
e 
U.
K.
 e
qu

ity
 re

tu
rn
 n
ar
ra
tiv

e.

—
Ba

se
d 
on

 p
ric

e‐
to
‐fo

rw
ar
d 
ea
rn
in
gs
 

ra
tio

s i
nt
er
na

tio
na

l e
qu

ity
 

va
lu
at
io
ns
 a
pp

ea
r e

le
va
te
d,
 b
ut
 

un
lik
e 
in
 th

e 
U.
S.
, t
he

y 
do

 n
ot
 y
et
 

ap
pe

ar
 st
re
tc
he

d.

—
Th

e 
ou

tlo
ok

 fo
r m

on
et
ar
y 
po

lic
y 

re
m
ai
ns
 su

pp
or
tiv

e 
of
 g
lo
ba

l e
qu

ity
 

pr
ic
e 
m
ov
em

en
t i
n 
20

20
. O

f t
he

 
fiv
e 
m
aj
or
 g
lo
ba

l c
en

tr
al
 b
an

ks
 

(F
ed

er
al
 R
es
er
ve
, E
ur
op

ea
n 
Ce

nt
ra
l 

Ba
nk

, B
an

k 
of
 E
ng

la
nd

, B
an

k 
of
 

Ja
pa

n,
 P
eo

pl
e’
s 
Ba

nk
 o
f C

hi
na

), 
fo
ur
 o
ut
 o
f f
iv
e 
ar
e 
pr
ov
id
in
g 

ac
co
m
m
od

at
io
n 
th
ro
ug

h 
th
ei
r 

re
sp
ec
tiv

e 
ba

la
nc
e 
sh
ee

ts
. F
ut
ur
es
 

im
pl
y 
be

tt
er
 th

an
 5
0/
50

 o
dd

s t
ha

t 
th
e 
Ba

nk
 o
f E

ng
la
nd

 c
ut
s i
ts
 m

ai
n 

ra
te
 0
.2
5%

 a
t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f J
an

ua
ry
 

an
d 
Ch

in
a 
ha

s c
on

tin
ue

d 
to
 c
ut
 it
s 

be
nc
hm

ar
k 
le
nd

in
g 
ra
te
.

—
In
fla

tio
n 
re
m
ai
ns
 m

ut
ed

 in
 

em
er
gi
ng

 e
co
no

m
ie
s,
 a
nd

 m
os
t 

ec
on

om
ie
s 
ar
e 
ex
pe

rie
nc
in
g 
CP

I 
be

lo
w
 th

e 
5‐
ye
ar
 a
ve
ra
ge
. C

en
tr
al
 

ba
nk

 p
ol
ic
y 
ha

s r
em

ai
ne

d 
ac
co
m
m
od

at
iv
e 
in
 m

an
y 
m
aj
or
 

co
un

tr
ie
s w

ith
in
 th

e 
un

iv
er
se
 su

ch
 

as
 C
hi
na

, S
ou

th
 K
or
ea

, B
ra
zil
, a
nd

 
So

ut
h 
Af
ric

a.
 T
hi
s 
ac
co
m
m
od

at
io
n 

co
ul
d 
pr
ov
id
e 
a 
bo

os
t f
or
 e
qu

ity
 

m
ar
ke
t p

ric
in
g 
as
 w
e 
m
ov
e 
fu
rt
he

r 
in
to
 2
02

0.

24



A 
di

ffe
re

nt
 lo

ok
 a

t 2
01

9 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: S
ta
nd

ar
d 
&
 P
oo

r’s
, M

SC
I, 
Ve

ru
s,
 a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9 
–
“D

ra
w
do

w
n”
 d
ef
in
ed

 a
s t
he

 to
ta
l m

ar
ke
t f
al
l i
n 
20

18
, “
Re

bo
un

d”
 d
ef
in
ed

 a
s t
he

 to
ta
l %

 re
tu
rn
 fr
om

 th
e 
lo
w
 p
oi
nt
 o
f t
he

 fa
ll 
to
 th

e 
en

d 
of
 2
01

9.
 “N

et
 

Ch
an

ge
” 
de

fin
ed

 a
s t
he

 %
 m

ar
ke
t r
et
ur
n 
fr
om

 th
e 
20

18
 h
ig
h 
po

in
t t
o 
th
e 
en

d 
of
 2
01

9.

M
os

t o
f t

he
 

hi
gh

 re
tu

rn
s 

of
 

20
19

 w
er

e 
du

e 
to

 m
ar

ke
ts

 
re

co
ve

ri
ng

 fr
om

 
th

e 
20

18
 d

ro
p

A
dj

us
tin

g 
fo

r 
th

is
 e

ffe
ct

 
sh

ow
s 

us
 th

at
 

20
19

 w
as

 a
 

fa
ir

ly
 a

ve
ra

ge
 

ye
ar

 

25

‐1
9.
4%

‐2
6.
9%

‐1
7.
3%

‐2
2.
0%

‐1
7.
2%

‐2
1.
1%

40
.6
%

33
.4
%

25
.3
%

23
.1
%

30
.0
%

26
.4
%

13
.4
%

‐2
.3
%

3.
6%

‐3
.8
%

7.
7%

‐0
.3
%

‐4
0%

‐3
0%

‐2
0%

‐1
0%0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

S&
P 
50

0
Ru

ss
el
l 2
00

0
M
SC

I E
AF

E
M
SC

I E
M

Eu
ro
 S
to
xx

N
ik
ke
i 2
25

20
18

 m
ar
ke
t d

ra
w
do

w
n

Re
bo

un
d

N
et
 c
ha

ng
e



U
.S
. 
EQ

U
IT
IE
S

EA
R
N
IN

G
S

R
EL

A
TI
V
E 
YI
EL

D
S

D
om

es
tic

 e
qu

ity
U
.S
. e
qu

iti
es
 o
ut
pa

ce
d 
in
te
rn
at
io
na

l i
n 
th
e 
th
ird

 q
ua

rt
er
 (S
&
P 

50
0 
+9

.1
%
, M

SC
I E
AF

E 
+8

.2
%
) a

s d
om

es
tic

 m
ar
ke
ts
 c
on

tin
ue

d 
to
 le
ad

. 

Fa
lli
ng

 in
te
re
st
 ra

te
s i
n 
20

19
 h
av
e 
su
pp

or
te
d 
st
oc
k 
pr
ic
es
, a
s 

fix
ed

 in
co
m
e 
be

co
m
es
 le
ss
 a
tt
ra
ct
iv
e 
on

 a
 re

la
tiv

e 
ba

sis
, a
nd

 
ch
ea

pe
r b

or
ro
w
in
g 
sh
ou

ld
 b
ol
st
er
 fu

tu
re
 c
or
po

ra
te
 e
ar
ni
ng

s.
 A
s 

th
e 
di
vi
de

nd
 y
ie
ld
 o
f U

.S
. s
to
ck
s 
is 
on

ce
 a
ga
in
 h
ig
he

r t
ha

n 
U
.S
. 

Tr
ea

su
ry
 y
ie
ld
s,
 in
ve
st
or
s 
m
ay
 fe

el
 p
re
ss
ur
e 
to
 m

ai
nt
ai
n 
gr
ea

te
r 

ex
po

su
re
 to

 e
qu

iti
es
 in
 o
rd
er
 to

 m
ee

t r
et
ur
n 
ob

je
ct
iv
es
.

Th
e 
S&

P 
50

0 
de

liv
er
ed

 a
 3
1.
5%

 to
ta
lr
et
ur
n 
in
 c
al
en

da
r y

ea
r 

20
19

, w
hi
le
 u
nd

er
ly
in
g 
co
rp
or
at
e 
pr
of
its
 a
re
 e
xp
ec
te
d 
to
 b
e 
fla

t 
at
 +
0.
3%

. T
hi
s o

f c
ou

rs
e 
m
ea

ns
 th

at
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 h
as
 b
ee

n 
dr
iv
en

 b
y 
hi
gh

er
 st
oc
k 
m
ul
tip

le
s r
at
he

r t
ha

n 
fu
nd

am
en

ta
ls.
 It
 is
 

w
or
th
 n
ot
in
g 
th
at
 a
 si
gn

ifi
ca
nt
 p
or
tio

n 
of
 2
01

9 
pe

rf
or
m
an

ce
 

w
as
 a
 re

co
ve
ry
 fr
om

 th
e 
la
te
‐2
01

8 
se
ll‐
of
f o

f n
ea

rly
 ‐2

0%
. 

U
.S
. m

ar
ke
ts
 m

ay
 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 o
ut
pe

rf
or
m
 o
ve
r t
he

 sh
or
te
r‐

te
rm

 d
ue

 to
 re

la
tiv

e 
ec
on

om
ic
 a
nd

 m
ar
ke
t s
tr
en

gt
h,
 a
nd

 p
ric

es
 

m
ay
 c
er
ta
in
ly
 ri
se
 fu

rt
he

r. 
Bu

t h
ist
or
y 
su
gg
es
ts
 th

at
 a
 w
id
en

in
g 

ga
p 
be

tw
ee

n 
U
.S
. a
nd

 in
te
rn
at
io
na

l s
to
ck
 v
al
ua

tio
ns
 w
ill
 

co
ns
tr
ai
n 
U
.S
. p

er
fo
rm

an
ce
 o
ve
r t
he

 lo
ng

er
‐t
er
m
. 

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: S
ta
nd

ar
d 
&
 P
oo

r’s
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9 

So
ur
ce
: F
ac
tS
et
, a
s o

f 1
2/
20

/1
9

So
ur
ce
: S
ta
nd

ar
d 
&
 P
oo

r’s
, a
s o

f 1
1/
30

/1
9

26

02468101214

19
84

19
89

19
94

19
99

20
04

20
09

20
14

20
19

U
S 
10

 Y
r Y

ie
ld

S&
P 
50

0 
Di
vi
de

nd
 Y
ie
ld

024 20
17

20
18

20
19

5.
1%

‐0
.6
%

0.
9%

11
.3
%

20
.2
%

0.
3%

3.
5%

‐3
.6
%

2.
3%

6.
5%

8.
8%

3.
8%

‐1
0%‐5
%0%5%10
%

15
%

20
%

25
%

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

(e
st
im

at
e)

Ea
rn
in
gs

Sa
le
s

23
00

24
00

25
00

26
00

27
00

28
00

29
00

30
00

31
00

32
00

33
00 De

c‐
17

Ju
n‐
18

De
c‐
18

Ju
n‐
19

De
c‐
19

S&
P 
50

0



‐1
5%

‐1
0%

‐5
%

0%5%10
%

15
%

20
%

0.
0

0.
5

1.
0

1.
5

2.
0

2.
5 Ju

n‐
80

Ju
n‐
86

Ju
n‐
92

Ju
n‐
98

Ju
n‐
04

Ju
n‐
10

Ju
n‐
16

Re
la
tiv

e 
P/
E 
(V
al
ue

/G
ro
w
th
) (
Le
ft
)

Re
la
tiv

e 
Av

er
ag
e 
Va

lu
at
io
n 
(L
ef
t)

Su
bs
eq

ue
nt
 5
 Y
ea
r R

ol
lin

g 
Ex
ce
ss
 R
et
ur
ns
 (V

al
ue

/G
ro
w
th
) (
Ri
gh

t)

Va
lu
e 
ha

s n
ot
 b
ee

n 
th
is 

ch
ea

p 
sin

ce
 th

e 
te
ch
 b
ub

bl
e

‐2
0

‐1
5

‐1
0‐505101520 Ja
n‐
10

Ja
n‐
12

Ja
n‐
14

Ja
n‐
16

Ja
n‐
18

Return Difference (%)

R3
00

0 
Va

lu
e 
m
in
us
 R
30

00
 G
ro
w
th

SM
A
LL

 C
A
P 
V
S 
LA

R
G
E 
CA

P 
(Y

O
Y)

V
A
LU

E 
V
S 
G
R
O
W

TH
 (
YO

Y)
V
A
LU

E 
CO

N
TI
N
U
ES

 T
O
 L
O
O
K 
CH

EA
P

D
om

es
tic

 e
qu

ity
 si

ze
 &

 st
yl

e
Va

lu
e 
st
oc
ks
 la
gg
ed

 g
ro
w
th
 st
oc
ks
 d
ur
in
g 
th
e 
fo
ur
th
 q
ua

rt
er
 

(R
us
se
ll 
10

00
 G
ro
w
th
 +
10

.6
%
, R

us
se
ll 
10

00
 V
al
ue

 +
7.
4%

) w
hi
le
 

sm
al
l c
ap

 st
oc
ks
 o
ut
pe

rf
or
m
ed

 la
rg
e 
st
oc
ks
 (R

us
se
ll 
20

00
 +
9.
9%

, 
Ru

ss
el
l 1
00

0 
+9

.0
%
). 
Du

rin
g 
ca
le
nd

ar
 y
ea

r 2
01

9,
 b
ot
h 
siz

e 
an

d 
va
lu
e 
fa
ct
or
s s

ig
ni
fic
an

tly
 u
nd

er
pe

rf
or
m
ed

 (R
us
se
ll 
10

00
 +
31

.4
%
, 

Ru
ss
el
l 2
00

0 
+2

5.
5%

; R
us
se
ll 
30

00
 G
ro
w
th
 +
35

.8
%
, R

us
se
ll 
30

00
 

Va
lu
e 
+2

6.
2%

). 

Th
e 
im

pa
ct
 o
f s
ec
to
r p

er
fo
rm

an
ce
 o
n 
th
e 
va
lu
e 
pr
em

iu
m
 w
as
 

sig
ni
fic
an

t, 
on

ce
 a
ga
in
, i
n 
20

19
. I
nf
or
m
at
io
n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy
 d
el
iv
er
ed

 
ve
ry
 h
ig
h 
re
tu
rn
s (
+5

0.
3%

) –
a 
se
ct
or
 w
hi
ch
 te

nd
s t
o 
co
nt
ai
ns
 

m
or
e 
gr
ow

th
 st
oc
ks
. E
ne

rg
y 
(+
11

.8
%
) a

nd
 M

at
er
ia
ls 
(+
24

.6
%
) –

in
du

st
rie

s w
hi
ch
 tr
ad

iti
on

al
ly
 c
on

ta
in
 m

or
e 
va
lu
e 
st
oc
ks
 –
la
gg
ed

 

th
e 
ov

er
al
l i
nd

ex
 (S

&
P 
50

0 
+3

1.
5%

). 

In
 m

id
‐2
01

6
w
e 
ar
gu

ed
th
at
 th

er
e 
w
er
e 
cl
ea

r a
nd

 e
co
no

m
ic
 

re
as
on

s f
or
 lo

ng
‐t
er
m
 v
al
ue

 fa
ct
or
 u
nd

er
pe

rf
or
m
an

ce
, a
nd

 th
at
 a
 

ta
ct
ic
al
 o
ve
rw

ei
gh

t t
o 
th
e 
va
lu
e 
fa
ct
or
 d
id
 n
ot
 a
pp

ea
r w

ar
ra
nt
ed

. 
Th

is 
vi
ew

 h
as
 c
on

tin
ue

d 
to
 b
e 
co
rr
ec
t, 
as
 th

os
e 
w
ho

 b
ou

gh
t i
nt
o 

va
lu
e 
an

yt
im

e 
of
 th

e 
pa

st
 th

re
e 
ye
ar
s w

ou
ld
 h
av
e 

un
de

rp
er
fo
rm

ed
. W

hi
le
 v
al
ue

 c
on

tin
ue

s t
o 
be

 h
ist
or
ic
al
ly
 c
he

ap
, 

pr
ic
e 
its
el
f i
s n

ot
 a
 c
at
al
ys
t f
or
 o
ut
pe

rf
or
m
an

ce
. W

e 
re
m
ai
n 

w
at
ch
fu
l o

f v
al
ue

 st
oc
ks
, b

ut
 d
o 
no

t y
et
 se

e 
cl
ea

r s
ig
ns
 o
f 

op
po

rt
un

ity
. A

s a
lw
ay
s,
 a
tt
em

pt
in
g 
to
 ti
m
e 
fa
ct
or
s i
s e

xt
re
m
el
y 

di
ffi
cu
lt.
 W

e 
be

lie
ve
 th

is 
sh
ou

ld
 b
e 
do

ne
 o
nl
y 
ra
re
ly
, i
f a

t a
ll,
 a
nd

 
on

ly
 w
he

n 
m
ar
ke
t c

on
di
tio

ns
 a
re
 p
ar
tic

ul
ar
ly
 c
om

pe
lli
ng

. 

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: F
TS
E,
 a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

So
ur
ce
: F
TS
E,
 a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9 

So
ur
ce
: R

us
se
ll,
 B
lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

27

‐2
0

‐1
5

‐1
0‐505101520 Ja
n‐
01

Ja
n‐
04

Ja
n‐
07

Ja
n‐
10

Ja
n‐
13

Ja
n‐
16

Return Difference (%)

‐4
0%

‐3
0%

‐2
0%

‐1
0%0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
% Ja

n‐
79

Ja
n‐
85

Ja
n‐
91

Ja
n‐
97

Ja
n‐
03

Ja
n‐
09

Ja
n‐
15

Ru
ss
el
l 2
00

0 
m
in
us
 R
us
se
ll 
10

00

‐5
0%

‐4
0%

‐3
0%

‐2
0%

‐1
0%0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
% Ja

n‐
80

Ja
n‐
86

Ja
n‐
92

Ja
n‐
98

Ja
n‐
04

Ja
n‐
10

Ja
n‐
16

R3
00

0 
Va

lu
e 
m
in
us
 R
30

00
 G
ro
w
th



Eq
ui
tie

s i
n 
Eu

ro
pe

 a
nd

 Ja
pa

n 
po

st
ed

 st
ro
ng

 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 fo

r 
th
e 
qu

ar
te
r b

ut
 fa

ile
d 
to
 k
ee

p 
up

 w
ith

 st
oc
ks
 in

 th
e 
U.
S.
 a
nd

 
em

er
gi
ng

 m
ar
ke
ts
. T
he

 U
.S
. d

ol
la
r a

pp
re
ci
at
ed

 sl
ig
ht
ly
 

ag
ai
ns
t t
he

 y
en

, p
ro
vi
di
ng

 h
ea
dw

in
ds
 (‐
1.
4%

) f
or
 u
nh

ed
ge
d 

U.
S.
 in
ve
st
or
s i
n 
Ja
pa

ne
se
 st
oc
ks
. C

on
ve
rs
el
y,
 a
 sl
ig
ht
ly
 

w
ea

ke
r U

.S
. d

ol
la
r a

ga
in
st
 th

e 
eu

ro
 p
ut
 so

m
e 
ad

di
tio

na
l w

in
d 

in
 th

e 
sa
ils
 (+

2.
4%

) o
f U

.S
. i
nv
es
to
rs
 in

 E
ur
op

ea
n 
eq

ui
tie

s.

W
he

n 
in
ve
st
in
g 
in
 in
te
rn
at
io
na

l e
qu

iti
es
, t
he

 “
w
hi
ch
 c
ur
re
nc
y 

sh
ou

ld
 m

y 
as
se
ts
 b
e 
de

no
m
in
at
ed

?”
 q
ue

st
io
n 
ha

s b
ee

n 
ne

ar
ly
 e
qu

al
ly
 a
s i
m
po

rt
an

t a
s 
th
e 
“w

ha
t a

ss
et
s 
sh
ou

ld
 I 

ho
ld
?”
 q
ue

st
io
n.
 O
ve
r t
he

 la
st
 th

re
e 
ye
ar
s h

ow
ev
er
, g
lo
ba

l 

cu
rr
en

cy
 v
ol
at
ili
ty
 h
as
 b
ee

n 
m
ut
ed

, w
hi
ch
 h
as
 m

ad
e 
it 
m
uc
h 

ea
sie

r f
or
 in
ve
st
or
s t
o 
av
oi
d 
th
in
ki
ng

 a
bo

ut
 th

ei
r v

ar
io
us
 

cu
rr
en

cy
 e
xp
os
ur
es
. V

er
us
’ v
ie
w
 re

m
ai
ns
 th

at
 c
ur
re
nc
y 
ris
k 
is 

no
t c
om

pe
ns
at
ed

, a
nd

 th
at
 it
 te

nd
s t
o 
re
su
lt 
in
 in

cr
ea

se
d
ris
k 

w
ith

ou
t n

ec
es
sa
ril
y 
ad

di
ng

 to
 re

tu
rn
. 

In
te
rn
at
io
na

l e
qu

ity
 v
al
ua

tio
ns
 re

m
ai
n 
el
ev
at
ed

, b
ut
 u
nl
ik
e 
in
 

th
e 
U.
S.
, t
he

y 
do

 n
ot
 y
et
 a
pp

ea
r s
tr
et
ch
ed

. F
or
w
ar
d 
pr
ic
e‐
to
‐

ea
rn
in
gs
 ra

tio
s f
or
 th

e 
M
SC

I U
.K
. a
nd

 It
al
y 
in
di
ce
s r
an

k 
in
 th

e 
59

th
an

d 
52

nd
pe

rc
en

til
es
 re

sp
ec
tiv

el
y,
 re

la
tiv

e 
to
 th

e 
m
on

th
ly
 

ex
pa

ns
io
n 
av
er
ag
e.
 V
al
ua

tio
ns
 a
re
 a
 b
it 
ric

he
r i
n 
th
e 
re
st
 o
f 

th
e 
EA

FE
 c
om

pl
ex
, b

ut
 th

ey
 m

ay
 st
ill
 h
av
e 
ro
om

 to
 ru

n.

EF
FE

CT
 O

F 
CU

R
R
EN

CY
 (
1‐
YE

A
R
 R
O
LL

IN
G
)

IN
TE

R
N
A
TI
O
N
A
L 
D
EV

EL
O
PE

D
 E
Q
U
IT
IE
S

B
LE

N
D
ED

 F
O
R
W

A
R
D
 1
2‐
M
O
N
TH

 P
/E

 R
A
TI
O
S

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l d
ev

el
op

ed
 e

qu
ity

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: M

SC
I, 
as
 o
f 1

2/
31

/1
9

So
ur
ce
: M

SC
I, 
as
 o
f 1

2/
31

/1
9

So
ur
ce
: M

SC
I, 
Bl
oo

m
be

rg
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

28

62
5

12
50

25
00 O

ct
‐9
0

O
ct
‐9
7

O
ct
‐0
4

O
ct
‐1
1

O
ct
‐1
8

Log Scale

M
SC

I E
AF

E

‐2
0%

‐1
5%

‐1
0%‐5
%0%5%10
%

15
%

20
%

25
%

30
% Ju

n‐
09

Ju
n‐
11

Ju
n‐
13

M
ay
‐1
5

M
ay
‐1
7

M
ay
‐1
9

M
SC

I E
AF

E
M
SC

I A
CW

I e
x 
U
SA

M
SC

I E
M

68101214161820 Ja
n‐
10

Ja
n‐
13

Ja
n‐
16

Ja
n‐
19

Fr
an

ce
Ja
pa

n
G
er
m
an

y
U
.K
.

Ita
ly



EM
ER

G
IN

G
 M

A
R
KE

T 
EQ

U
IT
Y

FO
R
W

A
R
D
 P
/E

CE
N
TR

A
L 
B
A
N
K 
A
CC

O
M
O
D
A
TI
O
N

Em
er

gi
ng

 m
ar

ke
t e

qu
ity

Em
er
gi
ng

 m
ar
ke
t e

qu
iti
es
 (+

11
.8
%
) o

ut
pe

rf
or
m
ed

 b
ot
h 
U.
S.
 

(+
9.
1%

) a
nd

 in
te
rn
at
io
na

l d
ev
el
op

ed
 e
qu

iti
es
 (+

8.
2%

) o
ve
r 

th
e 
qu

ar
te
r, 
bu

t s
til
l l
ag
ge
d 
ov
er
 th

e 
fu
ll 
ca
le
nd

ar
 y
ea

r. 
In
 

20
19

, e
m
er
gi
ng

 m
ar
ke
t e

qu
iti
es
 d
el
iv
er
ed

 a
 to

ta
l r
et
ur
n 
of
 

18
.4
%
, a

nd
 tr
ai
le
d 
th
e 
to
ta
l r
et
ur
n 
of
 in
te
rn
at
io
na

l d
ev
el
op

ed
 

eq
ui
tie

s b
y 
3.
6%

. R
eg
io
na

lly
, t
he

 A
sia

n 
se
gm

en
t (
+1

2.
5%

) o
f 

th
e 
em

er
gi
ng

 m
ar
ke
t c

om
pl
ex
 p
er
fo
rm

ed
 b
et
te
r t
ha

n 
th
e 

La
tin

 A
m
er
ic
an

 (+
10

.5
%
) s
eg
m
en

t i
n 
bo

th
 Q
4 
an

d 
in
 2
01

9.

Em
er
gi
ng

 m
ar
ke
t e

qu
iti
es
 sa

w
 m

ul
tip

le
 e
xp
an

sio
n 
in
 Q
4:
 th

e 
fo
rw

ar
d 
P/
E 
of
 th

e 
M
SC

I E
M
 In

de
x 
ex
pa

nd
ed

 fr
om

 a
 le
ve
l i
n 

lin
e 
w
ith

 th
e 
5‐
ye
ar
 a
ve
ra
ge
 to

 a
 b
it 
hi
gh

er
 th

an
 a
ve
ra
ge
 

le
ve
ls.
 W

e 
do

 n
ot
 y
et
 v
ie
w
 p
ric

in
g 
in
 th

is 
sp
ac
e 
as
 ri
ch
 a
nd

 
se
e 
th
er
e 
be

in
g 
m
or
e 
ro
om

 fo
r m

ul
tip

le
 e
xp
an

sio
n.

In
fla

tio
n 
re
m
ai
ns
 m

ut
ed

 in
 e
m
er
gi
ng

 e
co
no

m
ie
s,
 a
nd

 m
os
t 

ec
on

om
ie
s 
ar
e 
ex
pe

rie
nc
in
g 
CP

I b
el
ow

 th
e 
5‐
ye
ar
 a
ve
ra
ge
. 

Ce
nt
ra
l b
an

k 
po

lic
y 
ha

s r
em

ai
ne

d 
ac
co
m
m
od

at
iv
e 
in
 m

an
y 

m
aj
or
 c
ou

nt
rie

s w
ith

in
 th

e 
un

iv
er
se
 su

ch
 a
s C

hi
na

, S
ou

th
 

Ko
re
a,
 B
ra
zil
, a
nd

 S
ou

th
 A
fr
ic
a.
 T
hi
s 
ac
co
m
m
od

at
io
n 
co
ul
d 

pr
ov
id
e 
a 
bo

os
t f
or
 e
qu

ity
 m

ar
ke
t p

ric
in
g 
as
 w
e 
m
ov
e 
fu
rt
he

r 
in
to
 2
02

0.

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: M

SC
I, 
as
 o
f 1

2/
31

/1
9

So
ur
ce
: M

SC
I, 
as
 o
f 1

2/
31

/1
9

So
ur
ce
: M

SC
I, 
as
 o
f 1

2/
31

/1
9

29

EM
 e
xp
ec
te
d 
to
 a
cc
el
er
at
e 

w
hi
le
 D
M
 e
xp
ec
te
d 
to
 sl
ow

IM
F 
Fo

re
ca
st
s

‐3
0%

‐1
0%10
% Se

p‐
18

Se
p‐
19

20
0

40
0

80
0

16
00 Fe

b‐
95

Fe
b‐
00

Fe
b‐
05

Fe
b‐
10

Fe
b‐
15

Fe
b‐
20

Log Scale

M
SC

I E
m
er
gi
ng

 M
ar
ke
ts

12
%

13
%

14
%

15
%

0%2%4%6%8%

De
c‐
18

M
ar
‐1
9

Ju
n‐
19

Se
p‐
19

De
c‐
19

So
ut
h 
Af
ric

a 
Re

po
 R
at
e 
(a
ve
ra
ge
) [
L]

So
ut
h 
Ko

re
a 
O
ffi
ci
al
 B
an

k 
Ra

te
 [L
]

Ch
in
a 
Re

qu
ire

d 
Re

se
rv
e 
Ra

tio
 [R

]

468101214161820

Ju
n‐
03

Ju
n‐
05

Ju
n‐
07

Ju
n‐
09

Ju
n‐
11

Ju
n‐
13

Ju
n‐
15

Ju
n‐
17

Ju
n‐
19

U
.S
.

EA
FE

EM



Eq
ui

ty
 e

ar
ni

ng
s g

ro
w

th

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

30

‐5
005010
0

15
0

20
0

25
0 De

c‐
05

Se
p‐
08

Ju
n‐
11

M
ar
‐1
4

De
c‐
16

Se
p‐
19

Earnings Per Share (12/31/15 indexed to 100)

S&
P 
50

0
M
SC

I E
AF

E
M
SC

I E
m
er
gi
ng

 M
ar
ke
ts

M
SC

I J
ap

an
M
SC

I E
ur
op

e



FO
R
W

A
R
D
 P
/E

 R
A
TI
O
S 

S&
P 
50

0 
IN

D
EX

 F
O
R
W

A
R
D
 S
EC

TO
R
 P
/E

 R
A
TI
O
S

Eq
ui

ty
 v

al
ua

tio
ns

Eq
ui
ty
 v
al
ua

tio
ns
 e
xp
an

de
d 
m
at
er
ia
lly
 in

 2
01

9 
as
 p
ric

es
 

re
co
ve
re
d 
fr
om

 th
ei
r y

ea
r‐
en

d 
20

18
 fa

ll 
an

d 
th
en

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
cl
im

bi
ng

 th
ro
ug

h 
th
e 
fo
ur
th
 q
ua

rt
er
.  
U.
S.
 e
qu

iti
es
 a
re
 

ex
pe

ns
iv
e 
re
la
tiv

e 
to
 th

ei
r l
on

g‐
ru
n 
av
er
ag
e 
an

d 
pr
ic
es
 m

ay
 

be
co
m
e 
m
or
e 
di
ffi
cu
lt 
to
 ju

st
ify

 in
 a
n 
en

vi
ro
nm

en
t o

f f
la
t 

ea
rn
in
gs
 g
ro
w
th
. I
nt
er
na

tio
na

l a
nd

 e
m
er
gi
ng

 e
qu

ity
 v
al
ua

tio
ns
 

ar
e 
ne

ar
 a
ve
ra
ge
 le
ve
ls.
 W

e 
re
m
ai
n 
w
at
ch
fu
l o
f e

ar
ni
ng

s 
tr
en

ds
 in

 2
02

0,
 w
hi
ch
 m

ay
 h
av
e 
im

po
rt
an

t i
m
pl
ic
at
io
ns
 fo

r t
he

 
fu
tu
re
 p
at
h 
of
 e
qu

iti
es
. 

In
 th

e 
U
ni
te
d 
St
at
es
, s
to
ck
s 
w
ith

in
 th

e 
In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
Te
ch
no

lo
gy
 

(2
2.
7x
) a

nd
 C
om

m
un

ic
at
io
n 
Se
rv
ic
es
 (1

9.
5x
) s
ec
to
rs
 h
av
e 

re
ta
in
ed

 fo
rw

ar
d 
P/
E 
ra
tio

s 
el
ev
at
ed

 w
el
l a
bo

ve
 th

ei
r 

re
sp
ec
tiv

e 
5‐

an
d 
10

‐y
ea

r a
ve
ra
ge
s.
 L
as
t y

ea
r, 
gr
ow

in
g 

co
nc
er
ns
 o
ve
r d

at
a 
pr
iv
ac
y,
 su

pp
or
t f
or
 a
nt
i‐t
ru
st
 re

gu
la
tio

n,
 

an
d 
se
ve
ra
l i
di
os
yn

cr
at
ic
 sc

an
da

ls 
w
ei
gh

ed
 o
n 
th
e 
te
ch
 se

ct
or
. 

O
ve
r t
he

 c
ou

rs
e 
of
 th

is 
el
ec
tio

n 
ye
ar
, w

e 
ex
pe

ct
 th

e 
iss

ue
 o
f 

m
eg
a‐
ca
p 
te
ch
 re

gu
la
tio

n 
to
 re

m
ai
n 
be

ne
at
h 
th
e 
m
ic
ro
sc
op

e.

Co
m
pa

re
d 
to
 U
.S
. a
nd

 E
M
 e
qu

iti
es
, i
nt
er
na

tio
na

l d
ev
el
op

ed
 

eq
ui
tie

s o
ffe

r t
he

 g
re
at
es
t y

ie
ld
 a
t p

re
se
nt
, o

ffe
rin

g
a 
th
re
e‐

m
on

th
 a
ve
ra
ge
 tr
ai
lin

g 
di
vi
de

nd
 y
ie
ld
 o
f 3

.4
%
.

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: M

SC
I, 
12

m
 fo

rw
ar
d 
P/
E,
 a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  S
ou

rc
e:
 S
ta
nd

ar
d 
&
 P
oo

r’s
, F
ac
tS
et
,a
s o

f 1
/1
7/
20

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  S
ou

rc
e:
 B
lo
om

be
rg
, M

SC
I a

s o
f 1

2/
31

/1
9 
‐t
ra
ili
ng

 P
/E

31

V
A
LU

A
TI
O
N
 M

ET
R
IC
S 
(3

‐M
O
N
TH

 A
V
ER

A
G
E)

22
.7

22
.5

20
.4

20
.3

20
.2

19
.5

18
.6

18
.3

17
.5

17
.5

16
.5

13
.3

05101520253035

Fo
rw

ar
d 
P/
E

5‐
ye
ar
 a
ve
ra
ge

10
‐y
ea
r a

ve
ra
ge

468101214161820

U
.S
.

EA
FE

EM

3.
5

21
.5

26
.0

1.
8

4.
7

1.
7

18
.1

20
.4

3.
4

5.
5

1.
6

14
.6

18
.6

2.
8

6.
8

051015202530

P/
B

P/
E

P/
FC

F
Di
vi
de

nd
Yi
el
d 
(%

)
Ea
rn
in
gs

Yi
el
d 
(%

)
U
ni
te
d 
St
at
es

EA
FE

Em
er
gi
ng

 M
ar
ke
ts



Th
e 
im

pl
ie
d 
vo
la
til
ity

 o
f l
ar
ge
‐c
ap

 U
.S
. s
to
ck
s 
re
tu
rn
ed

 to
 a
 

su
bd

ue
d 
le
ve
l. 
Th

e 
CB

O
E 
VI
X 
In
de

x,
 w
hi
ch
 c
al
cu
la
te
s t
he

 
m
ar
ke
t’s
 e
xp
ec
ta
tio

n 
fo
r v

ol
at
ili
ty
 im

pl
ie
d 
by

 S
&
P 
50

0 
In
de

x 
op

tio
ns
, d

ec
lin

ed
 fr
om

 1
6.
2 
to
 1
3.
8,
 a
 re

ad
in
g 
w
hi
ch
 li
es
 in

 
th
e 
15

th
pe

rc
en

til
e 
of
 w
ee

kl
y 
re
ad

in
gs
 o
ve
r t
he

 la
st
 th

irt
y 

ye
ar
s.
 N
et
 n
on

‐c
om

m
er
ci
al
 sh

or
t V

IX
 p
os
iti
on

in
g 
re
ac
he

d 
ne

w
 a
ll‐
tim

e‐
hi
gh

s i
n 
th
e 
4t

h
qu

ar
te
r, 
m
ea

ni
ng

 th
at
 m

an
y 

pe
op

le
 a
re
 b
et
tin

g 
on

 v
ol
at
ili
ty
 to

 re
m
ai
n 
lo
w
 a
nd

 p
us
h 

lo
w
er
. S
om

e 
in
ve
st
or
s v

ie
w
 th

is 
as
su
m
pt
io
n 
as
 c
on

ce
rn
in
g,
 

an
d 
as
 a
 si
gn

al
 th

at
 th

e 
m
ar
ke
t m

ay
 b
e 
re
ad

y 
fo
r a

 c
or
re
ct
io
n.

U.
S.
 la
rg
e‐
ca
p 
an

d 
em

er
gi
ng

 m
ar
ke
t s
to
ck
s 
ha

ve
 e
xp
er
ie
nc
ed

 
a 
hi
gh

er
 d
eg
re
e 
of
 v
ol
at
ili
ty
 th

an
 in
te
rn
at
io
na

l d
ev
el
op

ed
 

st
oc
ks
 o
ve
r t
he

 la
st
 se

ve
ra
l y
ea

rs
. S
om

e 
of
 th

e 
di
ve
rg
en

ce
 

m
ay
 b
e 
at
tr
ib
ut
ab

le
 to

 th
e 
im

pa
ct
s o

f t
he

 e
ve
r‐
ch
an

gi
ng

 U
.S
.‐

Ch
in
a 
tr
ad

e 
na

rr
at
iv
e 
w
hi
ch
 h
as
 h
el
d 
th
e 
fu
ll 
at
te
nt
io
n 
of
 

m
ar
ke
t p

ar
tic

ip
an

ts
 fo

r m
uc
h 
of
 th

e 
pr
io
r t
w
o 
ye
ar
s.

Th
e 
M
SC

I E
M
 In

de
x 
to
uc
he

d 
ne

w
 a
ll‐
tim

e 
hi
gh

s i
n 
Ap

ril
 a
nd

 
di
d 
no

t e
cl
ip
se
 th

at
 le
ve
l f
or
 a
no

th
er
 1
74

 d
ay
s.
 In

 2
01

9,
 th

e 
S&

P 
50

0 
an

d 
M
SC

I E
AF

E 
in
di
ce
s s

pe
nt
 a
 m

ax
im

um
 o
f 6

5 
an

d 
82

 tr
ad

in
g 
da

ys
 b
et
w
ee

n 
fr
es
h 
al
l‐t
im

e 
hi
gh

s,
 re

sp
ec
tiv

el
y.

U
.S
. 
IM

PL
IE
D
 V

O
LA

TI
LI
TY

 (
V
IX

)
R
O
LL

IN
G
 1
‐Y

EA
R
 R
EA

LI
ZE

D
 V
O
LA

TI
LI
TY

20
19

 M
A
X
 D

R
A
W

D
O
W

N
S 
FR

O
M
 P
R
EV

IO
U
S 
A
LL

‐
TI
M
E‐
H
IG

H
 I
N
D
EX

 L
EV

EL
S

Eq
ui

ty
 v

ol
at

ili
ty

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: C

BO
E,
 a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

So
ur
ce
: S
ta
nd

ar
d 
&
 P
oo

r’s
, M

SC
I, 
Bl
oo

m
be

rg
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

So
ur
ce
: S
ta
nd

ar
d 
&
 P
oo

r’s
, M

SC
I, 
Bl
oo

m
be

rg
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

32

10203040 Se
p‐
18

De
c‐
18

Q
4

Q
1

0102030405060708090 Ju
n‐
90

Ju
n‐
94

Ju
n‐
98

M
ay
‐0
2
M
ay
‐0
6
M
ay
‐1
0
Ap

r‐
14

Ap
r‐
18

VI
X

1020 De
c‐
18

Ju
n‐
19

De
c‐
19

0%5%10
%

15
%

20
%

25
%

30
%

35
%

40
%

45
% Ja

n‐
00

Ja
n‐
06

Ja
n‐
12

Ja
n‐
18

S&
P 
50

0
M
SC

I E
AF

E
M
SC

I E
M

‐1
4%

‐1
2%

‐1
0%‐8
%

‐6
%

‐4
%

‐2
%0%

De
c‐
18

Fe
b‐
19

Ap
r‐
19

Ju
n‐
19

Au
g‐
19

O
ct
‐1
9

De
c‐
19

S&
P 
50

0
M
SC

I E
AF

E
M
SC

I E
M



Lo
ng

-te
rm

 e
qu

ity
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: S
ta
nd

ar
d 
&
 P
oo

r’s
, R

us
se
ll,
 M

SC
I, 
Bl
oo

m
be

rg
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

33

$5
0

$1
00

$1
50

$2
00

$2
50

$3
00

$3
50

$4
00

De
c‐
09

De
c‐
12

De
c‐
15

De
c‐
18

Growth of $100

S&
P 
50

0
Ru

ss
el
l 2
00

0
M
SC

I A
CW

I
M
SC

I E
AF

E 
Sm

al
l C

ap
M
SC

I E
AF

E
M
SC

I E
m
er
gi
ng

 M
ar
ke
ts



O
th

er
 a

ss
et

s

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

34



Th
e 
U.
S.
 d
ol
la
r w

ea
ke
ne

d 
ve
rs
us
 b
ot
h 
de

ve
lo
pe

d 
an

d 
em

er
gi
ng

 m
ar
ke
t c

ur
re
nc
y 
ba

sk
et
s i
n 
th
e 
4t

h
qu

ar
te
r, 
fa
di
ng

 
so
m
e 
of
 th

e 
st
ro
ng

 re
la
tiv

e 
pe

rf
or
m
an

ce
 it
 h
ad

 e
xp
er
ie
nc
ed

 
ba

ck
 in

 Q
3 
20

19
. A

n 
in
de

x 
tr
ac
ki
ng

 th
e 
w
ei
gh

te
d 
av
er
ag
e 
of
 

th
e 
fo
re
ig
n 
ex
ch
an

ge
 v
al
ue

 o
f t
he

 U
.S
. d

ol
la
r a

ga
in
st
 m

aj
or
 

cu
rr
en

ci
es
 fe

ll 
0.
5%

. 

J.P
. M

or
ga
n’
s E

m
er
gi
ng

 M
ar
ke
t C

ur
re
nc
y 
In
de

x 
fe
ll 
‐1
.4
%
 in

 
20

19
. M

an
y 
an

al
ys
ts
 h
av
e 
ar
gu

ed
 th

at
 g
lo
ba

l d
isi
nf
la
tio

na
ry
 

pr
es
su
re
s h

av
e 
ea

se
d 
so
m
e 
lo
ng

‐s
ta
nd

in
g 
co
nc
er
ns
 o
ve
r t
he

 
ris
k 
of
 c
ap

ita
l f
lig
ht
 w
ith

in
 th

e 
em

er
gi
ng

 m
ar
ke
t c
om

pl
ex
. S
o 

lo
ng

 a
s 
in
fla

tio
na

ry
 ri
sk
s a

re
 m

ut
ed

, t
he

n 
hi
gh

er
 n
om

in
al
 

in
te
re
st
 ra

te
s i
n 
th
e 
em

er
gi
ng

 m
ar
ke
t c
om

pl
ex
 s
ho

ul
d 
af
fo
rd
 

em
er
gi
ng

 m
ar
ke
t c

en
tr
al
 b
an

ke
rs
' f
ur
th
er
 ro

om
 to

 c
ut
 ra

te
s 

th
an

 th
ei
r d

ev
el
op

ed
 m

ar
ke
t p

ee
rs
. I
f i
m
pl
em

en
te
d,
 th

e 
re
la
tiv

e 
ac
co
m
m
od

at
io
n 
su
pp

lie
d 
m
ay
 fu

el
 b
ot
h 
gr
ow

th
 a
nd

 
cu
rr
en

cy
 d
ep

re
ci
at
io
n.

Th
e 
Br
iti
sh
 p
ou

nd
 st
er
lin

g 
bo

un
ce
d 
ba

ck
 sh

ar
pl
y 
in
 Q
4,
 ri
sin

g 
fr
om

 $
1.
23

 to
 $
1.
33

. P
rim

e 
M
in
ist
er
 B
or
is 
Jo
hn

so
n’
s 

Co
ns
er
va
tiv

e 
Pa
rt
y 
se
cu
re
d 
a 
fir
m
 m

aj
or
ity

 in
 P
ar
lia
m
en

t, 
lif
tin

g 
th
e 
sh
ro
ud

 o
f “
Br
ex
it”

 fr
om

 th
e 
ge
op

ol
iti
ca
l l
an

ds
ca
pe

.

U
.S
. 
D
O
LL

A
R
 T
R
A
D
E 
W

EI
G
H
TE

D
 I
N
D
EX

JP
 M

O
R
G
A
N
 E
M
CI
 C
O
N
ST

IT
U
EN

T 
20

19
 R
ET

U
R
N
S

G
B
P/

U
SD

Cu
rr

en
cy

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: F
ed

er
al
 R
es
er
ve
, V

er
us
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

So
ur
ce
: J
.P
. M

or
ga

n,
 B
lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

35

U
nd

er
va
lu
ed

O
ve

rv
al
ue

d

 $
1.
10

 $
1.
20

 $
1.
30

 $
1.
40

 $
1.
50

 $
1.
60

De
c‐
14

De
c‐
15

De
c‐
16

De
c‐
17

De
c‐
18

De
c‐
19

70809010
0

11
0

12
0

13
0

14
0

15
0 Ja
n‐
73

Ja
n‐
83

Ja
n‐
93

Ja
n‐
03

Ja
n‐
13

10
4

10
6

10
8 De

c‐
18

Ju
n‐
19

De
c‐
19

12
.0
%

3.
8%

2.
5%

1.
3%

‐1
.3
%

‐2
.3
%

‐3
.6
%

‐5
.2
%

‐7
.8
%

‐1
1.
1%

‐2
0%

0%
20

%

Ru
ss
ia
n 
ru
bl
e

M
ex
ic
an

 p
es
o

So
ut
h 
Af
ric

an
 ra

nd
Si
ng

ap
or
e 
do

lla
r

O
ffs

ho
re
 C
hi
ne

se
 re

nm
in
bi

In
do

ne
sia

n 
ru
pi
ah

Br
az
ili
an

 re
al

Hu
ng

ar
ia
n 
fo
rin

t
Co

lo
m
bi
an

 p
es
o

Tu
rk
ish

 li
ra



Ap
pe

nd
ix

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

36



Pe
ri

od
ic

 ta
bl

e 
of

 re
tu

rn
s

In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
 D
at
a:
 M

or
ni
ng

st
ar
, I
nc
., 
He

dg
e 
Fu
nd

 R
es
ea

rc
h,
 In
c.
 (H

FR
), 
N
at
io
na

l C
ou

nc
il 
of
 R
ea

l E
st
at
e 
In
ve
st
m
en

t F
id
uc
ia
rie

s (
N
CR

EI
F)
.  
In
di
ce
s u

se
d:
 R
us
se
ll 
10

00
, R

us
se
ll 
10

00
 V
al
ue

, R
us
se
ll 
10

00
 G
ro
w
th
, R

us
se
ll 
20

00
, 

Ru
ss
el
l 2
00

0 
Va

lu
e,
 R
us
se
ll 
20

00
 G
ro
w
th
, M

SC
I E
AF

E,
 M

SC
I E
M
, B

Bg
Ba

rc
U
S 
Ag

gr
eg

at
e,
 T
‐B
ill
 9
0 
Da

y,
 B
lo
om

be
rg
 C
om

m
od

ity
, N

CR
EI
F 
Pr
op

er
ty
, H

FR
I F
O
F,
 M

SC
I A

CW
I, 
BB

gB
ar
cG

lo
ba

l B
on

d.
 N
CR

EI
F 
Pr
op

er
ty
 In
de

x 
pe

rf
or
m
an

ce
 d
at
a 
as
 o
f 9

/3
0/
19

.

37

La
rg
e 
Ca

p 
Eq

ui
ty

Sm
al
l C

ap
 G
ro
w
th

Co
m
m
od

it
ie
s

La
rg
e 
Ca

p 
Va

lu
e

In
te
rn
at
io
na

l E
qu

it
y

Re
al
 E
st
at
e

La
rg
e 
Ca

p 
G
ro
w
th

Em
er
gi
ng

 M
ar
ke

ts
 E
qu

it
y

H
ed

ge
 F
un

ds
 o
f F
un

ds

Sm
al
l C

a p
 E
qu

it
y

U
S 
Bo

nd
s

60
%
 M

SC
I A

CW
I/
40

%
 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 G
lo
ba

l B
on

d

Sm
al
l C

ap
 V
al
ue

Ca
sh

BEST WORST

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0

19
98

19
99

20
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

5‐
Ye

ar
10

‐Y
ea

r

La
rg
e C

ap
 G
ro
w
th

38
.7

66
.4

31
.8

14
.0

25
.9

56
.3

26
.0

34
.5

32
.6

39
.8

5.
2

79
.0

29
.1

14
.3

18
.6

43
.3

13
.5

13
.3

31
.7

37
.3

6.
7

36
.4

14
.6

15
.2

La
rg
e C

ap
 Eq

ui
ty

27
.0

43
.1

22
.8

8.
4

10
.3

48
.5

22
.2

21
.4

26
.9

16
.2

1.
4

37
.2

26
.9

7.
8

18
.1

38
.8

13
.2

5.
7

21
.3

30
.2

1.
9

31
.4

11
.5

13
.5

Sm
all
 C
ap

 G
ro
w
th

20
.3

33
.2

12
.2

7.
3

6.
7

47
.3

20
.7

20
.1

23
.5

15
.8

‐6
.5

34
.5

24
.5

2.
6

17
.9

34
.5

13
.0

0.
9

17
.3

25
.0

0.
0

28
.5

9.
3

13
.0

La
rg
e C

ap
 V
alu

e
19

.3
27

.3
11

.6
3.
3

1.
6

46
.0

18
.3

14
.0

22
.2

11
.8

‐2
1.
4

32
.5

19
.2

1.
5

17
.5

33
.5

11
.8

0.
6

12
.1

22
.2

‐1
.5

26
.5

8.
6

11
.8

Sm
all
 C
ap

 Eq
ui
ty

16
.2

26
.5

7.
0

2.
8

1.
0

39
.2

16
.5

7.
5

18
.4

11
.6

‐2
5.
9

28
.4

16
.8

0.
4

16
.4

33
.1

6.
0

0.
0

11
.8

21
.7

‐3
.5

25
.5

8.
3

11
.8

Sm
all
 C
ap

 V
alu

e
8.
7

21
.3

4.
1

‐2
.4

‐6
.0

29
.9

14
.3

6.
3

15
.5

10
.3

‐3
3.
8

23
.3

16
.1

‐2
.1

15
.3

23
.3

4.
9

‐0
.8

11
.2

14
.6

‐6
.0

22
.4

8.
2

10
.6

In
te
rn
at
io
na

l E
qu

ity
15

.6
24

.3
6.
0

2.
5

‐5
.9

30
.0

14
.5

7.
1

16
.6

10
.9

‐2
8.
9

27
.2

16
.7

0.
1

16
.3

32
.5

5.
6

‐0
.4

11
.3

17
.1

‐4
.8

22
.0

7.
0

9.
8

60
/4
0 
Gl
ob

al 
Po

rtf
ol
io

4.
9

20
.9

‐3
.0

‐5
.6

‐1
1.
4

29
.7

12
.9

5.
3

15
.1

7.
0

‐3
5.
6

20
.6

15
.5

‐2
.9

14
.6

12
.1

4.
2

‐1
.4

8.
0

13
.7

‐8
.3

18
.6

6.
1

6.
4

Em
er
gin

g M
ar
ke
ts
 Eq

ui
ty

1.
2

13
.2

‐7
.3

‐9
.1

‐1
5.
5

25
.2

11
.4

4.
7

13
.3

7.
0

‐3
6.
8

19
.7

13
.1

‐4
.2

11
.5

11
.0

3.
4

‐2
.5

7.
1

7.
8

‐9
.3

18
.4

5.
7

5.
5

US
 B
on

ds
‐2
.5

11
.4

‐7
.8

‐9
.2

‐1
5.
7

23
.9

9.
1

4.
6

10
.4

5.
8

‐3
7.
6

18
.9

10
.2

‐5
.5

10
.5

9.
0

2.
8

‐3
.8

5.
7

7.
7

‐1
1.
0

8.
7

5.
6

3.
7

He
dg

e F
un

ds
 o
f F

un
ds

‐5
.1

7.
3

‐1
4.
0

‐1
2.
4

‐2
0.
5

11
.6

6.
9

4.
6

9.
1

4.
4

‐3
8.
4

11
.5

8.
2

‐5
.7

4.
8

0.
1

0.
0

‐4
.4

2.
6

7.
0

‐1
1.
2

7.
8

3.
0

3.
7

Co
m
m
od

iti
es

‐6
.5

4.
8

‐2
2.
4

‐1
9.
5

‐2
1.
7

9.
0

6.
3

4.
2

4.
8

‐0
.2

‐3
8.
5

5.
9

6.
5

‐1
1.
7

4.
2

‐2
.0

‐1
.8

‐7
.5

1.
0

3.
5

‐1
2.
9

7.
7

2.
2

2.
8

Re
al 
Es
ta
te

‐2
5.
3

‐0
.8

‐2
2.
4

‐2
0.
4

‐2
7.
9

4.
1

4.
3

3.
2

4.
3

‐1
.6

‐4
3.
1

0.
2

5.
7

‐1
3.
3

0.
1

‐2
.3

‐4
.5

‐1
4.
9

0.
5

1.
7

‐1
3.
8

4.
8

1.
1

0.
6

Ca
sh

‐2
7.
0

‐1
.5

‐3
0.
6

‐2
1.
2

‐3
0.
3

1.
0

1.
4

2.
4

2.
1

‐9
.8

‐5
3.
2

‐1
6.
9

0.
1

‐1
8.
2

‐1
.1

‐9
.5

‐1
7.
0

‐2
4.
7

0.
3

0.
9

‐1
4.
6

2.
1

‐3
.9

‐4
.7



O
N
E 
YE

A
R
 E
N
D
IN

G
 D

EC
EM

B
ER

M
aj

or
 a

ss
et

 cl
as

s r
et

ur
ns

In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: M

or
ni
ng

st
ar
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

So
ur
ce
: M

or
ni
ng

st
ar
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

38

TE
N
 Y
EA

R
S 
EN

D
IN

G
 D

EC
EM

B
ER

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0

4.
5%6.

9%7.
7%8.
7%

13
.8
%

14
.3
%18

.4
%22

.0
%

22
.4
%25
.5
%

25
.8
%

26
.5
%

28
.5
%31
.5
%36

.4
%

‐5
%

5%
15

%
25

%
35

%

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Ag

en
cy
 In

te
rm

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Tr
ea
su
ry

 B
lo
om

be
rg
 C
om

m
od

ity

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Ag

g 
Bo

nd

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Cr
ed

it

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Co

rp
. H

ig
h 
Yi
el
d

 M
SC

I E
M

 M
SC

I E
AF

E

 R
us
se
ll 
20

00
 V
al
ue

 R
us
se
ll 
20

00

 W
ils
hi
re
 U
S 
RE

IT

 R
us
se
ll 
10

00
 V
al
ue

 R
us
se
ll 
20

00
 G
ro
w
th

 S
&
P 
50

0

 R
us
se
ll 
10

00
 G
ro
w
th

‐4
.7
%

2.
0%3.
1%3.
7%

3.
7%5.

3%5.
5%

7.
6%

10
.6
%

11
.8
%

11
.8
%

11
.9
%

13
.0
%

13
.6
%15
.2
%

‐1
0%

‐5
%

0%
5%

10
%

15
%

20
%

 B
lo
om

be
rg
 C
om

m
od

ity

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Ag

en
cy
 In

te
rm

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Tr
ea
su
ry

 M
SC

I E
M

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Ag

g 
Bo

nd

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Cr
ed

it

 M
SC

I E
AF

E

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Co

rp
. H

ig
h 
Yi
el
d

 R
us
se
ll 
20

00
 V
al
ue

 R
us
se
ll 
10

00
 V
al
ue

 R
us
se
ll 
20

00

 W
ils
hi
re
 U
S 
RE

IT

 R
us
se
ll 
20

00
 G
ro
w
th

 S
&
P 
50

0

 R
us
se
ll 
10

00
 G
ro
w
th



Q
4 
20

19

S&
P 

50
0 

se
ct

or
 re

tu
rn

s

In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: M

or
ni
ng

st
ar
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

So
ur
ce
: M

or
ni
ng

st
ar
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
9

39

O
N
E 
YE

A
R
 E
N
D
IN

G
 D

EC
EM

B
ER

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0

11
.8
%

20
.8
%24
.6
%

26
.3
%

27
.6
%

27
.9
%

29
.0
%

29
.4
%

31
.5
%

32
.1
%

32
.7
%

50
.3
%

‐1
0%

0%
10

%
20

%
30

%
40

%
50

%
60

%

 E
ne

rg
y

 H
ea
lth

 C
ar
e

 M
at
er
ia
ls

 U
til
iti
es

 C
on

su
m
er
 S
ta
pl
es

 C
on

su
m
er
 D
isc

re
tio

na
ry

 R
ea
l E
st
at
e

 In
du

st
ria

ls

 S
&
P 
50

0

 F
in
an

ci
al
s

 T
el
ec
om

 In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

‐0
.5
%

0.
8%

3.
5%4.
5%5.
5%5.
5%6.
4%

9.
0%

9.
1%10

.5
%

14
.4
%

14
.4
%

‐1
0%

‐5
%

0%
5%

10
%

15
%

20
%

 R
ea
l E
st
at
e

 U
til
iti
es

 C
on

su
m
er
 S
ta
pl
es

 C
on

su
m
er
 D
isc

re
tio

na
ry

 E
ne

rg
y

 In
du

st
ria

ls

 M
at
er
ia
ls

 T
el
ec
om

 S
&
P 
50

0

 F
in
an

ci
al
s

 H
ea
lth

 C
ar
e

 In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy



D
et

ai
le

d 
in

de
x 

re
tu

rn
s

In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: M

or
ni
ng

st
ar
, H

FR
, a

s o
f 1

2/
31

/1
9

40
1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0

DO
M
ES
TI
C 
EQ

U
IT
Y

FI
XE

D 
IN
CO

M
E

M
on

th
Q
TD

YT
D

1 
Ye

ar
3 
Ye

ar
5 
Ye

ar
10

 Y
ea

r
M
on

th
Q
TD

YT
D

1 
Ye

ar
3 
Ye

ar
5 
Ye

ar
10

 Y
ea

r

 C
or
e 
In
de

x
 B
ro
ad

 In
de

x

 S
&
P 
50

0
3.
0 

9.
1 

31
.5
 

31
.5
 

15
.3
 

11
.7
 

13
.6
 

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
   U
S   
TI
PS

0.
4 

0.
8 

8.
4 

8.
4 

3.
3 

2.
6 

3.
4 

 S
&
P 
50

0 
Eq

ua
l W

ei
gh

te
d

2.
8 

7.
6 

29
.2
 

29
.2
 

12
.4
 

9.
8 

13
.5
 

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Tr
ea
su
ry
 B
ill
s

0.
1 

0.
5 

2.
3 

2.
3 

1.
7 

1.
1 

0.
6 

 D
J I
nd

us
tr
ia
l A

ve
ra
ge

1.
9 

6.
7 

25
.3
 

25
.3
 

15
.7
 

12
.6
 

13
.4
 

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Ag

g 
Bo

nd
(0
.1
)

0.
2 

8.
7 

8.
7 

4.
0 

3.
0 

3.
7 

 R
us
se
ll 
To

p 
20

0
3.
1 

9.
8 

31
.8
 

31
.8
 

16
.2
 

12
.3
 

13
.7
 

 D
ur
at
io
n

 R
us
se
ll 
10

00
2.
9 

9.
0 

31
.4
 

31
.4
 

15
.0
 

11
.5
 

13
.5
 

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Tr
ea
su
ry
 1
‐3
 Y
r

0.
2 

0.
5 

3.
6 

3.
6 

1.
9 

1.
4 

1.
2 

 R
us
se
ll 
20

00
2.
9 

9.
9 

25
.5
 

25
.5
 

8.
6 

8.
2 

11
.8
 

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Tr
ea
su
ry
 L
on

g
(2
.8
)

(4
.1
)

14
.8
 

14
.8
 

6.
9 

4.
1 

7.
0 

 R
us
se
ll 
30

00
2.
9 

9.
1 

31
.0
 

31
.0
 

14
.6
 

11
.2
 

13
.4
 

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Tr
ea
su
ry

(0
.6
)

(0
.8
)

6.
9 

6.
9 

3.
3 

2.
4 

3.
1 

 R
us
se
ll 
M
id
 C
ap

2.
3 

7.
1 

30
.5
 

30
.5
 

12
.1
 

9.
3 

13
.2
 

 Is
su
er

 S
ty
le
 In

de
x

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
M
BS

0.
3 

0.
7 

6.
4 

6.
4 

3.
2 

2.
6 

3.
2 

 R
us
se
ll 
10

00
 G
ro
w
th

3.
0 

10
.6
 

36
.4
 

36
.4
 

20
.5
 

14
.6
 

15
.2
 

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Co

rp
. H

ig
h 
Yi
el
d

2.
0 

2.
6 

14
.3
 

14
.3
 

6.
4 

6.
1 

7.
6 

 R
us
se
ll 
10

00
 V
al
ue

2.
8 

7.
4 

26
.5
 

26
.5
 

9.
7 

8.
3 

11
.8
 

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Ag

en
cy
 In

te
rm

0.
1 

0.
3 

4.
5 

4.
5 

2.
4 

1.
9 

2.
0 

 R
us
se
ll 
20

00
 G
ro
w
th

2.
3 

11
.4
 

28
.5
 

28
.5
 

12
.5
 

9.
3 

13
.0
 

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Cr
ed

it
0.
3 

1.
1 

13
.8
 

13
.8
 

5.
8 

4.
4 

5.
3 

 R
us
se
ll 
20

00
 V
al
ue

3.
5 

8.
5 

22
.4
 

22
.4
 

4.
8 

7.
0 

10
.6
 

IN
TE
RN

AT
IO
N
AL

 E
Q
U
IT
Y

O
TH

ER
 B
ro
ad

 In
de

x
 In

de
x

 M
SC

I A
CW

I
3.
5 

9.
0 

26
.6
 

26
.6
 

12
.4
 

8.
4 

8.
8 

 B
lo
om

be
rg
 C
om

m
od

ity
5.
0 

4.
4 

7.
7 

7.
7 

(0
.9
)

(3
.9
)

(4
.7
)

 M
SC

I A
CW

I e
x 
U
S

4.
3 

8.
9 

21
.5
 

21
.5
 

9.
9 

5.
5 

5.
0 

 W
ils
hi
re
 U
S 
RE

IT
(0
.7
)

(1
.1
)

25
.8
 

25
.8
 

7.
6 

6.
9 

11
.9
 

 M
SC

I E
AF

E
3.
2 

8.
2 

22
.0
 

22
.0
 

9.
6 

5.
7 

5.
5 

 C
S 
Le
ve
ra
ge
d 
Lo
an

s
1.
6 

1.
7 

8.
2 

8.
2 

4.
5 

4.
5 

5.
2 

 M
SC

I E
M

7.
5 

11
.8
 

18
.4
 

18
.4
 

11
.6
 

5.
6 

3.
7 

 A
le
ria

n 
M
LP

8.
9 

(4
.6
)

6.
7 

6.
7 

(5
.0
)

(7
.0
)

4.
8 

 M
SC

I E
AF

E 
Sm

al
l C
ap

 
4.
4 

11
.5
 

25
.0
 

25
.0
 

10
.9
 

8.
9 

8.
7 

 R
eg

io
na

l I
nd

ex

 S
ty
le
 In

de
x

 JP
M
 E
M
BI
 G
lo
ba

l D
iv

2.
0 

1.
8 

15
.0
 

15
.0
 

6.
7 

6.
2 

6.
9 

 M
SC

I E
AF

E 
G
ro
w
th

2.
9 

8.
4 

27
.9
 

27
.9
 

12
.8
 

7.
7 

6.
9 

 JP
M
 G
BI
‐E
M
 G
lo
ba

l D
iv

4.
1 

5.
2 

13
.5
 

13
.5
 

7.
0 

2.
8 

2.
7 

 M
SC

I E
AF

E 
Va

lu
e

3.
7 

7.
8 

16
.1
 

16
.1
 

6.
3 

3.
5 

4.
0 

 H
ed

ge
 F
un

ds

 R
eg

io
na

l I
nd

ex
 H
FR

I C
om

po
si
te

1.
8 

3.
5 

10
.4
 

10
.4
 

4.
5 

3.
5 

4.
0 

 M
SC

I U
K

5.
2 

10
.0
 

21
.0
 

21
.0
 

8.
3 

3.
3 

5.
0 

 H
FR

I F
O
F 
Co

m
po

si
te

1.
3 

2.
5 

7.
8 

7.
8 

3.
7 

2.
2 

2.
8 

 M
SC

I J
ap

an
2.
1 

7.
6 

19
.6
 

19
.6
 

8.
9 

7.
7 

6.
6 

 C
ur
re
nc
y 
(S
po

t)

 M
SC

I E
ur
o

2.
9 

7.
9 

22
.9
 

22
.9
 

9.
1 

5.
1 

3.
7 

 E
ur
o

1.
8 

3.
0 

(1
.8
)

(1
.8
)

2.
1 

(1
.5
)

(2
.4
)

 M
SC

I E
M
 A
si
a

7.
1 

12
.5
 

19
.2
 

19
.2
 

12
.9
 

6.
6 

5.
8 

 P
ou

nd
2.
4 

7.
5 

4.
0 

4.
0 

2.
3 

(3
.2
)

(2
.0
)

 M
SC

I E
M
 L
at
in
 A
m
er
ic
an

10
.3
 

10
.5
 

17
.5
 

17
.5
 

10
.7
 

4.
2 

(0
.6
)

 Y
en

0.
8 

(0
.6
)

1.
0 

1.
0 

2.
4 

2.
0 

(1
.5
)



D
ef

in
iti

on
s

1s
t Q

ua
rt
er
 2
02

0
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

41

Bl
oo

m
be

rg
 U
S 
W
ee

kl
y 
Co

ns
um

er
 C
om

fo
rt
 In

de
x
‐t
ra
ck
s t
he

 p
ub

lic
’s
 e
co
no

m
ic
 a
tt
itu

de
s e

ac
h 
w
ee
k,
 p
ro
vi
di
ng

 a
 h
ig
h‐
fr
eq

ue
nc
y 
re
ad

 o
n 
co
ns
um

er
 s
en

tim
en

t. 
Th

e 
in
de

x,
 b
as
ed

 o
n 
ce
ll 
an

d 
la
nd

lin
e 
te
le
ph

on
e 
in
te
rv
ie
w
s 
w
ith

 a
 

ra
nd

om
, r
ep

re
se
nt
at
iv
e 
na

tio
na

l s
am

pl
e 
of
 U
.S
. a

du
lts
, t
ra
ck
s A

m
er
ic
an

s' 
ra
tin

gs
 o
f t
he

 n
at
io
na

l e
co
no

m
y,
 th

ei
r p

er
so
na

l f
in
an

ce
s 
an

d 
th
e 
bu

yi
ng

 c
lim

at
e 
on

 a
 w
ee
kl
y 
ba

sis
, w

ith
 v
ie
w
s 
of
 th

e 
ec
on

om
y’
s 
di
re
ct
io
n 
m
ea

su
re
d 

se
pa

ra
te
ly
 e
ac
h 
m
on

th
. (
w
w
w
.la

ng
er
re
se
ar
ch
.c
om

) 

U
ni
ve
rs
ity

 o
f M

ic
hi
ga

n 
Co

ns
um

er
 S
en

tim
en

t I
nd

ex
‐A

 su
rv
ey
 o
f c
on

su
m
er
 a
tt
itu

de
s c

on
ce
rn
in
g 
bo

th
 th

e 
pr
es
en

t s
itu

at
io
n 
as
 w
el
l a

s e
xp
ec
ta
tio

ns
 re

ga
rd
in
g 
ec
on

om
ic
 c
on

di
tio

ns
 c
on

du
ct
ed

 b
y 
th
e 
U
ni
ve
rs
ity

 o
f M

ic
hi
ga

n.
 F
or
 

th
e 
pr
el
im

in
ar
y 
re
le
as
e 
ap

pr
ox
im

at
el
y 
th
re
e 
hu

nd
re
d 
co
ns
um

er
s 
ar
e 
su
rv
ey
ed

 w
hi
le
 fi
ve
 h
un

dr
ed

 a
re
 in

te
rv
ie
w
ed

 fo
r t
he

 fi
na

l f
ig
ur
e.
 T
he

 le
ve
l o

f c
on

su
m
er
 s
en

tim
en

t i
s r
el
at
ed

 to
 th

e 
st
re
ng

th
 o
f c
on

su
m
er
 s
pe

nd
in
g.
 

(w
w
w
.B
lo
om

be
rg
.c
om

) 

N
FI
B 
Sm

al
l B

us
in
es
s 
O
ut
lo
ok

 ‐
Sm

al
l B

us
in
es
s 
Ec
on

om
ic
 T
re
nd

s (
SB

ET
) i
s a

 m
on

th
ly
 a
ss
es
sm

en
t o

f t
he

 U
.S
. s
m
al
l‐b

us
in
es
s 
ec
on

om
y 
an

d 
its
 n
ea

r‐
te
rm

 p
ro
sp
ec
ts
. I
ts
 d
at
a 
ar
e 
co
lle
ct
ed

 th
ro
ug

h 
m
ai
l s
ur
ve
ys
 to

 ra
nd

om
 s
am

pl
es
 

of
 th

e 
N
at
io
na

l F
ed

er
al
 o
f I
nd

ep
en

de
nt
 B
us
in
es
s 
(N
FI
B)
 m

em
be

rs
hi
p.
 T
he

 su
rv
ey
 c
on

ta
in
s 
th
re
e 
br
oa

d 
qu

es
tio

n 
ty
pe

s:
  r
ec
en

t p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
, n

ea
r‐
te
rm

 fo
re
ca
st
s,
 a
nd

 d
em

og
ra
ph

ic
s.
  T
he

 to
pi
cs
 a
dd

re
ss
ed

 in
cl
ud

e:
  o

ut
lo
ok
, 

sa
le
s,
 e
ar
ni
ng

s,
 e
m
pl
oy
m
en

t, 
em

pl
oy
ee
 c
om

pe
ns
at
io
n,
 in

ve
st
m
en

t, 
in
ve
nt
or
ie
s,
 c
re
di
t c

on
di
tio

ns
, a

nd
 s
in
gl
e 
m
os
t i
m
po

rt
an

t p
ro
bl
em

. (
ht
tp
:/
/w

w
w
.n
fib

‐s
be

t.o
rg
/a
bo

ut
/)

N
AH

B 
H
ou

si
ng

 M
ar
ke
t I
nd

ex
 –
th
e 
ho

us
in
g 
m
ar
ke
t i
nd

ex
 is
 a
 w
ei
gh

te
d 
av
er
ag

e 
of
 se

pa
ra
te
 d
iff
us
io
n 
in
du

ce
s 
fo
r t
hr
ee
 k
ey
 si
ng

le
‐fa

m
ily
 in

di
ce
s:
 m

ar
ke
t c

on
di
tio

ns
 fo

r t
he

 sa
le
 o
f n

ew
 h
om

es
 a
t t
he

 p
re
se
nt
 ti
m
e,
 m

ar
ke
t 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
fo
r t
he

 sa
le
 o
f n

ew
 h
om

es
 in

 th
e 
ne

xt
 si
x 
m
on

th
s,
 a
nd

 th
e 
tr
af
fic
 o
f p

ro
sp
ec
tiv

e 
bu

ye
rs
 o
f n

ew
 h
om

es
. T

he
 fi
rs
t t
w
o 
se
rie

s a
re
 ra

te
d 
on

 a
 sc

al
e 
of
 G
oo

d,
 F
ai
r, 
an

d 
Po

or
 a
nd

 th
e 
la
st
 is
 ra

te
d 
on

 a
 sc

al
e 
of
 H
ig
h/
Ve

ry
 

Hi
gh

, A
ve
ra
ge

, a
nd

 L
ow

/V
er
y 
Lo
w
. A

 d
iff
us
io
n 
in
de

x 
is 
ca
lc
ul
at
ed

 fo
r e

ac
h 
se
rie

s b
y 
ap

pl
yi
ng

 th
e 
fo
rm

ul
a 
“(
G
oo

d‐
Po

or
 +
 1
00

)/
2”
 to

 th
e 
pr
es
en

t a
nd

 fu
tu
re
 sa

le
s s

er
ie
s a

nd
 “
(H
ig
h/
Ve

ry
 H
ig
h‐
Lo
w
/V
er
y 
Lo
w
 +
 1
00

)/
2”
 to

 th
e 

tr
af
fic
 se

rie
s.
 E
ac
h 
re
su
lti
ng

 in
de

x 
is 
th
en

 se
as
on

al
ly
 a
dj
us
te
d 
an

d 
w
ei
gh

te
d 
to
 p
ro
du

ce
 th

e 
HM

I. 
Ba

se
d 
on

 th
is 
ca
lc
ul
at
io
n,
 th

e
HM

I c
an

 ra
ng

e 
be

tw
ee
n 
0 
an

d 
10

0.
 

N
ot

ic
es

 &
 d

is
cl

os
ur

es
Pa

st
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 is
 n
o 
gu

ar
an

te
e 
of
 fu

tu
re
 re

su
lts

. T
hi
s r
ep

or
t o

r p
re
se
nt
at
io
n 
is 
pr
ov
id
ed

 fo
r i
nf
or
m
at
io
na

l p
ur
po

se
s 
on

ly
 a
nd

 is
 d
ire

ct
ed

 to
 in
st
itu

tio
na

l c
lie
nt
s a

nd
 e
lig
ib
le
in
st
itu

tio
na

l c
ou

nt
er
pa

rt
ie
s 
on

ly
 a
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 
no

t 
be

 re
lie
d 
up

on
 b
y 
re
ta
il 
in
ve
st
or
s.
 N
ot
hi
ng

 h
er
ei
n 
co
ns
tit
ut
es
 in
ve
st
m
en

t, 
le
ga

l, 
ac
co
un

tin
g 
or
 ta

x 
ad

vi
ce
, o

r a
 re

co
m
m
en

da
tio

n 
to
 b
uy
, s
el
l o
r h

ol
d 
a 
se
cu
rit
y 
or
 p
ur
su
e 
a 
pa

rt
ic
ul
ar
 in

ve
st
m
en

t v
eh

ic
le
 o
r a

ny
 tr
ad

in
g 
st
ra
te
gy
. 

Th
e 
op

in
io
ns
 a
nd

 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
ex
pr
es
se
d 
ar
e 
cu
rr
en

t a
s o

f t
he

 d
at
e 
pr
ov
id
ed

 o
r c

ite
d 
on

ly
 a
nd

 a
re
 su

bj
ec
t t
o 
ch
an

ge
 w
ith

ou
t n

ot
ic
e.
 T
hi
s i
nf
or
m
at
io
n 
is 
ob

ta
in
ed

 fr
om

 s
ou

rc
es
 d
ee
m
ed

 re
lia

bl
e,
 b
ut
 th

er
e 
is 
no

 re
pr
es
en

ta
tio

n 
or
 w
ar
ra
nt
y 
as
 to

 it
s a

cc
ur
ac
y,
 c
om

pl
et
en

es
s 
or
 re

lia
bi
lit
y.
 V
er
us
 A
dv
iso

ry
 In

c.
 e
xp
re
ss
ly
 d
isc

la
im

 a
ny
 a
nd

 a
ll 
im

pl
ie
d 
w
ar
ra
nt
ie
s 
or
 o
rig

in
al
ity

, a
cc
ur
ac
y,
 c
om

pl
et
en

es
s,
 n
on

‐in
fr
in
ge

m
en

t, 
m
er
ch
an

ta
bi
lit
y 
an

d 
fit
ne

ss
 fo

r a
 

pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
 p
ur
po

se
.  
Th

is 
re
po

rt
 o
r p

re
se
nt
at
io
n 
ca
nn

ot
 b
e 
us
ed

 b
y 
th
e 
re
ci
pi
en

t f
or
 a
dv
er
tis
in
g 
or
 sa

le
s p

ro
m
ot
io
n 
pu

rp
os
es
.

Th
e 
m
at
er
ia
l m

ay
 in

cl
ud

e 
es
tim

at
es
, o

ut
lo
ok
s,
 p
ro
je
ct
io
ns
 a
nd

 o
th
er
 “
fo
rw

ar
d‐
lo
ok
in
g 
st
at
em

en
ts
.”
 S
uc
h 
st
at
em

en
ts
 c
an

 b
e 
id
en

tif
ie
d 
by
 th

e 
us
e 
of
 te

rm
in
ol
og

y 
su
ch
 a
s “

be
lie
ve
s,
” 
“e
xp
ec
ts
,”
 “
m
ay
,”
 “
w
ill
,”
 “
sh
ou

ld
,”
 

“a
nt
ic
ip
at
es
,”
 o
r t
he

 n
eg

at
iv
e 
of
 a
ny
 o
f t
he

 fo
re
go

in
g 
 o
r c

om
pa

ra
bl
e 
te
rm

in
ol
og

y,
 o
r b

y 
di
sc
us
sio

n 
of
 st
ra
te
gy
, o

r a
ss
um

pt
io
ns
 s
uc
h 
as
 e
co
no

m
ic
 c
on

di
tio

ns
 u
nd

er
ly
in
g 
ot
he

r s
ta
te
m
en

ts
. N

o 
as
su
ra
nc
e 
ca
n 
be

 g
iv
en

 th
at
 

fu
tu
re
 re

su
lts
 d
es
cr
ib
ed

 o
r i
m
pl
ie
d 
by
 a
ny
 fo

rw
ar
d 
lo
ok
in
g 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
w
ill
 b
e 
ac
hi
ev
ed

. A
ct
ua

l e
ve
nt
s m

ay
 d
iff
er
 s
ig
ni
fic
an

tly
 fr
om

 th
os
e 
pr
es
en

te
d.
 In

ve
st
in
g 
en

ta
ils
 ri
sk
s,
 in
cl
ud

in
g 
po

ss
ib
le
 lo

ss
 o
f p

rin
ci
pa

l. 
Ri
sk
 c
on

tr
ol
s 

an
d 
m
od

el
s 
do

 n
ot
 p
ro
m
ise

 a
ny
 le
ve
l o

f p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 o
r g

ua
ra
nt
ee
 a
ga

in
st
 lo

ss
 o
f p

rin
ci
pa

l. 
 

“V
ER

U
S 
AD

VI
SO

RY
™
 a
nd

 a
ny
 a
ss
oc
ia
te
d 
de

sig
ns
 a
re
 th

e 
re
sp
ec
tiv

e 
tr
ad

em
ar
ks
 o
f V

er
us
 A
dv
iso

ry
, I
nc
. 
Ad

di
tio

na
l i
nf
or
m
at
io
n 
is 
av
ai
la
bl
e 
up

on
 re

qu
es
t. 

is 
a 
re
gi
st
er
ed

 tr
ad

em
ar
k 
of
 V
er
us
 A
dv
iso

ry
, I
nc
.



In
ve

st
m

en
t P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 R

ev
ie

w
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
:  

De
ce

m
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n



Po
rtf

ol
io

 R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n

  
La

st
 T

hr
ee

Mo
nt

hs
Ye

ar
-T

o-
Da

te

_

Be
gin

nin
g 

Ma
rk

et
 V

alu
e

$9
,1

12
,5

46
,4

95
$8

,2
55

,8
73

,3
07

Ne
t C

as
h 

Flo
w

-$
92

,5
88

,7
60

-$
75

,2
40

,7
68

Ne
t I

nv
es

tm
en

t C
ha

ng
e

$3
70

,2
30

,3
01

$1
,2

09
,5

55
,4

98

En
din

g 
Ma

rke
t V

alu
e

$9
,3

90
,1

88
,0

36
$9

,3
90

,1
88

,0
36

_

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

an
d
w
ith

dr
aw

al
s
m
ay

in
cl
ud

e
in
tra

-a
cc

ou
nt

tra
ns

fe
rs

be
tw

ee
n
m
an

ag
er
s/
fu
nd

s.

To
ta

l F
un

d
Po

rt
fo

lio
 R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
2



To
ta

l F
un

d
A

ss
et

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
H

is
to

ry
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

P
ol
ic
y
re
fle

ct
s
FF

P
4-
Y
ra

llo
ca

tio
ns

ap
pr
ov

ed
in

Ju
ne

20
19

.

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
3



Al
lo

ca
tio

n 
vs

. C
ur

re
nt

 T
ar

ge
ts

Cu
rre

nt
Ba

lan
ce

Cu
rre

nt
Al

loc
at

ion
Cu

rre
nt

Ta
rg

et
Di

ffe
re

nc
e

_

Gr
ow

th
$6

,4
97

,1
35

,4
06

69
.2

%
68

.0
%

$1
11

,8
07

,5
41

Liq
uid

ity
$1

,9
56

,1
49

,3
26

20
.8

%
24

.0
%

-$
29

7,
49

5,
80

3
Di

ve
rsi

fyi
ng

$7
28

,6
11

,6
54

7.
8%

8.
0%

-$
22

,6
03

,3
89

Ca
sh

 &
 O

ve
rla

y
$2

08
,2

91
,6

50
2.

2%
--

$2
08

,2
91

,6
50

To
ta

l
$9

,3
90

,1
88

,0
36

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

XX
XX

X

To
ta

l F
un

d
A

ss
et

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
vs

. L
on

g 
Te

rm
 T

ar
ge

t P
ol

ic
y

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Al
lo

ca
tio

n 
vs

. L
on

g 
Te

rm
 T

ar
ge

t
Cu

rre
nt

Ba
lan

ce
Cu

rre
nt

Al
loc

at
ion

Lo
ng

 T
er

m
Ta

rg
et

Di
ffe

re
nc

e
_

Gr
ow

th
$6

,4
97

,1
35

,4
06

69
.2

%
66

.0
%

$2
99

,6
11

,3
02

Liq
uid

ity
$1

,9
56

,1
49

,3
26

20
.8

%
24

.0
%

-$
29

7,
49

5,
80

3
Di

ve
rsi

fyi
ng

$7
28

,6
11

,6
54

7.
8%

10
.0

%
-$

21
0,

40
7,

14
9

Ca
sh

 &
 O

ve
rla

y
$2

08
,2

91
,6

50
2.

2%
--

$2
08

,2
91

,6
50

To
ta

l
$9

,3
90

,1
88

,0
36

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

XX
XX

X

Lo
ng

Te
rm

Ta
rg
et
s
re
fle

ct
FF

P
4-
Y
ra

llo
ca

tio
ns

ap
pr
ov

ed
in

Ju
ne

20
19

.
C
ur
re
nt

Ta
rg
et
s
re
fle

ct
ta
rg
et
s
ap

pr
ov

ed
in

Ju
ne

20
19

.

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
4



To
ta

l F
un

d
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
(N

et
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

P
ol
ic
y
In
de

x
(7
/1
/2
01

9-
P
re
se
nt
):
10

%
R
us
se
ll
30

00
,1

8%
M
S
C
IA

C
W
Ie

x-
U
S
(G

ro
ss
),
11
%

M
S
C
IA

C
W
I(
N
et
),
24

%
B
B
gB

ar
c
1-
3
Y
rG

ov
/C
re
di
t,
3.
5%

B
B
gB

ar
c
U
S
A
gg

re
ga

te
,2

%
B
B
gB

ar
c
G
lo
ba

lA
gg

re
ga

te
,5

%
IC
E
B
of
A
M
L
H
ig
h
Yi
el
d
M
as
te
r

II
+2

%
,2

%
IC
E
B
of
A
M
L
H
ig
h
Yi
el
d
M
as
te
rI
I,
1%

W
ils
hi
re

R
E
IT
,1

.6
%

N
C
R
E
IF

P
ro
pe

rty
In
de

x,
6.
4%

N
C
R
E
IF

O
D
C
E
In
de

x,
2.
0%

C
P
I+

4%
,1
1%

S
&
P
50

0
+4

%
(L
ag

ge
d)
,2

.5
%

H
FR

IE
H
E
qu

ity
M
ar
ke
tN

eu
tra

l. 
P
ol
ic
y
In
de

x
(7
/1
/2
01

8-
6/
30

/2
01

9)
:1
1%

R
us
se
ll
30

00
,1

9%
M
S
C
IA

C
W
Ie

x-
U
S
(G

ro
ss
),
11
%

M
S
C
IA

C
W
I(
N
et
),
23

%
B
B
gB

ar
c
1-
3
Y
rG

ov
/C
re
di
t,
3.
5%

B
B
gB

ar
c
U
S
A
gg

re
ga

te
,2

%
B
B
gB

ar
c
G
lo
ba

lA
gg

re
ga

te
,4

%
IC
E
B
of
A
M
L
H
ig
h
Yi
el
d
M
as
te
rI
I+

2%
,

2%
IC
E
B
of
A
M
L
H
ig
h
Yi
el
d
M
as
te
rI
I,
1%

W
ils
hi
re

R
E
IT
,1

.8
%

N
C
R
E
IF

P
ro
pe

rty
In
de

x,
7.
2%

N
C
R
E
IF

O
D
C
E
In
de

x,
2.
0%

C
P
I+

4%
,1

0%
S
&
P
50

0
+4

%
(L
ag

ge
d)
,2

.5
%

H
FR

IE
H
E
qu

ity
M
ar
ke
tN

eu
tra

l. 
P
ol
ic
y
In
de

x
(1
0/
1/
20

17
-6
/3
0/
20

18
):

16
.3
%

R
us
se
ll
30

00
,1

8.
8%

M
S
C
IA

C
W
Ie

x-
U
S
(G

ro
ss
),
8.
6%

M
S
C
IA

C
W
I(
N
et
),
25

%
B
B
gB

ar
c
1-
3
Y
rG

ov
/C
re
di
t,
3.
5%

B
B
gB

ar
c
U
S
A
gg

re
ga

te
,1

.9
%

IC
E
B
of
A
M
L
H
ig
h
Yi
el
d
M
as
te
rI
I+

2%
,4

.3
%

IC
E
B
of
A
M
L
H
ig
h
Yi
el
d
M
as
te
rI
I,
1%

W
ils
hi
re

R
E
IT
,1

.6
%

N
C
R
E
IF

P
ro
pe

rty
In
de

x,
6.
4%

N
C
R
E
IF

O
D
C
E
In
de

x,
2.
5%

C
P
I+

4%
,1

0.
1%

S
&
P
50

0
+4

%
(L
ag

ge
d)
.P

ol
ic
y
In
de

x
(1
/1
/2
01

7-
9/
30

/2
01

7)
:2

2.
9%

R
us
se
ll
30

00
,1
1%

M
S
C
IA

C
W
Ie

x-
U
S
(G

ro
ss
),
10

.9
%

M
S
C
IA

C
W
I(
N
et
),

22
.4
%

B
B
gB

ar
c
1-
3
Y
rG

ov
/C
re
di
t,
3.
2%

B
B
gB

ar
c
U
S
A
gg

re
ga

te
,1

.7
%

IC
E
B
of
A
M
L
H
ig
h
Yi
el
d
M
as
te
rI
I+

2%
,5

.1
%

IC
E
B
of
A
M
L
H
ig
h
Yi
el
d
M
as
te
rI
I,
1%

W
ils
hi
re

R
E
IT
,1

.7
%

N
C
R
E
IF

P
ro
pe

rty
In
de

x,
6.
8%

N
C
R
E
IF

O
D
C
E
In
de

x,
3.
6%

C
P
I

+4
%
,8

.1
%

S
&
P
50

0
+4

%
(L
ag

ge
d)
,1

.6
%

90
-d
ay

T-
B
ill
s.
P
ol
ic
y
In
de

x
(4
/1
/2
01

2-
12

/3
1/
16

):
27

.7
%

R
us
se
ll
30

00
,1

0.
6%

M
S
C
IA

C
W
Ie

x-
U
S
(G

ro
ss
),
12

.3
%

M
S
C
IA

C
W
I(
N
et
),
19

.6
%

B
B
gB

ar
c
U
.S
.A

gg
re
ga

te
,5

%
IC
E
B
of
A
M
L
H
ig
h
Yi
el
d
M
as
te
r

II,
4%

B
B
gB

ar
c
G
lo
ba

lA
gg

re
ga

te
,5

.4
%

W
ils
hi
re

R
E
IT
,6

.7
5%

N
C
R
E
IF

P
ro
pe

rty
In
de

x,
1.
35

%
FT

S
E
/E
P
R
A
N
A
R
E
IT

D
ev
el
op

ed
ex
U
S
,6

.8
%

S
&
P
50

0
+4

%
(L
ag

ge
d)
,0

.5
%

91
-D
ay

T-
B
ill
s.
P
ol
ic
y
In
de

x
(4
/1
/2
01
1-
3/
31

/2
01

2)
:3

1%
R
us
se
ll
30

00
,

10
.4
%

M
S
C
IE

A
FE

(G
ro
ss
),
9.
6%

M
S
C
IA

C
W
I(
N
et
),
25

%
B
B
gB

ar
c
U
.S
.A

gg
re
ga

te
,3

%
IC
E
B
of
A
M
L
H
ig
h
Yi
el
d
M
as
te
rI
I,
4%

B
B
gB

ar
c
G
lo
ba

lA
gg

re
ga

te
,8

.4
%

W
ils
hi
re

R
E
IT
,3

.1
%

N
C
R
E
IF

P
ro
pe

rty
In
de

x,
5%

S
&
P
50

0
+4

%
(L
ag

ge
d)
,0

.5
%

91
-D
ay

T-
B
ill
s.
P
ol
ic
y
In
de

x
(4
/1
/2
01

0-
3/
31

/2
01
1)
:3

5.
6%

R
us
se
ll
30

00
,1

0.
4%

M
S
C
IE

A
FE

(G
ro
ss
),
5%

M
S
C
IA

C
W
I(
N
et
),
25

%
B
B
gB

ar
c
U
.S
.A

gg
re
ga

te
,3

%
IC
E
B
of
A
M
L
H
ig
h
Yi
el
d
M
as
te
rI
I,
4%

B
B
gB

ar
c
G
lo
ba

lA
gg

re
ga

te
,8

.4
%

W
ils
hi
re

R
E
IT
,3

.1
%

N
C
R
E
IF

P
ro
pe

rty
In
de

x,
5%

S
&
P
50

0
+4

%
(L
ag

ge
d)
,0

.5
%

91
-D
ay

T-
B
ill
s.
 P

ol
ic
y
In
de

x
(7
/1
/2
00

9-
3/
31

/2
01

0)
:4

0.
6%

R
us
se
ll
30

00
,1

0.
4%

M
S
C
IE

A
FE

(G
ro
ss
),
25

%
B
B
gB

ar
c
U
.S
.A

gg
re
ga

te
,3

%
IC
E
B
of
A
M
L
H
ig
h
Yi
el
d
M
as
te
rI
I,

4%
B
B
gB

ar
c
G
lo
ba

lA
gg

re
ga

te
,8

.4
%

W
ils
hi
re

R
E
IT
,3

.1
%

N
C
R
E
IF

P
ro
pe

rty
In
de

x,
5%

S
&
P
50

0
+4

%
(L
ag

ge
d)
,0

.5
%

91
-D
ay

T-
B
ill
s.

       

%
 o

f P
or

tfo
lio

QT
D

1 
Yr

3 
Yr

s
5 

Yr
s

10
 Y

rs
20

19
20

18
20

17
20

16
20

15
_

To
ta

l F
un

d
10

0.
0

4.
1

14
.6

8.
3

6.
8

8.
5

14
.6

-2
.7

13
.9

6.
9

2.
1

Po
lic

y I
nd

ex
 

4.
3

14
.6

8.
9

7.
2

9.
1

14
.6

-0
.9

13
.7

8.
9

0.
6

Gr
ow

th
69

.2
5.

5
18

.4
10

.5
8.

2
--

18
.4

-3
.9

18
.7

7.
6

2.
3

Cu
sto

m
 G

ro
wt

h 
Be

nc
hm

ar
k

 
6.

1
19

.3
11

.7
9.

0
--

19
.3

-2
.1

19
.3

10
.1

0.
3

Di
ve

rs
ify

in
g

7.
8

0.
5

6.
8

2.
3

1.
2

2.
3

6.
8

-2
.3

2.
6

0.
8

-1
.8

Cu
sto

m
 D

ive
rs

ify
ing

 B
en

ch
m

ar
k

 
0.

5
6.

1
4.

0
3.

7
4.

1
6.

1
1.

4
4.

7
4.

1
2.

5

Li
qu

id
ity

20
.8

0.
5

4.
8

2.
6

--
--

4.
8

1.
7

1.
4

--
--

BB
gB

ar
c U

S 
Go

vt/
Cr

ed
it 1

-3
 Y

r. 
TR

 
0.

6
4.

0
2.

1
--

--
4.

0
1.

6
0.

8
--

--
XX

XX
X

*C
or
re
la
tio

n
be

tw
ee

n
th
e
G
ro
w
th

an
d
D
iv
er
si
fy
in
g
co

m
po

si
te
s
is
.1
0,

.2
4

an
d
.2
6
ov

er
th
e
pr
ev

io
us

1,
3
an

d
5
ye

ar
pe

rio
ds

re
sp

ec
tiv
el
y.

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
5



To
ta

l F
un

d
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
(N

et
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

3 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

n 
Ex

ce
ss

BM
 R

et
ur

n

An
lzd

St
an

da
rd

De
via

tio
n

An
lzd

 A
lph

a
Be

ta
Tr

ac
kin

g 
Er

ro
r

R-
Sq

ua
re

d
Sh

ar
pe

 R
at

io
In

fo
rm

at
ion

Ra
tio

Up
 M

kt
Ca

pt
ur

e 
Ra

tio
Do

wn
 M

kt
Ca

pt
ur

e 
Ra

tio
_

To
ta

l F
un

d
8.

29
%

-0
.5

8%
5.

31
%

-0
.9

0%
1.

04
1.

61
%

0.
91

1.
25

-0
.3

6
97

.4
9%

10
7.

25
%

XX
XX

X

5 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

n 
Ex

ce
ss

BM
 R

et
ur

n

An
lzd

St
an

da
rd

De
via

tio
n

An
lzd

 A
lph

a
Be

ta
Tr

ac
kin

g 
Er

ro
r

R-
Sq

ua
re

d
Sh

ar
pe

 R
at

io
In

fo
rm

at
ion

Ra
tio

Up
 M

kt
Ca

pt
ur

e 
Ra

tio
Do

wn
 M

kt
Ca

pt
ur

e 
Ra

tio
_

To
ta

l F
un

d
6.

75
%

-0
.4

2%
5.

47
%

0.
30

%
0.

90
1.

80
%

0.
90

1.
04

-0
.2

3
89

.3
9%

89
.2

7%

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
6



To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 S

um
m

ar
y 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

In
di
vi
du

al
cl
os

ed
en

d
fu
nd

s
ar
e
no

ts
ho

w
n
in

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
su

m
m
ar
y
ta
bl
e.

A
Q
R
G
lo
ba

lR
is
k
P
re
m
iu
m

fu
nd

ed
1/
18

/2
01

9.
 P

an
A
go

ra
R
is
k
P
ar
ity

fu
nd

ed
 3

/1
5/
20

19
. 
E
ffe

ct
iv
e
1/
01

/2
01

7,
on

ly
tra

di
tio

na
la

ss
et

cl
as

s
(p
ub

lic
eq

ui
ty
,p

ub
lic

fix
ed

in
co

m
e,

R
E
IT
s)

in
ve

st
m
en

tm
an

ag
em

en
tf
ee

s
w
ill
be

in
cl
ud

ed
in

th
e
gr
os

s
of

fe
e
re
tu
rn

ca
lc
ul
at
io
n.
 E

ffe
ct
iv
e
7/
1/
20

18
,P

riv
at
e
C
re
di
ta

nd
P
riv

at
e
E
qu

ity
da

ta
pr
ov

id
ed

by
S
te
pS

to
ne

G
ro
up

.

Ma
rk

et
 V

alu
e

%
 o

f
Po

rtf
oli

o
3 

Mo
1 

Yr
3 

Yr
s

5 
Yr

s
10

 Y
rs

20
19

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

To
ta

l F
un

d
9,

39
0,

18
8,

03
6

10
0.

0
4.

1
14

.9
8.

6
7.

1
9.

1
14

.9
-2

.5
14

.2
7.

4
2.

7
Po

lic
y I

nd
ex

4.
3

14
.6

8.
9

7.
2

9.
1

14
.6

-0
.9

13
.7

8.
9

0.
6

In
vM

et
ric

s P
ub

lic
 D

B 
> 

$1
B 

Gr
os

s R
an

k
76

89
73

35
14

89
25

83
74

5
To

ta
l F

un
d 

ex
 O

ve
rla

y 
& 

Ca
sh

9,
18

1,
89

6,
38

6
97

.8
4.

1
14

.7
8.

6
7.

2
9.

1
14

.7
-2

.1
14

.1
7.

4
2.

7
Po

lic
y I

nd
ex

4.
3

14
.6

8.
9

7.
2

9.
1

14
.6

-0
.9

13
.7

8.
9

0.
6

In
vM

et
ric

s P
ub

lic
 D

B 
> 

$1
B 

Gr
os

s R
an

k
78

90
70

34
13

90
20

84
74

5
Gr

ow
th

6,
49

7,
13

5,
40

6
69

.2
5.

6
18

.7
10

.9
8.

7
--

18
.7

-3
.6

19
.1

8.
1

3.
0

6.
1

19
.3

11
.7

9.
0

--
19

.3
-2

.1
19

.3
10

.1
0.

3
Cu

sto
m

 G
ro

wt
h 

Be
nc

hm
ar

k 
To

ta
l D

om
es

tic
 E

qu
ity

1,0
19

,48
8,9

11
10

.9
7.2

26
.7

13
.4

10
.4

13
.4

26
.7

-7
.2

23
.9

11
.5

1.1
Ru

ss
ell

 3
00

0
9.

1
31

.0
14

.6
11

.2
13

.4
31

.0
-5

.2
21

.1
12

.7
0.

5
In

vM
et

ric
s P

ub
lic

 D
B 

US
 E

q 
Gr

os
s R

an
k

89
88

58
64

34
88

78
6

77
21

Bl
ac

kR
oc

k R
us

se
ll 1

00
0 

In
de

x
20

4,
60

4,
00

6
2.

2
9.

0
31

.4
--

--
--

31
.4

-4
.8

--
--

--
Ru

ss
ell

 1
00

0
9.

0
31

.4
--

--
--

31
.4

-4
.8

--
--

--
eV

 U
S 

La
rg

e 
Ca

p 
Eq

uit
y G

ro
ss

 R
an

k
40

38
--

--
--

38
47

--
--

--
Ja

ck
so

n 
Sq

ua
re

 P
ar

tn
er

s
24

4,
26

9,
95

2
2.

6
5.

7
27

.9
17

.4
10

.4
14

.0
27

.9
-2

.0
29

.3
-4

.4
6.

1
Ru

ss
ell

 1
00

0 
Gr

ow
th

10
.6

36
.4

20
.5

14
.6

15
.2

36
.4

-1
.5

30
.2

7.
1

5.
7

eV
 U

S 
La

rg
e 

Ca
p 

Gr
ow

th
 E

qu
ity

 G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

96
93

79
94

67
93

59
47

98
37

Bo
sto

n 
Pa

rtn
er

s
25

1,
08

0,
50

1
2.

7
8.

1
24

.3
10

.9
8.

5
12

.4
24

.3
-8

.7
20

.1
15

.1
-3

.9
Ru

ss
ell

 1
00

0 
Va

lue
7.

4
26

.5
9.

7
8.

3
11

.8
26

.5
-8

.3
13

.7
17

.3
-3

.8
eV

 U
S 

La
rg

e 
Ca

p 
Va

lue
 E

qu
ity

 G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

43
77

50
60

41
77

55
23

50
65

Em
er

ald
 A

dv
ise

rs
15

9,
00

9,
46

1
1.

7
11

.1
30

.3
14

.7
11

.6
15

.7
30

.3
-1

0.
1

28
.8

10
.1

4.
1

Ru
ss

ell
 2

00
0 

Gr
ow

th
11

.4
28

.5
12

.5
9.

3
13

.0
28

.5
-9

.3
22

.2
11

.3
-1

.4
eV

 U
S 

Sm
all

 C
ap

 G
ro

wt
h 

Eq
uit

y G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

32
45

64
52

28
45

85
26

54
19

Ce
re

de
x

16
0,

52
4,

99
3

1.
7

2.
6

18
.4

5.
3

7.
7

--
18

.4
-1

1.
3

11
.4

29
.8

-4
.4

Ru
ss

ell
 2

00
0 

Va
lue

8.
5

22
.4

4.
8

7.
0

--
22

.4
-1

2.
9

7.
8

31
.7

-7
.5

eV
 U

S 
Sm

all
 C

ap
 V

alu
e 

Eq
uit

y G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

99
86

56
48

--
86

25
48

32
52

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
7



In
di
vi
du

al
cl
os

ed
en

d
fu
nd

s
ar
e
no

ts
ho

w
n
in

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
su

m
m
ar
y
ta
bl
e.
 A
Q
R
G
lo
ba

lR
is
k
P
re
m
iu
m

fu
nd

ed
1/
18

/2
01

9.
 P

an
A
go

ra
R
is
k
P
ar
ity

fu
nd

ed
 3

/1
5/
20

19
. 
E
ffe

ct
iv
e
1/
01

/2
01

7,
on

ly
tra

di
tio

na
la

ss
et

cl
as

s
(p
ub

lic
eq

ui
ty
,p

ub
lic

fix
ed

in
co

m
e,

R
E
IT
s)

in
ve

st
m
en

tm
an

ag
em

en
tf
ee

s
w
ill
be

in
cl
ud

ed
in

th
e
gr
os

s
of

fe
e
re
tu
rn

ca
lc
ul
at
io
n.
 E

ffe
ct
iv
e
7/
1/
20

18
,P

riv
at
e
C
re
di
ta

nd
P
riv

at
e
E
qu

ity
da

ta
pr
ov

id
ed

by
S
te
pS

to
ne

G
ro
up

.

Ma
rk

et
 V

alu
e

%
 o

f
Po

rtf
oli

o
3 

Mo
1 

Yr
3 

Yr
s

5 
Yr

s
10

 Y
rs

20
19

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

To
ta

l In
te

rn
at

io
na

l E
qu

ity
1,7

16
,18

5,1
80

18
.3

10
.9

23
.7

10
.0

5.9
6.0

23
.7 

-1
4.3

25
.5

1.2
-1

.2
M

SC
I A

CW
I e

x U
SA

 G
ro

ss
9.

0
22

.1
10

.4
6.

0
5.

4
22

.1
-1

3.
8

27
.8

5.
0

-5
.3

M
SC

I E
AF

E 
Gr

os
s

8.
2

22
.7

10
.1

6.
2

6.
0

22
.7

-1
3.

4
25

.6
1.

5
-0

.4
In

vM
et

ric
s P

ub
lic

 D
B 

ex
-U

S 
Eq

 G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

8
28

51
56

57
28

44
90

89
28

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l E
qu

ity
98

6,0
03

,55
3

10
.5

9.7
27

.0
11

.2
6.6

6.3
27

.0 
-1

3.6
25

.3
1.2

-1
.2

M
SC

I A
CW

I e
x U

SA
 G

ro
ss

9.
0

22
.1

10
.4

6.
0

5.
4

22
.1

-1
3.

8
27

.8
5.

0
-5

.3
In

vM
et

ric
s P

ub
lic

 D
B 

ex
-U

S 
Eq

 G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

55
6

22
35

44
6

21
93

89
28

Py
rfo

rd
48

5,
67

1,
94

8
5.

2
8.

4
22

.1
9.

5
5.

7
--

22
.1

-1
0.

1
19

.8
3.

4
-2

.9
M

SC
I A

CW
I e

x U
SA

 V
alu

e
8.

2
15

.7
6.

9
3.

6
--

15
.7

-1
4.

0
22

.7
8.

9
-1

0.
1

eV
 A

CW
I e

x-
US

 V
alu

e 
Eq

uit
y G

ro
ss

 R
an

k
91

36
27

42
--

36
5

84
74

59
W

illi
am

 B
lai

r
50

0,
33

1,
60

4
5.

3
11

.0
32

.0
12

.9
7.

3
--

32
.0

-1
6.

8
30

.9
-1

.4
0.

5
M

SC
I A

CW
I e

x U
SA

 G
ro

wt
h

9.
6

27
.3

12
.9

7.
3

--
27

.3
-1

4.
4

32
.0

0.
1

-1
.3

eV
 A

CW
I e

x-
US

 G
ro

wt
h 

Eq
uit

y G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

38
42

78
86

--
42

69
81

55
69

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

 E
qu

ity
73

0,1
81

,62
7

7.8
12

.5
19

.4
--

--
--

19
.4 

-1
5.3

--
--

--
M

SC
I E

m
er

gin
g 

M
ar

ke
ts

11
.8

18
.4

--
--

--
18

.4
-1

4.
6

--
--

--
In

vM
et

ric
s P

ub
lic

 D
B 

Em
g 

M
kt 

Eq
 G

ro
ss

 R
an

k
4

27
--

--
--

27
51

--
--

--
PI

MC
O 

RA
E 

Em
er

gin
g 

M
ar

ke
ts

36
9,

29
9,

18
5

3.
9

11
.2

14
.6

--
--

--
14

.6
-1

2.
3

--
--

--
M

SC
I E

m
er

gin
g 

M
ar

ke
ts

11
.8

18
.4

--
--

--
18

.4
-1

4.
6

--
--

--
eV

 E
m

g 
M

kts
 E

qu
ity

 G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

54
82

--
--

--
82

19
--

--
--

TT
 E

me
rg

ing
 M

ar
ke

ts
36

0,
88

2,
44

2
3.

8
13

.9
24

.8
--

--
--

24
.8

-1
8.

4
--

--
--

M
SC

I E
m

er
gin

g 
M

ar
ke

ts
11

.8
18

.4
--

--
--

18
.4

-1
4.

6
--

--
--

9
23

--
--

--
23

83
--

--
--

eV
 E

m
g 

M
kts

 E
qu

ity
 G

ro
ss

 R
an

k 
To

ta
l G

lo
ba

l E
qu

ity
79

4,3
34

,97
7

8.5
7.3

28
.9

13
.7

10
.1

8.2
28

.9
-7

.8
23

.7
7.6

2.2
M

SC
I A

CW
I

9.
0

26
.6

12
.4

8.
4

8.
8

26
.6

-9
.4

24
.0

7.
9

-2
.4

In
vM

et
ric

s P
ub

lic
 D

B 
Gl

bl 
Eq

 G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

77
1

43
1

11
1

60
79

40
16

Ar
tis

an
 P

ar
tn

er
s

40
4,

02
4,

93
6

4.
3

9.
7

37
.0

18
.8

14
.1

--
37

.0
-7

.9
32

.9
5.

6
9.

2
M

SC
I A

CW
I

9.
0

26
.6

12
.4

8.
4

--
26

.6
-9

.4
24

.0
7.

9
-2

.4
eV

 A
ll G

lob
al 

Eq
uit

y G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

31
7

10
5

--
7

40
11

61
4

Fir
st 

Ea
gle

39
0,

14
3,

02
7

4.
2

4.
9

21
.0

8.
8

7.
6

--
21

.0
-7

.6
15

.1
11

.7
0.

2
M

SC
I A

CW
I

9.
0

26
.6

12
.4

8.
4

--
26

.6
-9

.4
24

.0
7.

9
-2

.4
eV

 A
ll G

lob
al 

Eq
uit

y G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

89
82

85
71

--
82

38
89

19
49

To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 S

um
m

ar
y 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
8



In
di
vi
du

al
cl
os

ed
en

d
fu
nd

s
ar
e
no

ts
ho

w
n
in

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
su

m
m
ar
y
ta
bl
e.

A
Q
R
G
lo
ba

lR
is
k
P
re
m
iu
m

fu
nd

ed
1/
18

/2
01

9.
 P

an
A
go

ra
R
is
k
P
ar
ity

fu
nd

ed
 3

/1
5/
20

19
. 
E
ffe

ct
iv
e
1/
01

/2
01

7,
on

ly
tra

di
tio

na
la

ss
et

cl
as

s
(p
ub

lic
eq

ui
ty
,p

ub
lic

fix
ed

in
co

m
e,

R
E
IT
s)

in
ve

st
m
en

tm
an

ag
em

en
tf
ee

s
w
ill
be

in
cl
ud

ed
in

th
e
gr
os

s
of

fe
e
re
tu
rn

ca
lc
ul
at
io
n.
 E

ffe
ct
iv
e
7/
1/
20

18
,P

riv
at
e
C
re
di
ta

nd
P
riv

at
e
E
qu

ity
da

ta
pr
ov

id
ed

by
S
te
pS

to
ne

G
ro
up

.

Ma
rk

et
 V

alu
e

%
 o

f
Po

rtf
oli

o
3 

Mo
1 

Yr
3 

Yr
s

5 
Yr

s
10

 Y
rs

20
19

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

Pr
iva

te
 C

re
di

t
53

9,1
05

,45
5

5.7
1.7

7.7
8.8

9.5
13

.9
7.7

8.3
10

.4
8.2

12
.9

3.
1

16
.7

8.
5

8.
3

9.
6

16
.7

-0
.3

9.
6

19
.8

-2
.7

IC
E 

Bo
fA

M
L 

Hi
gh

 Y
iel

d 
M

as
te

r I
I +

2%
To

ta
l H

ig
h 

Yi
eld

20
8,8

23
,86

7
2.2

2.7
16

.0
6.2

5.7
7.3

16
.0

-3
.2

6.5
14

.3
-3

.5
IC

E 
Bo

fA
M

L 
Hi

gh
 Y

iel
d 

M
as

te
r I

I
2.

6
14

.4
6.

3
6.

1
7.

5
14

.4
-2

.3
7.

5
17

.5
-4

.6
eV

 U
S 

Hi
gh

 Y
iel

d 
Fi

xe
d 

In
c G

ro
ss

 R
an

k
37

15
66

68
70

15
88

74
47

68
Al

lia
nz

 G
lob

al 
In

ve
sto

rs
20

8,
82

3,
86

7
2.

2
2.

7
16

.0
6.

2
5.

7
7.

3
16

.0
-3

.2
6.

5
14

.3
-3

.5
IC

E 
Bo

fA
M

L 
Hi

gh
 Y

iel
d 

M
as

te
r I

I
2.

6
14

.4
6.

3
6.

1
7.

5
14

.4
-2

.3
7.

5
17

.5
-4

.6
37

15
66

68
70

15
88

74
47

68
eV

 U
S 

Hi
gh

 Y
iel

d 
Fi

xe
d 

In
c G

ro
ss

 R
an

k 
To

ta
l R

ea
l E

st
at

e
71

4,0
60

,16
5

7.6
1.0

8.1
8.9

9.1
12

.4
8.1

7.4
11

.1
5.5

13
.5

Re
al 

Es
ta

te
 B

en
ch

m
ar

k
1.

2
7.

7
7.

2
7.

3
10

.6
7.

7
6.

7
7.

1
6.

7
8.

3
NC

RE
IF

-O
DC

E
1.

5
5.

3
7.

1
9.

0
11

.4
5.

3
8.

3
7.

6
8.

8
15

.0
NC

RE
IF

 P
ro

pe
rty

 In
de

x
1.

6
6.

4
6.

7
8.

2
10

.2
6.

4
6.

7
7.

0
8.

0
13

.3
Ad

ela
nt

e
80

,2
05

,3
71

0.
9

-0
.7

28
.2

9.
5

7.
5

12
.8

28
.2

-5
.0

7.
8

4.
1

5.
1

-1
.1

25
.8

7.
6

6.
9

11
.9

25
.8

-4
.8

4.
2

7.
2

4.
2

W
ils

hir
e 

RE
IT

 
Pr

iva
te

 E
qu

ity
1,0

45
,32

6,1
47

11
.1

2.6
8.4

10
.8

10
.7

11
.9

8.4
12

.1
11

.9
9.4

11
.6

2.
7

8.
4

17
.9

15
.2

17
.7

8.
4

22
.6

23
.3

20
.0

3.
4

S&
P 

50
0 

In
de

x +
4%

 (L
ag

ge
d)

 
Ri

sk
 P

ar
ity

45
9,8

10
,70

3
4.9

1.7
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

60
%

 M
SC

I A
CW

I N
et

/4
0%

 B
Bg

Ba
rc

 G
lob

al 
Ag

gr
eg

at
e

5.
5

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
AQ

R 
Gl

ob
al 

Ri
sk

 P
re

m
ium

-E
L

23
6,

61
8,

37
0

2.
5

3.
5

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
60

%
 M

SC
I A

CW
I N

et
/4

0%
 B

Bg
Ba

rc
 G

lob
al 

Ag
gr

eg
at

e
5.

5
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

Pa
nA

go
ra

 R
isk

 P
ar

ity
 M

ult
i A

ss
et

22
3,

19
2,

33
3

2.
4

-0
.2

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
60

%
 M

SC
I A

CW
I N

et
/4

0%
 B

Bg
Ba

rc
 G

lob
al 

Ag
gr

eg
at

e
5.

5
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 S

um
m

ar
y 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
9



In
di
vi
du

al
cl
os

ed
en

d
fu
nd

s
ar
e
no

ts
ho

w
n
in

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
su

m
m
ar
y
ta
bl
e.

A
Q
R
G
lo
ba

lR
is
k
P
re
m
iu
m

fu
nd

ed
1/
18

/2
01

9.
 P

an
A
go

ra
R
is
k
P
ar
ity

fu
nd

ed
 3

/1
5/
20

19
. 
E
ffe

ct
iv
e
3/
1/
20

19
th
e
cu

st
od

ia
n
of

re
co

rd
sw

itc
he

d
fro

m
S
ta
te

S
tre

et
to

N
or
th
er
n
Tr
us

t. 
S
ta
te

S
tre

et
C
as

h/
Ta

x
R
ec

la
im

s
re
fle

ct
s
$-
28

,9
35

in
ca

sh
an

d
$2

24
,8
06

in
po

te
nt
ia
lt
ax

re
cl
ai
m
s
at

S
ta
te

S
tre

et
af
te
ra

ss
et
s
w
er
e
tra

ns
fe
rr
ed

to
N
or
th
er
n
Tr
us

t.
E
ffe

ct
iv
e
1/
01

/2
01

7,
on

ly
tra

di
tio

na
la

ss
et

cl
as

s
(p
ub

lic
eq

ui
ty
,

pu
bl
ic
fix
ed

in
co

m
e,

R
E
IT
s)

in
ve

st
m
en

tm
an

ag
em

en
tf
ee

s
w
ill
be

in
cl
ud

ed
in

th
e
gr
os

s
of

fe
e
re
tu
rn

ca
lc
ul
at
io
n.
 E

ffe
ct
iv
e
7/
1/
20

18
,P

riv
at
e
C
re
di
ta

nd
P
riv

at
e
E
qu

ity
da

ta
pr
ov

id
ed

by
S
te
pS

to
ne

G
ro
up

.

Ma
rk

et
 V

alu
e

%
 o

f
Po

rtf
oli

o
3 

Mo
1 

Yr
3 

Yr
s

5 
Yr

s
10

 Y
rs

20
19

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

Di
ve

rs
ify

in
g

72
8,

61
1,

65
4

7.
8

0.
6

7.
1

2.
6

1.
5

2.
7

7.
1

-2
.0

2.
8

1.
3

-1
.4

Cu
sto

m
 D

ive
rs

ify
ing

 B
en

ch
m

ar
k

0.
5

6.
1

4.
0

3.
7

4.
1

6.
1

1.
4

4.
7

4.
1

2.
5

Di
ve

rs
ify

in
g 

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e
52

3,9
00

,99
9

5.6
0.5

8.6
3.2

2.8
3.7

8.6
-1

.7
2.8

2.8
1.6

eV
 U

S 
Co

re
 F

ixe
d 

In
c G

ro
ss

 R
an

k
13

81
99

98
92

81
99

96
72

15
AF

L-
CI

O
33

3,
84

1,
37

7
3.

6
-0

.3
8.

2
4.

1
3.

2
4.

0
8.

2
0.

6
3.

6
2.

4
1.

6
BB

gB
ar

c U
S 

Ag
gr

eg
at

e 
TR

0.
2

8.
7

4.
0

3.
0

3.
7

8.
7

0.
0

3.
5

2.
6

0.
6

eV
 U

S 
Co

re
 F

ixe
d 

In
c G

ro
ss

 R
an

k
98

90
81

74
74

90
16

76
87

15
W

ell
ing

to
n 

Re
al 

To
ta

l R
et

ur
n

19
0,

05
9,

62
2

2.
0

2.
1

9.
2

1.
7

0.
0

--
9.

2
-5

.6
1.

9
-0

.1
-4

.9
CP

I +
 4

%
1.

1
6.

4
6.

2
5.

9
--

6.
4

6.
0

6.
2

6.
2

4.
8

Di
ve

rs
ify

in
g 

Eq
ui

ty
20

4,7
10

,65
6

2.2
0.8

3.3
--

--
--

3.3
--

--
--

--
Pa

ra
m

et
ric

 D
ef

en
siv

e 
Eq

uit
y

20
4,

71
0,

65
6

2.
2

0.
8

3.
3

--
--

--
3.

3
--

--
--

--
91

 D
ay

 T
-B

ill 
+4

%
1.

3
6.

1
--

--
--

6.
1

--
--

--
--

Li
qu

id
ity

1,
95

6,
14

9,
32

6
20

.8
0.

5
4.

9
2.

7
--

--
4.

9
1.

8
1.

5
--

--
BB

gB
ar

c U
S 

Go
vt/

Cr
ed

it 1
-3

 Y
r. 

TR
0.

6
4.

0
2.

1
--

--
4.

0
1.

6
0.

8
--

--
eV

 U
S 

Sh
or

t D
ur

at
ion

 F
ixe

d 
In

c G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

74
35

37
--

--
35

24
50

--
--

DF
A 

Sh
or

t C
re

dit
46

0,
93

4,
05

4
4.

9
0.

7
5.

2
2.

8
--

--
5.

2
1.

2
1.

9
--

--
IC

E 
Bo

fA
M

L 
1-

5 
Yr

s U
S 

Co
rp

 &
 G

ov
t T

R
0.

5
5.

1
2.

6
--

--
5.

1
1.

4
1.

3
--

--
eV

 U
S 

Sh
or

t D
ur

at
ion

 F
ixe

d 
In

c G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

25
21

33
--

--
21

93
26

--
--

In
sig

ht
 S

ho
rt 

Du
ra

tio
n

95
6,

15
0,

00
2

10
.2

0.
7

4.
7

2.
6

--
--

4.
7

1.
7

1.
5

--
--

BB
gB

ar
c U

S 
Go

vt/
Cr

ed
it 1

-3
 Y

r. 
TR

0.
6

4.
0

2.
1

--
--

4.
0

1.
6

0.
8

--
--

eV
 U

S 
Sh

or
t D

ur
at

ion
 F

ixe
d 

In
c G

ro
ss

 R
an

k
23

46
48

--
--

46
38

50
--

--
Si

t S
ho

rt 
Du

ra
tio

n
53

9,
06

5,
27

0
5.

7
0.

0
4.

9
2.

9
--

--
4.

9
2.

5
1.

3
--

--
BB

gB
ar

c U
S 

Go
vt 

1-
3 

Yr
 T

R
0.

5
3.

6
1.

9
--

--
3.

6
1.

6
0.

4
--

--
eV

 U
S 

Sh
or

t D
ur

at
ion

 F
ixe

d 
In

c G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

99
35

27
--

--
35

1
68

--
--

To
ta

l C
as

h
16

9,
19

8,
39

7
1.

8
0.

7
3.

3
2.

0
1.

4
3.

0
3.

3
1.

7
0.

9
0.

9
0.

1
91

 D
ay

 T
-B

ills
0.

4
2.

1
1.

6
1.

1
0.

6
2.

1
1.

9
0.

9
0.

3
0.

0
Ca

sh
16

8,
99

5,
24

1
1.

8
0.

7
3.

4
2.

0
1.

4
3.

1
3.

4
1.

7
0.

9
0.

9
0.

1
St

at
e 

St
re

et
 C

as
h/

Ta
x R

ec
lai

m
s

19
5,

87
0

0.
0

5.
1

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
No

rth
er

n 
Tr

us
t T

ra
ns

itio
n

7,
28

6
0.

0
2.

7
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 S

um
m

ar
y 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
10



In
di
vi
du

al
cl
os

ed
en

d
fu
nd

s
ar
e
no

ts
ho

w
n
in

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
su

m
m
ar
y
ta
bl
e.

A
Q
R
G
lo
ba

lR
is
k
P
re
m
iu
m

fu
nd

ed
1/
18

/2
01

9.
 P

an
A
go

ra
R
is
k
P
ar
ity

fu
nd

ed
 3

/1
5/
20

19
. 
E
ffe

ct
iv
e
7/
1/
20

18
,P

riv
at
e
C
re
di
ta

nd
P
riv

at
e
E
qu

ity
da

ta
pr
ov

id
ed

by
S
te
pS

to
ne

G
ro
up

.

Ma
rk

et
 V

alu
e

%
 o

f
Po

rtf
oli

o
3 

Mo
1 

Yr
3 

Yr
s

5 
Yr

s
10

 Y
rs

20
19

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

To
ta

l F
un

d
9,

39
0,

18
8,

03
6

10
0.

0
4.

1
14

.6
8.

3
6.

8
8.

5
14

.6
-2

.7
13

.9
6.

9
2.

1
Po

lic
y I

nd
ex

4.
3

14
.6

8.
9

7.
2

9.
1

14
.6

-0
.9

13
.7

8.
9

0.
6

To
ta

l F
un

d 
ex

 O
ve

rla
y 

& 
Ca

sh
9,

18
1,

89
6,

38
6

97
.8

4.
0

14
.4

8.
3

6.
8

8.
5

14
.4

-2
.4

13
.8

6.
9

2.
1

Po
lic

y I
nd

ex
4.

3
14

.6
8.

9
7.

2
9.

1
14

.6
-0

.9
13

.7
8.

9
0.

6
Gr

ow
th

6,
49

7,
13

5,
40

6
69

.2
5.

5
18

.4
10

.5
8.

2
--

18
.4

-3
.9

18
.7

7.
6

2.
3

6.
1

19
.3

11
.7

9.
0

--
19

.3
-2

.1
19

.3
10

.1
0.

3
Cu

sto
m

 G
ro

wt
h 

Be
nc

hm
ar

k 
To

ta
l D

om
es

tic
 E

qu
ity

1,0
19

,48
8,9

11
10

.9
7.1

26
.1

12
.9

10
.0

12
.9

26
.1

-7
.6

23
.5

11
.1

0.6
Ru

ss
ell

 3
00

0
9.

1
31

.0
14

.6
11

.2
13

.4
31

.0
-5

.2
21

.1
12

.7
0.

5
Bl

ac
kR

oc
k R

us
se

ll 1
00

0 
In

de
x

20
4,

60
4,

00
6

2.
2

9.
0

31
.4

--
--

--
31

.4
-4

.8
--

--
--

Ru
ss

ell
 1

00
0

9.
0

31
.4

--
--

--
31

.4
-4

.8
--

--
--

Ja
ck

so
n 

Sq
ua

re
 P

ar
tn

er
s

24
4,

26
9,

95
2

2.
6

5.
6

27
.3

17
.0

10
.0

13
.5

27
.3

-2
.4

28
.7

-4
.8

5.
6

Ru
ss

ell
 1

00
0 

Gr
ow

th
10

.6
36

.4
20

.5
14

.6
15

.2
36

.4
-1

.5
30

.2
7.

1
5.

7
Bo

sto
n 

Pa
rtn

er
s

25
1,

08
0,

50
1

2.
7

8.
0

23
.8

10
.5

8.
2

12
.1

23
.8

-8
.9

19
.7

14
.7

-4
.2

Ru
ss

ell
 1

00
0 

Va
lue

7.
4

26
.5

9.
7

8.
3

11
.8

26
.5

-8
.3

13
.7

17
.3

-3
.8

Em
er

ald
 A

dv
ise

rs
15

9,
00

9,
46

1
1.

7
10

.9
29

.4
13

.9
10

.9
14

.9
29

.4
-1

0.
7

28
.0

9.
4

3.
5

Ru
ss

ell
 2

00
0 

Gr
ow

th
11

.4
28

.5
12

.5
9.

3
13

.0
28

.5
-9

.3
22

.2
11

.3
-1

.4
Ce

re
de

x
16

0,
52

4,
99

3
1.

7
2.

4
17

.7
4.

8
7.

1
--

17
.7

-1
1.

8
10

.7
29

.1
-5

.0
8.

5
22

.4
4.

8
7.

0
--

22
.4

-1
2.

9
7.

8
31

.7
-7

.5
Ru

ss
ell

 2
00

0 
Va

lue
 

To
ta

l In
te

rn
at

io
na

l E
qu

ity
1,7

16
,18

5,1
80

18
.3

10
.7

23
.2

9.5
5.4

5.5
23

.2 
-1

4.7
25

.0
0.8

-1
.6

9.
0

22
.1

10
.4

6.
0

5.
4

22
.1

-1
3.

8
27

.8
5.

0
-5

.3
8.

2
22

.7
10

.1
6.

2
6.

0
22

.7
-1

3.
4

25
.6

1.
5

-0
.4

M
SC

I A
CW

I e
x U

SA
 G

ro
ss

 
M

SC
I E

AF
E 

Gr
os

s 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l E

qu
ity

98
6,0

03
,55

3
10

.5
9.6

26
.5

10
.8

6.1
5.9

26
.5 

-1
3.9

24
.8

0.8
-1

.6
M

SC
I A

CW
I e

x U
SA

 G
ro

ss
9.

0
22

.1
10

.4
6.

0
5.

4
22

.1
-1

3.
8

27
.8

5.
0

-5
.3

Py
rfo

rd
48

5,
67

1,
94

8
5.

2
8.

3
21

.6
9.

1
5.

3
--

21
.6

-1
0.

5
19

.3
3.

0
-3

.3
M

SC
I A

CW
I e

x U
SA

 V
alu

e
8.

2
15

.7
6.

9
3.

6
--

15
.7

-1
4.

0
22

.7
8.

9
-1

0.
1

W
illi

am
 B

lai
r

50
0,

33
1,

60
4

5.
3

10
.9

31
.5

12
.4

6.
9

--
31

.5
-1

7.
1

30
.4

-1
.8

0.
0

9.
6

27
.3

12
.9

7.
3

--
27

.3
-1

4.
4

32
.0

0.
1

-1
.3

M
SC

I A
CW

I e
x U

SA
 G

ro
wt

h 
Em

er
gi

ng
 M

ar
ke

ts
 E

qu
ity

73
0,1

81
,62

7
7.8

12
.3

18
.7

--
--

--
18

.7 
-1

5.7
--

--
--

M
SC

I E
m

er
gin

g 
M

ar
ke

ts
11

.8
18

.4
--

--
--

18
.4

-1
4.

6
--

--
--

PI
MC

O 
RA

E 
Em

er
gin

g 
M

ar
ke

ts
36

9,
29

9,
18

5
3.

9
11

.1
14

.0
--

--
--

14
.0

-1
2.

6
--

--
--

M
SC

I E
m

er
gin

g 
M

ar
ke

ts
11

.8
18

.4
--

--
--

18
.4

-1
4.

6
--

--
--

TT
 E

me
rg

ing
 M

ar
ke

ts
36

0,
88

2,
44

2
3.

8
13

.7
24

.0
--

--
--

24
.0

-1
8.

9
--

--
--

M
SC

I E
m

er
gin

g 
M

ar
ke

ts
11

.8
18

.4
--

--
--

18
.4

-1
4.

6
--

--
--

To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 S

um
m

ar
y 

(N
et

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
11



In
di
vi
du

al
cl
os

ed
en

d
fu
nd

s
ar
e
no

ts
ho

w
n
in

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
su

m
m
ar
y
ta
bl
e.

A
Q
R
G
lo
ba

lR
is
k
P
re
m
iu
m

fu
nd

ed
1/
18

/2
01

9.
 P

an
A
go

ra
R
is
k
P
ar
ity

fu
nd

ed
 3

/1
5/
20

19
. 
E
ffe

ct
iv
e
7/
1/
20

18
,P

riv
at
e
C
re
di
ta

nd
P
riv

at
e
E
qu

ity
da

ta
pr
ov

id
ed

by
S
te
pS

to
ne

G
ro
up

.

Ma
rk

et
 V

alu
e

%
 o

f
Po

rtf
oli

o
3 

Mo
1 

Yr
3 

Yr
s

5 
Yr

s
10

 Y
rs

20
19

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

To
ta

l G
lo

ba
l E

qu
ity

79
4,3

34
,97

7
8.5

7.1
27

.9
12

.9
9.3

7.5
27

.9
-8

.5
22

.8
6.9

1.6
M

SC
I A

CW
I

9.
0

26
.6

12
.4

8.
4

8.
8

26
.6

-9
.4

24
.0

7.
9

-2
.4

Ar
tis

an
 P

ar
tn

er
s

40
4,

02
4,

93
6

4.
3

9.
5

36
.0

17
.9

13
.2

--
36

.0
-8

.6
31

.9
4.

8
8.

4
M

SC
I A

CW
I

9.
0

26
.6

12
.4

8.
4

--
26

.6
-9

.4
24

.0
7.

9
-2

.4
Fir

st 
Ea

gle
39

0,
14

3,
02

7
4.

2
4.

7
20

.1
7.

9
6.

8
--

20
.1

-8
.3

14
.3

10
.9

-0
.6

9.
0

26
.6

12
.4

8.
4

--
26

.6
-9

.4
24

.0
7.

9
-2

.4
M

SC
I A

CW
I 

Pr
iva

te
 C

re
di

t
53

9,1
05

,45
5

5.7
1.7

7.7
8.8

9.0
12

.1
7.7

8.3
10

.4
6.9

11
.6

3.
1

16
.7

8.
5

8.
3

9.
6

16
.7

-0
.3

9.
6

19
.8

-2
.7

IC
E 

Bo
fA

M
L 

Hi
gh

 Y
iel

d 
M

as
te

r I
I +

2%
To

ta
l H

ig
h 

Yi
eld

20
8,8

23
,86

7
2.2

2.6
15

.4
5.7

5.3
7.0

15
.4

-3
.6

6.1
13

.9
-3

.9
IC

E 
Bo

fA
M

L 
Hi

gh
 Y

iel
d 

M
as

te
r I

I
2.

6
14

.4
6.

3
6.

1
7.

5
14

.4
-2

.3
7.

5
17

.5
-4

.6
Al

lia
nz

 G
lob

al 
In

ve
sto

rs
20

8,
82

3,
86

7
2.

2
2.

6
15

.4
5.

7
5.

3
6.

9
15

.4
-3

.6
6.

1
13

.9
-3

.9
2.

6
14

.4
6.

3
6.

1
7.

5
14

.4
-2

.3
7.

5
17

.5
-4

.6
IC

E 
Bo

fA
M

L 
Hi

gh
 Y

iel
d 

M
as

te
r I

I 
To

ta
l R

ea
l E

st
at

e
71

4,0
60

,16
5

7.6
1.0

8.1
8.8

8.7
11

.6
8.1

7.4
11

.0
4.8

12
.4

Re
al 

Es
ta

te
 B

en
ch

m
ar

k
1.

2
7.

7
7.

2
7.

3
10

.6
7.

7
6.

7
7.

1
6.

7
8.

3
NC

RE
IF

-O
DC

E
1.

5
5.

3
7.

1
9.

0
11

.4
5.

3
8.

3
7.

6
8.

8
15

.0
NC

RE
IF

 P
ro

pe
rty

 In
de

x
1.

6
6.

4
6.

7
8.

2
10

.2
6.

4
6.

7
7.

0
8.

0
13

.3
Ad

ela
nt

e
80

,2
05

,3
71

0.
9

-0
.8

27
.5

8.
9

7.
0

12
.3

27
.5

-5
.5

7.
2

3.
6

4.
6

-1
.1

25
.8

7.
6

6.
9

11
.9

25
.8

-4
.8

4.
2

7.
2

4.
2

W
ils

hir
e 

RE
IT

 
Pr

iva
te

 E
qu

ity
1,0

45
,32

6,1
47

11
.1

2.6
8.4

10
.8

10
.2

10
.5

8.4
12

.1
11

.9
8.9

9.9
2.

7
8.

4
17

.9
15

.2
17

.7
8.

4
22

.6
23

.3
20

.0
3.

4
S&

P 
50

0 
In

de
x +

4%
 (L

ag
ge

d)
 

Ri
sk

 P
ar

ity
45

9,8
10

,70
3

4.9
1.7

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
60

%
 M

SC
I A

CW
I N

et
/4

0%
 B

Bg
Ba

rc
 G

lob
al 

Ag
gr

eg
at

e
5.

5
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

AQ
R 

Gl
ob

al 
Ri

sk
 P

re
m

ium
-E

L
23

6,
61

8,
37

0
2.

5
3.

5
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

60
%

 M
SC

I A
CW

I N
et

/4
0%

 B
Bg

Ba
rc

 G
lob

al 
Ag

gr
eg

at
e

5.
5

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
Pa

nA
go

ra
 R

isk
 P

ar
ity

 M
ult

i A
ss

et
22

3,
19

2,
33

3
2.

4
-0

.2
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

60
%

 M
SC

I A
CW

I N
et

/4
0%

 B
Bg

Ba
rc

 G
lob

al 
Ag

gr
eg

at
e

5.
5

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--

To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 S

um
m

ar
y 

(N
et

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
12



Ma
rk

et
 V

alu
e

%
 o

f
Po

rtf
oli

o
3 

Mo
1 

Yr
3 

Yr
s

5 
Yr

s
10

 Y
rs

20
19

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

Di
ve

rs
ify

in
g

72
8,

61
1,

65
4

7.
8

0.
5

6.
8

2.
3

1.
2

2.
3

6.
8

-2
.3

2.
6

0.
8

-1
.8

Cu
sto

m
 D

ive
rs

ify
ing

 B
en

ch
m

ar
k

0.
5

6.
1

4.
0

3.
7

4.
1

6.
1

1.
4

4.
7

4.
1

2.
5

Di
ve

rs
ify

in
g 

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e
52

3,9
00

,99
9

5.6
0.5

8.3
2.9

2.4
3.4

8.3
-2

.0
2.6

2.3
1.1

AF
L-

CI
O

33
3,

84
1,

37
7

3.
6

-0
.4

7.
8

3.
7

2.
8

3.
6

7.
8

0.
2

3.
2

1.
9

1.
1

BB
gB

ar
c U

S 
Ag

gr
eg

at
e 

TR
0.

2
8.

7
4.

0
3.

0
3.

7
8.

7
0.

0
3.

5
2.

6
0.

6
W

ell
ing

to
n 

Re
al 

To
ta

l R
et

ur
n

19
0,

05
9,

62
2

2.
0

2.
1

9.
2

1.
7

-0
.2

--
9.

2
-5

.6
1.

9
-0

.6
-5

.4
CP

I +
 4

%
1.

1
6.

4
6.

2
5.

9
--

6.
4

6.
0

6.
2

6.
2

4.
8

Di
ve

rs
ify

in
g 

Eq
ui

ty
20

4,7
10

,65
6

2.2
0.7

3.0
--

--
--

3.0
--

--
--

--
Pa

ra
m

et
ric

 D
ef

en
siv

e 
Eq

uit
y

20
4,

71
0,

65
6

2.
2

0.
7

3.
0

--
--

--
3.

0
--

--
--

--
91

 D
ay

 T
-B

ill 
+4

%
1.

3
6.

1
--

--
--

6.
1

--
--

--
--

Li
qu

id
ity

1,
95

6,
14

9,
32

6
20

.8
0.

5
4.

8
2.

6
--

--
4.

8
1.

7
1.

4
--

--
BB

gB
ar

c U
S 

Go
vt/

Cr
ed

it 1
-3

 Y
r. 

TR
0.

6
4.

0
2.

1
--

--
4.

0
1.

6
0.

8
--

--
DF

A 
Sh

or
t C

re
dit

46
0,

93
4,

05
4

4.
9

0.
7

5.
2

2.
7

--
--

5.
2

1.
1

1.
8

--
--

IC
E 

Bo
fA

M
L 

1-
5 

Yr
s U

S 
Co

rp
 &

 G
ov

t T
R

0.
5

5.
1

2.
6

--
--

5.
1

1.
4

1.
3

--
--

In
sig

ht
 S

ho
rt 

Du
ra

tio
n

95
6,

15
0,

00
2

10
.2

0.
7

4.
6

2.
6

--
--

4.
6

1.
7

1.
5

--
--

BB
gB

ar
c U

S 
Go

vt/
Cr

ed
it 1

-3
 Y

r. 
TR

0.
6

4.
0

2.
1

--
--

4.
0

1.
6

0.
8

--
--

Si
t S

ho
rt 

Du
ra

tio
n

53
9,

06
5,

27
0

5.
7

0.
0

4.
7

2.
7

--
--

4.
7

2.
3

1.
1

--
--

BB
gB

ar
c U

S 
Go

vt 
1-

3 
Yr

 T
R

0.
5

3.
6

1.
9

--
--

3.
6

1.
6

0.
4

--
--

To
ta

l C
as

h
16

9,
19

8,
39

7
1.

8
0.

7
3.

3
2.

0
1.

4
3.

0
3.

3
1.

7
0.

9
0.

9
0.

1
91

 D
ay

 T
-B

ills
0.

4
2.

1
1.

6
1.

1
0.

6
2.

1
1.

9
0.

9
0.

3
0.

0
Ca

sh
16

8,
99

5,
24

1
1.

8
0.

7
3.

4
2.

0
1.

4
3.

1
3.

4
1.

7
0.

9
0.

9
0.

1
St

at
e 

St
re

et
 C

as
h/

Ta
x R

ec
lai

m
s

19
5,

87
0

0.
0

5.
1

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
No

rth
er

n 
Tr

us
t T

ra
ns

itio
n

7,
28

6
0.

0
2.

7
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 S

um
m

ar
y 

(N
et

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

In
di
vi
du

al
cl
os

ed
en

d
fu
nd

s
ar
e
no

ts
ho

w
n
in

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
su

m
m
ar
y
ta
bl
e.

A
Q
R
G
lo
ba

lR
is
k
P
re
m
iu
m

fu
nd

ed
1/
18

/2
01

9.
 P

an
A
go

ra
R
is
k
P
ar
ity

fu
nd

ed
 3

/1
5/
20

19
. 
E
ffe

ct
iv
e
3/
1/
20

19
th
e
cu

st
od

ia
n
of

re
co

rd
sw

itc
he

d
fro

m
S
ta
te

S
tre

et
to

N
or
th
er
n
Tr
us

t. 
S
ta
te

S
tre

et
C
as

h/
Ta

x
R
ec

la
im

s
re
fle

ct
s
$-
28

,9
35

in
ca

sh
an

d
$2

24
,8
06

in
po

te
nt
ia
lt
ax

re
cl
ai
m
s
at

S
ta
te

S
tre

et
af
te
ra

ss
et
s
w
er
e
tra

ns
fe
rr
ed

to
N
or
th
er
n
Tr
us

t. 
E
ffe

ct
iv
e
7/
1/
20

18
,P

riv
at
e
C
re
di
ta

nd
P
riv

at
e
E
qu

ity
da

ta
pr
ov

id
ed

by
S
te
pS

to
ne

G
ro
up

.

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
13



To
ta

l F
un

d
C

lo
se

d 
E

nd
 F

un
ds

 - 
In

ve
st

m
en

t S
um

m
ar

y
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
14



To
ta

l F
un

d
C

lo
se

d 
E

nd
 F

un
ds

 - 
In

ve
st

m
en

t S
um

m
ar

y
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
15



To
ta

l F
un

d
C

lo
se

d 
E

nd
 F

un
ds

 - 
In

ve
st

m
en

t S
um

m
ar

y
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
16



To
ta

l F
un

d
C

lo
se

d 
E

nd
 F

un
ds

 - 
IR

R
 S

um
m

ar
y

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
17



To
ta

l F
un

d
C

lo
se

d 
E

nd
 F

un
ds

 - 
IR

R
 S

um
m

ar
y

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
18



3 
Ye

ar
s

An
lzd

 R
et

An
n 

Ex
ce

ss
BM

 R
et

ur
n

An
lzd

 S
td

De
v

An
lzd

 A
lph

a
Be

ta
Tr

ac
kin

g
Er

ro
r

R-
Sq

ua
re

d
Sh

ar
pe

 R
at

io
In

fo
 R

at
io

Up
 M

kt 
Ca

p
Ra

tio
Do

wn
 M

kt
Ca

p 
Ra

tio
_

Ja
ck

so
n 

Sq
ua

re
 P

ar
tn

er
s

16
.9

5%
-3

.5
3%

12
.8

8%
-2

.0
0%

0.
93

4.
05

%
0.

91
1.

19
-0

.8
7

82
.8

8%
95

.7
1%

Bo
sto

n 
Pa

rtn
er

s
10

.5
1%

0.
83

%
12

.6
2%

0.
53

%
1.

03
2.

46
%

0.
96

0.
70

0.
34

10
4.

74
%

99
.7

7%
Em

er
ald

 A
dv

ise
rs

13
.9

4%
1.

44
%

17
.2

7%
1.

46
%

1.
00

4.
81

%
0.

92
0.

71
0.

30
10

0.
61

%
94

.0
2%

Ce
re

de
x

4.
75

%
-0

.0
2%

16
.0

3%
0.

20
%

0.
95

5.
21

%
0.

90
0.

19
0.

00
92

.8
2%

95
.0

4%
Py

rfo
rd

9.
08

%
2.

20
%

9.
44

%
4.

06
%

0.
73

4.
89

%
0.

85
0.

79
0.

45
78

.1
8%

64
.7

9%
W

illi
am

 B
lai

r
12

.4
3%

-0
.4

6%
12

.3
8%

-0
.9

5%
1.

04
2.

60
%

0.
96

0.
87

-0
.1

8
98

.6
1%

10
1.

42
%

Ar
tis

an
 P

ar
tn

er
s

17
.9

0%
5.

46
%

12
.7

4%
4.

86
%

1.
05

4.
50

%
0.

88
1.

28
1.

21
12

8.
25

%
95

.9
1%

Fi
rst

 E
ag

le
7.

95
%

-4
.4

9%
8.

47
%

-0
.9

9%
0.

72
3.

89
%

0.
93

0.
75

-1
.1

5
58

.9
4%

71
.1

9%
Al

lia
nz

 G
lob

al 
In

ve
sto

rs
5.

71
%

-0
.6

1%
4.

41
%

-0
.7

6%
1.

02
1.

02
%

0.
95

0.
92

-0
.6

0
97

.7
1%

11
3.

94
%

Ad
ela

nt
e

8.
91

%
1.

28
%

11
.5

6%
1.

72
%

0.
94

1.
64

%
0.

98
0.

63
0.

78
94

.9
9%

85
.5

8%
AF

L-
CI

O
3.

65
%

-0
.3

8%
2.

82
%

-0
.1

5%
0.

94
0.

63
%

0.
95

0.
71

-0
.5

9
90

.4
1%

91
.9

7%
W

ell
ing

to
n 

Re
al 

To
ta

l R
et

ur
n

1.
69

%
-4

.4
9%

4.
16

%
-1

.9
4%

0.
59

4.
15

%
0.

01
0.

01
-1

.0
8

35
.6

7%
NM

XX
XX

X

To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 A

na
ly

si
s 

- 3
 Y

ea
rs

 (N
et

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

A
na

ly
si
s
ex

cl
ud

es
cl
os

ed
en

d
fu
nd

s
an

d
th
os

e
fu
nd

s
w
ith

ou
t3

ye
ar
s
of

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
.

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
19



3 
Ye

ar
s

An
lzd

 R
et

An
n 

Ex
ce

ss
BM

 R
et

ur
n

An
lzd

 S
td

De
v

An
lzd

 A
lph

a
Be

ta
Tr

ac
kin

g
Er

ro
r

R-
Sq

ua
re

d
Sh

ar
pe

 R
at

io
In

fo
 R

at
io

Up
 M

kt 
Ca

p
Ra

tio
Do

wn
 M

kt
Ca

p 
Ra

tio
_

Ja
ck

so
n 

Sq
ua

re
 P

ar
tn

er
s

16
.9

5%
-3

.5
3%

12
.8

8%
-2

.0
0%

0.
93

4.
05

%
0.

91
1.

19
-0

.8
7

82
.8

8%
95

.7
1%

Bo
sto

n 
Pa

rtn
er

s
10

.5
1%

0.
83

%
12

.6
2%

0.
53

%
1.

03
2.

46
%

0.
96

0.
70

0.
34

10
4.

74
%

99
.7

7%
Em

er
ald

 A
dv

ise
rs

13
.9

4%
1.

44
%

17
.2

7%
1.

46
%

1.
00

4.
81

%
0.

92
0.

71
0.

30
10

0.
61

%
94

.0
2%

Ce
re

de
x

4.
75

%
-0

.0
2%

16
.0

3%
0.

20
%

0.
95

5.
21

%
0.

90
0.

19
0.

00
92

.8
2%

95
.0

4%
Py

rfo
rd

9.
08

%
2.

20
%

9.
44

%
4.

06
%

0.
73

4.
89

%
0.

85
0.

79
0.

45
78

.1
8%

64
.7

9%
W

illi
am

 B
lai

r
12

.4
3%

-0
.4

6%
12

.3
8%

-0
.9

5%
1.

04
2.

60
%

0.
96

0.
87

-0
.1

8
98

.6
1%

10
1.

42
%

Ar
tis

an
 P

ar
tn

er
s

17
.9

0%
5.

46
%

12
.7

4%
4.

86
%

1.
05

4.
50

%
0.

88
1.

28
1.

21
12

8.
25

%
95

.9
1%

Fi
rst

 E
ag

le
7.

95
%

-4
.4

9%
8.

47
%

-0
.9

9%
0.

72
3.

89
%

0.
93

0.
75

-1
.1

5
58

.9
4%

71
.1

9%
Al

lia
nz

 G
lob

al 
In

ve
sto

rs
5.

71
%

-0
.6

1%
4.

41
%

-0
.7

6%
1.

02
1.

02
%

0.
95

0.
92

-0
.6

0
97

.7
1%

11
3.

94
%

Ad
ela

nt
e

8.
91

%
1.

28
%

11
.5

6%
1.

72
%

0.
94

1.
64

%
0.

98
0.

63
0.

78
94

.9
9%

85
.5

8%
AF

L-
CI

O
3.

65
%

-0
.3

8%
2.

82
%

-0
.1

5%
0.

94
0.

63
%

0.
95

0.
71

-0
.5

9
90

.4
1%

91
.9

7%
W

ell
ing

to
n 

Re
al 

To
ta

l R
et

ur
n

1.
69

%
-4

.4
9%

4.
16

%
-1

.9
4%

0.
59

4.
15

%
0.

01
0.

01
-1

.0
8

35
.6

7%
NM

XX
XX

X

To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 A

na
ly

si
s 

- 3
 Y

ea
rs

 (N
et

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

A
na

ly
si
s
ex

cl
ud

es
cl
os

ed
en

d
fu
nd

s
an

d
th
os

e
fu
nd

s
w
ith

ou
t3

ye
ar
s
of

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
.

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
19



5 
Ye

ar
s

An
lzd

 R
et

An
n 

Ex
ce

ss
BM

 R
et

ur
n

An
lzd

 S
td

De
v

An
lzd

 A
lph

a
Be

ta
Tr

ac
kin

g
Er

ro
r

R-
Sq

ua
re

d
Sh

ar
pe

 R
at

io
In

fo
 R

at
io

Up
 M

kt 
Ca

p
Ra

tio
Do

wn
 M

kt
Ca

p 
Ra

tio
_

Ja
ck

so
n 

Sq
ua

re
 P

ar
tn

er
s

9.
96

%
-4

.6
7%

13
.2

2%
-3

.9
3%

0.
95

4.
97

%
0.

86
0.

67
-0

.9
4

81
.4

9%
10

8.
57

%
Bo

sto
n 

Pa
rtn

er
s

8.
20

%
-0

.0
9%

13
.0

6%
-0

.6
3%

1.
07

2.
87

%
0.

96
0.

55
-0

.0
3

10
5.

17
%

10
4.

32
%

Em
er

ald
 A

dv
ise

rs
10

.8
6%

1.
52

%
17

.6
0%

1.
53

%
1.

00
4.

94
%

0.
92

0.
56

0.
31

10
5.

37
%

97
.9

1%
Ce

re
de

x
7.

11
%

0.
12

%
14

.8
5%

1.
04

%
0.

87
5.

93
%

0.
86

0.
41

0.
02

85
.1

2%
91

.3
5%

Py
rfo

rd
5.

27
%

1.
62

%
10

.3
6%

2.
67

%
0.

71
5.

67
%

0.
84

0.
41

0.
29

62
.7

5%
68

.7
0%

W
illi

am
 B

lai
r

6.
90

%
-0

.4
0%

12
.3

7%
-0

.2
2%

0.
98

2.
69

%
0.

95
0.

47
-0

.1
5

93
.9

1%
97

.7
5%

Ar
tis

an
 P

ar
tn

er
s

13
.2

4%
4.

83
%

13
.0

4%
4.

64
%

1.
02

4.
99

%
0.

85
0.

93
0.

97
12

5.
33

%
90

.9
4%

Fi
rst

 E
ag

le
6.

76
%

-1
.6

5%
8.

58
%

0.
96

%
0.

69
4.

59
%

0.
90

0.
67

-0
.3

6
56

.3
9%

65
.5

3%
Al

lia
nz

 G
lob

al 
In

ve
sto

rs
5.

27
%

-0
.8

7%
5.

18
%

-0
.5

0%
0.

94
1.

27
%

0.
94

0.
81

-0
.6

8
90

.9
0%

10
1.

38
%

Ad
ela

nt
e

6.
97

%
0.

10
%

13
.0

3%
0.

48
%

0.
95

1.
80

%
0.

98
0.

45
0.

06
90

.3
5%

93
.4

4%
AF

L-
CI

O
2.

80
%

-0
.2

5%
2.

83
%

0.
06

%
0.

90
0.

74
%

0.
94

0.
62

-0
.3

3
86

.5
7%

84
.2

7%
W

ell
ing

to
n 

Re
al 

To
ta

l R
et

ur
n

-0
.2

2%
-6

.1
1%

5.
44

%
-5

.6
1%

0.
92

5.
38

%
0.

02
-0

.2
3

-1
.1

4
9.

22
%

NM
XX

XX
X

To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 A

na
ly

si
s 

- 5
 Y

ea
rs

 (N
et

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

A
na

ly
si
s
ex

cl
ud

es
cl
os

ed
en

d
fu
nd

s
an

d
th
os

e
fu
nd

s
w
ith

ou
t5

ye
ar
s
of

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
.

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
20



To
ta

l F
un

d
In

ve
st

m
en

t F
un

d 
Fe

e 
A

na
ly

si
s

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

M
ut
ua

lf
un

d
fe
es

sh
ow

n
ar
e
so

ur
ce

d
fro

m
M
or
ni
ng

st
ar

an
d
ar
e
as

of
th
e
m
os

tc
ur
re
nt

pr
os

pe
ct
us

.

Na
me

As
se

t C
las

s
Fe

e 
Sc

he
du

le
M

ar
ke

t V
alu

e
Es

tim
at

ed
 F

ee
 V

alu
e

Es
tim

at
ed

 F
ee

Bl
ac

kR
oc

k R
us

se
ll 1

00
0 

In
de

x
Gr

ow
th

0.
03

%
 o

f A
ss

et
s

$2
04

,6
04

,0
06

$6
1,

38
1

0.
03

%

Ja
ck

so
n 

Sq
ua

re
 P

ar
tn

er
s

Gr
ow

th
0.

50
%

 o
f F

irs
t 1

00
.0

 M
il,

0.
40

%
 o

f N
ex

t 1
50

.0
 M

il,
0.

35
%

 T
he

re
af

te
r

$2
44

,2
69

,9
52

$1
,0

77
,0

80
0.

44
%

Bo
sto

n 
Pa

rtn
er

s
Gr

ow
th

0.
50

%
 o

f F
irs

t 2
5.

0 
Mi

l,
0.

30
%

 T
he

re
af

te
r

$2
51

,0
80

,5
01

$8
03

,2
42

0.
32

%

Em
er

ald
 A

dv
ise

rs
Gr

ow
th

0.
75

%
 o

f F
irs

t 1
0.

0 
Mi

l,
0.

60
%

 T
he

re
af

te
r

$1
59

,0
09

,4
61

$9
69

,0
57

0.
61

%

Ce
re

de
x

Gr
ow

th
0.

85
%

 o
f F

irs
t 1

0.
0 

Mi
l,

0.
68

%
 o

f N
ex

t 4
0.

0 
Mi

l,
0.

51
%

 T
he

re
af

te
r

$1
60

,5
24

,9
93

$9
20

,6
77

0.
57

%

Py
rfo

rd
Gr

ow
th

0.
70

%
 o

f F
irs

t 5
0.

0 
Mi

l,
0.

50
%

 o
f N

ex
t 5

0.
0 

Mi
l,

0.
35

%
 T

he
re

af
te

r
$4

85
,6

71
,9

48
$1

,9
49

,8
52

0.
40

%

W
illi

am
 B

lai
r

Gr
ow

th

0.
80

%
 o

f F
irs

t 2
0.

0 
Mi

l,
0.

60
%

 o
f N

ex
t 3

0.
0 

Mi
l,

0.
50

%
 o

f N
ex

t 5
0.

0 
Mi

l,
0.

45
%

 o
f N

ex
t 5

0.
0 

Mi
l,

0.
40

%
 o

f N
ex

t 5
0.

0 
Mi

l,
0.

30
%

 T
he

re
af

te
r

$5
00

,3
31

,6
04

$1
,9

15
,9

95
0.

38
%

PI
MC

O 
RA

E 
Em

er
gin

g 
Ma

rk
et

s
Gr

ow
th

0.
75

%
 o

f F
irs

t 5
0.

0 
Mi

l,
0.

68
%

 o
f N

ex
t 5

0.
0 

Mi
l,

0.
50

%
 o

f N
ex

t 1
00

.0
 M

il,
0.

45
%

 T
he

re
af

te
r

$3
69

,2
99

,1
85

$1
,9

74
,3

46
0.

53
%

TT
 E

m
er

gin
g 

M
ar

ke
ts

Gr
ow

th
0.

70
%

 o
f F

irs
t 1

00
.0

 M
il,

0.
65

%
 o

f N
ex

t 1
00

.0
 M

il,
0.

60
%

 T
he

re
af

te
r

$3
60

,8
82

,4
42

$2
,3

15
,2

95
0.

64
%

Ar
tis

an
 P

ar
tn

er
s

Gr
ow

th
0.

75
%

 o
f A

ss
et

s
$4

04
,0

24
,9

36
$3

,0
30

,1
87

0.
75

%
Fi

rst
 E

ag
le

Gr
ow

th
0.

75
%

 o
f A

ss
et

s
$3

90
,1

43
,0

27
$2

,9
26

,0
73

0.
75

%

Al
lia

nz
 G

lob
al 

In
ve

sto
rs

Gr
ow

th
0.

50
%

 o
f F

irs
t 5

0.
0 

Mi
l,

0.
40

%
 o

f N
ex

t 5
0.

0 
Mi

l,
0.

35
%

 T
he

re
af

te
r

$2
08

,8
23

,8
67

$8
30

,8
84

0.
40

%

AQ
R 

Gl
ob

al 
Ri

sk
 P

re
mi

um
-E

L
Gr

ow
th

0.
38

%
 o

f A
ss

et
s

$2
36

,6
18

,3
70

$8
99

,1
50

0.
38

%

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
21



M
ut
ua

lf
un

d
fe
es

sh
ow

n
ar
e
so

ur
ce

d
fro

m
M
or
ni
ng

st
ar

an
d
ar
e
as

of
th
e
m
os

tc
ur
re
nt

pr
os

pe
ct
us

.

To
ta

l F
un

d
In

ve
st

m
en

t F
un

d 
Fe

e 
A

na
ly

si
s

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Na
me

As
se

t C
las

s
Fe

e 
Sc

he
du

le
M

ar
ke

t V
alu

e
Es

tim
at

ed
 F

ee
 V

alu
e

Es
tim

at
ed

 F
ee

 

Pa
nA

go
ra

 R
isk

 P
ar

ity
 M

ult
i A

ss
et

Gr
ow

th
0.

35
%

 o
f A

ss
et

s
$2

23
,1

92
,3

33
$7

81
,1

73
0.

35
%

AF
L-

CI
O

Di
ve

rsi
fyi

ng
0.

43
%

 o
f A

ss
et

s
$3

33
,8

41
,3

77
$1

,4
35

,5
18

0.
43

%
W

ell
ing

to
n 

Re
al 

To
ta

l R
et

ur
n

Di
ve

rsi
fyi

ng
0.

35
%

 o
f A

ss
et

s
$1

90
,0

59
,6

22
$6

65
,2

09
0.

35
%

Pa
ra

me
tri

c D
ef

en
siv

e 
Eq

uit
y

Di
ve

rsi
fyi

ng
0.

42
%

 o
f F

irs
t 2

00
.0

 M
il,

0.
39

%
 T

he
re

af
te

r
$2

04
,7

10
,6

56
$8

58
,3

72
0.

42
%

DF
A 

Sh
or

t C
re

dit
Liq

uid
ity

0.
20

%
 o

f F
irs

t 2
5.

0 
Mi

l,
0.

10
%

 T
he

re
af

te
r

$4
60

,9
34

,0
54

$4
85

,9
34

0.
11

%

In
sig

ht
 S

ho
rt 

Du
ra

tio
n

Liq
uid

ity
0.

06
%

 o
f F

irs
t 5

00
.0

 M
il,

0.
05

%
 o

f N
ex

t 5
00

.0
 M

il,
0.

04
%

 T
he

re
af

te
r

$9
56

,1
50

,0
02

$5
28

,0
75

0.
06

%

Si
t S

ho
rt 

Du
ra

tio
n

Liq
uid

ity
0.

15
%

 o
f A

ss
et

s
$5

39
,0

65
,2

70
$8

08
,5

98
0.

15
%

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
22



To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

er
 U

ni
ve

rs
e 

C
om

pa
ri

so
n:

 C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 (G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

E
ffe

ct
iv
e
1/
01

/2
01

7,
on

ly
tra

di
tio

na
la

ss
et

cl
as

s
(p
ub

lic
eq

ui
ty
,p

ub
lic

fix
ed

in
co

m
e,

R
E
IT
s)

in
ve

st
m
en

tm
an

ag
em

en
tf
ee

s
w
ill
be

in
cl
ud

ed
in

th
e
gr
os

s
of

fe
e
re
tu
rn

ca
lc
ul
at
io
n.

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
23



To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

er
 U

ni
ve

rs
e 

C
om

pa
ri

so
n:

 C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 (N
et

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
24



To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

er
 U

ni
ve

rs
e 

C
om

pa
ri

so
n:

 C
on

se
cu

tiv
e 

Pe
ri

od
s 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

E
ffe

ct
iv
e
1/
01

/2
01

7,
on

ly
tra

di
tio

na
la

ss
et

cl
as

s
(p
ub

lic
eq

ui
ty
,p

ub
lic

fix
ed

in
co

m
e,

R
E
IT
s)

in
ve

st
m
en

tm
an

ag
em

en
tf
ee

s
w
ill
be

in
cl
ud

ed
in

th
e
gr
os

s
of

fe
e
re
tu
rn

ca
lc
ul
at
io
n.

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
25



To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

er
 U

ni
ve

rs
e 

C
om

pa
ri

so
n:

 C
on

se
cu

tiv
e 

Pe
ri

od
s 

(N
et

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
26



To
ta

l F
un

d
Sh

ar
pe

 R
at

io
 R

an
ki

ng
 (G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
27



   
  D

om
es

tic
 E

qu
ity

 M
an

ag
er

s



Do
m
es

tic
eq

uit
yl
ar
ge

ca
p
gr
ow

th
po

rtf
oli
o
co

nc
en

tra
te
d
in

co
m
pa

nie
sw

ith
su

sta
ina

ble
lon

g-
te
rm

gr
ow

th
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s.

Pr
im

ar
yp

er
so

nn
el

inc
lud

e
Je

ffr
ey

Va
n
Ha

rte
,

Ch
ris

to
ph

er
Bo

na
vic

o,
Ch

ris
to
ph

er
Er
ick

se
n,

an
d
Da

nie
lP

ris
lin
.

U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

se
ct
or

al
lo
ca

tio
n
in
cl
ud

es
ca

sh
al
lo
ca

tio
ns

.

Ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s

Po
rtf

oli
o

Ru
ss

ell
10

00
Gr

ow
th

Nu
mb

er
 o

f H
old

ing
s

26
53

0

W
eig

ht
ed

 A
vg

. M
ar

ke
t C

ap
. (

$B
)

22
2.

36
36

2.
87

Me
dia

n 
M

ar
ke

t C
ap

. (
$B

)
55

.8
7

13
.0

3

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Ea
rn

ing
s

37
.8

1
29

.7
4

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Bo
ok

5.
67

8.
79

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Sa
les

3.
22

3.
14

Re
tu

rn
 o

n 
Eq

uit
y (

%
)

21
.1

1
34

.6
0

Yi
eld

 (%
)

0.
81

1.
17

Be
ta

0.
79

1.
00

La
rg

es
t H

ol
di

ng
s

En
d 

W
ei

gh
t

Re
tu

rn
M

IC
RO

SO
FT

9.
95

13
.8

2
IQ

VI
A 

HO
LD

IN
GS

5.
55

3.
43

AL
PH

AB
ET

 A
4.

89
9.

68
CH

AR
TE

R 
CO

M
MS

.C
L.

A
4.

89
17

.7
0

BA
LL

4.
85

-1
0.

98
CO

NS
TE

LL
AT

IO
N 

BR
AN

DS
 'A

'
4.

81
-8

.1
0

UN
IT

ED
HE

AL
TH

 G
RO

UP
4.

46
35

.8
0

HA
SB

RO
4.

40
-1

0.
40

M
AS

TE
RC

AR
D

4.
07

10
.0

9
DO

LL
AR

 T
RE

E
3.

90
-1

7.
62

To
p 

Co
nt

rib
ut

or
s

Av
g 

W
gt

Re
tu

rn
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
MI

CR
OS

OF
T

3.
34

13
.8

2
0.

46
UN

IT
ED

HE
AL

TH
 G

RO
UP

1.
16

35
.8

0
0.

42
CH

AR
TE

R 
CO

MM
S.

CL
.A

1.
46

17
.7

0
0.

26
AU

TO
DE

SK
0.

94
24

.2
1

0.
23

AP
PL

IE
D 

MA
TS

.
0.

92
22

.7
6

0.
21

BI
OG

EN
0.

65
27

.4
5

0.
18

NE
TF

LI
X

0.
85

20
.9

1
0.

18
KK

R 
AN

D 
A

1.
62

9.
11

0.
15

DO
MI

NO
'S

 P
IZ

ZA
0.

69
20

.3
7

0.
14

CH
AR

LE
S 

SC
HW

AB
0.

96
14

.1
4

0.
14

Bo
tto

m
 C

on
tri

bu
to

rs
Av

g 
W

gt
Re

tu
rn

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

DO
LL

AR
 T

RE
E

1.
67

-1
7.

62
-0

.2
9

BA
LL

1.
79

-1
0.

98
-0

.2
0

HA
SB

RO
1.

57
-1

0.
40

-0
.1

6
CO

NS
TE

LL
AT

IO
N

BR
AN

DS
 'A

'
1.

58
-8

.1
0

-0
.1

3

AR
IS

TA
 N

ET
W

OR
KS

0.
84

-1
4.

87
-0

.1
3

LI
BE

RT
Y 

GL
OB

AL
 S

R.
C

1.
17

-8
.3

9
-0

.1
0

TR
IP

AD
VI

SO
R 

'A
'

0.
67

-1
1.

68
-0

.0
8

CM
E 

GR
OU

P
0.

89
-3

.4
9

-0
.0

3
TA

KE
 T

W
O 

IN
TA

CT
.S

FT
W

.
1.

05
-2

.3
2

-0
.0

2
AL

PH
AB

ET
 'C

' (X
ET

)
0.

15
11

.0
8

0.
02

Ja
ck

so
n 

Sq
ua

re
 P

ar
tn

er
s

M
an

ag
er

 P
or

tf
ol

io
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
29



Ja
ck

so
n 

Sq
ua

re
 P

ar
tn

er
s

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 C
om

pa
ri

so
ns

 (G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
30



Ja
ck

so
n 

Sq
ua

re
 P

ar
tn

er
s

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 - 
R

ol
lin

g 
3 

&
 5

 Y
ea

r 
(G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
31



5 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Ja
ck

so
n 

Sq
ua

re
 P

ar
tn

er
s

10
.4

%
13

.2
%

0.
7

Ru
ss

ell
 1

00
0 

Gr
ow

th
14

.6
%

12
.9

%
1.

1
eV

 U
S 

La
rg

e 
Ca

p 
Gr

ow
th

 E
qu

ity
 G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
13

.5
%

13
.0

%
1.

0

3 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Ja
ck

so
n 

Sq
ua

re
 P

ar
tn

er
s

17
.4

%
12

.9
%

1.
2

Ru
ss

ell
 1

00
0 

Gr
ow

th
20

.5
%

13
.3

%
1.

4
eV

 U
S 

La
rg

e 
Ca

p 
Gr

ow
th

 E
qu

ity
 G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
19

.5
%

13
.1

%
1.

4

Ja
ck

so
n 

Sq
ua

re
 P

ar
tn

er
s

R
is

k 
vs

. R
et

ur
n 

3 
&

 5
 Y

ea
r 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
32



Ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s

Po
rtf

oli
o

Ru
ss

ell
10

00
 V

alu
e

Nu
mb

er
 o

f H
old

ing
s

77
76

4

W
eig

ht
ed

 A
vg

. M
ar

ke
t C

ap
. (

$B
)

13
6.

54
12

3.
34

Me
dia

n 
M

ar
ke

t C
ap

. (
$B

)
39

.1
4

9.
64

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Ea
rn

ing
s

17
.2

3
18

.4
8

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Bo
ok

2.
23

2.
32

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Sa
les

1.
23

1.
51

Re
tu

rn
 o

n 
Eq

uit
y (

%
)

17
.1

1
13

.9
7

Yi
eld

 (%
)

2.
03

2.
49

Be
ta

1.
04

1.
00

U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

se
ct
or

al
lo
ca

tio
n
in
cl
ud

es
ca

sh
al
lo
ca

tio
ns

.

Do
m
es

tic
eq

uit
yl
ar
ge

ca
p
va

lue
po

rtf
oli
o
ex

hib
itin

g
low

tu
rn
ov

er
in

co
m
pa

nie
sw

ith
low

va
lua

tio
ns

re
lat

ive
to

int
rin

sic
va

lue
.P

rim
ar
yp

er
so

nn
el

inc
lud

e
M
ar
kD

on
ov

an
an

d
Da

vid
Py

le.
 

La
rg

es
t H

ol
di

ng
s

En
d 

W
ei

gh
t

Re
tu

rn
BA

NK
 O

F 
AM

ER
IC

A
4.

47
21

.4
0

BE
RK

SH
IR

E 
HA

TH
AW

AY
 'B

'
4.

46
8.

88
JP

 M
OR

GA
N 

CH
AS

E 
& 

CO
.

3.
47

19
.4

0
CI

TI
GR

OU
P

2.
62

16
.4

5
W

EL
LS

 F
AR

GO
 &

 C
O

2.
54

7.
67

PR
OC

TE
R 

& 
GA

MB
LE

2.
49

1.
06

CI
GN

A
2.

40
34

.7
2

CH
UB

B
2.

33
-3

.1
1

VE
RI

ZO
N 

CO
M

MU
NI

CA
TI

ON
S

2.
33

2.
78

CO
MC

AS
T 

A
2.

30
0.

23

To
p 

Co
nt

rib
ut

or
s

Av
g 

W
gt

Re
tu

rn
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
BA

NK
 O

F 
AM

ER
IC

A
1.

26
21

.4
0

0.
27

CI
GN

A
0.

64
34

.7
2

0.
22

JP
 M

OR
GA

N 
CH

AS
E 

&
CO

.
0.

99
19

.4
0

0.
19

UN
IT

ED
HE

AL
TH

 G
RO

UP
0.

42
35

.8
0

0.
15

BE
RK

SH
IR

E 
HA

TH
AW

AY
'B

'
1.

47
8.

88
0.

13

CI
TI

GR
OU

P
0.

74
16

.4
5

0.
12

AN
TH

EM
0.

42
26

.1
4

0.
11

CV
S 

HE
AL

TH
0.

40
18

.6
9

0.
08

LA
S 

VE
GA

S 
SA

ND
S

0.
36

20
.8

8
0.

07
UN

IT
ED

 T
EC

HN
OL

OG
IE

S
0.

72
10

.2
4

0.
07

Bo
tto

m
 C

on
tri

bu
to

rs
Av

g 
W

gt
Re

tu
rn

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

AM
ER

IC
AN

 IN
TL

.G
P.

0.
73

-7
.2

6
-0

.0
5

DU
PO

NT
 D

E 
NE

MO
UR

S
0.

38
-9

.5
6

-0
.0

4
TR

AV
EL

ER
S 

CO
S.

0.
37

-7
.3

4
-0

.0
3

CH
UB

B
0.

76
-3

.1
1

-0
.0

2
LI

BE
RT

Y 
GL

OB
AL

 S
R.

C
0.

21
-8

.3
9

-0
.0

2
OR

AC
LE

0.
48

-3
.3

0
-0

.0
2

ES
SE

X 
PR

OP
ER

TY
 T

ST
.

0.
20

-7
.3

0
-0

.0
1

EQ
UI

TY
RE

SD
.T

ST
.P

RO
PS

. S
HB

I
0.

23
-5

.5
3

-0
.0

1

CH
 R

OB
IN

SO
N 

W
W

D.
0.

17
-7

.1
5

-0
.0

1
CI

SC
O 

SY
ST

EM
S

0.
54

-2
.2

1
-0

.0
1

B
os

to
n 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

M
an

ag
er

 P
or

tf
ol

io
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
33



B
os

to
n 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 C
om

pa
ri

so
ns

 (G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
34



B
os

to
n 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 - 
R

ol
lin

g 
3 

&
 5

 Y
ea

r 
(G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
35



5 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Bo
sto

n 
Pa

rtn
er

s
8.

5%
13

.0
%

0.
6

Ru
ss

ell
 1

00
0 

Va
lue

8.
3%

12
.0

%
0.

6
eV

 U
S 

La
rg

e 
Ca

p 
Va

lue
 E

qu
ity

 G
ro

ss
 M

ed
ian

8.
9%

12
.3

%
0.

7

3 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Bo
sto

n 
Pa

rtn
er

s
10

.9
%

12
.6

%
0.

7
Ru

ss
ell

 1
00

0 
Va

lue
9.

7%
12

.0
%

0.
7

eV
 U

S 
La

rg
e 

Ca
p 

Va
lue

 E
qu

ity
 G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
10

.9
%

12
.3

%
0.

8

B
os

to
n 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

R
is

k 
vs

. R
et

ur
n 

3 
&

 5
 Y

ea
r 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
36



To
p 

Co
nt

rib
ut

or
s

Av
g 

W
gt

Re
tu

rn
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
RE

AT
A 

PH
AR

MS
.C

L.
A

0.
36

15
4.

61
0.

55
AR

QU
LE

0.
17

17
8.

38
0.

30
NE

OG
EN

OM
IC

S
0.

53
52

.9
8

0.
28

KA
RY

OP
HA

RM
TH

ER
AP

EU
TI

CS
0.

24
99

.2
7

0.
23

CH
EG

G
0.

82
26

.5
8

0.
22

HO
RI

ZO
N

TH
ER

AP
EU

TI
CS

 P
UB

LI
C

0.
53

32
.9

4
0.

18

PL
AN

ET
 F

IT
NE

SS
 C

L.
A

0.
56

29
.0

5
0.

16
VA

RO
NI

S 
SY

ST
EM

S
0.

50
29

.9
9

0.
15

AI
MM

UN
E

TH
ER

AP
EU

TI
CS

0.
21

59
.8

4
0.

13

RA
PI

D7
0.

52
23

.4
2

0.
12

Ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s

Po
rtf

oli
o

Ru
ss

ell
20

00
Gr

ow
th

Nu
mb

er
 o

f H
old

ing
s

11
9

1,
17

2

W
eig

ht
ed

 A
vg

. M
ar

ke
t C

ap
. (

$B
)

2.
92

2.
73

Me
dia

n 
M

ar
ke

t C
ap

. (
$B

)
2.

10
0.

92

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Ea
rn

ing
s

24
.7

4
26

.4
5

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Bo
ok

4.
16

4.
45

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Sa
les

2.
35

1.
60

Re
tu

rn
 o

n 
Eq

uit
y (

%
)

-8
.6

0
-3

.1
7

Yi
eld

 (%
)

0.
44

0.
74

Be
ta

1.
12

1.
00

U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

se
ct
or

al
lo
ca

tio
n
in
cl
ud

es
ca

sh
al
lo
ca

tio
ns

.

Do
m
es

tic
eq

uit
ys

m
all

ca
p
gr
ow

th
po

rtf
oli
o
of

co
m
pa

nie
sw

ith
sig

nif
ica

nt
ly
hig

h
gr
ow

th
ra
te
s.

Pr
im
ar
yp

er
so

nn
el

inc
lud

e
Ke

nn
et
h
M
er
tz,

Jo
se

ph
Ga

rn
er
,a

nd
St
ac

ey
Se

ar
s.

La
rg

es
t H

ol
di

ng
s

En
d 

W
ei

gh
t

Re
tu

rn
CH

EG
G

2.
65

26
.5

8
TR

EX
2.

25
-1

.1
5

FR
ES

HP
ET

2.
10

18
.7

3
PL

AN
ET

 F
IT

NE
SS

 C
L.

A
1.

99
29

.0
5

CH
UR

CH
IL

L 
DO

W
NS

1.
99

11
.6

3
HO

RI
ZO

N 
TH

ER
AP

EU
TI

CS
PU

BL
IC

1.
94

32
.9

4

NE
OG

EN
OM

IC
S

1.
92

52
.9

8
TH

E 
SI

M
PL

Y 
GO

OD
 F

OO
DS

1.
81

-1
.5

5
VA

RO
NI

S 
SY

ST
EM

S
1.

80
29

.9
9

TE
TR

A 
TE

CH
1.

79
-0

.5
2

Bo
tto

m
 C

on
tri

bu
to

rs
Av

g 
W

gt
Re

tu
rn

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

VO
NA

GE
 H

OL
DI

NG
S

0.
47

-3
4.

42
-0

.1
6

RA
DI

US
 H

EA
LT

H
0.

38
-2

1.
71

-0
.0

8
FO

RE
SC

OU
T

TE
CH

NO
LO

GI
ES

0.
58

-1
3.

50
-0

.0
8

NV
5 

GL
OB

AL
0.

29
-2

6.
10

-0
.0

7
ME

RC
UR

Y 
SY

ST
EM

S
0.

50
-1

4.
86

-0
.0

7
JA

CK
 IN

 T
HE

 B
OX

0.
47

-1
3.

92
-0

.0
7

CH
IL

DR
EN

S 
PL

AC
E

0.
34

-1
7.

95
-0

.0
6

ME
RI

TA
GE

 H
OM

ES
0.

46
-1

3.
13

-0
.0

6
TR

IN
ET

 G
RO

UP
0.

54
-8

.9
7

-0
.0

5
VO

CE
RA

CO
MM

UN
IC

AT
IO

NS
0.

27
-1

5.
78

-0
.0

4

E
m

er
al

d 
A

dv
is

er
s

M
an

ag
er

 P
or

tf
ol

io
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
37



E
m

er
al

d 
A

dv
is

er
s

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 C
om

pa
ri

so
ns

 (G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
38



E
m

er
al

d 
A

dv
is

er
s

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 - 
R

ol
lin

g 
3 

&
 5

 Y
ea

r 
(G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
39



3 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Em
er

ald
 A

dv
ise

rs
14

.7
%

17
.3

%
0.

8
Ru

ss
ell

 2
00

0 
Gr

ow
th

12
.5

%
16

.6
%

0.
7

eV
 U

S 
Sm

all
 C

ap
 G

ro
wt

h 
Eq

uit
y G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
16

.0
%

16
.8

%
0.

9

5 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Em
er

ald
 A

dv
ise

rs
11

.6
%

17
.6

%
0.

6
Ru

ss
ell

 2
00

0 
Gr

ow
th

9.
3%

16
.9

%
0.

5
eV

 U
S 

Sm
all

 C
ap

 G
ro

wt
h 

Eq
uit

y G
ro

ss
 M

ed
ian

11
.7

%
16

.7
%

0.
6

E
m

er
al

d 
A

dv
is

er
s

R
is

k 
vs

. R
et

ur
n 

3 
&

 5
 Y

ea
r 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
40



U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

se
ct
or

al
lo
ca

tio
n
in
cl
ud

es
ca

sh
al
lo
ca

tio
ns

.

Do
m
es

tic
eq

uit
ys

m
all

ca
p
va

lue
po

rtf
oli
o
of

co
m
pa

nie
sw

ith
div

ide
nd

yie
lds

an
d
low

va
lua

tio
ns

.P
rim

ar
yp

er
so

nn
el

inc
lud

e
Br
et
tB

ar
ne

ra
nd

Da
vid

M
ay

na
rd
.

Bo
tto

m
 C

on
tri

bu
to

rs
Av

g 
W

gt
Re

tu
rn

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

CH
IL

DR
EN

S 
PL

AC
E

1.
01

-1
7.

95
-0

.1
8

CU
BI

C
1.

09
-9

.7
4

-0
.1

1
US

 S
IL

IC
A 

HO
LD

IN
GS

0.
23

-3
4.

97
-0

.0
8

CO
VA

NT
A 

HO
LD

IN
G

0.
61

-1
2.

73
-0

.0
8

AM
ER

.E
AG

.O
UT

FI
TT

ER
S

0.
91

-8
.5

1
-0

.0
8

AP
OG

EE
 E

NT
ER

PR
IS

ES
0.

42
-1

6.
25

-0
.0

7
HE

RM
AN

 M
IL

LE
R

0.
62

-9
.2

4
-0

.0
6

AL
EX

AN
DE

R 
& 

BA
LD

W
IN

0.
36

-1
3.

77
-0

.0
5

EV
ER

CO
RE

 A
0.

80
-5

.9
8

-0
.0

5
DE

SI
GN

ER
 B

RA
ND

S 
A

0.
44

-6
.6

2
-0

.0
3

To
p 

Co
nt

rib
ut

or
s

Av
g 

W
gt

Re
tu

rn
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
EN

ER
GI

ZE
R 

HO
LD

IN
GS

1.
42

15
.9

3
0.

23
PO

W
ER

 IN
TE

GR
AT

IO
NS

1.
57

9.
60

0.
15

CO
HU

0.
15

69
.7

0
0.

11
PH

YS
IC

IA
NS

 R
EA

LT
Y

TS
T.

1.
24

8.
12

0.
10

MK
S 

IN
ST

RU
ME

NT
S

0.
46

19
.4

5
0.

09
BA

NK
 O

F 
HA

W
AI

I
0.

65
11

.5
6

0.
08

MO
NO

LI
TH

IC
 P

W
R.

SY
S.

0.
46

14
.6

4
0.

07
FI

RS
T 

HA
W

AI
IA

N
0.

67
9.

05
0.

06
HI

LL
-R

OM
 H

OL
DI

NG
S

0.
74

8.
09

0.
06

PE
NS

KE
 A

UT
OM

OT
IV

E
GP

.
0.

83
7.

07
0.

06

Ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s

Po
rtf

oli
o

Ru
ss

ell
20

00
 V

alu
e

Nu
mb

er
 o

f H
old

ing
s

82
1,

40
2

W
eig

ht
ed

 A
vg

. M
ar

ke
t C

ap
. (

$B
)

3.
50

2.
17

Me
dia

n 
M

ar
ke

t C
ap

. (
$B

)
2.

22
0.

70

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Ea
rn

ing
s

18
.1

4
16

.2
9

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Bo
ok

2.
45

1.
71

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Sa
les

1.
23

0.
92

Re
tu

rn
 o

n 
Eq

uit
y (

%
)

17
.7

0
5.

31

Yi
eld

 (%
)

2.
52

2.
13

Be
ta

0.
87

1.
00

La
rg

es
t H

ol
di

ng
s

En
d 

W
ei

gh
t

Re
tu

rn
PO

W
ER

 IN
TE

GR
AT

IO
NS

5.
06

9.
60

KE
MP

ER
4.

92
-0

.2
0

SA
BR

E
4.

48
0.

82
EN

ER
GI

ZE
R 

HO
LD

IN
GS

4.
46

15
.9

3
SL

M
4.

37
1.

32
PH

YS
IC

IA
NS

 R
EA

LT
Y 

TS
T.

3.
91

8.
12

FI
RS

T 
AM

ER
.F

IN
L.

3.
69

-0
.5

1
CU

BI
C

3.
43

-9
.7

4
AM

ER
.E

AG
.O

UT
FI

TT
ER

S
2.

75
-8

.5
1

HI
LL

-R
OM

 H
OL

DI
NG

S
2.

68
8.

09

C
er

ed
ex

M
an

ag
er

 P
or

tf
ol

io
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
41



C
er

ed
ex

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 C
om

pa
ri

so
ns

 (G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
42



C
er

ed
ex

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 - 
R

ol
lin

g 
3 

&
 5

 Y
ea

r 
(G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
43



C
er

ed
ex

R
is

k 
vs

. R
et

ur
n 

3 
&

 5
 Y

ea
r 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

5 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Ce
re

de
x

7.
7%

14
.8

%
0.

4
Ru

ss
ell

 2
00

0 
Va

lue
7.

0%
15

.9
%

0.
4

eV
 U

S 
Sm

all
 C

ap
 V

alu
e 

Eq
uit

y G
ro

ss
 M

ed
ian

7.
5%

15
.9

%
0.

4

3 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Ce
re

de
x

5.
3%

16
.0

%
0.

2
Ru

ss
ell

 2
00

0 
Va

lue
4.

8%
15

.9
%

0.
2

eV
 U

S 
Sm

all
 C

ap
 V

alu
e 

Eq
uit

y G
ro

ss
 M

ed
ian

5.
6%

16
.0

%
0.

2

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
44



   
  I

nt
er

na
tio

na
l E

qu
ity

 M
an

ag
er

s



Ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s

Po
rtf

oli
o

MS
CI

 A
CW

I
ex

 U
SA

Va
lue

Nu
mb

er
 o

f H
old

ing
s

73
1,

46
6

W
eig

ht
ed

 A
vg

. M
ar

ke
t C

ap
. (

$B
)

68
.4

9
52

.6
8

M
ed

ian
 M

ar
ke

t C
ap

. (
$B

)
24

.4
4

7.
27

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Ea
rn

ing
s

18
.7

5
12

.2
9

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Bo
ok

2.
51

1.
65

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Sa
les

1.
51

0.
86

Re
tu

rn
 o

n 
Eq

uit
y (

%
)

17
.6

7
11

.4
2

Yi
eld

 (%
)

3.
63

4.
27

Be
ta

0.
90

1.
00

Co
un

try
 A

llo
ca

tio
n Ma

na
ge

r
In

de
x

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

_

To
ta

ls
 

 
De

ve
lop

ed
88

.9
%

72
.9

%
Em

er
gin

g*
6.

5%
27

.1
%

To
p 

10
 L

ar
ge

st
 C

ou
nt

rie
s

 
 

Sw
itz

er
lan

d
13

.7
%

3.
7%

Un
ite

d 
Ki

ng
do

m
13

.0
%

14
.4

%
Ja

pa
n

11
.0

%
16

.3
%

Au
str

ali
a

10
.7

%
4.

5%
Ge

rm
an

y
10

.0
%

6.
4%

Fr
an

ce
9.

3%
7.

2%
Ho

ng
 K

on
g

4.
7%

2.
3%

Ca
sh

4.
6%

0.
0%

Si
ng

ap
or

e
4.

5%
0.

8%
Ne

th
er

lan
ds

4.
4%

1.
1%

To
ta

l-T
op

 1
0 

La
rg

es
t C

ou
nt

rie
s

85
.9

%
56

.7
%

_

To
p 

Co
nt

rib
ut

or
s

Av
g 

W
gt

Re
tu

rn
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
FU

CH
S 

PE
TR

OL
UB

 P
RE

F.
1.

63
31

.7
7

0.
52

LE
GA

L 
& 

GE
NE

RA
L

1.
35

31
.1

3
0.

42
RO

CH
E 

HO
LD

IN
G

3.
51

11
.3

2
0.

40
TA

IW
AN

 S
EM

IC
ON

.M
NF

G.
1.

44
26

.8
8

0.
39

NA
TI

ON
AL

 G
RI

D
1.

97
17

.2
4

0.
34

BR
IT

IS
H 

AM
ER

IC
AN

TO
BA

CC
O

1.
49

19
.4

4
0.

29

KD
DI

1.
96

14
.5

1
0.

28
GE

A 
GR

OU
P

1.
26

21
.2

7
0.

27
NO

VA
RT

IS
 'R

'
2.

63
9.

35
0.

25
SS

E
1.

00
24

.1
6

0.
24

Bo
tto

m
 C

on
tri

bu
to

rs
Av

g 
W

gt
Re

tu
rn

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

TE
LE

NO
R

1.
92

-8
.8

4
-0

.1
7

NI
HO

N 
KO

HD
EN

1.
58

-5
.0

9
-0

.0
8

NE
W

CR
ES

T 
MI

NI
NG

0.
80

-9
.2

7
-0

.0
7

UN
IL

EV
ER

1.
85

-3
.6

1
-0

.0
7

NE
ST

LE
 'R

'
3.

59
-0

.3
6

-0
.0

1
AX

IA
TA

 G
RO

UP
1.

03
-0

.2
9

0.
00

VO
DA

FO
NE

 G
RO

UP
1.

46
-0

.1
9

0.
00

BP
0.

68
-0

.1
8

0.
00

ME
RI

DA
 IN

DU
ST

RY
0.

35
3.

49
0.

01
RO

YA
L 

DU
TC

H 
SH

EL
L 

B
0.

88
2.

09
0.

02

In
te
rn
at
ion

al
eq

uit
yv

alu
e
po

rtf
oli
o
of

no
n-
US

co
m
pa

nie
sw

ith
low

va
lua

tio
ns

at
th
e
co

un
try

an
d
sto

ck
lev

el.
Pr
im

ar
yp

er
so

nn
el

inc
lud

e
To

ny
Co

us
ins

,D
an

iel
M
cD

on
ag

h,
an

d
Pa

ul
Si
m
on

s.

U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

se
ct
or

al
lo
ca

tio
n
in
cl
ud

es
ca

sh
al
lo
ca

tio
ns

.

Py
rf

or
d

M
an

ag
er

 P
or

tf
ol

io
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
46



Py
rf

or
d

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 C
om

pa
ri

so
ns

 (G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
47



Py
rf

or
d

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 - 
R

ol
lin

g 
3 

Ye
ar

 (G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
48



Py
rf

or
d

R
is

k 
vs

. R
et

ur
n 

3 
&

 5
 Y

ea
r 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

5 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Py
rfo

rd
5.

7%
10

.3
%

0.
4

MS
CI

 A
CW

I e
x U

SA
 V

alu
e

3.
6%

13
.3

%
0.

2
eV

 A
CW

I e
x-U

S 
Va

lue
 E

qu
ity

 G
ro

ss
 M

ed
ian

5.
3%

13
.3

%
0.

3

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
49

3 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Py
rfo

rd
9.

5%
9.

4%
0.

8
M

SC
I A

CW
I e

x U
SA

 V
alu

e
6.

9%
11

.9
%

0.
4

eV
 A

CW
I e

x-U
S 

Va
lue

 E
qu

ity
 G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
8.

0%
12

.3
%

0.
5



To
p 

Co
nt

rib
ut

or
s

Av
g 

W
gt

Re
tu

rn
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
AL

IB
AB

A 
GR

OU
P

HO
LD

IN
G 

AD
R 

1:
8

1.
86

26
.8

3
0.

50

TA
IW

AN
SE

MI
CO

N.
SP

N.
AD

R 
1:

5
1.

84
25

.8
8

0.
48

AT
LA

S 
CO

PC
O 

A
1.

20
30

.6
4

0.
37

AS
ML

 H
OL

DI
NG

1.
70

19
.9

9
0.

34
SI

KA
1.

01
28

.2
6

0.
29

TE
NC

EN
T 

HO
LD

IN
GS

1.
93

14
.4

4
0.

28
KE

RI
NG

0.
84

28
.8

7
0.

24
LV

MH
1.

35
17

.6
0

0.
24

CS
L

1.
01

22
.9

9
0.

23
KE

YE
NC

E
1.

58
14

.4
3

0.
23

U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

se
ct
or

al
lo
ca

tio
n
in
cl
ud

es
ca

sh
al
lo
ca

tio
ns

.

Ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s

Po
rtf

oli
o

MS
CI

 A
CW

I
ex

 U
SA

Gr
ow

th
Nu

mb
er

 o
f H

old
ing

s
20

2
1,

21
4

W
eig

ht
ed

 A
vg

. M
ar

ke
t C

ap
. (

$B
)

69
.5

3
95

.3
3

M
ed

ian
 M

ar
ke

t C
ap

. (
$B

)
11

.1
1

8.
85

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Ea
rn

ing
s

27
.0

9
23

.8
0

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Bo
ok

4.
72

3.
58

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Sa
les

2.
55

1.
85

Re
tu

rn
 o

n 
Eq

uit
y (

%
)

23
.0

4
19

.0
4

Yi
eld

 (%
)

1.
40

1.
83

Be
ta

1.
14

1.
00

Co
un

try
 A

llo
ca

tio
n Ma

na
ge

r
In

de
x

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

_

To
ta

ls
 

 
De

ve
lop

ed
81

.5
%

72
.5

%
Em

er
gin

g*
17

.0
%

27
.5

%
To

p 
10

 L
ar

ge
st

 C
ou

nt
rie

s
 

 
Un

ite
d 

Ki
ng

do
m

13
.6

%
7.

4%
Ja

pa
n

12
.6

%
16

.1
%

Fr
an

ce
10

.2
%

7.
9%

Ch
ina

*
6.

6%
9.

4%
Ho

ng
 K

on
g

5.
5%

2.
3%

Ca
na

da
5.

1%
6.

6%
Sw

itz
er

lan
d

5.
0%

8.
6%

De
nm

ar
k

4.
7%

2.
2%

Ge
rm

an
y

4.
4%

5.
0%

Sw
ed

en
4.

1%
2.

1%
To

ta
l-T

op
 1

0 
La

rg
es

t C
ou

nt
rie

s
72

.0
%

67
.7

%
_

Bo
tto

m
 C

on
tri

bu
to

rs
Av

g 
W

gt
Re

tu
rn

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

SH
IS

EI
DO

1.
09

-9
.9

7
-0

.1
1

TH
AL

ES
0.

75
-9

.0
7

-0
.0

7
ST

AR
T 

TO
DA

Y
0.

30
-1

6.
71

-0
.0

5
CO

MP
AS

S 
GR

OU
P

1.
40

-2
.9

2
-0

.0
4

TE
ME

NO
S 

N
0.

70
-5

.5
4

-0
.0

4
HI

SC
OX

 D
I

0.
41

-7
.7

8
-0

.0
3

DI
GI

TA
L 

AR
TS

0.
13

-2
2.

28
-0

.0
3

TO
RO

NT
O-

DO
MI

NI
ON

BA
NK

0.
96

-2
.7

6
-0

.0
3

SA
FR

AN
1.

38
-1

.8
8

-0
.0

3
CH

RI
ST

IA
N 

HA
NS

EN
HO

LD
IN

G
0.

39
-5

.0
3

-0
.0

2

In
te
rn
at
ion

al
eq

uit
yg

ro
wt
h
po

rtf
oli
o
of

no
n-
US

co
m
pa

nie
sw

ith
hig

h
gr
ow

th
ra
te
sc

on
str

uc
te
d
fro

m
th
e
se

cu
rit
yl
ev

el.
Pr
im

ar
yp

er
so

nn
el

inc
lud

e
Si
m
on

Fe
nn

ell
an

d
Ke

nn
et
h

M
cA

ta
m
ne

y.

W
ill

ia
m

 B
la

ir
M

an
ag

er
 P

or
tf

ol
io

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
50



W
ill

ia
m

 B
la

ir
M

an
ag

er
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 C

om
pa

ri
so

ns
 (G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
51



W
ill

ia
m

 B
la

ir
M

an
ag

er
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 - 

R
ol

lin
g 

3 
&

 5
 Y

ea
r 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
52



3 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

W
illi

am
 B

lai
r

12
.9

%
12

.4
%

0.
9

M
SC

I A
CW

I e
x U

SA
 G

ro
wt

h
12

.9
%

11
.7

%
1.

0
eV

 A
CW

I e
x-U

S 
Gr

ow
th

 E
qu

ity
 G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
14

.8
%

12
.6

%
1.

0

5 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

W
illi

am
 B

lai
r

7.
3%

12
.4

%
0.

5
MS

CI
 A

CW
I e

x U
SA

 G
ro

wt
h

7.
3%

12
.4

%
0.

5
eV

 A
CW

I e
x-U

S 
Gr

ow
th

 E
qu

ity
 G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
9.

1%
12

.9
%

0.
6

W
ill

ia
m

 B
la

ir
R

is
k 

vs
. R

et
ur

n 
3 

&
 5

 Y
ea

r 
(G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
53



Ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s

Po
rtf

oli
o

M
SC

I
Em

er
gin

g
M

ar
ke

ts
Nu

mb
er

 o
f H

old
ing

s
63

5
1,

37
1

W
eig

ht
ed

 A
vg

. M
ar

ke
t C

ap
. (

$B
)

40
.9

2
10

6.
20

M
ed

ian
 M

ar
ke

t C
ap

. (
$B

)
3.

77
5.

93
Pr

ice
 T

o 
Ea

rn
ing

s
8.

76
14

.9
7

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Bo
ok

1.
67

2.
57

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Sa
les

0.
51

1.
28

Re
tu

rn
 o

n 
Eq

uit
y (

%
)

10
.6

6
16

.9
7

Yi
eld

 (%
)

4.
07

2.
69

Be
ta

 
1.

00

To
p 

Co
nt

rib
ut

or
s

En
d 

W
ei

gh
t

Re
tu

rn
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
PJ

SC
 G

AZ
PR

OM
 A

DR
 C

DI
1:

2
4.

85
19

.1
8

0.
93

SU
RG

UT
NE

FT
EG

AS
PU

BL
IC

 JO
IN

T 
AD

R 
1:

10
1.

25
50

.3
3

0.
63

SA
MS

UN
G 

EL
EC

TR
ON

IC
S

3.
13

17
.6

7
0.

55
CH

IN
A 

CO
N.

BA
NK

 'H
'

3.
62

13
.2

3
0.

48
TA

TA
 M

OT
OR

S
0.

72
56

.5
2

0.
41

PJ
SC

 L
UK

OI
L 

SP
ON

 (L
ON

)
AD

R
1.

39
23

.5
9

0.
33

IN
DL

&C
OM

L.
BO

C.
'H

'
2.

11
14

.9
8

0.
32

TA
IW

AN
SE

MI
CO

N.
SP

N.
AD

R 
1:

5
1.

08
25

.8
8

0.
28

HO
N 

HA
I P

RE
CN

.IN
D.

0.
94

28
.3

8
0.

27
ME

TA
LU

RG
IC

A 
GE

RD
AU

PN
0.

40
54

.1
8

0.
21

Co
un

try
 A

llo
ca

tio
n Ma

na
ge

r
In

de
x

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

_

To
ta

ls
 

 
De

ve
lop

ed
7.

8%
0.

0%
Em

er
gin

g*
91

.6
%

10
0.

0%
To

p 
10

 L
ar

ge
st

 C
ou

nt
rie

s
 

 
Ko

re
a*

16
.5

%
11

.8
%

Ch
ina

*
16

.2
%

33
.8

%
Ru

ss
ia*

11
.6

%
3.

9%
Ta

iw
an

*
10

.8
%

11
.8

%
Br

az
il*

9.
1%

7.
5%

Ho
ng

 K
on

g
7.

2%
0.

0%
In

dia
*

6.
5%

8.
7%

So
ut

h 
Af

ric
a*

4.
8%

4.
8%

Tu
rke

y*
4.

4%
0.

5%
Me

xic
o*

2.
9%

2.
3%

To
ta

l-T
op

 1
0 

La
rg

es
t C

ou
nt

rie
s

89
.9

%
85

.2
%

_

U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

se
ct
or

al
lo
ca

tio
n
in
cl
ud

es
ca

sh
al
lo
ca

tio
ns

.

Th
e
PI
M
CO

RA
E
Em

er
gin

g
M
ar
ke
ts
se
ek
st
o
inv

es
t8

0%
of

its
as
se
ts
in
inv

es
tm

en
ts
th
at

ar
e
ec
on

om
ica

lly
tie
d
to

em
er
gin

g
m
ar
ke
tc
ou

nt
rie

s.
Th

e
po

rtf
oli
o
is
su
b-
ad

vis
ed

by
Re

se
ar
ch

Af
fili
at
es
,L

LC
.

PI
M

C
O

 R
A

E
 E

m
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

M
an

ag
er

 P
or

tf
ol

io
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Bo
tto

m
 C

on
tri

bu
to

rs
En

d 
W

ei
gh

t
Re

tu
rn

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

JB
S 

ON
0.

43
-1

8.
53

-0
.0

8
HY

UN
DA

I M
OT

OR
0.

99
-6

.9
9

-0
.0

7
TE

LK
OM

 S
A 

SO
C

0.
11

-4
5.

68
-0

.0
5

TU
RK

IY
E 

HA
LK

 B
AN

KA
SI

0.
34

-1
4.

52
-0

.0
5

MT
N 

GR
OU

P
0.

69
-7

.1
2

-0
.0

5
CH

IN
A 

TE
LE

CO
M 

'H
'

0.
45

-9
.5

3
-0

.0
4

CH
IN

A 
UN

IC
OM

 (H
ON

G
KO

NG
)

0.
36

-1
1.

24
-0

.0
4

HY
UN

DA
I S

TE
EL

0.
20

-1
6.

38
-0

.0
3

CE
NC

OS
UD

0.
15

-2
0.

11
-0

.0
3

IN
DI

AN
 O

IL
0.

18
-1

5.
43

-0
.0

3

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
54



PI
M

C
O

 R
A

E
 E

m
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 C
om

pa
ri

so
ns

 (G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
55



Ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s

Po
rtf

oli
o

M
SC

I
Em

er
gin

g
M

ar
ke

ts
Nu

mb
er

 o
f H

old
ing

s
66

1,
37

1
W

eig
ht

ed
 A

vg
. M

ar
ke

t C
ap

. (
$B

)
91

.3
2

10
6.

20
M

ed
ian

 M
ar

ke
t C

ap
. (

$B
)

9.
58

5.
93

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Ea
rn

ing
s

14
.2

5
14

.9
7

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Bo
ok

2.
57

2.
57

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Sa
les

1.
37

1.
28

Re
tu

rn
 o

n 
Eq

uit
y (

%
)

18
.2

6
16

.9
7

Yi
eld

 (%
)

2.
16

2.
69

Be
ta

 
1.

00

Bo
tto

m
 C

on
tri

bu
to

rs
En

d 
W

ei
gh

t
Re

tu
rn

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

LA
RS

EN
 &

 T
OU

BR
O

1.
47

-1
2.

57
-0

.1
9

OC
I

1.
35

-1
0.

87
-0

.1
5

FU
TU

RE
 R

ET
AI

L
0.

97
-1

0.
90

-0
.1

1
PK

O 
BA

NK
1.

45
-7

.2
3

-0
.1

0
UL

TR
AT

EC
H 

CE
ME

NT
1.

27
-7

.4
7

-0
.0

9
AY

AL
A 

LA
ND

0.
69

-5
.3

1
-0

.0
4

TC
I

0.
60

-5
.6

1
-0

.0
3

AR
VI

ND
 F

AS
HI

ON
S

0.
19

-1
0.

24
-0

.0
2

CE
ME

X 
AD

R 
1:

10
0.

72
-2

.3
0

-0
.0

2
PT

RO
.B

RA
O.

AD
R 

1:
2

0.
00

15
.9

1
0.

00

To
p 

Co
nt

rib
ut

or
s

En
d 

W
ei

gh
t

Re
tu

rn
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
AL

IB
AB

A 
GR

OU
P

HO
LD

IN
G 

AD
R 

1:
8

7.
37

26
.8

3
1.

98

SA
MS

UN
G 

EL
TN

.P
RE

F.
6.

27
18

.8
8

1.
18

TA
IW

AN
 S

EM
IC

ON
.M

NF
G.

2.
80

26
.8

8
0.

75
ES

TA
CI

O
PA

RT
IC

IP
AC

OE
S 

ON
1.

81
36

.3
2

0.
66

IC
IC

I B
AN

K
2.

73
23

.3
7

0.
64

TE
NC

EN
T 

HO
LD

IN
GS

3.
64

14
.4

4
0.

53
LU

KO
IL

 O
AO

 S
PN

.A
DR

 1
:1

2.
22

23
.0

3
0.

51
GU

AN
GZ

HO
U

AU
TO

MO
BI

LE
 G

P.
 'H

'
1.

63
30

.1
2

0.
49

BA
NC

O 
DO

 B
RA

SI
L 

ON
2.

22
21

.6
1

0.
48

HA
NS

OL
 C

HE
MI

CA
L

1.
23

37
.7

4
0.

46

Co
un

try
 A

llo
ca

tio
n Ma

na
ge

r
In

de
x

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

_

To
ta

ls
 

 
De

ve
lop

ed
21

.4
%

0.
0%

Em
er

gin
g*

74
.7

%
10

0.
0%

Fr
on

tie
r**

0.
8%

0.
0%

To
p 

10
 L

ar
ge

st
 C

ou
nt

rie
s

 
 

In
dia

*
14

.6
%

8.
7%

Ko
re

a*
13

.7
%

11
.8

%
Br

az
il*

12
.7

%
7.

5%
Ch

ina
*

12
.6

%
33

.8
%

Ho
ng

 K
on

g
7.

4%
0.

0%
Ta

iw
an

*
6.

1%
11

.8
%

Un
ite

d 
St

at
es

5.
4%

0.
0%

Ru
ss

ia*
4.

8%
3.

9%
So

ut
h 

Af
ric

a*
4.

4%
4.

8%
Ne

th
er

lan
ds

3.
7%

0.
0%

To
ta

l-T
op

 1
0 

La
rg

es
t C

ou
nt

rie
s

86
.0

%
82

.4
%

_

U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

se
ct
or

al
lo
ca

tio
n
in
cl
ud

es
ca

sh
al
lo
ca

tio
ns

.

TT
 E

m
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

M
an

ag
er

 P
or

tf
ol

io
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Th
e
Em

er
gin

g
M
ar
ke

ts
Un

co
ns

tra
ine

d
str

at
eg

ya
im

st
o
ou

tp
er
fo
rm

its
be

nc
hm

ar
k,

M
SC

IE
m
er
gin

g
M
ar
ke

ts
In
de

xb
y5

%
pe

ra
nn

um
ov

er
a
th
re
e-
ye

ar
ro
llin

g
pe

rio
d.

It
ta
rg
et
sh

igh
re
tu
rn
sa

nd
lon

g
te
rm

ca
pit

al
gr
ow

th
by

inv
es

tin
g
in

a
fo
cu

se
d
po

rtf
oli
o
of

pr
im

ar
ily

eq
uit

ya
nd

eq
uit

y-
re
lat

ed
se

cu
rit
ies

tra
de

d
in

th
e
Em

er
gin

g
M
ar
ke

ts.

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
56



TT
 E

m
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 C
om

pa
ri

so
ns

 (G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
57



   
  G

lo
ba

l E
qu

ity
 M

an
ag

er
s



A
rt

is
an

 P
ar

tn
er

s
M

an
ag

er
 P

or
tf

ol
io

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9
Gl
ob

al
eq

uit
yp

or
tfo

lio
of

co
m
pa

nie
st
ha

tis
be

nc
hm

ar
ka

gn
os
tic

wi
th

ac
ce
ler

at
ing

pr
of
itc

yc
les

an
d
a
fo
cu
so

n
ca
pit
al
all
oc
at
ion

.P
rim

ar
yp

er
so
nn

el
inc

lud
e
Ja
m
es

Ha
m
el,

Cr
aig

h
Ce

pu
ke
na

s,
an

d
M
at
th
ew

Ka
m
m
.

 

To
p 

Co
nt

rib
ut

or
s

Av
g 

W
gt

Re
tu

rn
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
AD

VA
NC

ED
 M

IC
RO

DE
VI

CE
S

2.
29

58
.1

9
1.

33

IH
S 

MA
RK

IT
6.

36
12

.6
6

0.
81

BA
NK

 O
F 

AM
ER

IC
A

3.
50

21
.4

0
0.

75
TE

CH
TR

ON
IC

 IN
DS

.
3.

88
17

.2
1

0.
67

VE
ST

AS
 W

IN
DS

YS
TE

MS
2.

08
30

.2
3

0.
63

MI
CR

OS
OF

T
3.

84
13

.8
2

0.
53

AN
TH

EM
1.

89
26

.1
4

0.
49

CE
RI

DI
AN

 H
CM

 H
OL

DI
NG

1.
15

37
.4

9
0.

43
LO

ND
ON

 S
TO

CK
EX

.G
RO

UP
2.

90
14

.0
0

0.
41

TE
NC

EN
T 

HO
LD

IN
GS

2.
57

14
.4

4
0.

37

Bo
tto

m
 C

on
tri

bu
to

rs
Av

g 
W

gt
Re

tu
rn

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

PA
GS

EG
UR

O 
DI

GI
TA

L 
A

1.
76

-2
6.

24
-0

.4
6

AR
IS

TA
 N

ET
W

OR
KS

2.
10

-1
4.

87
-0

.3
1

L3
HA

RR
IS

TE
CH

NO
LO

GI
ES

3.
54

-4
.8

0
-0

.1
7

TR
EA

SU
RY

 W
IN

E
ES

TA
TE

S
1.

47
-8

.8
5

-0
.1

3

VE
EV

A 
SY

ST
EM

S 
CL

.A
1.

55
-7

.8
8

-0
.1

2
PR

OG
RE

SS
IV

E 
OH

IO
1.

56
-6

.1
7

-0
.1

0
FE

VE
RT

RE
E 

DR
IN

KS
1.

34
-7

.1
4

-0
.1

0
TE

ME
NO

S 
N

1.
30

-5
.5

4
-0

.0
7

ZO
OM

 V
ID

EO
CO

MM
UN

IC
AT

IO
NS

 A
0.

63
-1

0.
71

-0
.0

7

AT
LA

SS
IA

N 
'A

'
1.

06
-4

.0
7

-0
.0

4

Ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s
Po

rtf
oli

o
MS

CI
 A

CW
I

Nu
mb

er
 o

f H
old

ing
s

47
3,

01
7

W
eig

ht
ed

 A
vg

. M
ar

ke
t C

ap
. (

$B
)

12
5.

91
17

6.
60

M
ed

ian
 M

ar
ke

t C
ap

. (
$B

)
35

.9
1

9.
96

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Ea
rn

ing
s

32
.8

4
19

.4
3

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Bo
ok

5.
69

3.
08

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Sa
les

3.
04

1.
56

Re
tu

rn
 o

n 
Eq

uit
y (

%
)

20
.7

3
19

.3
6

Yi
eld

 (%
)

0.
92

2.
36

Be
ta

1.
19

1.
00

Co
un

try
 A

llo
ca

tio
n Ma

na
ge

r
In

de
x

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

_

To
ta

ls
 

 
De

ve
lop

ed
92

.5
%

87
.9

%
Em

er
gin

g*
1.

4%
12

.1
%

To
p 

10
 L

ar
ge

st
 C

ou
nt

rie
s

 
 

Un
ite

d 
St

at
es

56
.4

%
55

.7
%

Un
ite

d 
Ki

ng
do

m
10

.8
%

4.
8%

De
nm

ar
k

6.
4%

0.
5%

Ca
sh

6.
1%

0.
0%

Ho
ng

 K
on

g
5.

7%
1.

0%
Sw

itz
er

lan
d

3.
5%

2.
7%

Ja
pa

n
3.

2%
7.

2%
Sp

ain
2.

4%
0.

8%
Ne

th
er

lan
ds

2.
3%

1.
2%

Ge
rm

an
y

1.
9%

2.
5%

To
ta

l-T
op

 1
0 

La
rg

es
t C

ou
nt

rie
s

98
.6

%
76

.5
%

_

U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

se
ct
or

al
lo
ca

tio
n
in
cl
ud

es
ca

sh
al
lo
ca

tio
ns

.

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
59



A
rt

is
an

 P
ar

tn
er

s
M

an
ag

er
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 C

om
pa

ri
so

ns
 (G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
60



A
rt

is
an

 P
ar

tn
er

s
M

an
ag

er
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 - 

R
ol

lin
g 

3 
Ye

ar
 (G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
61



A
rt

is
an

 P
ar

tn
er

s
R

is
k 

vs
. R

et
ur

n 
3 

&
 5

 Y
ea

r 
(G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

3 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Ar
tis

an
 P

ar
tn

er
s

18
.8

%
12

.7
%

1.
3

M
SC

I A
CW

I
12

.4
%

11
.4

%
0.

9
eV

 A
ll G

lob
al 

Eq
uit

y G
ro

ss
 M

ed
ian

12
.3

%
11

.7
%

1.
0

5 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Ar
tis

an
 P

ar
tn

er
s

14
.1

%
13

.1
%

1.
0

MS
CI

 A
CW

I
8.

4%
11

.8
%

0.
6

eV
 A

ll G
lob

al 
Eq

uit
y G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
8.

8%
12

.0
%

0.
7

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
62



Gl
ob

al
eq

uit
yp

or
tfo

lio
th
at

is
be

nc
hm

ar
ka

gn
os
tic

co
m
pr
ise

d
of

co
m
pa

nie
sw

ith
low

va
lua

tio
ns
.P

rim
ar
yp

er
so
nn

el
inc

lud
e
M
at
tM

cL
en

na
n
an

d
Ki
m
ba

llB
ro
ok
er
.

U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

se
ct
or

al
lo
ca

tio
n
in
cl
ud

es
ca

sh
al
lo
ca

tio
ns

an
d
G
ol
d
al
lo
ca

tio
ns

(8
.9
%

as
of

12
/3
1/
20

19
).

Co
un

try
 A

llo
ca

tio
n Ma

na
ge

r
In

de
x

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

_

To
ta

ls
 

 
De

ve
lop

ed
80

.1
%

87
.9

%
Em

er
gin

g*
4.

1%
12

.1
%

To
p 

10
 L

ar
ge

st
 C

ou
nt

rie
s

 
 

Un
ite

d 
St

at
es

46
.2

%
55

.7
%

Ca
sh

15
.9

%
0.

0%
Ja

pa
n

11
.4

%
7.

2%
Fr

an
ce

5.
3%

3.
3%

Un
ite

d 
Ki

ng
do

m
5.

1%
4.

8%
Ca

na
da

3.
5%

3.
0%

Ko
re

a*
2.

0%
1.

4%
Sw

itz
er

lan
d

1.
9%

2.
7%

Si
ng

ap
or

e
1.

5%
0.

4%
Sw

ed
en

1.
1%

0.
8%

To
ta

l-T
op

 1
0 

La
rg

es
t C

ou
nt

rie
s

93
.8

%
79

.3
%

_

To
p 

Co
nt

rib
ut

or
s

Av
g 

W
gt

Re
tu

rn
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
BR

IT
IS

H 
AM

ER
IC

AN
TO

BA
CC

O
0.

48
19

.4
4

0.
09

SC
HL

UM
BE

RG
ER

0.
47

19
.3

3
0.

09
SP

DR
 G

OL
D 

SH
AR

ES
3.

03
2.

90
0.

09
KD

DI
0.

51
14

.5
1

0.
07

LL
OY

DS
 B

AN
KI

NG
 G

RO
UP

0.
25

24
.1

5
0.

06
PH

IL
IP

 M
OR

RI
S 

IN
TL

.
0.

41
13

.5
9

0.
06

W
EY

ER
HA

EU
SE

R
0.

52
10

.2
9

0.
05

BE
RK

EL
EY

 G
RO

UP
HD

G.
(T

HE
)

0.
20

24
.9

9
0.

05

TI
FF

AN
Y 

& 
CO

0.
11

44
.9

1
0.

05
BA

NK
 O

F 
NE

W
 Y

OR
K

ME
LL

ON
0.

39
12

.0
7

0.
05

Ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s
Po

rtf
oli

o
MS

CI
 A

CW
I

Nu
mb

er
 o

f H
old

ing
s

13
9

3,
01

7
W

eig
ht

ed
 A

vg
. M

ar
ke

t C
ap

. (
$B

)
80

.3
5

17
6.

60
M

ed
ian

 M
ar

ke
t C

ap
. (

$B
)

22
.3

2
9.

96
Pr

ice
 T

o 
Ea

rn
ing

s
17

.4
1

19
.4

3
Pr

ice
 T

o 
Bo

ok
2.

37
3.

08
Pr

ice
 T

o 
Sa

les
1.

49
1.

56
Re

tu
rn

 o
n 

Eq
uit

y (
%

)
14

.8
4

19
.3

6
Yi

eld
 (%

)
2.

27
2.

36
Be

ta
0.

68
1.

00

Bo
tto

m
 C

on
tri

bu
to

rs
En

d 
W

ei
gh

t
Re

tu
rn

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

DA
NO

NE
1.

34
-5

.8
5

-0
.0

8
TE

RA
DA

TA
0.

56
-1

3.
65

-0
.0

8
OR

AC
LE

2.
26

-3
.3

0
-0

.0
7

SO
MP

O 
HO

LD
IN

GS
1.

24
-5

.3
3

-0
.0

7
TE

CH
NI

PF
MC

0.
61

-1
0.

59
-0

.0
6

CH
 R

OB
IN

SO
N 

W
W

D.
0.

85
-7

.1
5

-0
.0

6
CO

LG
AT

E-
PA

LM
.

1.
01

-5
.7

5
-0

.0
6

KT
 &

 G
0.

68
-8

.0
4

-0
.0

5
NE

W
CR

ES
T 

MI
NI

NG
0.

38
-9

.2
7

-0
.0

4
NU

TR
IE

N 
(N

YS
)

1.
08

-3
.0

4
-0

.0
3

Fi
rs

t E
ag

le
M

an
ag

er
 P

or
tf

ol
io

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
63



Fi
rs

t E
ag

le
M

an
ag

er
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 C

om
pa

ri
so

ns
 (G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
64



Fi
rs

t E
ag

le
M

an
ag

er
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 - 

R
ol

lin
g 

3 
&

 5
 Y

ea
r 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
65



5 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Fir
st 

Ea
gle

7.
6%

8.
6%

0.
8

MS
CI

 A
CW

I
8.

4%
11

.8
%

0.
6

eV
 A

ll G
lob

al 
Eq

uit
y G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
8.

8%
12

.0
%

0.
7

3 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Fi
rst

 E
ag

le
8.

8%
8.

4%
0.

8
M

SC
I A

CW
I

12
.4

%
11

.4
%

0.
9

eV
 A

ll G
lob

al 
Eq

uit
y G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
12

.3
%

11
.7

%
1.

0

Fi
rs

t E
ag

le
R

is
k 

vs
. R

et
ur

n 
3 

&
 5

 Y
ea

r 
(G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
66



   
  H

ig
h 

Yi
el

d 
Ma

na
ge

rs



Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
9

Q
ua

lity
 d

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
ex

cl
ud

es
 c

as
h.

C
o

n
tr

a
 C

o
s

ta
 C

o
u

n
ty

 E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

' 
R

e
ti

re
m

e
n

t 
A

s
s

o
c

ia
ti

o
n

6
8

Yi
el

d 
to

 M
at

ur
ity

Av
er

ag
e 

Q
ua

lit
y

Av
er

ag
e 

Co
up

on

Al
lia

nz
 G

lo
ba

l I
nv

es
to

rs
M

an
ag

er
 P

or
tf

ol
io

 O
ve

rv
ie

w Al
lia

nz
IC

E 
Bo

fA
M

L 
HY

 
M

as
te

r I
I

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
Du

ra
tio

n
3.

20

5.
30 B1 6.
4%

3.
30

6.
00 B1 6.
3%

Do
me

sti
c h

igh
 yi

eld
 fix

ed
 in

co
me

 po
rtf

oli
o w

ith
 a 

foc
us

 on
 se

cu
rity

 se
lec

tio
n. 

Pr
im

ar
y p

er
so

nn
el 

inc
lud

e D
ou

gla
s F

or
sy

th,
 Ju

sti
nK

as
s, 

W
illi

am
 S

tic
kn

ey
, a

nd
 M

ich
ae

l Y
ee

.

0%

50
%

31
%

16
%

4%
0%10

%
20

%
30

%
40

%
50

%
60

%

BB
B

BB
B

<B
N

ot
 R

at
ed

Q
ua

lit
y 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n

10
%

15
%

5%

32
%

13
%

0%

13
%

8%
4%

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

En
er

gy
/U

til
iti

es
In

du
st

ria
ls

Fi
na

nc
ia

ls
Te

le
co

m
/M

ed
ia

Co
ns

um
er

 P
ro

du
ct

s
Fo

re
ig

n
He

al
th

 C
ar

e
O

th
er

Ca
sh

Se
ct

or
 D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n

8%

22
%

47
%

21
%

2%
0%10

%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

<1
 Y

r
1-

3 
Yr

s
3-

5 
Yr

s
5-

7 
Yr

s
>7

 Y
rs

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
D

ur
at

io
n 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n



A
lli

an
z 

G
lo

ba
l I

nv
es

to
rs

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 C
om

pa
ri

so
ns

 (G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
69



A
lli

an
z 

G
lo

ba
l I

nv
es

to
rs

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 - 
R

ol
lin

g 
3 

&
 5

 Y
ea

r 
(G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
70



5 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Al
lia

nz
 G

lob
al 

In
ve

sto
rs

5.
7%

5.
2%

0.
9

IC
E 

Bo
fA

ML
 H

igh
 Y

iel
d 

Ma
ste

r I
I

6.
1%

5.
4%

0.
9

eV
 U

S 
Hi

gh
 Y

iel
d 

Fix
ed

 In
c G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
6.

1%
4.

7%
1.

1

3 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Al
lia

nz
 G

lob
al 

In
ve

sto
rs

6.
2%

4.
4%

1.
0

IC
E 

Bo
fA

ML
 H

igh
 Y

iel
d 

Ma
ste

r I
I

6.
3%

4.
2%

1.
1

eV
 U

S 
Hi

gh
 Y

iel
d 

Fix
ed

 In
c G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
6.

4%
3.

9%
1.

3

A
lli

an
z 

G
lo

ba
l I

nv
es

to
rs

R
is

k 
vs

. R
et

ur
n 

3 
&

 5
 Y

ea
r 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
71



   
  R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
Ma

na
ge

rs



Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
9

4.
2%

 is
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 C

as
h 

an
d 

C
as

h 
E

qu
iv

al
en

ts
.

C
o

n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 C
o

u
n

ty
 E

m
p

lo
y
e
e
s
' 
R

e
ti

re
m

e
n

t 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
7

3

7.
2%

6.
8%

6.
4%

5.
4%

5.
0%

In
du

st
ria

l

Re
gi

on
al

 R
et

ai
l

In
du

st
ria

l M
ix

ed

Ap
ar

tm
en

ts

He
al

th
ca

re

Pr
oL

og
is

 In
c.

Si
m

on
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

G
ro

up
, I

nc
.

Eq
ui

ni
x 

In
c

Eq
ui

ty
 R

es
id

en
tia

l

HC
P 

In
c.

A
de

la
nt

e
M

an
ag

er
 P

or
tfo

lio
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

Co
m

pa
ny

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
yp

e
Al

lo
ca

tio
n

To
p 

Fi
ve

 H
ol

di
ng

s

Di
ve

rsi
fie

d p
or

tfo
lio

 of
 U

.S
. R

EI
Ts

 w
ith

 a 
foc

us
 on

 th
e u

nd
er

lyi
ng

 re
al 

es
tat

e a
ss

ets

2.
8%2.

9%
3.

7%
3.

3%
2.

3%
1.

9%
4.

6%
5.

6%
2.

8%
6.

0%
4.

6%
2.

0%
1.

5%

0.
0%

1.
0%

2.
0%

3.
0%

4.
0%

5.
0%

6.
0%

7.
0%

Ap
ar

tm
en

ts
Di

ve
rs

ifi
ed

/S
pe

ci
al

ty
St

or
ag

e
Ho

te
ls

In
du

st
ria

l
In

du
st

ria
l M

ix
ed

Re
ta

il-
Lo

ca
l

Re
ta

il-
Re

gi
on

al
O

ffi
ce

Tr
ip

le
-N

et
 L

ea
se

He
al

th
ca

re
M

an
uf

ac
tu

re
d 

Ho
m

es
Si

ng
le

 F
am

ily
 H

om
es

D
iv

id
en

d 
Yi

el
d 

by
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

Ty
pe

15
.3

%

2.
3%

6.
7%

4.
5%

8.
7%

15
.6

%

5.
5%

6.
8%

13
.5

%

1.
1%

9.
6%

3.
4%

2.
7%

0.
0%

2.
0%

4.
0%

6.
0%

8.
0%

10
.0

%

12
.0

%

14
.0

%

16
.0

%

18
.0

%

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
yp

e 
Al

lo
ca

tio
n



   
  D

iv
er

si
fy

in
g 

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e 
Ma

na
ge

rs



Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
9

D
ur

at
io

n 
an

d 
Q

ua
lity

 d
is

tri
bu

tio
ns

 e
xc

lu
de

 c
as

h.

C
o

n
tr

a
 C

o
s

ta
 C

o
u

n
ty

 E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

' 
R

e
ti

re
m

e
n

t 
A

s
s

o
c

ia
ti

o
n

7
5

Av
er

ag
e 

Co
up

on
3.

2%
3.

2%

Yi
el

d 
to

 M
at

ur
ity

3.
10

2.
32

Av
er

ag
e 

Q
ua

lit
y

AA
A

AA
/A

A+

AF
L-

CI
O

M
an

ag
er

 P
or

tf
ol

io
 O

ve
rv

ie
w AF

L-
CI

O
BB

gB
ar

c 
Ag

gr
eg

at
e

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
Du

ra
tio

n
5.

69
5.

87

Do
me

sti
c c

or
e f

ixe
d i

nc
om

e p
or

tfo
lio

 w
ith

 an
 ex

clu
siv

e f
oc

us
 on

 m
or

tga
ge

-re
lat

ed
 se

cu
riti

es
. P

rim
ar

y p
er

so
nn

el 
inc

lud
e S

tep
he

n C
oy

le 
an

d C
ha

ng
 S

u.

94
%

5%
0%

0%
0%

2%

72
%

3%
11

%
14

%
0%

0%
0%25

%
50

%
75

%
10

0%

AA
A

AA
A

BB
B

<B
BB

N
ot

 R
at

ed

Q
ua

lit
y 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n
AF

L-
CI

O
BB

gB
ar

c 
Ag

gr
eg

at
e

4%
2%

86
%

0%
0%

6%
0%

1%

42
%

25
%

30
%

0%
1%

1%
0%

0%
0%25

%

50
%

75
%

10
0%

U
ST

re
as

ur
y/

Ag
en

cy
Co

rp
or

at
e

M
BS

AB
S

Fo
re

ig
n

M
un

i
O

th
er

Ca
sh

Se
ct

or
 D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n

AF
L-

CI
O

BB
gB

ar
c 

Ag
gr

eg
at

e

14
%

8%
21

%
24

%
23

%

8%
0%

24
%

26
%

28
%

7%
15

%

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

<1
 Y

r
1-

3 
Yr

s
3-

5 
Yr

s
5-

7 
Yr

s
7-

10
 Y

rs
>1

0 
Yr

s

D
ur

at
io

n 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n

AF
L-

CI
O

BB
gB

ar
c 

Ag
gr

eg
at

e



A
FL

-C
IO

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 C
om

pa
ri

so
ns

 (G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
76



A
FL

-C
IO

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 - 
R

ol
lin

g 
3 

&
 5

 Y
ea

r 
(G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
77



5 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

AF
L-

CI
O

3.
2%

2.
8%

0.
8

BB
gB

ar
c U

S 
Ag

gr
eg

at
e 

TR
3.

0%
3.

1%
0.

7
eV

 U
S 

Co
re

 F
ixe

d 
In

c G
ro

ss
 M

ed
ian

3.
4%

3.
0%

0.
8

3 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

AF
L-

CI
O

4.
1%

2.
8%

0.
9

BB
gB

ar
c U

S 
Ag

gr
eg

at
e 

TR
4.

0%
2.

9%
0.

8
eV

 U
S 

Co
re

 F
ixe

d 
In

c G
ro

ss
 M

ed
ian

4.
4%

2.
8%

1.
0

A
FL

-C
IO

R
is

k 
vs

. R
et

ur
n 

3 
&

 5
 Y

ea
r 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
78



Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
9

C
o

n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 C
o

u
n

ty
 E

m
p

lo
y
e
e
s
' 
R

e
ti

re
m

e
n

t 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
7

9

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
D

ur
at

io
n 

(Y
ea

rs
)

W
el

lin
gt

on
 T

ot
al

 R
et

ur
n

91
5

11
2

5.
60

W
el

lin
gt

on
 T

ot
al

 R
et

ur
n

M
an

ag
er

 P
or

tf
ol

io
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

N
um

be
r o

f E
qu

ity
 H

ol
di

ng
s

N
um

be
r o

f C
om

m
od

ity
 H

ol
di

ng
s

Ta
cti

ca
l m

ult
i‐a

ss
et 

cla
ss

 re
al 

re
tur

n s
tra

teg
y w

ith
 a 

foc
us

 on
 m

an
ag

ing
 ris

k o
f a

cti
ve

 st
ra

teg
ies

 us
ed

 to
 ga

in 
ex

po
su

re
 to

 at
tra

cti
ve

 as
se

ts 
of 

ma
rke

ts.

76
%

1%
0%

22
%

0%

-5
%

15
%

35
%

55
%

75
%

95
%

Eq
ui

tie
s

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e
Co

m
m

od
iti

es
Ca

sh
 &

Eq
ui

va
le

nt
s

Cu
rr

en
cy

As
se

t A
llo

ca
tio

n

0%
2%

6%

16
%

-3
%

0%

0%

1%
1%

0%

44
%

22
%

9%

-1
0%0%10

%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

Co
nt

in
en

ta
l

Eu
ro

pe
N

or
th

Am
er

ic
a

U
ni

te
d

Ki
ng

do
m

Ja
pa

n
As

ia
 P

ac
ifi

c
ex

-Ja
pa

n
M

id
dl

e 
Ea

st
De

ve
lo

pe
d

La
tin

 A
m

er
ic

a
Em

er
gi

ng
Eu

ro
pe

Em
er

gi
ng

 A
sia

Af
ric

a 
M

id
dl

e
Ea

st
U

ni
te

d 
St

at
es

Ca
sh

O
th

er

Re
gi

on
 D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n



   
  L

iq
ui

di
ty

 M
an

ag
er

s



Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
9

C
o

n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 C
o

u
n

ty
 E

m
p

lo
y
e
e
s
' 
R

e
ti

re
m

e
n

t 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
8

1

Av
er

ag
e 

Co
up

on

DF
A

IC
E 

Bo
fA

M
L 

1-
5y

r 
G

ov
t/

Cr
ed

2.
60

%
2.

43
%

AA
+

A+

1.
83

2.
10

2.
60

1.
06

Yi
el

d 
to

 M
at

ur
ity

D
FA

 S
ho

rt
 C

re
di

t
M

an
ag

er
 P

or
tf

ol
io

 O
ve

rv
ie

w

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
D

ur
at

io
n

Av
er

ag
e 

Q
ua

lit
y

Do
me

sti
c s

ho
rt

ter
m 

US
 cr

ed
it f

ixe
d i

nc
om

e p
or

tfo
lio

 th
at 

ma
xim

ize
st

ota
l re

tur
n t

hr
ou

gh
 in

co
me

 an
d c

ap
ita

l a
pp

re
cia

tio
n. 

Pr
im

ar
y p

er
so

nn
el 

inc
lud

e D
av

e P
lec

ha
 an

d J
os

ep
h K

ole
ric

h.

28
%

56
%

10
%

73
%

27
%

0%
0%20

%

40
%

60
%

80
%

U
ST

re
as

ur
y/

Ag
en

cy
Co

rp
or

at
e

Fl
oa

tin
g 

Ra
te

 N
ot

e

Se
ct

or
 D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n

DF
A

IC
E 

Bo
fA

M
L 

1-
5y

r G
ov

t/
Cr

ed

17
%

19
%

20
%

26
%

17
%

0%

69
%

5%
13

%
10

%
4%

0%
0%20

%

40
%

60
%

80
%

AA
A

AA
A

BB
B

<B
BB

N
ot

 R
at

ed

Q
ua

lit
y 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n

DF
A

IC
E 

Bo
fA

M
L 

1-
5y

r G
ov

t/
Cr

ed

45
%

5%
3%

5%

37
%

6%
0%

0%
0%

2%

62
%

36
%

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

0-
3 

M
on

th
s

3-
6 

M
on

th
s

6-
9 

M
on

th
s

9-
12

 M
on

th
s

1-
3 

Yr
s

3-
5 

Yr
s

D
ur

at
io

n 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n

DF
A

IC
E 

Bo
fA

M
L 

1-
5y

r G
ov

t/
Cr

ed



Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
9

C
o

n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 C
o

u
n

ty
 E

m
p

lo
y
e
e
s
' 
R

e
ti

re
m

e
n

t 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
8

2

In
si

gh
t S

ho
rt

 D
ur

at
io

n
M

an
ag

er
 P

or
tfo

lio
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

In
is

ig
ht

BB
gB

ar
c 

1-
3y

r G
ov

t

Av
er

ag
e 

Co
up

on
2.

63
%

2.
01

%

E f
fe

ct
iv

e 
Du

ra
tio

n
1.

54
1.
89

Yi
el

d 
to

 M
at

ur
ity

2.
00

1.
96

Av
er

ag
e 

Q
ua

lit
y

A+
AA

A

Hi
gh

qu
ali

ty,
 sh

or
t d

ur
ati

on
 m

ult
i-s

ec
tor

 fix
ed

 in
co

me
 po

rtf
oli

o c
om

pr
ise

d o
f T

re
as

ur
ies

, A
ge

nc
ies

, in
ve

stm
en

t g
ra

de
 co

rp
or

ate
s, 

an
dA

BS
 de

sig
ne

d s
pe

cif
ica

lly
 to

 m
ee

t C
CC

ER
A'

s l
iab

ilit
ies

. K
ey

 
pe

rso
nn

el 
inc

lud
e G

er
ar

d B
er

rig
an

 an
d J

es
se

 F
og

ar
ty.

16
%

6%

65
%

12
%

0%
1%

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

AA
A

AA
A

BB
B

<B
BB

N
ot

 R
at

ed

Q
ua

lit
y 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n

In
isg

ht

0%
1%

1%
5%

23
%

3%
9%

24
%

2%
9%

10
%

10
%

4%

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

AB
S 

ot
he

r
Ca

r l
oa

n
Ca

sh
Co

ns
um

er
cy

cl
ic

al
Co

ns
um

er
no

n-
cy

cl
ic

al
Cr

ed
it 

ca
rd

En
er

gy
Fi

na
nc

ia
ls

Fo
re

ig
n

Ag
en

ci
es

In
du

st
ria

ls
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

U
S 

tr
ea

su
ry

 /
ag

en
cy

U
til

iti
es

Se
ct

or
 D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n

In
isg

ht

4%
1%

85
%

10
%

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

AB
S

Ca
sh

 &
 o

th
er

Co
rp

or
at

e
U

S 
tr

ea
su

ry
 / 

ag
en

cy

As
se

t A
llo

ca
tio

n 
Ex

po
su

re



Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
9

C
o

n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 C
o

u
n

ty
 E

m
p

lo
y
e
e
s
' 
R

e
ti

re
m

e
n

t 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
8

3

6.
30

%
2.
01

%
Av

er
ag

e 
Co

up
on

1.
96

AA
A

Av
er

ag
e 

Q
ua

lit
y

AA
A

Si
t S

ho
rt

 D
ur

at
io

n
M

an
ag

er
 P

or
tf

ol
io

 O
ve

rv
ie

w

Ad
ju

st
ed

 D
ur

at
io

n

Yi
el

d 
to

 M
at

ur
ity

Si
t

2.
60

2.
60

BB
gB

ar
c

1-
3y

r G
ov

t

1.
89

Sh
or

td
ur

ati
on

fix
ed

 in
co

me
 po

rtf
oli

o w
ith

 a 
foc

us
 on

 ea
rn

ing
 hi

gh
 le

ve
ls 

of 
int

er
es

t in
co

me
. P

rim
ar

y p
er

so
nn

el 
inc

lud
e B

ryc
e D

oty
,P

au
l J

un
gq

uis
t a

nd
 M

ich
ae

l B
rill

ey
.

1%

66
%

33
%

0%
0%

0%

10
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%20

%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

12
0%

<1
 Y

r
1-

3 
Yr

s
3-

5 
Yr

s
5-

10
 Y

rs
>1

0 
Yr

s

Du
ra

tio
n 

Di
st

rib
ut

io
n

Si
t

BB
gB

ar
c 

1-
3y

r G
ov

t

10
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%

10
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%20

%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

12
0%

AA
A

AA
A

BB
B

<B
BB

N
ot

 R
at

ed

Q
ua

lit
y 

Di
st

rib
ut

io
n

Si
t

BB
gB

ar
c 

1-
3y

r G
ov

t

0%
0%

0%

47
%

0%

47
%

0%
5%

10
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%20

%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

12
0%

U
ST

re
as

ur
y/

Ag
en

cy
Co

rp
or

at
e

AB
S

M
or

tg
ag

e 
pa

ss
-t

hr
ou

gh
M

ut
ua

l f
un

ds
CM

O
's/

CM
BS

M
un

i
Ca

sh

Se
ct

or
 D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n

Si
t

BB
gB

ar
c 

1-
3y

r G
ov

t



D
at

a 
So

ur
ce

s 
&

 M
et

ho
do

lo
gy

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
84



D
at

a 
So

ur
ce

s 
&

 M
et

ho
do

lo
gy

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
85



 G
lo

ss
ar

y 
 

 

Al
lo
ca
tio

n 
Ef
fe
ct
: A

n 
at
tr
ib
ut
io
n 
ef
fe
ct
 th

at
 d
es
cr
ib
es
 th

e 
am

ou
nt
 a
tt
rib

ut
ab

le
 to

 th
e 
m
an

ag
er
s' 
as
se
t a

llo
ca
tio

n 
de

ci
sio

ns
, r
el
at
iv
e 
to
 th

e 
be

nc
hm

ar
k.
 

Al
ph

a:
 T
he

 e
xc
es
s r
et
ur
n 
of
 a
 p
or
tf
ol
io
 a
ft
er
 a
dj
us
tin

g 
fo
r m

ar
ke
t r
isk

. T
hi
s e

xc
es
s r
et
ur
n 
is 
at
tr
ib
ut
ab

le
 to

 th
e 
se
le
ct
io
n 
sk
ill
 o
f t
he

 p
or
tf
ol
io
 m

an
ag
er
. A

lp
ha

 is
 c
al
cu
la
te
d 
as
: P

or
tf
ol
io
 R
et
ur
n 
‐ [
Ri
sk
‐fr
ee

 R
at
e 
+ 

Po
rt
fo
lio

 B
et
a 
x 
(M

ar
ke
t R

et
ur
n 
‐ R

isk
‐fr
ee

 R
at
e)
]. 

Be
nc
hm

ar
k 
R‐
sq
ua

re
d:
 M

ea
su
re
s h

ow
 w
el
l t
he

 B
en

ch
m
ar
k 
re
tu
rn
 s
er
ie
s 
fit
s 
th
e 
m
an

ag
er
's 
re
tu
rn
 se

rie
s.
 T
he

 h
ig
he

r t
he

 B
en

ch
m
ar
k 
R‐
sq
ua

re
d,
 th

e 
m
or
e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te
 th

e 
be

nc
hm

ar
k 
is 
fo
r t
he

 m
an

ag
er
. 

Be
ta
: A

 m
ea

su
re
 o
f s
ys
te
m
at
ic
, o

r m
ar
ke
t r
isk

; t
he

 p
ar
t o

f r
isk

 in
 a
 p
or
tf
ol
io
 o
r s
ec
ur
ity

 th
at
 is
 a
tt
rib

ut
ab

le
 to

 g
en

er
al
 m

ar
ke
t m

ov
em

en
ts
. B

et
a 
is 
ca
lc
ul
at
ed

 b
y 
di
vi
di
ng

 th
e 
co
va
ria

nc
e 
of
 a
 se

cu
rit
y 
by

 th
e 

va
ria

nc
e 
of
 th

e 
m
ar
ke
t. 

Bo
ok

‐t
o‐
M
ar
ke

t: 
Th

e 
ra
tio

 o
f b

oo
k 
va
lu
e 
pe

r s
ha

re
 to

 m
ar
ke
t p

ric
e 
pe

r s
ha

re
. G

ro
w
th
 m

an
ag
er
s t
yp
ic
al
ly
 h
av
e 
lo
w
 b
oo

k‐
to
‐m

ar
ke
t r
at
io
s w

hi
le
 v
al
ue

 m
an

ag
er
s t
yp
ic
al
ly
 h
av
e 
hi
gh

 b
oo

k‐
to
‐m

ar
ke
t r
at
io
s.
 

Ca
pt
ur
e 
Ra

tio
: A

 st
at
ist
ic
al
 m

ea
su
re
 o
f a

n 
in
ve
st
m
en

t m
an

ag
er
's 
ov

er
al
l p

er
fo
rm

an
ce
 in
 u
p 
or
 d
ow

n 
m
ar
ke
ts
. T
he

 c
ap

tu
re
 ra

tio
 is
 u
se
d 
to
 e
va
lu
at
e 
ho

w
 w
el
l a
n 
in
ve
st
m
en

t m
an

ag
er
 p
er
fo
rm

ed
 re

la
tiv

e 
to
 a
n 

in
de

x 
du

rin
g 
pe

rio
ds
 w
he

n 
th
at
 in
de

x 
ha

s r
ise

n 
(u
p 
m
ar
ke
t)
 o
r f
al
le
n 
(d
ow

n 
m
ar
ke
t)
. T
he

 c
ap

tu
re
 ra

tio
 is
 c
al
cu
la
te
d 
by

 d
iv
id
in
g 
th
e 
m
an

ag
er
's 
re
tu
rn
s b

y 
th
e 
re
tu
rn
s o

f t
he

 in
de

x 
du

rin
g 
th
e 
up

/d
ow

n 
m
ar
ke
t, 

an
d 
m
ul
tip

ly
in
g 
th
at
 fa

ct
or
 b
y 
10

0.
 

Co
rr
el
at
io
n:
 A
 m

ea
su
re
 o
f t
he

 re
la
tiv

e 
m
ov

em
en

t o
f r
et
ur
ns
 o
f o

ne
 se

cu
rit
y 
or
 a
ss
et
 c
la
ss
 re

la
tiv

e 
to
 a
no

th
er
 o
ve
r t
im

e.
 A
 c
or
re
la
tio

n 
of
 1
 m

ea
ns
 th

e 
re
tu
rn
s o

f t
w
o 
se
cu
rit
ie
s m

ov
e 
in
 lo

ck
 st
ep

, a
 c
or
re
la
tio

n 
of
 

‐1
 m

ea
ns
 th

e 
re
tu
rn
s o

f t
w
o 
se
cu
rit
ie
s m

ov
e 
in
 th

e 
ex
ac
t o

pp
os
ite

 d
ire

ct
io
n 
ov
er
 ti
m
e.
 C
or
re
la
tio

n 
is 
us
ed

 a
s a

 m
ea
su
re
 to

 h
el
p 
m
ax
im

iz
e 
th
e 
be

ne
fit
s o

f d
iv
er
sif
ic
at
io
n 
w
he

n 
co
ns
tr
uc
tin

g 
an

 in
ve
st
m
en

t 

po
rt
fo
lio

. 

Ex
ce
ss
 R
et
ur
n:
 A
 m

ea
su
re
 o
f t
he

 d
iff
er
en

ce
 in
 a
pp

re
ci
at
io
n 
or
 d
ep

re
ci
at
io
n 
in
 th

e 
pr
ic
e 
of
 a
n 
in
ve
st
m
en

t c
om

pa
re
d 
to
 it
s b

en
ch
m
ar
k,
 o
ve
r a

 g
iv
en

 ti
m
e 
pe

rio
d.
 T
hi
s i
s u

su
al
ly
 e
xp
re
ss
ed

 a
s a

 p
er
ce
nt
ag
e 
an

d 
m
ay
 b
e 
an

nu
al
iz
ed

 o
ve
r a

 n
um

be
r o

f y
ea

rs
 o
r r
ep

re
se
nt
 a
 si
ng

le
 p
er
io
d.
 

In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
Ra

tio
: A

 m
ea

su
re
 o
f a

 m
an

ag
er
's 
ab

ili
ty
 to

 e
ar
n 
ex
ce
ss
 re

tu
rn
 w
ith

ou
t i
nc
ur
rin

g 
ad

di
tio

na
l r
isk

. I
nf
or
m
at
io
n 
ra
tio

 is
 c
al
cu
la
te
d 
as
: e

xc
es
s r
et
ur
n 
di
vi
de

d 
by

 tr
ac
ki
ng

 e
rr
or
. 

In
te
ra
ct
io
n 
Ef
fe
ct
: A

n 
at
tr
ib
ut
io
n 
ef
fe
ct
 th

at
 d
es
cr
ib
es
 th

e 
po

rt
io
n 
of
 a
ct
iv
e 
m
an

ag
em

en
t t
ha

t i
s c

on
tr
ib
ut
ab

le
 to

 th
e 
cr
os
s i
nt
er
ac
tio

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
th
e 
al
lo
ca
tio

n 
an

d 
se
le
ct
io
n 
ef
fe
ct
. T
hi
s c

an
 a
lso

 b
e 
ex
pl
ai
ne

d 
as
 

an
 e
ffe

ct
 th

at
 c
an

no
t b

e 
ea
sil
y 
tr
ac
ed

 to
 a
 so

ur
ce
. 

Po
rt
fo
lio

 T
ur
no

ve
r:
 T
he

 p
er
ce
nt
ag
e 
of
 a
 p
or
tf
ol
io
 th

at
 is
 so

ld
 a
nd

 re
pl
ac
ed

 (t
ur
ne

d 
ov
er
) d

ur
in
g 
a 
gi
ve
n 
tim

e 
pe

rio
d.
 L
ow

 p
or
tf
ol
io
 tu

rn
ov

er
 is
 in

di
ca
tiv

e 
of
 a
 b
uy

 a
nd

 h
ol
d 
st
ra
te
gy
 w
hi
le
 h
ig
h 
po

rt
fo
lio

 tu
rn
ov

er
 

im
pl
ie
s a

 m
or
e 
ac
tiv

e 
fo
rm

 o
f m

an
ag
em

en
t. 

Pr
ic
e‐
to
‐E
ar
ni
ng

s R
at
io
 (P

/E
): 
Al
so
 c
al
le
d 
th
e 
ea
rn
in
gs
 m

ul
tip

lie
r, 
it 
is
 c
al
cu
la
te
d 
by

 d
iv
id
in
g 
th
e 
pr
ic
e 
of
 a
 c
om

pa
ny

's 
st
oc
k 
in
to
 e
ar
ni
ng

s p
er
 sh

ar
e.
 G
ro
w
th
 m

an
ag
er
s t
yp
ic
al
ly
 h
ol
d 
st
oc
ks
 w
ith

 h
ig
h 

pr
ic
e‐
to
‐e
ar
ni
ng

s r
at
io
s w

he
re
as
 v
al
ue

 m
an

ag
er
s h

ol
d 
st
oc
ks
 w
ith

 lo
w
 p
ric

e‐
to
‐e
ar
ni
ng

s r
at
io
s.
 

R‐
Sq

ua
re
d:
 A
lso

 c
al
le
d 
th
e 
co
ef
fic
ie
nt
 o
f d

et
er
m
in
at
io
n,
 it
 m

ea
su
re
s t
he

 a
m
ou

nt
 o
f v

ar
ia
tio

n 
in
 o
ne

 v
ar
ia
bl
e 
ex
pl
ai
ne

d 
by
 v
ar
ia
tio

ns
 in

 a
no

th
er
, i
.e
., 
th
e 
go

od
ne

ss
 o
f f
it 
to
 a
 b
en

ch
m
ar
k.
 In

 th
e 
ca
se
 o
f 

in
ve
st
m
en

ts
, t
he

 te
rm

 is
 u
se
d 
to
 e
xp
la
in
 th

e 
am

ou
nt
 o
f v

ar
ia
tio

n 
in
 a
 se

cu
rit
y 
or
 p
or
tf
ol
io
 e
xp
la
in
ed

 b
y 
m
ov
em

en
ts
 in

 th
e 
m
ar
ke
t o

r t
he

 p
or
tf
ol
io
's 
be

nc
hm

ar
k.
 

Se
le
ct
io
n 
Ef
fe
ct
: A

n 
at
tr
ib
ut
io
n 
ef
fe
ct
 th

at
 d
es
cr
ib
es
 th

e 
am

ou
nt
 a
tt
rib

ut
ab

le
 to

 th
e 
m
an

ag
er
s' 
st
oc
k 
se
le
ct
io
n 
de

ci
sio

ns
, r
el
at
iv
e 
to
 th

e 
be

nc
hm

ar
k.
 

Sh
ar
pe

 R
at
io
: A

 m
ea

su
re
 o
f p

or
tf
ol
io
 e
ffi
ci
en

cy
. T
he

 S
ha

rp
e 
Ra

tio
 in
di
ca
te
s e

xc
es
s p

or
tf
ol
io
 re

tu
rn
 fo

r e
ac
h 
un

it 
of
 ri
sk
 a
ss
oc
ia
te
d 
w
ith

 a
ch
ie
vi
ng

 th
e 
ex
ce
ss
 re

tu
rn
. T
he

 h
ig
he

r t
he

 S
ha

rp
e 
Ra

tio
, t
he

 m
or
e 

ef
fic
ie
nt
 th

e 
po

rt
fo
lio

. S
ha

rp
e 
ra
tio

 is
 c
al
cu
la
te
d 
as
: P

or
tf
ol
io
 E
xc
es
s R

et
ur
n 
/ P

or
tf
ol
io
 S
ta
nd

ar
d 
De

vi
at
io
n.
 

So
rt
in
o 
Ra

tio
: M

ea
su
re
s t
he

 ri
sk
‐a
dj
us
te
d 
re
tu
rn
 o
f a

n 
in
ve
st
m
en

t, 
po

rt
fo
lio

, o
r s
tr
at
eg
y.
 It
 is
 a
 m

od
ifi
ca
tio

n 
of
 th

e 
Sh

ar
pe

 R
at
io
, b

ut
 p
en

al
ize

s o
nl
y 
th
os
e 
re
tu
rn
s f
al
lin

g 
be

lo
w
 a
 sp

ec
ifi
ed

 b
en

ch
m
ar
k.
 T
he

 
So

rt
in
o 
Ra

tio
 u
se
s d

ow
ns
id
e 
de

vi
at
io
n 
in
 th

e 
de

no
m
in
at
or
 ra

th
er
 th

an
 st
an

da
rd
 d
ev
ia
tio

n,
 li
ke
 th

e 
Sh
ar
pe

 R
at
io
. 

St
an

da
rd
 D
ev
ia
tio

n:
 A
 m

ea
su
re
 o
f v
ol
at
ili
ty
, o

r r
isk

, i
nh

er
en

t i
n 
a 
se
cu
rit
y 
or
 p
or
tf
ol
io
. T
he

 st
an

da
rd
 d
ev
ia
tio

n 
of
 a
 se

rie
s i
s a

 m
ea
su
re
 o
f t
he

 e
xt
en

t t
o 
w
hi
ch
 o
bs
er
va
tio

ns
 in

 th
e 
se
rie

s d
iff
er
 fr
om

 th
e 
ar
ith

m
et
ic
 

m
ea
n 
of
 th

e 
se
rie

s.
 F
or
 e
xa
m
pl
e,
 if
 a
 se

cu
rit
y 
ha

s a
n 
av
er
ag
e 
an

nu
al
 ra

te
 o
f r
et
ur
n 
of
 1
0%

 a
nd

 a
 st
an

da
rd
 d
ev
ia
tio

n 
of
 5
%
, t
he

n 
tw

o‐
th
ird

s o
f t
he

 ti
m
e,
 o
ne

 w
ou

ld
 e
xp
ec
t t
o 
re
ce
iv
e 
an

 a
nn

ua
l r
at
e 
of
 re

tu
rn
 

be
tw

ee
n 
5%

 a
nd

 1
5%

. 

St
yl
e 
An

al
ys
is
: A

 re
tu
rn
 b
as
ed

 a
na

ly
sis

 d
es
ig
ne

d 
to
 id

en
tif
y 
co
m
bi
na

tio
ns
 o
f p

as
siv

e 
in
ve
st
m
en

ts
 to

 c
lo
se
ly
 re

pl
ic
at
e 
th
e 
pe

rf
or
m
an

ce
 o
f f
un

ds
 

St
yl
e 
M
ap

: A
 sp

ec
ia
liz
ed

 fo
rm

 o
r s
ca
tt
er
 p
lo
t c

ha
rt
 ty

pi
ca
lly
 u
se
d 
to
 sh

ow
 w
he

re
 a
 M

an
ag
er
 li
es
 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to
 a
 se

t o
f s
ty
le
 in

di
ce
s o

n 
a 
tw

o‐
di
m
en

sio
na

l p
la
ne

. T
hi
s i
s s

im
pl
y 
a 
w
ay
 o
f v

ie
w
in
g 
th
e 
as
se
t l
oa

di
ng

s 
in
 a
 d
iff
er
en

t c
on

te
xt
. T
he

 c
oo

rd
in
at
es
 a
re
 c
al
cu
la
te
d 
by

 re
sc
al
in
g 
th
e 
as
se
t l
oa

di
ng

s t
o 
ra
ng

e 
fr
om

 ‐1
 to

 1
 o
n 
ea

ch
 a
xi
s a

nd
 a
re
 d
ep

en
de

nt
 o
n 
th
e 
St
yl
e 
In
di
ce
s c

om
pr
isi
ng

 th
e 
M
ap

. 



 D
is

cl
ai

m
er

 
 

 Th
is 
re
po

rt
 c
on

ta
in
s c

on
fid

en
tia

l a
nd

 p
ro
pr
ie
ta
ry
 in

fo
rm

at
io
n 
an

d 
is 
su
bj
ec
t t
o 
th
e 
te
rm

s a
nd

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 o
f t
he

 C
on

su
lti
ng

 A
gr
ee

m
en

t. 
It 
is 
be

in
g 
pr
ov

id
ed

 fo
r u

se
 so

le
ly
 b
y 
th
e 
cu
st
om

er
. T
he

 re
po

rt
 

m
ay
 n
ot
 b
e 
so
ld
 o
r o

th
er
w
ise

 p
ro
vi
de

d,
 in

 w
ho

le
 o
r i
n 
pa

rt
, t
o 
an

y 
ot
he

r p
er
so
n 
or
 e
nt
ity

 w
ith

ou
t w

rit
te
n 
pe

rm
iss

io
n 
fr
om

 V
er
us
 A
dv

iso
ry
, I
nc
., 
(h
er
ei
na

ft
er
 V
er
us
) o

r a
s r
eq

ui
re
d 
by
 la
w
 o
r a

ny
 

re
gu

la
to
ry
 a
ut
ho

rit
y.
 T
he

 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
pr
es
en

te
d 
do

es
 n
ot
 c
on

st
itu

te
 a
 re

co
m
m
en

da
tio

n 
by

 V
er
us
 a
nd

 c
an

no
t b

e 
us
ed

 fo
r a

dv
er
tis
in
g 
or
 sa

le
s p

ro
m
ot
io
n 
pu

rp
os
es
. T
hi
s d

oe
s n

ot
 c
on

st
itu

te
 a
n 
of
fe
r 

or
 a
 so

lic
ita

tio
n 
of
 a
n 
of
fe
r t
o 
bu

y 
or
 se

ll 
se
cu
rit
ie
s,
 c
om

m
od

iti
es
 o
r a

ny
 o
th
er
 fi
na

nc
ia
l i
ns
tr
um

en
ts
 o
r p

ro
du

ct
s.
 

  Th
e 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
pr
es
en

te
d 
ha

s b
ee

n 
pr
ep

ar
ed

 u
sin

g 
da

ta
 fr
om

 th
ird

 p
ar
ty
 so

ur
ce
s t
ha

t V
er
us
 b
el
ie
ve
s t
o 
be

 re
lia
bl
e.
 W

hi
le
 V
er
us
 e
xe
rc
ise

d 
re
as
on

ab
le
 p
ro
fe
ss
io
na

l c
ar
e 
in
 p
re
pa

rin
g 
th
e 
re
po

rt
, i
t 

ca
nn

ot
 g
ua

ra
nt
ee

 th
e 
ac
cu
ra
cy
 o
f t
he

 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 
th
ird

 p
ar
ty
 so

ur
ce
s.
 T
he

re
fo
re
, V

er
us
 m

ak
es
 n
o 
re
pr
es
en

ta
tio

ns
 o
r w

ar
ra
nt
ie
s a

s t
o 
th
e 
ac
cu
ra
cy
 o
f t
he

 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
pr
es
en

te
d.
 V
er
us
 

ta
ke
s n

o 
re
sp
on

sib
ili
ty
 o
r l
ia
bi
lit
y 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 
da

m
ag
es
) f
or
 a
ny

 e
rr
or
, o

m
iss

io
n,
 o
r i
na

cc
ur
ac
y 
in
 th

e 
da

ta
 su

pp
lie
d 
by
 a
ny

 th
ird

 p
ar
ty
. N

ot
hi
ng

 c
on

ta
in
ed

 h
er
ei
n 
is,
 o
r s
ho

ul
d 
be

 re
lie
d 
on

 a
s a

 p
ro
m
ise

, 
re
pr
es
en

ta
tio

n,
 o
r g

ua
ra
nt
ee

 a
s t
o 
fu
tu
re
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 o
r a

 p
ar
tic

ul
ar
 o
ut
co
m
e.
 E
ve
n 
w
ith

 p
or
tf
ol
io
 d
iv
er
sif
ic
at
io
n,
 a
ss
et
 a
llo

ca
tio

n,
 a
nd

 a
 lo

ng
‐t
er
m
 a
pp

ro
ac
h,
 in

ve
st
in
g 
in
vo

lv
es
 ri
sk
 o
f l
os
s t
ha

t t
he

 
in
ve
st
or
 sh

ou
ld
 b
e 
pr
ep

ar
ed

 to
 b
ea

r. 

  Th
e 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
pr
es
en

te
d 
m
ay
 b
e 
de

em
ed

 to
 c
on

ta
in
 fo

rw
ar
d‐
lo
ok

in
g 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n.
 E
xa
m
pl
es
 o
f f
or
w
ar
d 
lo
ok

in
g 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
in
cl
ud

e,
 b
ut
 a
re
 n
ot
 li
m
ite

d 
to
, (
a)
 p
ro
je
ct
io
ns
 o
f o

r s
ta
te
m
en

ts
 

re
ga
rd
in
g 
re
tu
rn
 o
n 
in
ve
st
m
en

t, 
fu
tu
re
 e
ar
ni
ng

s,
 in
te
re
st
 in

co
m
e,
 o
th
er
 in

co
m
e,
 g
ro
w
th
 p
ro
sp
ec
ts
, c
ap

ita
l s
tr
uc
tu
re
 a
nd

 o
th
er
 fi
na

nc
ia
l t
er
m
s,
 (b

) s
ta
te
m
en

ts
 o
f p

la
ns
 o
r o

bj
ec
tiv

es
 o
f m

an
ag
em

en
t, 

(c
) s
ta
te
m
en

ts
 o
f f
ut
ur
e 
ec
on

om
ic
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
, a
nd

 (d
) s
ta
te
m
en

ts
 o
f a

ss
um

pt
io
ns
, s
uc
h 
as
 e
co
no

m
ic
 c
on

di
tio

ns
 u
nd

er
ly
in
g 
ot
he

r s
ta
te
m
en

ts
. S
uc
h 
fo
rw

ar
d‐
lo
ok

in
g 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
ca
n 
be

 id
en

tif
ie
d 

by
 th

e 
us
e 
of
 fo

rw
ar
d 
lo
ok

in
g 
te
rm

in
ol
og

y 
su
ch
 a
s b

el
ie
ve
s,
 e
xp
ec
ts
, m

ay
, w

ill
, s
ho

ul
d,
 a
nt
ic
ip
at
es
, o

r t
he

 n
eg
at
iv
e 
of
 a
ny

 o
f t
he

 fo
re
go

in
g 
or
 o
th
er
 v
ar
ia
tio

ns
 th

er
eo

n 
co
m
pa

ra
bl
e 
te
rm

in
ol
og

y,
 o
r b

y 
di
sc
us
sio

n 
of
 st
ra
te
gy
. N

o 
as
su
ra
nc
e 
ca
n 
be

 g
iv
en

 th
at
 th

e 
fu
tu
re
 re

su
lts
 d
es
cr
ib
ed

 b
y 
th
e 
fo
rw

ar
d‐
lo
ok

in
g 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
w
ill
 b
e 
ac
hi
ev
ed

. S
uc
h 
st
at
em

en
ts
 a
re
 su

bj
ec
t t
o 
ris
ks
, u

nc
er
ta
in
tie

s,
 a
nd

 
ot
he

r 
fa
ct
or
s 
w
hi
ch
 c
ou

ld
 c
au

se
 t
he

 a
ct
ua

l r
es
ul
ts
 t
o 
di
ffe

r 
m
at
er
ia
lly
 f
ro
m
 f
ut
ur
e 
re
su
lts
 e
xp
re
ss
ed

 o
r 
im

pl
ie
d 
by

 s
uc
h 
fo
rw

ar
d 
lo
ok

in
g 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n.
 T
he

 f
in
di
ng

s,
 r
an

ki
ng

s,
 a
nd

 o
pi
ni
on

s 
ex
pr
es
se
d 
he

re
in
 a
re
 th

e 
in
te
lle
ct
ua

l p
ro
pe

rt
y 
of
 V
er
us
 a
nd

 a
re
 s
ub

je
ct
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 
w
ith

ou
t n

ot
ic
e.
 T
he

 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
pr
es
en

te
d 
do

es
 n
ot
 c
la
im

 to
 b
e 
al
l‐i
nc
lu
siv

e,
 n
or
 d
oe

s 
it 
co
nt
ai
n 
al
l i
nf
or
m
at
io
n 

th
at
 c
lie
nt
s m

ay
 d
es
ire

 fo
r t
he

ir 
pu

rp
os
es
. T
he

 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
pr
es
en

te
d 
sh
ou

ld
 b
e 
re
ad

 in
 c
on

ju
nc
tio

n 
w
ith

 a
ny

 o
th
er
 m

at
er
ia
l p

ro
vi
de

d 
by

 V
er
us
, i
nv

es
tm

en
t m

an
ag
er
s,
 a
nd

 c
us
to
di
an

s.
 

  Ve
ru
s w

ill
 m

ak
e 
ev
er
y 
re
as
on

ab
le
 e
ffo

rt
 to

 o
bt
ai
n 
an

d 
in
cl
ud

e 
ac
cu
ra
te
 m

ar
ke
t v

al
ue

s.
 H
ow

ev
er
, i
f m

an
ag
er
s o

r c
us
to
di
an

s a
re
 u
na

bl
e 
to
 p
ro
vi
de

 th
e 
re
po

rt
in
g 
pe

rio
d'
s m

ar
ke
t v

al
ue

s p
rio

r t
o 
th
e 

re
po

rt
 is
su
an

ce
, V

er
us
 m

ay
 u
se
 th

e 
la
st
 re

po
rt
ed

 m
ar
ke
t v

al
ue

 o
r m

ak
e 
es
tim

at
es
 b
as
ed

 o
n 
th
e 
m
an

ag
er
's 
st
at
ed

 o
r e

st
im

at
ed

 re
tu
rn
s a

nd
 o
th
er
 in

fo
rm

at
io
n 
av
ai
la
bl
e 
at
 th

e 
tim

e.
 T
he

se
 e
st
im

at
es
 

m
ay
 d
iff
er
 m

at
er
ia
lly
 fr
om

 th
e 
ac
tu
al
 v
al
ue

. H
ed

ge
 fu

nd
 m

ar
ke
t v

al
ue

s p
re
se
nt
ed

 in
 th

is 
re
po

rt
 a
re
 p
ro
vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 
fu
nd

 m
an

ag
er
 o
r c

us
to
di
an

. M
ar
ke
t v

al
ue

s p
re
se
nt
ed

 fo
r p

riv
at
e 
eq

ui
ty
 

in
ve
st
m
en

ts
 re

fle
ct
 th

e 
la
st
 re

po
rt
ed

 N
AV

 b
y 
th
e 
cu
st
od

ia
n 
or
 m

an
ag
er
 n
et
 o
f c
ap

ita
l c
al
ls 
an

d 
di
st
rib

ut
io
ns
 a
s o

f t
he

 e
nd

 o
f t
he

 re
po

rt
in
g 
pe

rio
d.
 T
he

se
 v
al
ue

s a
re
 e
st
im

at
es
 a
nd

 m
ay
 d
iff
er
 

m
at
er
ia
lly
 fr
om

 th
e 
in
ve
st
m
en

ts
 a
ct
ua

l v
al
ue

. P
riv

at
e 
eq

ui
ty
 m

an
ag
er
s r
ep

or
t p

er
fo
rm

an
ce
 u
sin

g 
an

 in
te
rn
al
 ra

te
 o
f r
et
ur
n 
(IR

R)
, w

hi
ch
 d
iff
er
s f
ro
m
 th

e 
tim

e‐
w
ei
gh

te
d 
ra
te
 o
f r
et
ur
n 
(T
W
RR

) 
ca
lc
ul
at
io
n 
do

ne
 b
y 
Ve

ru
s.
 It
 is
 in
ap

pr
op

ria
te
 to

 c
om

pa
re
 IR

R 
an

d 
TW

RR
 to

 e
ac
h 
ot
he

r. 
IR
R 
fig

ur
es
 re

po
rt
ed

 in
 th

e 
ill
iq
ui
d 
al
te
rn
at
iv
e 
pa

ge
s a

re
 p
ro
vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 
re
sp
ec
tiv

e 
m
an

ag
er
s,
 a
nd

 V
er
us
 h
as
 

no
t m

ad
e 
an

y 
at
te
m
pt
s t
o 
ve
rif
y 
th
es
e 
re
tu
rn
s.
 U
nt
il 
a 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi
p 
is 
liq

ui
da

te
d 
(t
yp

ic
al
ly
 o
ve
r 1

0‐
12

 y
ea

rs
), 
th
e 
IR
R 
is 
on

ly
 a
n 
in
te
rim

 e
st
im

at
ed

 re
tu
rn
. T
he

 a
ct
ua

l I
RR

 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 o
f a

ny
 L
P 
is 
no

t 
kn

ow
n 
un

til
 th

e 
fin

al
 li
qu

id
at
io
n.
 

  Ve
ru
s 
re
ce
iv
es
 u
ni
ve
rs
e 
da

ta
 fr
om

 In
vM

et
ric

s,
 e
Ve

st
m
en

t A
lli
an

ce
, a

nd
 M

or
ni
ng

st
ar
. W

e 
be

lie
ve
 th

is 
da

ta
 to

 b
e 
ro
bu

st
 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
pr
ia
te
 fo

r 
pe

er
 c
om

pa
ris
on

. N
ev
er
th
el
es
s,
 th

es
e 
un

iv
er
se
s 
m
ay
 

no
t b

e 
co
m
pr
eh

en
siv

e 
of
 a
ll 
pe

er
 in

ve
st
or
s/
m
an

ag
er
s b

ut
 ra

th
er
 o
f t
he

 in
ve
st
or
s/
m
an

ag
er
s t
ha

t c
om

pr
ise

 th
at
 d
at
ab

as
e.
 T
he

 re
su
lti
ng

 u
ni
ve
rs
e 
co
m
po

sit
io
n 
is 
no

t s
ta
tic

 a
nd

 w
ill
 c
ha

ng
e 
ov
er
 ti
m
e.
 

Re
tu
rn
s a

re
 a
nn

ua
liz
ed

 w
he

n 
th
ey
 c
ov

er
 m

or
e 
th
an

 o
ne

 y
ea

r. 
In
ve
st
m
en

t m
an

ag
er
s m

ay
 re

vi
se
 th

ei
r d

at
a 
af
te
r r
ep

or
t d

ist
rib

ut
io
n.
 V
er
us
 w
ill
 m

ak
e 
th
e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te
 c
or
re
ct
io
n 
to
 th

e 
cl
ie
nt
 a
cc
ou

nt
 

bu
t m

ay
 o
r m

ay
 n
ot
 d
isc

lo
se
 th

e 
ch
an

ge
 to

 th
e 
cl
ie
nt
 b
as
ed

 o
n 
th
e 
m
at
er
ia
lit
y 
of
 th

e 
ch
an

ge
. 



 
 

1 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: February 26, 2020 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer  

Subject: Investment Staff Report – Q4 2019 

 

Overview 
On a quarterly basis CCCERA’s Board receives a report which details critical elements of CCCERA’s 
Functionally Focused Portfolio’s sub-portfolios. The purpose of the report is to highlight elements of 
the sub-portfolios which are good indicators to the Board of the program’s efficient and effective 
operation.  
 
Summary 
CCCERA’s Total Fund is performing as expected, exhibiting returns above expectations for the amount 
of risk taken. This is measured by the Sharpe Ratio (risk-adjusted return), and a comparison to the 
Simple Target Index. The Simple Target Index is the most basic index which could replicate CCCERA’s 
Total Fund, and is made up of 68% MSCI ACWI, 24% Bloomberg 1-3 Year Gov/Credit, and 8% 3-Month 
Treasury Bills (please see the Total Fund pages in the appendix for additional details). CCCERA’s 
portfolio is much more complex, especially as it relates to allocations to private equity, private credit, 
and real estate.  
 
CCCERA has been rewarded for implementing a more complex portfolio, and has outperformed the 
Simple Target Index over the trailing five years, while experiencing less risk (volatility). Details on 
performance relative to this index are included in the appendix. It is worth noting that CCCERA’s Total 
Fund return is an aggregate of the performance of the Liquidity, Growth, and Risk Diversifying sub-
portfolios. 
 

1) Liquidity 
The purpose of the liquidity program is to match four years of benefit payments with high 
credit quality, low duration assets. The liquidity sub-portfolio is made up of three fixed income 
managers, all of whom pursue a high quality, low duration investment approach. Through the 
fourth quarter of 2019, all managers held high quality (as measured by credit ratings), low 
duration portfolios. The average credit quality for the entire liquidity program is AA- (AAA is the 
highest rating), and the duration is 1.7 years, which is considered short.  
 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/26/20Agenda Item#6b.



 

2 

2) Growth 
The Growth portfolio is designed to take advantage of capital appreciation and income 
opportunities globally. To achieve this, the Growth portfolio includes a variety of assets, from 
stocks and growth-oriented bonds to private equity, real estate, and private credit.  
 
One notable change from the prior quarter is the Growth portfolio’s 5-year annualized 
performance relative to the MSCI ACWI.  For the trailing five-year period ending September 30, 
2019, the Growth portfolio returned 7.6% relative to the index return of 6.6%, for an excess 
return of 1%.  During the fourth quarter of 2019, the public equity markets rallied strongly with 
the MSCI ACWI Index returning 9% and CCCERA’s diversified Growth portfolio returning 5.5%.  
This single quarter had an outsized impact on the trailing five-year period ending December 31, 
2019, where CCCERA’s Growth portfolio returned 8.2% (a 0.6% increase from the prior quarter) 
but the MSCI ACWI Index returned 8.4% (a 1.8% increase from the prior quarter).  This shifted 
our five-year excess return from +1.0% as of September 30 to -0.2% as of December 31.  We 
expect this relative return to increase as the valuations for our private market investments are 
reappraised over the next quarter. 

 
3) Risk Diversifying 

The Risk Diversifying mandate holds assets that are expected to diversify the growth portfolio’s 
volatility while offering moderate growth. The mandate as a whole seeks to be highly liquid, 
have a low beta to the growth market, and produce positive real returns. In the fourth quarter, 
the Risk Diversifying mandate fulfilled most of these goals. The entire mandate is able to be 
liquidated within 90 days, meeting the requirement of high liquidity. The correlation of the 
mandate to growth markets is 0.5, which shows good diversification. Trailing real (net of 
inflation) returns over the past five years is -0.7%, an improvement from last quarter’s -0.8%, 
but which remains below expectations. We continue to explore additional mandates that can 
strengthen this sub-portfolio. 

 
The Liquidity, Growth, and Risk Diversifying sub-portfolios are largely functioning well and within 
expectations. The product teams and asset managers are stable, and at this time we have no 
organizational concerns with our investment managers. CCCERA’s Total Fund in aggregate is 
performing in line with expectations, having a higher return and a lower level of volatility compared to 
the Simple Target Index. Enclosed are additional details on CCCERA’s Total Fund, sub-portfolios, and 
individual investment strategies. 
  



 

3 

CCCERA Portfolio Report Card 
Below we have itemized those elements of each of CCCERA’s sub-portfolios and Total Fund which we 
believe the Board should pay particular attention to. Additional details on each of the sub-portfolios 
are available in the appendix. All CCCERA performance is stated on a net of fees basis. 
 
Liquidity 

Objective Measurement Current Period Data Status 

High Quality Credit Quality AA- Meeting Expectations 

Low Risk Duration 1.7 years Meeting Expectations 

Appropriately Sized Months of Benefit 
Payments Invested 

43 Months Meeting Expectations 

 

Growth 

Objective Measurement Current Period Data Status 

Growth of Plan Assets Absolute Returns Trailing 5 yr return of 8.2% Meeting Expectations 

Benchmark Relative 
Returns 

-0.2% over ACWI over 
trailing 5 years 

Slightly Below 
Expectations 
 

Efficient Capital 
Deployment 

Sharpe Ratio CCCERA: 1.1 
MSCI ACWI: 0.6 
(over trailing 5 years) 

Meeting Expectations 

 

Risk Diversifying 

Objective Measurement Current Period Data Status 

Offset Volatility in Growth 
Portfolio 

Correlation 0.5 over trailing 5 years Meeting Expectations 

Positive Real Returns Returns Trailing 5 yr real return of  
-0.7% 

Below Expectations 

High Liquidity % of Portfolio that can be 
liquidated within 90 days 

100% Meeting Expectations 

 

Total Fund 

Objective Component/Measurement Status 

Store 4 Years of Benefit Payments Liquidity Sub-portfolio Meeting Expectations 

Participate in Growth Opportunities Growth Sub-portfolio Meeting Expectations 

Provide an offset to Growth volatility Risk Diversifying Sub-portfolio Meeting Expectations 

Produce superior risk adjusted 
returns 

Total Fund Sharpe Ratio Meeting Expectations 

 

 



 

4 

 

Appendix – Liquidity Sub-Portfolio 

Manager Reviews 

 

 
Manager Notes: 
 
None 
 
Manager Theses:  
The Liquidity Portfolio is a combination of three managers which work together to match four years of CCCERA’s 
liabilities. The portfolio is refreshed every year during the annual funding plan.  
  
Insight: Insight plays a completion role in the liquidity program, matching out liabilities with short duration 
government and corporate fixed income securities.  
  
DFA: Dimensional Fund Advisors runs a strategy that focuses on obtaining fixed income exposures via the most 
liquid securities available. DFA contributes to the Liquidity Program by selling securities at regular intervals to 
pay a portion of CCCERA’s monthly benefit payment. 
  
Sit: Sit invests in high yielding government backed mortgages. The cash flow from these securities is harvested 
monthly to make up a portion of CCCERA’s monthly benefit payment.  
 
  

Portfolio Management 

Assessment

1 Year Product 

Asset Growth

1 Year Firm 

Asset Growth

Regulatory Action 

in Last Year?

Insight Good 32% 11% N

Sit Good 6% 7% N

DFA Good 18% 18% N

Portfolio Average 

Credit Quality

Portfolio Average 

Duration

Portfolio 

Average Yield
1 Year Total Return

Insight A+ 1.5 2.0 4.8%

Sit AAA 2.6 2.6 4.9%

DFA A+ 1.1 2.1 4.8%

Organizational Stability

Performance



 

5 

Appendix – Growth Sub-Portfolio 

Manager Reviews 

 

Portfolio Management 

Assessment

1 Year Product Asset 

Growth

1 Year Firm 

Asset Growth

Regulatory Action 

in Last Year?

Boston Partners Good 13% 10% N

Jackson Square Good 20% 28% N

BlackRock Index Fund Good 27% 24% N

Emerald Advisors Good 19% 14% N

Ceredex Good -11% 18% N

Pyrford (BMO) Good 14% 12% N

William Blair Good 15% 20% N

First Eagle Good 8% 6% N

Artisan Global Good 30% 26% N

PIMCO/RAE EM Good 48% 15% N

TT EM Good 56% 23% N

Adelante Good 14% 17% N

Allianz Good -9% NA N

AQR Good -5% -5% N

PanAgora Good 13% 1% N

Private Equity Good -- -- N

Private Credit Good -- -- N

Real Estate Good -- -- N

Trailing 1 Year Return Trailing 5 Year Return

Performance in 

Line with 

Expectations?

Boston Partners 24% 8% Y

Jackson Square 27% 10% Y

BlackRock Index Fund 31% 12% Y

Emerald Advisors 29% 10% Y

Ceredex 19% 8% Y

Pyrford (BMO) 21% 5% Y

William Blair 31% 6% Y

First Eagle 20% 7% Y

Artisan Global 36% 13% Y

PIMCO/RAE EM 14% 6% Y

TT EM 25% 9% Y

Adelante 28% 7% Y

Allianz 14% 4% Y

AQR 22% 5% Y

PanAgora 22% 7% Y

1Yr Premium 5 Year Premium

Private Equity -18% 2% Y

Private Credit -19% 1% Y

Real Estate -19% 0% Y

Performance

Organizational Stability



 

6 

Manager Notes: 

Boston Partners:  
 
Mark Donovan stepped down from his role as co-CEO at the end of 2019 to focus on portfolio management 
responsibilities; Joseph “Jay” F. Feeney Jr., co-CEO since 2008, became the sole CEO on December 31st. 
 
TT International Emerging Markets:  
 
TT announced in Q3 2019 that they will be acquired by Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group. All emerging markets 
team members are expected to remain with the firm for at least the next several years. The transaction is 
expected to close in the first half of 2020. 
 
Manager Theses: 
The growth portfolio includes all managers in public and private equity, real estate, and private credit. These 
managers grow CCCERA’s assets for future benefit payments (beyond the four years already covered by the 
Liquidity program).  
  
Boston Partners: Large cap domestic equity which follows a value discipline. Boston Partners will buy out of 
favor companies and sell them when their intrinsic values are reflected in the market. Expected to outperform in 
flat to falling markets.  
  
Jackson Square: Domestic equity large cap growth portfolio concentrated in companies with sustainable long-
term growth characteristics. This portfolio should outperform in rapidly rising markets.  
  
BlackRock Index Fund: Large cap domestic equity portfolio which should follow the Russell 1000 Index.  
  
Emerald Advisors: Small cap growth equity seeking companies with high growth rates. Expected to produce 
strong returns in rising markets, and weak returns in falling markets.  
  
Ceredex: Domestic equity small cap value portfolio of companies with dividend yields and low valuations. This 
portfolio should outperform flat markets.  
 
Pyrford (BMO): International equity value portfolio of non-US companies with low valuations at the country and 
stock level. This portfolio should outperform in flat markets.  
 
William Blair: International equity growth portfolio of non-US companies with high growth rates constructed 
from the security level. This portfolio should outperform in rapidly rising markets.  
  
First Eagle: Global equity portfolio that is benchmark agnostic comprised of companies with low valuations. 
  
Artisan Global Opportunities: Global equity portfolio of companies that is benchmark agnostic with accelerating 
profit cycles and a focus on capital allocation. 
 
PIMCO/RAE Emerging Markets: Quantitative equity with a value orientation. This portfolio follows the 
fundamental indexing approach (ranking companies by metrics other than market capitalization), resulting in a 
diversified, low turnover portfolio. This portfolio underperforms in momentum driven markets. 
  



 

7 

TT International Emerging Markets: Concentrated, growth oriented manager which invests in small and mid-cap 
emerging market companies. TT employs both a top-down and a bottom-up research approach, and seeks to 
outperform by identifying companies that have a catalyst to drive future growth.  
  
Adelante: Diversified portfolio of U.S. REITs with a focus on the underlying real estate assets. Adelante is a 
public market proxy of the core real estate market. 
  
Allianz High Yield Fixed Income: Domestic high yield fixed income portfolio with a focus on security selection. 
Allianz will focus on the higher quality segment of the high yield universe. Allianz should provide a steady 
income stream, and provide downside protection in falling markets.  
 
Private Equity: CCCERA invests in private equity to generate returns above those available in the public equity 
markets.  
  
Private Credit: CCCERA invests in private credit to generate cash flow streams above those available in the 
public debt markets.  
  
Real Estate: CCCERA invests in value-add, distressed, and opportunistic real estate to generate returns from the 
capital appreciation and cash flow associated with commercial real estate investment.  
  
Risk Parity:  Multi-asset approach that strives for balanced contributions to total portfolio risk from multiple 

asset classes.  



 

8 

Appendix – Risk Diversifying Sub-Portfolio 

 

 
Manager Notes: 
 
None. 
 
Manager Theses: 
Managers in the risk diversifying allocation seek to have a low correlation with the growth portfolio, positive 
returns in flat and falling equity markets, and a high degree of liquidity. These managers work together to offset 
some of the risks in the growth portfolio.  
  
AFL-CIO: Portfolio of domestic, high quality fixed income securities which are backed by commercial and 
residential mortgages.  
  
Parametric: Portfolio of paired options selling intended to collect insurance premiums by selling puts and calls 
on the S&P 500 with collateral invested in US Treasury portfolio. 
  
Wellington: Multi-strategy fund which tactically rotates between assets to produce returns.  Approximately 50% 
of underlying strategies pursue an inflation-hedging goal. 
  

Portfolio Management 

Assessment

1 Year Product 

Asset Growth

1 Year Firm 

Asset Growth

Regulatory Action 

in Last Year?

Wellington Satisfactory -60% 15% N

AFL-CIO Good 11% NA N

Parametric Good 27% 119% N

Trailing 1 Year 

Correlation to Growth

Trailing 3 Year 

Correlation to 

Growth

1 Year Return 5 Year Return
% of Portfolio Liquid in 

90 Days

Wellington 1.0 0.9 9.6% 0.3% 100%

AFL-CIO -0.3 0.0 7.8% 2.8% 100%

Parametric 1.0 0.9 3.0% 7.2% 100%

Organizational Stability

Performance



 

9 

Appendix Data – Total Fund 

Rolling 3-Year Total Fund Upside/Downside Market Capture 
 

 
*The composition of the Simple Target Index has mirrored changes in CCCERA’s asset allocation over time: from 2008 to 
2012 the benchmark was 73% MSCI ACWI, 23% Bloomberg 1-3 Year Gov/Credit, and 4% 3-Month Treasury Bills.  From 2012 
to 2016 the composition was 74% MSCI ACWI, 18% Bloomberg 1-3 Year Gov/Credit, and 9% 3-Month Treasury Bills. From 
2016 to 2017 the composition was 63% MSCI ACWI, 25% Bloomberg 1-3 Year Gov/Credit, and 12% 3-Month Treasury Bills, 
from 2017 to June 2018 the composition was 61% MSCI ACWI, 27% Bloomberg 1-3 Year Gov/Credit, and 12% 3-Month 
Treasury Bills, from July 2018 to June 2019 the composition is 69% MSCI ACWI, 23% Bloomberg 1-3 Year Gov/Credit, and 8% 
3-Month Treasury Bills, and from July 2019 to the present the composition is 68% MSCI ACWI, 24% Bloomberg 1-3 Year 
Gov/Credit, and 8% 3-Month Treasury Bills. 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

35

45

55

65

75

85

95

Ju
n

-1
2

Se
p

-1
2

D
ec

-1
2

M
ar

-1
3

Ju
n

-1
3

Se
p

-1
3

D
ec

-1
3

M
ar

-1
4

Ju
n

-1
4

Se
p

-1
4

D
ec

-1
4

M
ar

-1
5

Ju
n

-1
5

Se
p

-1
5

D
ec

-1
5

M
ar

-1
6

Ju
n

-1
6

Se
p

-1
6

D
ec

-1
6

M
ar

-1
7

Ju
n

-1
7

Se
p

-1
7

D
ec

-1
7

M
ar

-1
8

Ju
n

-1
8

Se
p

-1
8

D
ec

-1
8

M
ar

-1
9

Ju
n

-1
9

Se
p

-1
9

D
ec

-1
9

M
ar

ke
t 

C
ap

tu
re

 %

CCCERA Total Fund
Upside & Downside Market Capture vs. Simple Target Index

Upside Downside



 

10 

Total Fund Quarterly Attribution 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CCCERA Total Fund Performance vs. Simple Target Index 
 

 
  

 

The Simple Target Index is made up of 68% MSCI ACWI, 24% Bloomberg 1-3 Year Gov/Credit, and 8% 3-
Month Treasury Bill. This purpose of this index is to examine whether CCCERA is being rewarded for 
pursuing a more nuanced portfolio versus a very simple representative portfolio.  
  
CCCERA’s Total Fund has produced strong risk adjusted returns over most trailing periods. Additionally, 
the CCCERA Portfolio trailed the Simple Target Index over the past one- and three-year periods but has 
exceeded the STI over longer trailing periods. This would indicate that CCCERA has been rewarded for 
engaging in more complex investments which target outperformance versus investing passively in the 
publicly traded market.  
  
The Sharpe ratio is a measure of risk adjusted returns which shows the amount of return a portfolio 
earns above the risk free rate per unit of volatility. Over all trailing periods, the Total Fund has 
produced a better Sharpe ratio relative to the Simple Target Index, indicating that CCCERA is being 
favorably rewarded for the risk taken in the portfolio.  
 
 

Allocation Return

Return 

Contribution Allocation Return

Return 

Contribution

Allocation 

Difference

Return 

Difference

Total            

Effect

Liquidity 24.3% 0.5% 0.1% 24.0% 0.6% 0.1% 0.3% -0.1% 0.0%

Growth 67.6% 5.5% 3.7% 68.0% 9.0% 6.1% -0.4% -3.4% -2.3%

Risk Diversifying 8.1% 0.5% 0.0% 8.0% 0.5% 0.0% 0.1% 0.1% 0.0%

Total Fund 100% 3.9% 100% 6.3% -0.1% -2.3%

CCCERA Total Fund Simple Target Index Analysis

CCCERA STI CCCERA STI CCCERA STI CCCERA STI

Return 14.6 19.1 8.3 8.7 6.8 5.9 8.5 6.6

Volatility 5.0 7.5 5.8 8.5 5.4 7.7 7.2 9.5

Sharpe 2.5 2.2 1.1 0.8 1.1 0.6 1.1 0.6

One Year Three Years Five Years Ten Years



1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520     Phone: (925) 521-3960      Fax: (925) 521-3969     cccera.org 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: February 26, 2020 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer 

Subject: Annual Statement of Compliance with Board Resolutions 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Overview 
As part of the CCCERA investment procedures, staff is required to report annually on 
compliance with all Board Resolutions in effect for the prior year.  These Board Resolutions can 
encompass a variety of topics, but in 2019 were limited to asset allocation targets and ranges 
related to the phased implementation of the new asset allocation program. 

The Board adopted one investment-related resolution over the course of 2019 and one 
resolution from 2018 remained in effect at the beginning of 2019.  These resolutions are noted 
below and included with the memo as Appendix 1. 

RESOLUTION CONTENT DATE ADOPTED 

2018-2 Asset Allocation Targets and Ranges 6/27/18 
2019-4 Asset Allocation Targets and Ranges 6/26/19 

Compliance 
CCCERA Investment staff provided a monthly report to the Board as part of the consent items 
showing month-end allocation for each sub-portfolio and investment manager.  All allocations 
remained near their targets over the course of the year and the three sub-portfolios (liquidity, 
growth and diversifying) remained within their mandated ranges at all times.  These reports are 
included with this memo as Appendix 2. 

Please note that Resolutions 2018-2 and 2019-4 do not have specific cash allocation targets or 
ranges as this is overlaid (securitized) by Parametric and therefore has a similar economic 
exposure as the total fund. 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/26/20Agenda Item#7



CCCERA Board of Retirement 
February 26, 2020 

Page 2 
 

1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520   Phone: (925) 521-3960    Fax: (925) 521-3969   cccera.org 

 

Asset Allocation Summary: Calendar Year 2019 
 

 Liquidity Growth Diversifying Cash & 
Overlay 

 Allocation Range Allocation Range Allocation Range Allocation 

January 20.8% 16-28% 69.5% 60-80% 8.2% 0-10% 1.5% 

February 20.3 16-28 70.0 60-80 8.1 0-10 1.6 

March 19.9 16-28 71.1 60-80 8.2 0-10 0.8 

April 19.2 16-28 71.8 60-80 8.1 0-10 0.8 

May 19.5 16-28 70.9 60-80 8.3 0-10 1.3 

June 18.5 16-28 72.7 60-80 8.2 0-10 0.7 

July 23.6 16-28 67.1 60-80 8.0 0-10 1.3 

August 23.4 16-28 67.1 60-80 8.1 0-10 1.4 

September 23.0 16-28 67.6 60-80 8.1 0-10 1.4 

October 22.2 16-28 68.2 60-80 8.0 0-10 1.6 

November 21.6 16-28 68.5 60-80 7.9 0-10 1.9 

December 20.9 16-28 69.1 60-80 7.8 0-10 2.2 

 
 



Appendix 1 











Appendix 2 



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association
Asset Allocation as of January 31, 2019

Market Percentage Phase 3 Target Phase 3 Long Term Long Term
Liquidity Value of Total Fund Percentage Over/(Under) Target Over/(Under)

Insight 854,909,681 10.0% 12.0% -2.0%
Sit 529,659,848 6.2% 5.5% 0.7%
Dimensional Fund Advisors 397,429,150 4.6% 5.5% -0.9%

Total Liquidity 1,781,998,679           20.8% 23.0% -2.2% 23.0% -2.2%

Growth
Domestic Equity
Boston Partners 285,515,917 3.3% 3.0% 0.3%
Jackson Square 316,680,045 3.7% 3.0% 0.7%
BlackRock Index Fund 123,826,420 1.4% 1.0% 0.4%
Emerald Advisors 221,946,768 2.6% 2.0% 0.6%
Ceredex 189,125,617 2.2% 2.0% 0.2%
Total Domestic Equity 1,137,094,766 13.3% 11.0% 2.3% 5.0% 8.3%

Global & International Equity
Pyrford (BMO) 439,038,730 5.1% 5.5% -0.4%
William Blair 441,903,242 5.2% 5.5% -0.3%
First Eagle 355,701,491 4.2% 4.0% 0.2%
Artisan Global Opportunities 375,432,560 4.4% 4.0% 0.4%
PIMCO/RAE Emerging Markets 351,163,962 4.1% 4.0% 0.1%
TT Emerging Markets 320,153,681 3.7% 4.0% -0.3%
Total Global & International Equity 2,283,393,666 26.7% 27.0% -0.3% 24.0% 2.7%

Private Equity 966,369,361 11.3% 10.0% 1.3% 11.0% 0.3%
Private Credit 306,667,431 3.6% 4.0% -0.4% 12.0% -8.4%
Real Estate - Value Add 181,860,231 2.1% 5.0% -2.9% 5.0% -2.9%
Real Estate - Opportunistic & Distressed 450,472,588 5.3% 4.0% 1.3% 4.0% 1.3%
Real Estate - REIT (Adelante) 69,680,909 0.8% 1.0% -0.2% 1.0% -0.2%
High Yield (Allianz) 341,484,158 4.0% 2.0% 2.0% 0.0% 4.0%
Risk Parity (AQR GRP EL) 204,743,366 2.4% 5.0% -2.6% 5.0% -2.6%
Total Other Growth Assets 2,521,278,045 29.5% 31.0% -1.5% 38.0% -8.5%

Total Growth Assets 5,941,766,477 69.5% 69.0% 0.5% 67.0% 2.5%

Risk Diversifying 
AFL-CIO 320,312,229 3.7% 3.5% 0.2% 3.0% 0.7%
Parametric Defensive Equity 197,694,436 2.3% 2.5% -0.2% 3.5% -1.2%
Wellington Real Total Return 182,269,110 2.1% 2.0% 0.1% 3.5% -1.4%

Total Risk Diversifying 700,275,774 8.2% 8.0% 0.2% 10.0% -1.8%

Cash and Overlay
Overlay (Parametric) 51,362,480 0.6% 0.6%
Cash 80,233,154 0.9% 0.9%

Total Cash and Overlay 131,595,634 1.5% 0.0% 1.5% 0.0% 1.5%

Total Fund 8,555,636,564.67      100% 100% 0% 100% 0%

*Phase 3 targets and ranges reflect Phase 3 asset allocation targets accepted by the Board on June 27, 2018 (BOR Resolution 2018-2)

0% - 10%

Range
16% - 28%

Range
60% - 80%

Range



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association
Asset Allocation as of February 28, 2019

Market Percentage Phase 3 Target Phase 3 Long Term Long Term
Liquidity Value of Total Fund Percentage Over/(Under) Target Over/(Under)

Insight 831,882,205 9.7% 12.0% -2.3%
Sit 529,629,972 6.1% 5.5% 0.6%
Dimensional Fund Advisors 384,952,482 4.5% 5.5% -1.0%

Total Liquidity 1,746,464,658           20.3% 23.0% -2.7% 23.0% -2.7%

Growth
Domestic Equity
Boston Partners 291,215,692 3.4% 3.0% 0.4%
Jackson Square 323,571,716 3.8% 3.0% 0.8%
BlackRock Index Fund 128,019,840 1.5% 1.0% 0.5%
Emerald Advisors 237,303,498 2.8% 2.0% 0.8%
Ceredex 194,003,363 2.3% 2.0% 0.3%
Total Domestic Equity 1,174,114,108 13.6% 11.0% 2.6% 5.0% 8.6%

Global & International Equity
Pyrford (BMO) 449,991,592 5.2% 5.5% -0.3%
William Blair 458,331,757 5.3% 5.5% -0.2%
First Eagle 362,863,742 4.2% 4.0% 0.2%
Artisan Global Opportunities 394,096,511 4.6% 4.0% 0.6%
PIMCO/RAE Emerging Markets 347,969,126 4.0% 4.0% 0.0%
TT Emerging Markets 323,460,119 3.8% 4.0% -0.2%
Total Global & International Equity 2,336,712,847 27.1% 27.0% 0.1% 24.0% 3.1%

Private Equity 966,369,361 11.2% 10.0% 1.2% 11.0% 0.2%
Private Credit 294,867,872 3.4% 4.0% -0.6% 12.0% -8.6%
Real Estate - Value Add 188,059,279 2.2% 5.0% -2.8% 5.0% -2.8%
Real Estate - Opportunistic & Distressed 450,287,586 5.2% 4.0% 1.2% 4.0% 1.2%
Real Estate - REIT (Adelante) 70,988,589 0.8% 1.0% -0.2% 1.0% -0.2%
High Yield (Allianz) 345,530,949 4.0% 2.0% 2.0% 0.0% 4.0%
Risk Parity (AQR GRP EL) 206,902,996 2.4% 5.0% -2.6% 5.0% -2.6%
Total Other Growth Assets 2,523,006,633 29.3% 31.0% -1.7% 38.0% -8.7%

Total Growth Assets 6,033,833,588 70.0% 69.0% 1.0% 67.0% 3.0%

Risk Diversifying 
AFL-CIO 319,099,527 3.7% 3.5% 0.2% 3.0% 0.7%
Parametric Defensive Equity 197,493,538 2.3% 2.5% -0.2% 3.5% -1.2%
Wellington Real Total Return 182,888,349 2.1% 2.0% 0.1% 3.5% -1.4%

Total Risk Diversifying 699,481,414 8.1% 8.0% 0.1% 10.0% -1.9%

Cash and Overlay
Overlay (Parametric) 53,710,810 0.6% 0.6%
Cash 85,841,084 1.0% 1.0%

Total Cash and Overlay 139,551,894 1.6% 0.0% 1.6% 0.0% 1.6%

Total Fund 8,619,331,554.09      100% 100% 0% 100% 0%

*Phase 3 targets and ranges reflect Phase 3 asset allocation targets accepted by the Board on June 27, 2018 (BOR Resolution 2018-2)

0% - 10%

Range
16% - 28%

Range
60% - 80%

Range



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association
Asset Allocation as of March 31, 2019

Market Percentage Phase 3 Target Phase 3 Long Term Long Term
Liquidity Value of Total Fund Percentage Over/(Under) Target Over/(Under)

Insight 811,554,864 9.4% 12.0% -2.6%
Sit 534,949,963 6.2% 5.5% 0.7%
Dimensional Fund Advisors 375,055,643 4.3% 5.5% -1.2%

Total Liquidity 1,721,560,470           19.9% 23.0% -3.1% 23.0% -3.1%

Growth
Domestic Equity
Boston Partners 259,175,971 3.0% 3.0% -0.0%
Jackson Square 267,540,007 3.1% 3.0% 0.1%
BlackRock Index Fund 130,255,255 1.5% 1.0% 0.5%
Emerald Advisors 215,040,268 2.5% 2.0% 0.5%
Ceredex 170,195,375 2.0% 2.0% -0.0%
Total Domestic Equity 1,042,206,877 12.1% 11.0% 1.1% 5.0% 7.1%

Global & International Equity
Pyrford (BMO) 454,787,198 5.3% 5.5% -0.2%
William Blair 469,522,194 5.4% 5.5% -0.1%
First Eagle 364,525,432 4.2% 4.0% 0.2%
Artisan Global Opportunities 364,329,832 4.2% 4.0% 0.2%
PIMCO/RAE Emerging Markets 343,874,286 4.0% 4.0% -0.0%
TT Emerging Markets 331,436,277 3.8% 4.0% -0.2%
Total Global & International Equity 2,328,475,218 26.9% 27.0% -0.1% 24.0% 2.9%

Private Equity 962,744,611 11.1% 10.0% 1.1% 11.0% 0.1%
Private Credit 302,970,547 3.5% 4.0% -0.5% 12.0% -8.5%
Real Estate - Value Add 194,476,641 2.2% 5.0% -2.8% 5.0% -2.8%
Real Estate - Opportunistic & Distressed 471,781,002 5.5% 4.0% 1.5% 4.0% 1.5%
Real Estate - REIT (Adelante) 73,519,066 0.9% 1.0% -0.1% 1.0% -0.1%
High Yield (Allianz) 350,246,627 4.1% 2.0% 2.1% 0.0% 4.1%
Risk Parity 5.0% -0.2% 5.0% -0.2%
AQR GRP EL 213,625,425 2.5%
PanAgora 203,616,452 2.4%
Total Other Growth Assets 2,772,980,371 32.1% 31.0% 1.1% 38.0% -5.9%

Total Growth Assets 6,143,662,466 71.1% 69.0% 2.1% 67.0% 4.1%

Risk Diversifying 
AFL-CIO 324,590,940 3.8% 3.5% 0.3% 3.0% 0.8%
Parametric Defensive Equity 199,494,462 2.3% 2.5% -0.2% 3.5% -1.2%
Wellington Real Total Return 183,330,524 2.1% 2.0% 0.1% 3.5% -1.4%

Total Risk Diversifying 707,415,926 8.2% 8.0% 0.2% 10.0% -1.8%

Cash and Overlay
Overlay (Parametric) 20,693,167 0.2% 0.2%
Cash 50,834,497 0.6% 0.6%

Total Cash and Overlay 71,527,664 0.8% 0.0% 0.8% 0.0% 0.8%

Total Fund 8,644,166,525.71      100% 100% 0% 100% 0%

*Phase 3 targets and ranges reflect Phase 3 asset allocation targets accepted by the Board on June 27, 2018 (BOR Resolution 2018-2)

0% - 10%

Range
16% - 28%

Range
60% - 80%

Range



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association
Asset Allocation as of April 30, 2019

Market Percentage Phase 3 Target Phase 3 Long Term Long Term
Liquidity Value of Total Fund Percentage Over/(Under) Target Over/(Under)

Insight 787,910,607 9.0% 12.0% -3.0%
Sit 534,546,818 6.1% 5.5% 0.6%
Dimensional Fund Advisors 362,414,528 4.1% 5.5% -1.4%

Total Liquidity 1,684,871,953           19.2% 23.0% -3.8% 23.0% -3.8%

Growth
Domestic Equity
Boston Partners 269,246,026 3.1% 3.0% 0.1%
Jackson Square 283,814,301 3.2% 3.0% 0.2%
BlackRock Index Fund 135,514,147 1.5% 1.0% 0.5%
Emerald Advisors 222,384,460 2.5% 2.0% 0.5%
Ceredex 180,475,251 2.1% 2.0% 0.1%
Total Domestic Equity 1,091,434,184 12.5% 11.0% 1.5% 5.0% 7.5%

Global & International Equity
Pyrford (BMO) 454,787,198 5.2% 5.5% -0.3%
William Blair 484,998,332 5.5% 5.5% 0.0%
First Eagle 371,946,910 4.2% 4.0% 0.2%
Artisan Global Opportunities 378,361,127 4.3% 4.0% 0.3%
PIMCO/RAE Emerging Markets 348,870,396 4.0% 4.0% -0.0%
TT Emerging Markets 338,459,665 3.9% 4.0% -0.1%
Total Global & International Equity 2,377,423,627 27.1% 27.0% 0.1% 24.0% 3.1%

Private Equity 959,852,098 11.0% 10.0% 1.0% 11.0% -0.0%
Private Credit 360,090,542 4.1% 4.0% 0.1% 12.0% -7.9%
Real Estate - Value Add 189,156,398 2.2% 5.0% -2.8% 5.0% -2.8%
Real Estate - Opportunistic & Distressed 466,909,874 5.3% 4.0% 1.3% 4.0% 1.3%
Real Estate - REIT (Adelante) 73,595,994 0.8% 1.0% -0.2% 1.0% -0.2%
High Yield (Allianz) 355,535,179 4.1% 2.0% 2.1% 0.0% 4.1%
Risk Parity 5.0% -0.2% 5.0% -0.2%
AQR GRP EL 216,031,912 2.5%
PanAgora 203,616,452 2.3%
Total Other Growth Assets 2,824,788,450 32.2% 31.0% 1.2% 38.0% -5.8%

Total Growth Assets 6,293,646,261 71.8% 69.0% 2.8% 67.0% 4.8%

Risk Diversifying 
AFL-CIO 324,655,254 3.7% 3.5% 0.2% 3.0% 0.7%
Parametric Defensive Equity 199,072,958 2.3% 2.5% -0.2% 3.5% -1.2%
Wellington Real Total Return 185,539,612 2.1% 2.0% 0.1% 3.5% -1.4%

Total Risk Diversifying 709,267,824 8.1% 8.0% 0.1% 10.0% -1.9%

Cash and Overlay
Overlay (Parametric) 23,225,901 0.3% 0.3%
Cash 50,438,666 0.6% 0.6%

Total Cash and Overlay 73,664,568 0.8% 0.0% 0.8% 0.0% 0.8%

Total Fund 8,761,450,605.55      100% 100% 0% 100% 0%

*Phase 3 targets and ranges reflect Phase 3 asset allocation targets accepted by the Board on June 27, 2018 (BOR Resolution 2018-2)

0% - 10%

Range
16% - 28%

Range
60% - 80%

Range



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association
Asset Allocation as of May 31, 2019

Market Percentage Phase 3 Target Phase 3 Long Term Long Term
Liquidity Value of Total Fund Percentage Over/(Under) Target Over/(Under)

Insight 766,359,649 9.0% 12.0% -3.0%
Sit 540,196,160 6.3% 5.5% 0.8%
Dimensional Fund Advisors 351,111,492 4.1% 5.5% -1.4%

Total Liquidity 1,657,667,301           19.5% 23.0% -3.5% 23.0% -3.5%

Growth
Domestic Equity
Boston Partners 251,075,767 3.0% 3.0% -0.0%
Jackson Square 268,090,265 3.2% 3.0% 0.2%
BlackRock Index Fund 126,880,106 1.5% 1.0% 0.5%
Emerald Advisors 210,521,237 2.5% 2.0% 0.5%
Ceredex 161,350,478 1.9% 2.0% -0.1%
Total Domestic Equity 1,017,917,852 12.0% 11.0% 1.0% 5.0% 7.0%

Global & International Equity
Pyrford (BMO) 445,620,412 5.2% 5.5% -0.3%
William Blair 464,046,023 5.5% 5.5% -0.0%
First Eagle 356,267,043 4.2% 4.0% 0.2%
Artisan Global Opportunities 360,620,409 4.2% 4.0% 0.2%
PIMCO/RAE Emerging Markets 333,536,303 3.9% 4.0% -0.1%
TT Emerging Markets 311,241,005 3.7% 4.0% -0.3%
Total Global & International Equity 2,271,331,195 26.7% 27.0% -0.3% 24.0% 2.7%

Private Equity 964,378,237 11.3% 10.0% 1.3% 11.0% 0.3%
Private Credit 336,575,699 4.0% 4.0% -0.0% 12.0% -8.0%
Real Estate - Value Add 169,676,170 2.0% 5.0% -3.0% 5.0% -3.0%
Real Estate - Opportunistic & Distressed 470,995,777 5.5% 4.0% 1.5% 4.0% 1.5%
Real Estate - REIT (Adelante) 73,663,725 0.9% 1.0% -0.1% 1.0% -0.1%
High Yield (Allianz) 309,657,923 3.6% 2.0% 1.6% 0.0% 3.6%
Risk Parity 5.0% -0.1% 5.0% -0.1%
AQR GRP EL 212,959,999 2.5%
PanAgora 204,430,064 2.4%
Total Other Growth Assets 2,742,337,595 32.2% 31.0% 1.2% 38.0% -5.8%

Total Growth Assets 6,031,586,642 70.9% 69.0% 1.9% 67.0% 3.9%

Risk Diversifying 
AFL-CIO 329,935,377 3.9% 3.5% 0.4% 3.0% 0.9%
Parametric Defensive Equity 199,085,214 2.3% 2.5% -0.2% 3.5% -1.2%
Wellington Real Total Return 181,237,027 2.1% 2.0% 0.1% 3.5% -1.4%

Total Risk Diversifying 710,257,618 8.3% 8.0% 0.3% 10.0% -1.7%

Cash and Overlay
Overlay (Parametric) 16,617,972 0.2% 0.2%
Cash 93,244,112 1.1% 1.1%

Total Cash and Overlay 109,862,083 1.3% 0.0% 1.3% 0.0% 1.3%

Total Fund 8,509,373,644.28      100% 100% 0% 100% 0%

*Phase 3 targets and ranges reflect Phase 3 asset allocation targets accepted by the Board on June 27, 2018 (BOR Resolution 2018-2)

0% - 10%

Range
16% - 28%

Range
60% - 80%

Range



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association
Asset Allocation as of June 30, 2019

Market Percentage Phase 3 Target Phase 3 Long Term Long Term
Liquidity Value of Total Fund Percentage Over/(Under) Target Over/(Under)

Insight 744,843,442 8.5% 12.0% -3.5%
Sit 543,009,330 6.2% 5.5% 0.7%
Dimensional Fund Advisors 339,795,727 3.9% 5.5% -1.6%

Total Liquidity 1,627,648,500           18.5% 23.0% -4.5% 24.0% -5.5%

Growth
Domestic Equity
Boston Partners 267,319,996 3.0% 3.0% 0.0%
Jackson Square 288,330,354 3.3% 3.0% 0.3%
BlackRock Index Fund 135,787,891 1.5% 1.0% 0.5%
Emerald Advisors 222,647,710 2.5% 2.0% 0.5%
Ceredex 174,066,839 2.0% 2.0% -0.0%
Total Domestic Equity 1,088,152,791 12.4% 11.0% 1.4% 5.0% 7.4%

Global & International Equity
Pyrford (BMO) 472,477,417 5.4% 5.5% -0.1%
William Blair 494,998,297 5.6% 5.5% 0.1%
First Eagle 378,018,808 4.3% 4.0% 0.3%
Artisan Global Opportunities 386,747,648 4.4% 4.0% 0.4%
PIMCO/RAE Emerging Markets 353,821,590 4.0% 4.0% 0.0%
TT Emerging Markets 333,648,354 3.8% 4.0% -0.2%
Total Global & International Equity 2,419,712,114 27.5% 27.0% 0.5% 24.0% 3.5%

Private Equity 960,285,393 10.9% 10.0% 0.9% 11.0% -0.1%
Private Credit 412,574,488 4.7% 4.0% 0.7% 12.0% -7.3%
Real Estate - Value Add 177,142,324 2.0% 5.0% -3.0% 4.0% -2.0%
Real Estate - Opportunistic & Distressed 510,022,267 5.8% 4.0% 1.8% 4.0% 1.8%
Real Estate - REIT (Adelante) 74,996,736 0.9% 1.0% -0.1% 1.0% -0.1%
High Yield (Allianz) 318,978,341 3.6% 2.0% 1.6% 0.0% 3.6%
Risk Parity 5.0% -0.0% 5.0% -0.0%
AQR GRP EL 224,426,901 2.5%
PanAgora 214,693,530 2.4%
Total Other Growth Assets 2,893,119,981 32.8% 31.0% 1.8% 37.0% -4.2%

Total Growth Assets 6,400,984,886 72.7% 69.0% 3.7% 66.0% 6.7%

Risk Diversifying 
AFL-CIO 333,624,990 3.8% 3.5% 0.3% 3.0% 0.8%
Parametric Defensive Equity 199,785,900 2.3% 2.5% -0.2% 3.5% -1.2%
Wellington Real Total Return 185,543,216 2.1% 2.0% 0.1% 3.5% -1.4%

Total Risk Diversifying 718,954,106 8.2% 8.0% 0.2% 10.0% -1.8%

Cash and Overlay
Overlay (Parametric) 22,831,632 0.3% 0.3%
Cash 36,721,321 0.4% 0.4%

Total Cash and Overlay 59,552,953 0.7% 0.0% 0.7% 0.0% 0.7%

Total Fund 8,807,140,444.56      100% 100% 0% 100% 0%

*Phase 3 targets and ranges reflect Phase 3 asset allocation targets accepted by the Board on June 27, 2018 (BOR Resolution 2018-2)

0% - 10%

Range
16% - 28%

Range
60% - 80%

Range



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association
Asset Allocation as of July 31, 2019

Market Percentage Phase 3 Target Phase 3 Long Term Long Term
Liquidity Value of Total Fund Percentage Over/(Under) Target Over/(Under)

Insight 1,072,817,411 11.9% 12.0% -0.1%
Sit 538,837,001 6.0% 6.0% -0.0%
Dimensional Fund Advisors 527,265,321 5.8% 6.0% -0.2%

Total Liquidity 2,138,919,732           23.6% 24.0% -0.4% 24.0% -0.4%

Growth
Domestic Equity
Boston Partners 231,592,007 2.6% 2.5% 0.1%
Jackson Square 234,004,694 2.6% 2.5% 0.1%
BlackRock Index Fund 187,892,782 2.1% 2.0% 0.1%
Emerald Advisors 156,373,137 1.7% 1.5% 0.2%
Ceredex 157,447,174 1.7% 1.5% 0.2%
Total Domestic Equity 967,309,793 10.7% 10.0% 0.7% 5.0% 5.7%

Global & International Equity
Pyrford (BMO) 447,013,835 4.9% 5.0% -0.1%
William Blair 451,724,415 5.0% 5.0% -0.0%
First Eagle 369,003,841 4.1% 4.0% 0.1%
Artisan Global Opportunities 375,384,806 4.1% 4.0% 0.1%
PIMCO/RAE Emerging Markets 342,311,326 3.8% 4.0% -0.2%
TT Emerging Markets 332,910,620 3.7% 4.0% -0.3%
Total Global & International Equity 2,318,348,844 25.6% 26.0% -0.4% 24.0% 1.6%

Private Equity 994,759,762 11.0% 11.0% -0.0% 11.0% -0.0%
Private Credit 343,274,805 3.8% 5.0% -1.2% 12.0% -8.2%
Real Estate - Value Add 177,526,653 2.0% 4.0% -2.0% 4.0% -2.0%
Real Estate - Opportunistic & Distressed 509,891,493 5.6% 4.0% 1.6% 4.0% 1.6%
Real Estate - REIT (Adelante) 76,253,840 0.8% 1.0% -0.2% 1.0% -0.2%
High Yield (Allianz) 240,032,121 2.7% 2.0% 0.7% 0.0% 2.7%
Risk Parity 5.0% -0.1% 5.0% -0.1%
AQR GRP EL 225,993,731 2.5%
PanAgora 216,653,236 2.4%
Total Other Growth Assets 2,784,385,641 30.8% 32.0% -1.2% 37.0% -6.2%

Total Growth Assets 6,070,044,278 67.1% 68.0% -0.9% 66.0% 1.1%

Risk Diversifying 
AFL-CIO 333,354,520 3.7% 3.5% 0.2% 3.0% 0.7%
Parametric Defensive Equity 200,114,901 2.2% 2.5% -0.3% 3.5% -1.3%
Wellington Real Total Return 186,837,610 2.1% 2.0% 0.1% 3.5% -1.4%

Total Risk Diversifying 720,307,031 8.0% 8.0% -0.0% 10.0% -2.0%

Cash and Overlay
Overlay (Parametric) 13,391,665 0.1% 0.1%
Cash 108,715,756 1.2% 1.2%

Total Cash and Overlay 122,107,421 1.3% 0.0% 1.3% 0.0% 1.3%

Total Fund 9,051,378,462.72      100% 100% 0% 100% 0%

*Phase 3 targets and ranges reflect Phase 3 asset allocation targets accepted by the Board on June 27, 2018 (BOR Resolution 2018-2)

0% - 10%

Range
16% - 28%

Range
60% - 80%

Range



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association

Asset Allocation as of August 31, 2019

Market Percentage Phase 3 Target Phase 3 Long Term Long Term

Liquidity Value of Total Fund Percentage Over/(Under) Target Over/(Under)

Insight 1,052,823,818 11.6% 12.0% -0.4%

Sit 545,812,356 6.0% 6.0% 0.0%

Dimensional Fund Advisors 515,337,279 5.7% 6.0% -0.3%

Total Liquidity 2,113,973,453 23.4% 24.0% -0.6% 24.0% -0.6%

Growth

Domestic Equity

Boston Partners 225,198,501 2.5% 2.5% -0.0%

Jackson Square 231,011,937 2.6% 2.5% 0.1%

BlackRock Index Fund 184,445,767 2.0% 2.0% 0.0%

Emerald Advisors 147,745,988 1.6% 1.5% 0.1%

Ceredex 149,794,381 1.7% 1.5% 0.2%

Total Domestic Equity 938,196,574 10.4% 10.0% 0.4% 5.0% 5.4%

Global & International Equity

Pyrford (BMO) 439,908,718 4.9% 5.0% -0.1%

William Blair 446,688,224 4.9% 5.0% -0.1%

First Eagle 364,772,124 4.0% 4.0% 0.0%

Artisan Global Opportunities 368,952,264 4.1% 4.0% 0.1%

PIMCO/RAE Emerging Markets 323,529,118 3.6% 4.0% -0.4%

TT Emerging Markets 312,446,512 3.5% 4.0% -0.5%

Total Global & International Equity 2,256,296,960 25.0% 26.0% -1.0% 24.0% 1.0%

Private Equity 1,010,886,094 11.2% 11.0% 0.2% 11.0% 0.2%

Private Credit 421,525,152 4.7% 5.0% -0.3% 12.0% -7.3%

Real Estate - Value Add 173,831,065 1.9% 4.0% -2.1% 4.0% -2.1%

Real Estate - Opportunistic & Distressed 491,717,420 5.4% 4.0% 1.4% 4.0% 1.4%

Real Estate - REIT (Adelante) 78,699,080 0.9% 1.0% -0.1% 1.0% -0.1%

High Yield (Allianz) 242,126,342 2.7% 2.0% 0.7% 0.0% 2.7%

Risk Parity 5.0% 0.0% 5.0% 0.0%

AQR GRP EL 228,759,927 2.5%

PanAgora 223,723,055 2.5%

Total Other Growth Assets 2,871,268,135 31.8% 32.0% -0.2% 37.0% -5.2%

Total Growth Assets 6,065,761,669 67.1% 68.0% -0.9% 66.0% 1.1%

Risk Diversifying 

AFL-CIO 340,659,461 3.8% 3.5% 0.3% 3.0% 0.8%

Parametric Defensive Equity 201,283,382 2.2% 2.5% -0.3% 3.5% -1.3%

Wellington Real Total Return 189,320,931 2.1% 2.0% 0.1% 3.5% -1.4%

Total Risk Diversifying 731,263,774 8.1% 8.0% 0.1% 10.0% -1.9%

Cash and Overlay

Overlay (Parametric) 24,164,197 0.3% 0.3%

Cash 103,729,204 1.1% 1.1%

Total Cash and Overlay 127,893,401 1.4% 0.0% 1.4% 0.0% 1.4%

Total Fund 9,038,892,296.47      100% 100% 0% 100% 0%

*Phase 3 targets and ranges reflect Phase 3 asset allocation targets accepted by the Board on June 27, 2018 (BOR Resolution 2018-2)

0% - 10%

Range

16% - 28%

Range

60% - 80%

Range



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association

Asset Allocation as of September 30, 2019

Market Percentage Phase 3 Target Phase 3 Long Term Long Term

Liquidity Value of Total Fund Percentage Over/(Under) Target Over/(Under)

Insight CCCERA - INSIGHT SHORT1,028,461,532 11.4% 12.0% -0.6%

Sit CCCERA - SIT SHORT DURATION542,662,117 6.0% 6.0% 0.0%

Dimensional Fund Advisors CCCERA - DFA501,752,961 5.6% 6.0% -0.4%

Total Liquidity 2,072,876,610 23.0% 24.0% -1.0% 24.0% -1.0%

Growth

Domestic Equity

Boston Partners CCCERA - ROBECO232,261,879 2.6% 2.5% 0.1%

Jackson Square CCCERA - JACKSON SQUARE231,044,330 2.6% 2.5% 0.1%

BlackRock Index Fund CCCERA-BLACKROCK RUSSELL187,647,476 2.1% 2.0% 0.1%

Emerald Advisors CCCERA - EMERALD143,146,343 1.6% 1.5% 0.1%

Ceredex CCCERA - CEREDEX156,462,227 1.7% 1.5% 0.2%

Total Domestic Equity 950,562,255 10.5% 10.0% 0.5% 5.0% 5.5%

Global & International Equity

Pyrford (BMO) CCCERA-BMO PYRFORD447,988,315 5.0% 5.0% -0.0%

William Blair CCCERA-WILLIAM BLAIR450,848,556 5.0% 5.0% -0.0%

First Eagle CCCERA - FIRST EAGLE371,818,334 4.1% 4.0% 0.1%

Artisan Global Opportunities CCCERA-ARTISAN PARTNERS368,952,264 4.1% 4.0% 0.1%

PIMCO/RAE Emerging Markets CCCERA-PIMCO RAE EM332,474,898 3.7% 4.0% -0.3%

TT Emerging Markets CCCERA-TT EM317,450,275 3.5% 4.0% -0.5%

Total Global & International Equity 2,289,532,642 25.4% 26.0% -0.6% 24.0% 1.4%

Private Equity 1,025,299,390 11.4% 11.0% 0.4% 11.0% 0.4%

Private Credit 430,927,421 4.8% 5.0% -0.2% 12.0% -7.2%

Real Estate - Value Add 173,831,065 1.9% 4.0% -2.1% 4.0% -2.1%

Real Estate - Opportunistic & Distressed 490,193,675 5.4% 4.0% 1.4% 4.0% 1.4%

Real Estate - REIT (Adelante) CCCERA - ADELANTE CAPITAL80,779,460 0.9% 1.0% -0.1% 1.0% -0.1%

High Yield (Allianz) CCCERA - ALLIANZ GLOBAL203,391,255 2.3% 2.0% 0.3% 0.0% 2.3%

Risk Parity 5.0% 0.0% 5.0% 0.0%

AQR GRP EL CCCERA-AQR228,677,512 2.5%

PanAgora CCCERA-PANAGORA223,666,394 2.5%

Total Other Growth Assets 2,856,766,172 31.7% 32.0% -0.3% 37.0% -5.3%

Total Growth Assets 6,096,861,069 67.6% 68.0% -0.4% 66.0% 1.6%

Risk Diversifying 

AFL-CIO CCCERA-AFL CIO338,239,760 3.7% 3.5% 0.2% 3.0% 0.7%

Parametric Defensive Equity CCCERA - PARAMETRIC DEFENSE203,166,436 2.3% 2.5% -0.2% 3.5% -1.2%

Wellington Real Total Return CCCERA-WELLINGTON187,272,385 2.1% 2.0% 0.1% 3.5% -1.4%

Total Risk Diversifying 728,678,580 8.1% 8.0% 0.1% 10.0% -1.9%

Cash and Overlay

Overlay (Parametric) CCCERA-Parametric Overlay27,067,493 0.3% 0.3%

Cash CCCERA-CASH96,443,107 1.1% 1.1%

Total Cash and Overlay 123,510,601 1.4% 0.0% 1.4% 0.0% 1.4%

Total Fund 9,021,926,859.73      100% 100% 0% 100% 0%

*Phase 3 targets and ranges reflect Phase 3 asset allocation targets accepted by the Board on June 27, 2018 (BOR Resolution 2018-2)

0% - 10%

Range

16% - 28%

Range

60% - 80%

Range



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association

Asset Allocation as of October 31, 2019

Market Percentage Current Target Current Target Long Term Long Term

Liquidity Value of Total Fund Percentage Over/(Under) Target Over/(Under)

Insight CCCERA - INSIGHT SHORT1,006,054,108 10.9% 12.0% -1.1%

Sit CCCERA - SIT SHORT DURATION541,886,884 5.9% 6.0% -0.1%

Dimensional Fund Advisors CCCERA - DFA488,896,723 5.3% 6.0% -0.7%

Total Liquidity 2,036,837,715 22.2% 24.0% -1.8% 24.0% -1.8%

Growth

Domestic Equity

Boston Partners CCCERA - ROBECO236,115,626 2.6% 2.5% 0.1%

Jackson Square CCCERA - JACKSON SQUARE234,255,929 2.5% 2.5% 0.0%

BlackRock Index Fund CCCERA-BLACKROCK RUSSELL191,620,628 2.1% 2.0% 0.1%

Emerald Advisors CCCERA - EMERALD149,287,044 1.6% 1.5% 0.1%

Ceredex CCCERA - CEREDEX157,127,355 1.7% 1.5% 0.2%

Total Domestic Equity 968,406,581 10.5% 10.0% 0.5% 5.0% 5.5%

Global & International Equity

Pyrford (BMO) CCCERA-BMO PYRFORD465,177,996 5.1% 5.0% 0.1%

William Blair CCCERA-WILLIAM BLAIR468,584,706 5.1% 5.0% 0.1%

First Eagle CCCERA - FIRST EAGLE376,641,145 4.1% 4.0% 0.1%

Artisan Global Opportunities CCCERA-ARTISAN PARTNERS377,375,831 4.1% 4.0% 0.1%

PIMCO/RAE Emerging Markets CCCERA-PIMCO RAE EM345,079,050 3.8% 4.0% -0.2%

TT Emerging Markets CCCERA-TT EM328,452,139 3.6% 4.0% -0.4%

Total Global & International Equity 2,361,310,868 25.7% 26.0% -0.3% 24.0% 1.7%

Private Equity 1,025,369,544 11.2% 11.0% 0.2% 11.0% 0.2%

Private Credit 516,827,536 5.6% 5.0% 0.6% 12.0% -6.4%

Real Estate - Value Add 171,662,851 1.9% 4.0% -2.1% 4.0% -2.1%

Real Estate - Opportunistic & Distressed 488,242,895 5.3% 4.0% 1.3% 4.0% 1.3%

Real Estate - REIT (Adelante) CCCERA - ADELANTE CAPITAL81,683,051 0.9% 1.0% -0.1% 1.0% -0.1%

High Yield (Allianz) CCCERA - ALLIANZ GLOBAL204,522,080 2.2% 2.0% 0.2% 0.0% 2.2%

Risk Parity 5.0% -0.1% 5.0% -0.1%

AQR GRP EL CCCERA-AQR230,760,428 2.5%

PanAgora CCCERA-PANAGORA223,825,924 2.4%

Total Other Growth Assets 2,942,894,309 32.0% 32.0% 0.0% 37.0% -5.0%

Total Growth Assets 6,272,611,758 68.2% 68.0% 0.2% 66.0% 2.2%

Risk Diversifying 

AFL-CIO CCCERA-AFL CIO337,664,322 3.7% 3.5% 0.2% 3.0% 0.7%

Parametric Defensive Equity CCCERA - PARAMETRIC DEFENSE204,997,213 2.2% 2.5% -0.3% 3.5% -1.3%

Wellington Real Total Return CCCERA-WELLINGTON188,393,363 2.0% 2.0% 0.0% 3.5% -1.5%

Total Risk Diversifying 731,054,898 8.0% 8.0% -0.0% 10.0% -2.0%

Cash and Overlay

Overlay (Parametric) CCCERA-Parametric Overlay30,794,075 0.3% 0.3%

Cash CCCERA-CASH119,713,758 1.3% 1.3%

Total Cash and Overlay 150,507,833 1.6% 0.0% 1.6% 0.0% 1.6%

Total Fund 9,191,012,204.27      100% 100% 0% 100% 0%

*Current targets and ranges reflect asset allocation targets accepted by the Board on June 26, 2019 (BOR Resolution 2019-4)

0% - 10%

Range

16% - 28%

Range

60% - 80%

Range



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association

Asset Allocation as of November 30, 2019

Market Percentage Current Target Current Target Long Term Long Term

Liquidity Value of Total Fund Percentage Over/(Under) Target Over/(Under)

Insight CCCERA - INSIGHT SHORT980,197,021 10.6% 12.0% -1.4%

Sit CCCERA - SIT SHORT DURATION539,922,001 5.8% 6.0% -0.2%

Dimensional Fund Advisors CCCERA - DFA474,701,746 5.1% 6.0% -0.9%

Total Liquidity 1,994,820,769 21.6% 24.0% -2.4% 24.0% -2.4%

Growth

Domestic Equity

Boston Partners CCCERA - ROBECO243,689,468 2.6% 2.5% 0.1%

Jackson Square CCCERA - JACKSON SQUARE239,353,011 2.6% 2.5% 0.1%

BlackRock Index Fund CCCERA-BLACKROCK RUSSELL198,860,631 2.2% 2.0% 0.2%

Emerald Advisors CCCERA - EMERALD155,667,177 1.7% 1.5% 0.2%

Ceredex CCCERA - CEREDEX158,619,594 1.7% 1.5% 0.2%

Total Domestic Equity 996,189,880 10.8% 10.0% 0.8% 5.0% 5.8%

Global & International Equity

Pyrford (BMO) CCCERA-BMO PYRFORD469,960,789 5.1% 5.0% 0.1%

William Blair CCCERA-WILLIAM BLAIR480,846,736 5.2% 5.0% 0.2%

First Eagle CCCERA - FIRST EAGLE378,876,168 4.1% 4.0% 0.1%

Artisan Global Opportunities CCCERA-ARTISAN PARTNERS389,015,670 4.2% 4.0% 0.2%

PIMCO/RAE Emerging Markets CCCERA-PIMCO RAE EM345,079,050 3.7% 4.0% -0.3%

TT Emerging Markets CCCERA-TT EM332,942,696 3.6% 4.0% -0.4%

Total Global & International Equity 2,396,721,109 26.0% 26.0% -0.0% 24.0% 2.0%

Private Equity 1,022,724,814 11.1% 11.0% 0.1% 11.0% 0.1%

Private Credit 516,192,736 5.6% 5.0% 0.6% 12.0% -6.4%

Real Estate - Value Add 175,412,673 1.9% 4.0% -2.1% 4.0% -2.1%

Real Estate - Opportunistic & Distressed 479,121,358 5.2% 4.0% 1.2% 4.0% 1.2%

Real Estate - REIT (Adelante) CCCERA - ADELANTE CAPITAL80,866,035 0.9% 1.0% -0.1% 1.0% -0.1%

High Yield (Allianz) CCCERA - ALLIANZ GLOBAL205,681,676 2.2% 2.0% 0.2% 0.0% 2.2%

Risk Parity 5.0% -0.1% 5.0% -0.1%

AQR GRP EL CCCERA-AQR230,773,896 2.5%

PanAgora CCCERA-PANAGORA222,264,700 2.4%

Total Other Growth Assets 2,933,037,889 31.8% 32.0% -0.2% 37.0% -5.2%

Total Growth Assets 6,325,948,878 68.5% 68.0% 0.5% 66.0% 2.5%

Risk Diversifying 

AFL-CIO CCCERA-AFL CIO336,318,783 3.6% 3.5% 0.1% 3.0% 0.6%

Parametric Defensive Equity CCCERA - PARAMETRIC DEFENSE204,524,311 2.2% 2.5% -0.3% 3.5% -1.3%

Wellington Real Total Return CCCERA-WELLINGTON189,246,762 2.1% 2.0% 0.1% 3.5% -1.4%

Total Risk Diversifying 730,089,856 7.9% 8.0% -0.1% 10.0% -2.1%

Cash and Overlay

Overlay (Parametric) CCCERA-Parametric Overlay32,473,736 0.4% 0.4%

Cash CCCERA-CASH146,283,055 1.6% 1.6%

Total Cash and Overlay 178,756,790 1.9% 0.0% 1.9% 0.0% 1.9%

Total Fund 9,229,616,293.23      100% 100% 0% 100% 0%

*Current targets and ranges reflect asset allocation targets accepted by the Board on June 26, 2019 (BOR Resolution 2019-4)

0% - 10%

Range

16% - 28%

Range

60% - 80%

Range



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association

Asset Allocation as of December 31, 2019

Market Percentage Current Target Current Target Long Term Long Term

Liquidity Value of Total Fund Percentage Over/(Under) Target Over/(Under)

Insight CCCERA - INSIGHT SHORT956,150,002 10.2% 12.0% -1.8%

Sit CCCERA - SIT SHORT DURATION539,042,631 5.8% 6.0% -0.2%

Dimensional Fund Advisors CCCERA - DFA460,934,054 4.9% 6.0% -1.1%

Total Liquidity 1,956,126,688 20.9% 24.0% -3.1% 24.0% -3.1%

Growth

Domestic Equity

Boston Partners CCCERA - ROBECO251,080,501 2.7% 2.5% 0.2%

Jackson Square CCCERA - JACKSON SQUARE244,269,952 2.6% 2.5% 0.1%

BlackRock Index Fund CCCERA-BLACKROCK RUSSELL204,604,006 2.2% 2.0% 0.2%

Emerald Advisors CCCERA - EMERALD159,009,461 1.7% 1.5% 0.2%

Ceredex CCCERA - CEREDEX160,524,993 1.7% 1.5% 0.2%

Total Domestic Equity 1,019,488,911 10.9% 10.0% 0.9% 5.0% 5.9%

Global & International Equity

Pyrford (BMO) CCCERA-BMO PYRFORD485,671,948 5.2% 5.0% 0.2%

William Blair CCCERA-WILLIAM BLAIR500,334,604 5.3% 5.0% 0.3%

First Eagle CCCERA - FIRST EAGLE390,136,719 4.2% 4.0% 0.2%

Artisan Global Opportunities CCCERA-ARTISAN PARTNERS404,024,936 4.3% 4.0% 0.3%

PIMCO/RAE Emerging Markets CCCERA-PIMCO RAE EM369,299,185 3.9% 4.0% -0.1%

TT Emerging Markets CCCERA-TT EM360,880,373 3.9% 4.0% -0.1%

Total Global & International Equity 2,510,347,766 26.8% 26.0% 0.8% 24.0% 2.8%

Private Equity 1,024,924,786 10.9% 11.0% -0.1% 11.0% -0.1%

Private Credit 539,105,455 5.8% 5.0% 0.8% 12.0% -6.2%

Real Estate - Value Add 163,789,623 1.7% 4.0% -2.3% 4.0% -2.3%

Real Estate - Opportunistic & Distressed 466,532,141 5.0% 4.0% 1.0% 4.0% 1.0%

Real Estate - REIT (Adelante) CCCERA - ADELANTE CAPITAL80,205,371 0.9% 1.0% -0.1% 1.0% -0.1%

High Yield (Allianz) CCCERA - ALLIANZ GLOBAL208,839,867 2.2% 2.0% 0.2% 0.0% 2.2%

Risk Parity 5.0% -0.1% 5.0% -0.1%

AQR GRP EL CCCERA-AQR236,618,370 2.5%

PanAgora CCCERA-PANAGORA223,192,334 2.4%

Total Other Growth Assets 2,943,207,947 31.4% 32.0% -0.6% 37.0% -5.6%

Total Growth Assets 6,473,044,624 69.1% 68.0% 1.1% 66.0% 3.1%

Risk Diversifying 

AFL-CIO CCCERA-AFL CIO334,559,218 3.6% 3.5% 0.1% 3.0% 0.6%

Parametric Defensive Equity CCCERA - PARAMETRIC DEFENSE204,710,656 2.2% 2.5% -0.3% 3.5% -1.3%

Wellington Real Total Return CCCERA-WELLINGTON190,367,799 2.0% 2.0% 0.0% 3.5% -1.5%

Total Risk Diversifying 729,637,673 7.8% 8.0% -0.2% 10.0% -2.2%

Cash and Overlay

Overlay (Parametric) CCCERA-Parametric Overlay39,093,253 0.4% 0.4%

Cash CCCERA-CASH168,995,241 1.8% 1.8%

Total Cash and Overlay 208,088,494 2.2% 0.0% 2.2% 0.0% 2.2%

Total Fund 9,366,897,478.77      100% 100% 0% 100% 0%

*Current targets and ranges reflect asset allocation targets accepted by the Board on June 26, 2019 (BOR Resolution 2019-4)

0% - 10%

Range

16% - 28%

Range

60% - 80%

Range



 

1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520     Phone: (925) 521-3960      Fax: (925) 521-3969     cccera.org 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: February 26, 2020 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer  

Subject: Consider and take possible action to increase the salary ranges by 4% for all 
unrepresented classifications effective April 1, 2020, with the exception of the Chief 
Executive Officer. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background 
CCCERA is trusted with administering pension benefits for approximately 23,000 members with 
over $9 billion in assets. It is important that CCCERA as an employer has the appropriate 
workforce in place to meet its core objectives. A critical component to recruiting and retaining 
qualified individuals is offering appropriate and fair compensation, especially in a tight labor 
market. A 4% increase in the salary ranges of the unrepresented classifications effective April 1, 
2020 will help CCCERA maintain a strong salary structure with the overall labor market. The 
attached resolution for salary and benefits for unrepresented employees includes non-
substantive changes that merely provide further clarification. 
 
The attached pay schedule reflects a proposed increase of 4% in the salary ranges for all 
unrepresented classifications effective April 1, 2020, with the exception of the Chief Executive 
Officer.  
 
 
Recommendation 
Consider and take possible action to:  

a. adopt Board of Retirement Resolution 2020-1 to increase the salary ranges by 4% for all 
unrepresented classifications effective April 1, 2020, with the exception of the Chief 
Executive Officer.  

b.    adopt the CCCERA Position Pay Schedule for unrepresented classifications effective 
April 1, 2020 which reflects the salary range changes in Board of Retirement Resolution 
2020-1. 

 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/26/20Agenda Item#8



BOR Reso. No. 2020-1 

 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

 

CCCERA RESOLUTION FOR SALARY AND BENEFITS 

FOR UNREPRESENTED EMPLOYEES  

 

EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 1, 2016 

AMENDED MAY 25, 2016 

AMENDED JUNE 22, 2016 

AMENDED JUNE 14, 2017 

AMENDED AUGUST 23, 2017 

AMENDED MAY 23, 2018 

AMENDED JULY 25, 2018 

AMENDED AUGUST 22, 2018 

AMENDED APRIL 10, 2019 

AMENDED FEBRUARY 26, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/26/20Agenda Item#8a.



BOR Reso. No. 2020-1 

1 | P a g e  
 

 

 

Table of Contents 
1. Paid Holidays: ............................................................................................................................................ 2 

2. Personal Holidays: ..................................................................................................................................... 3 

3. Vacation: .................................................................................................................................................... 3 

        Vacation Buy Back: ................................................................................................................................... 4 

4. Sick Leave: ................................................................................................................................................. 5 

5. Sick Leave Incentive Plan: ......................................................................................................................... 5 

6. Management Administrative Leave ........................................................................................................... 6 

7. Other Unpaid Leaves: ................................................................................................................................ 7 

A. Medical/Family Illness/Child Care Leave (FMLA/CFRA LEAVE) ..................................................... 7 

B. Pregnancy Disability Leave ................................................................................................................... 8 

C.    Military Leave ........................................................................................................................................ 8 

8. Health, Dental, and Related Benefits ......................................................................................................... 9 

    Health and Dental Coverage Upon Retirement ........................................................................................ 10 

9. Long-Term and Short-Term Disability Insurance .................................................................................... 12 

10.   State Disability Insurance ........................................................................................................................ 12 

11.   Life Insurance .......................................................................................................................................... 12 

12.   Workers Compensation Insurance ........................................................................................................... 12 

13.   Health Care Spending Account ................................................................................................................ 13 

14.   Dependent Care Assistance Program ....................................................................................................... 14 

15.   Premium Conversion Plan ....................................................................................................................... 14 

16.   Vision Insurance ...................................................................................................................................... 14 

17.   Retirement: ............................................................................................................................................... 14 

    CCCERA Membership: ........................................................................................................................... 14 

    Deferred Compensation: .......................................................................................................................... 15 

18.   General Training ...................................................................................................................................... 16 

19.   Other Job-Related Training ...................................................................................................................... 16 

20.   Professional Development Reimbursement ............................................................................................. 16 

21.   Salary ....................................................................................................................................................... 17 

22.   Overtime .................................................................................................................................................. 17 

23.   Differential Pay ........................................................................................................................................ 17 

A. Longevity ............................................................................................................................................. 17 

B. Certificate Differentials ........................................................................................................................ 18 

 



BOR Reso. No. 2020-1 

2 | P a g e  
 

WHEREAS, the Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association ("CCCERA") is a 

public agency established by virtue of, and governed by the County Employees’ Retirement Law 

of 1937, Government Code sections 31450, et seq., (“CERL”) and Article XVI, section 17 of the 

California Constitution. 

 

WHEREAS, CCCERA administers a retirement system for the County of Contra Costa and for 

other participating employers located within the County, including CCCERA, by and through its 

Board of Retirement (“Board”), and as the Board delegates to its employees who are appointed 

by CCCERA pursuant to CERL section 31529.9 (“CCCERA Employees.”) 

  

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to provide salary and benefits to the unrepresented employees of 

CCCERA, effective from January 1, 2015 until further notice; 

 

NOW THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that effective January 1, 2015 and until 

further notice employees of CCCERA in the job classifications identified on Attachment A 

hereto shall receive the following salary and benefits: 

 

 

1. Paid Holidays:  
 

CCCERA observes the following paid holidays during the term covered by this Resolution: 

 
New Year’s Day Labor Day 
Martin Luther King Jr. Day Veterans’ Day 
Presidents’ Day Thanksgiving Day 
Memorial Day Day after Thanksgiving 
Independence Day Christmas Day 

 
Any paid holiday observed by CCCERA that falls on a Saturday is observed on the 
preceding Friday and any paid holiday that falls on a Sunday is observed on the following 
Monday. 

 

Eligibility for Paid Holidays: Regular full-time employees are entitled to a paid day off in 
recognition of the holiday without a reduction in monthly base pay for CCCERA-observed 
holidays listed above.   

 

Part-time employees [who are regularly scheduled to work a minimum of 20 hours per 
week] are entitled to the listed paid holidays on a pro rata basis. For example, a part time 
employee whose position hours are 24 per week is entitled to 4.8 hours off work on a 
holiday (24/40 x 8 = 4.8).  

 

When a paid holiday falls on a part-time employee’s normally scheduled work day and the 
part-time paid holiday hours are more than the normally scheduled work hours the 
employee is entitled to receive flexible compensation hours or pay at the rate of one times 
the employees’ base rate of pay for the difference between the employee’s normally 
scheduled work hours and the paid part-time holiday hours. 



BOR Reso. No. 2020-1 

3 | P a g e  
 

When a paid holiday falls on a part-time employee’s normally scheduled work day and the 
part-time paid holiday hours are less than the normally scheduled work hours the employee 
must use non-sick leave accruals for the difference between the employee’s normally 
scheduled work hours and the part-time paid holiday hours. If the employee does not have 
any non-sick leave accrual balances, leave without pay will be authorized. 

 

Flexible Compensation: Flexible Compensation may not be accumulated in excess of 288 
hours. After 288 hours are accrued by an employee, the employee will receive flexible pay 
at the rate of 1.0 times the employee’s base rate of pay. Flexible compensation may be 
taken on those dates and times determined by mutual agreement of the employee and their 
supervisor. 

 

2. Personal Holidays: 

 
Regular employees subject to this Resolution are entitled to accrue up to two hours of 
personal holiday credit each month.  
 

Part-time employees [who are regularly scheduled to work a minimum of 20 hours per 
week] accrue personal holiday hours on a pro rata basis.  
 
No employee may accrue more than forty hours of personal holiday credit at any time.  
Once the employee reaches forty hours of personal holiday, the employee will cease 
accruing such paid time off until he/she uses sufficient such time to reduce his/her bank 
below the forty-hour maximum, after at which time the employee may begin to accrue 
additional hours up to the forty-hour maximum. 
 
On separation from CCCERA service, employees shall be paid for any accrued and unused 
personal holiday hours at the employee’s then-current rate of pay. 

 

3. Vacation:  
 

Regular full-time employees subject to this Resolution are entitled to accrue paid vacation 
as follows: 

 

 

 

Length of Service* 

Monthly 
Accrual 
Hours 

Maximum  
Cumulative 
Hours  

Fewer than 11 years 10 240 

11 years 10-2/3 256 

12 years 11-1/3 272 

13 years 12 288 

14 years 12-2/3 304 

15 through 19 years 13-1/3 320 

20 through 24 years 16-2/3 400 



BOR Reso. No. 2020-1 

4 | P a g e  
 

 

 

Length of Service* 

Monthly 
Accrual 
Hours 

Maximum  
Cumulative 
Hours  

25 through 29 years 20 480 

30 years and up 23-1/3 560 

* Includes County service if employed at CCCERA before January 1, 2015. 

 

Part-time employees [who are regularly scheduled to work a minimum of 20 hours per 
week] are entitled to the listed paid vacation on a pro rata basis. 

 

Employees may accrue paid vacation time up to a maximum of twice their annual vacation 
accrual.  That is, for a full-time employee with 8 years of service, the employee may 
accrue up to a maximum of 240 hours (120 hours maximum annual accrual x 2 = 240 
hours).  Once the employee reaches this maximum cumulative hours, she/he will cease 
accruing paid vacation time until he/she uses sufficient vacation to drop below the 
maximum cumulative hours after which time the employee may begin to accrue additional 
hours up to the maximum cumulative hours. 

 
On separation from CCCERA service, employees shall be paid for any accrued and unused 
vacation hours at the employee’s then-current rate of pay. 

 

Vacation Buy Back: 

 

A. With the exception of the Chief Executive Officer, employees may elect payment 
of up to one-third (1/3) of their annual vacation accrual, subject to the following 
conditions:  

(1) the choice can be made only once every thirteen (13) months and there must be 
at least twelve (12) full months between each election;  

(2) payment is based on an hourly rate determined by dividing the employee’s 
current monthly salary by 173.33; and  

(3) the maximum number of vacation hours that may be paid in any one sale is 
one-third (1/3) of the annual accrual. 

 

B. The Chief Executive Officer may elect payment of up to one-third (1/3) of their 
annual vacation accrual, subject to the following conditions: 

(1) the choice can be made only once in each calendar year;  

(2) payment is based on an hourly rate determined by dividing the employee’s 
current monthly salary by 173.33; and  

(3) the maximum number of vacation hours that may be paid in any one sale is 
one-third (1/3) of the annual accrual. 

 
C. The vacation buy back election must be made in the calendar year preceding the year of the 

vacation sale. Hours that an employee elects to cash out are not available for the employee 



BOR Reso. No. 2020-1 

5 | P a g e  
 

to use as vacation.  If a vacation buy back election is not made in the preceding calendar 

year, it will be considered a declination of the vacation sale for the year.  

 

NOTE: Where a lump-sum payment is made to employees as a retroactive general salary 
adjustment for a portion of a calendar year that is subsequent to the exercise by an 
employee of the vacation buy-back provision herein, that employee’s vacation buy-back 
will be adjusted to reflect the percentage difference in base pay rates upon which the lump-
sum payment was computed, provided that the period covered by the lump-sum payment 
includes the effective date of the vacation buy-back. For example: In May a salary 
increase is approved with an effective date of January 1st and the employee completed a 
vacation buy-back in March, a lump sum payment for the difference in base pay of the 
vacation buy-back would be calculated.   

 

4. Sick Leave:  

 

Regular full-time employees subject to this Resolution shall earn paid sick leave benefits at 
the rate of eight (8) hours per month.  Regular part-time employees [who are regularly 
scheduled to work a minimum of 20 hours per week] are entitled to sick leave benefits on a 
pro rata basis.  

 

Unused sick leave hours accumulate from year to year. When an employee is separated, 
other than through retirement, accumulated sick leave hours shall be cancelled, unless the 
separation results from layoff, in which case the accumulated hours shall be restored if 
reemployed in a regular position within the period of layoff eligibility. At retirement, 
employees are credited, at the rate of one day for each one day earned, with sick leave 
accumulated as of the day of retirement and that sick leave credit counts as additional 
retirement service credit.  

 

For more information on sick leave benefits please refer to the CCCERA Personnel 
Policies. 

 

5. Sick Leave Incentive Plan:  

 

Employees may be eligible for a payoff of a part of unused sick leave accruals at 
separation. The sick leave incentive plan is an incentive for employees to safeguard sick 
leave accruals as protection against wage loss due to time lost for injury or illness. Payoff 
must be approved by the Chief Executive Officer, and is subject to the following 
conditions: 

 

➢ The employee must have resigned in good standing 

➢ Payout is not available if the employee is eligible to retire 

➢ The balance of sick leave at resignation must be at least 70% of accruals earned in 
the preceding continuous period of employment excluding any sick leave use 
covered by the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), the California Family 
Rights Act (CFRA) or the California Pregnancy Disability Act (PDL). 



BOR Reso. No. 2020-1 

6 | P a g e  
 

➢ Payout is by the following schedule: 

 

Years of Payment 
Continuous Service 

Payment of Unused 
Sick Leave Payable 

3 – 5 years 30% 

5 – 7 years 40% 

7 plus years 50% 

  

➢ No payoff will be made pursuant to this section unless CCCERA certifies that an 
employee requesting as sick leave payoff has terminated membership in, and has 
withdrawn their contributions from CCCERA. 

➢ It is the intent of the Board of Retirement that payments made pursuant to this 
section are in lieu of CCCERA retirement benefits resulting from employment with 
any of the employers in the CCCERA retirement plan.  

 

6. Management Administrative Leave 

 

Management Administrative Leave is authorized time away from the job for any personal 
activities and needs which are not charged to sick leave or vacation hours. Unrepresented 
employees who are exempt from the payment of overtime are eligible for this benefit. 

 

Use of Management Administrative Leave may be requested whenever desired by the 
employee; however; approval of request shall be subject to the same department process as 
used for vacation requests. 

 

All unused Management Administrative Leave will be cancelled at 11:59 p.m. on 
December 31st of each year. 

 

A. On January 1st of each year, all full-time unrepresented employees, who are exempt 
from the payment of overtime and in paid status, will be credited with ninety four (94) 
hours of paid Management Administrative Leave. All Management Administrative 
Leave is non-accruable and all balances will be zeroed out on December 31st of each 
year. 

 

B. Regular part-time employees [who are regularly scheduled to work a minimum of 20 
hours per week] are eligible for Management Administrative Leave on a prorated 
basis, based upon their position hours. 

 

C. Employees appointed (hired or promoted) to a management position are eligible for 
Management Administrative Leave on the first day of the month following their 
appointment date and will receive Management Administrative Leave on a prorated 
basis for that first year. 

 

 



BOR Reso. No. 2020-1 

7 | P a g e  
 

7. Other Unpaid Leaves: 

 

CCCERA provides leaves of absence to eligible employees in a variety of circumstances.  
In all cases, CCCERA intends to comply with applicable federal and state laws.  For 
additional information on unpaid leaves please refer to the CCCERA Personnel Policies. 

 

• Pregnancy disability leave may be requested by any employee at any time. 

• Workers’ compensation leave is provided to any employee as needed. 

• Leave as a reasonable accommodation of an employee’s disability is 

provided to any employee as needed. 

Request for Leave:  As soon as an employee learns of the need for a leave of absence, the 

employee should submit a request for leave to the Administrative/HR Manager.  Request 

forms are available from Human Resources.  Any leave request must state the purpose of 

the leave being requested.  If approved, the leave must be used for that purpose. 

A. Medical/Family Illness/Child Care Leave (FMLA/CFRA LEAVE)  

 

Eligible employees may request an unpaid Family Medical Leave Act (“FMLA”) of up to 

18 workweeks in a rolling 12-month period (measured backwards from the date the leave 

begins) for any of the following reasons: 

• Birth of the employee’s child and to care for the child within the first year of 

birth;  

• The care of an adopted or foster child which the first year of placement with 

the employee; 

• Care for the employee’s child, spouse or domestic partner, or parent with a 

serious health condition;  

• Serious health condition of the employee; 

• A qualifying exigency arising out of an eligible family member’s call to 

military duty; or 

• To care for a covered military service member who is the employee’s eligible 

family member/next-of-kin. 

For purposes of this Resolution, an eligible employee is one who has completed one year of 

continuous employment with CCCERA and worked a minimum of 1,250 hours during the 

preceding 12 months. 

Medical certification is required for leaves necessitated by the serious health condition of 

the employee or of a family member, but an employee or his/her health care provider need 

not, and should not, disclose the employee’s underlying condition. medical history, results 



BOR Reso. No. 2020-1 

8 | P a g e  
 

of tests, or any genetic information.    A “serious health condition” means an illness, injury, 

impairment, or physical or mental condition that involves any of the following: 

• Time or treatment in connection with inpatient care; 

• Period of incapacity of more than three consecutive days that involves 

treatment by a health care provider; or 

• Any period of incapacity or treatment that is permanent or long term. 

Employees will continue to be covered by CCCERA health insurance benefits under pre-

leave conditions during the entire approved FMLA leave. 

FMLA leave is unpaid, except that employees [may elect to use any accrued vacation, sick, 

personal holiday or management administrative leave time. 

Intermittent leave or a reduced work schedule may be approved with medical certification 

for an employee’s Serious Health Condition, for the employee to care for a child, parent, 

spouse, or domestic partner (under the CFRA only) with a serious health condition. 

Medical certification that the employee is released to return to work is required before the 

employee will be permitted to return. 

If an employee needs to extend his or her leave, he/she must request an extension for 

FMLA/CFRA leave as soon as practicable after he/she has knowledge of the need for 

additional leave time. Recertification by a treating health care provider may be required 

every 30 calendar days in connection with an employee’s absence where appropriate. 

B. Pregnancy Disability Leave 

 

Pregnancy Disability Leave (PDL) is a leave due to pregnancy, childbirth, or related reasons 

preventing the employee from performing her job functions.  PDL includes leave needed for 

prenatal care and prenatal complications. 

Employees may take up to a maximum of four months of PDL per pregnancy.  Medical 

certification of the need for the leave is required, and the length of PDL will depend on the 

medical necessity for the leave.  Medical certification that the employee is released to return 

to work is required before the employee will be permitted to return. 

Employees will continue to be covered by CCCERA health insurance benefits under pre-

leave conditions during the entire approved PDL. 

Leave for pregnancy disability is unpaid, except that employees may elect to use any 

accrued vacation, sick, personal holiday or management administrative leave time. 

C.  Military Leave 
 

Federal and state mandated-military leaves of absence are granted without pay to members 

of the United States Uniformed Services, the California National Guard, or the reserves.  To 



BOR Reso. No. 2020-1 

9 | P a g e  
 

be eligible, an employee must submit written verification from the appropriate military 

authority.  Such leaves will be granted in accordance with state and federal law.  

When an employee goes on Military Leave for more than 30 days, any applicable group 

insurance (existing provisions will apply) continues for 90 days following the 

commencement of unpaid Military Leave. Beyond the 90 days, the employee may elect to 

continue the same group health care coverage, including dependent coverage, if applicable, 

for up to 24 months at his/her own expense. 

An employee may elect to use accrued personal holidays, vacation, and/or management 

administrative leave at the beginning of unpaid military service or may retain earned and 

accrued vacation for use upon return from the leave. The employee must provide this 

request/election in writing to Administrative/HR Manager prior to the start of the military 

leave. 

At the conclusion of military service, an employee will be reinstated upon giving notice of 

his/her intent to return to work by either (1) reporting to work or (2) submitting a timely oral 

or written request to CCCERA for reinstatement within 90 days of days after their release 

from active duty or any extended period required by law. The Military Leave will expire 

upon the employee’s failure to request reinstatement or return to work in a timely manner 

after conclusion of service. 

8. Health, Dental, and Related Benefits 

 

Regular full-time and part-time employees [who are regularly scheduled to work a 

minimum of 20 hours per week] and their eligible dependents may be entitled to receive 

medical and dental insurance coverage through CCCERA Plans.  Attached hereto as 

Attachment B, is the monthly premium subsidy for unrepresented employees. 

Effective January 1, 2016, CCCERA shall offer an Internal Revenue Code Section 125 

Flexible Benefits Plan that offers (i) CalPERS health plan coverages for each eligible 

employee and the employee's eligible family members and (ii) at least one other nontaxable 

benefit.  CCCERA shall make monthly contributions under the plan for each eligible 

employee and their dependents (if applicable) up to the relevant amount set forth in 

Attachment B.  Such contributions shall consist of (i) the Minimum Employer Contribution 

(MEC) established by the Public Employees' Medical and Hospital Care Act, and 

designated by CCCERA as the MEC, and (ii) the additional amount of such contributions in 

excess of the MEC. 

 

Any eligible employee who enrolls in health coverage with a higher total premium than 

CCCERA’s contributions with respect to the eligible employee, as stated in Attachment B, 

will pay the difference via pre-tax payroll deductions under the plan to the extent permitted 

by Internal Revenue Code Section 125. 

 

Dual Coverage: Each employee, eligible dependent and retiree may be covered by only a 

single CCCERA health or dental plan. 

Please refer any questions about medical/dental benefits to Human Resources.   

 



BOR Reso. No. 2020-1 

10 | P a g e  
 

Health and Dental Coverage Upon Retirement 

 

1. Any CCCERA retiree or their eligible dependent who becomes age 65 on or after 

January 1, 2009 and who is eligible for Medicare must immediately enroll in Medicare 

Parts A and B. 

 

2. For employees hired by Contra Costa County or CCCERA on or after January 1, 2009 

and their eligible dependents, upon completion of five (5) years of CCCERA service, 

an eligible employee who retires from CCCERA may retain continuous coverage of a 

CCCERA health and/or dental plan provided that:  

 

i. he or she begins to receive a monthly retirement allowance from CCCERA 

within 120 days of separation from CCCERA employment and  

ii. he or she pays the difference between the Public Employees’ Medical and 

Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA) minimum contribution and the premium cost 

of the health plan. He or she pays the full premium of the dental plan without 

any CCCERA premium subsidy. 

 

3. For employees hired by Contra Costa County before January 1, 2009 and their eligible 

dependents, upon completion of five (5) years of CCCERA service, an eligible 

employee who retires from CCCERA may retain continuous coverage of a CCCERA 

health and/or dental plan provided that they meet the requirements listed below:  

  

i. he or she begins to receive a monthly retirement allowance from CCCERA 

within 120 days of separation from CCCERA employment and  

ii. he or she pays the difference between the monthly premium subsidy 

established by the Board of Retirement for eligible employees and their 

eligible dependents and the premium cost of the health/dental plan.1 

 

1 CCCERA will pay the health/dental plan monthly premium subsidy established by the Board of Retirement for eligible retirees 

and their eligible dependents. 

 

4. All periods of benefit eligible employment will be included in the five (5) years of 
service calculation for purposes of health and dental coverage upon retirement. 

 

5. Employees who were on an authorized leave of absence without pay prior to retiring 
must have maintained coverage through CCCERA and paid the applicable premiums 
during their authorized leave of absence in order to be eligible for coverage under 
this Section. 

 

6. Employees, who resign and file for a deferred retirement and their eligible 
dependents, may continue in their CCCERA group health and/or dental plan under 
the following conditions and limitations: 



BOR Reso. No. 2020-1 

11 | P a g e  
 

i. Health and dental coverage during the deferred retirement period is totally 
at the expense of the employee, without any CCCERA contributions. 

ii. Life insurance coverage is not included. 
iii. To continue health and dental coverage, the employee must: 

 
a. be qualified for a deferred retirement under the 1937 Retirement Act 

provisions; 
b. be an active member of a CCCERA group health and/or dental plan 

at the time of filing their deferred retirement application and elect to 
continue plan benefits; 

c. be eligible for a monthly allowance from the Retirement System and 
direct receipt of a monthly allowance within one hundred twenty 
(120) days of application for deferred retirement; and 

d. file an election to defer retirement and to continue health benefits 
hereunder with CCCERA within thirty (30) days before separation 
from CCCERA service. 

 
iv. Deferred retirees who elect continued health benefits hereunder and their 

eligible dependents may maintain continuous membership in their 
CCCERA health and/or dental plan group during the period of deferred 
retirement by paying the full premium for health and dental coverage on or 
before the 10th of each month, to CCCERA. When the deferred retirees 
begin to receive retirement benefits, they will qualify for the same health 
and/or dental coverage listed above, as similarly situated retirees who did 
not defer retirement. 

 
v. Deferred retirees may elect retiree health benefits hereunder without 

electing to maintain participation in their CCCERA health and/or dental 
plan during their deferred retirement period. When they begin to receive 
retirement benefits, they will qualify for the same health and/or dental 
coverage as listed above, as similarly situated retirees who did not defer 
retirement. 

 

vi. Employees who elect deferred retirement will not be eligible in any event 
for CCCERA health and/or dental premium subsidies unless the member 
draws a monthly retirement allowance within one hundred twenty days 
(120) after separation from CCCERA employment. 

 
vii. Deferred retirees and their eligible dependents are required to meet the 

same eligibility provisions for retiree health/dental coverage as similarly 
situated retirees who did not defer retirement. 

 

7. For employees who retire and are eligible to receive a medical premium subsidy that 

is greater than the PEMHCA minimum contribution, each month during which such 

retiree medical coverage continues, CCCERA will provide each such retiree with a 

medical expense reimbursement plan (MERP), also known as a health 

reimbursement arrangement (HRA), subject to Internal Revenue Code Section 105, 

with a monthly credit equal to the excess of (i) the relevant medical coverage 



BOR Reso. No. 2020-1 

12 | P a g e  
 

monthly premium subsidy set forth in Attachment B for such eligible retiree and his 

or her eligible family members over (ii) the then current MEC. 

 

8. Long-Term and Short-Term Disability Insurance 

 

CCCERA will provide Long-Term and Short-Term Disability Insurance. 

 

9. State Disability Insurance 

 

Unrepresented employees do not contribute towards State Disability Insurance. 

 

10. Life Insurance  

 

For employees who are enrolled in CCCERA’s program of medical or dental coverage as 
either the primary or the dependent, term life insurance in the amount of ten thousand 
dollars ($10,000) will be provided by CCCERA.  

 

Management employees, with the exception of the Chief Executive Officer will also 
receive fifty-seven thousand dollars ($57,000) in addition to the life insurance provided 
above. The Chief Executive Officer will receive an additional sixty thousand dollars 
($60,000) in addition to the ten thousand dollars ($10,000) insurance provided above. 

 

In addition to the life insurance benefits provided by CCCERA, employees may subscribe 
voluntarily and at their own expense for supplemental life insurance. Please refer to 
Human Resources for additional information. 

 

11. Workers Compensation Insurance 
 

CCCERA provides workers' compensation benefits to employees who sustain a work-related 

injury or illness, and claims are processed through an adjusting agent/insurance carrier as 

designated by CCCERA, which administers workers' compensation claims and provides 

benefits and services to injured employees.  A worker's compensation injury is any injury or 

illness that arises out of and in the course of employment (AOE/COE) (Labor Code section 

3600). 

 

1. Waiting Period: There is a three (3) calendar day waiting period before workers’ 
compensation benefits commence. If the injured worker loses any time on the date of 
injury, that day counts as day one (1) of the waiting period. If the injured worker does 
not lose time on the date of the injury, the waiting period is the first three (3) days 
following the date of the injury. The time the employee is scheduled to work during 
this waiting period will be charged to the employee’s sick leave and/or vacation 
accruals. In order to qualify for workers’ compensation the employee must be under 
the care of a physician. Temporary compensation is payable on the first three (3) days 
of disability when the injury necessitates hospitalization, or when the disability exceeds 



BOR Reso. No. 2020-1 

13 | P a g e  
 

fourteen (14) days. 

 

2. Continuing Pay: Permanent employees shall continue to receive the appropriate percent 
as per Labor Code section 4650 et. seq. of their regular monthly salary during any 
period of compensable temporary disability not to exceed one year. Payment of 
continuing pay and/or temporary disability compensation is made in accordance with 
Part 2, Article 3 of the Workers’ Compensation Laws of California. "Compensable 
temporary disability absence" for the purpose of this Section, is any absence due to 
work connected disability which qualifies for temporary disability compensation as set 
forth in Part 2, Article 3 of the Workers’ Compensation Laws of California. 

 

When any disability becomes medically permanent and stationary and/or reaches 
maximum medical improvement, the salary provided in this Section shall terminate. 
No charge shall be made against sick leave or vacation for these payments. Sick leave 
and vacation rights shall not accrue for those periods during which continuing pay is 
received.  

 

Employees shall be entitled to a maximum of one (1) year of continuing pay benefits 
for any one injury or illness.  

 

Continuing pay begins at the same time that temporary workers’ compensation benefits 
commence and continues until either the member is declared medically 
permanent/stationary, or until one (1) year of continuing pay, whichever comes first, 
provided the employee remains in an active employed status. Continuing pay is 
automatically terminated on the date an employee is separated from CCCERA by 
resignation, retirement, layoff, or the employee is no longer employed by CCCERA. In 
these instances, employees will be paid workers’ compensation benefits as prescribed 
by workers’ compensation laws. All continuing pay must be cleared through 
CCCERA. 

 

3. Physician Visits: Whenever an employee who has been injured on the job and has 
returned to work is required by an attending physician to leave work for treatment 
during working hours, the employee is allowed time off, up to three (3) hours for such 
treatment, without loss of pay or benefits. Said visits are to be scheduled contiguous to 
either the beginning or end of the scheduled workday whenever possible. This 
provision applies only to injuries/illnesses that have been accepted by CCCERA as 
work related. 

 

12. Health Care Spending Account 

 

After six (6) months of regular employment, full time and part time (20/40 or greater) 
employees may elect to participate in a Health Care Spending Account (HCSA) Program 
designated to qualify for tax savings under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code, but 
such savings are not guaranteed. The HCSA Program allows employees to set aside a 
predetermined amount of money from their pay, before taxes, for health care expenses not 
reimbursed by any other health benefit plans. HCSA dollars may be expended on any 



BOR Reso. No. 2020-1 

14 | P a g e  
 

eligible medical expenses allowed by Internal Revenue Code Section 125. Any unused 
balance over five hundred dollars ($500) is forfeited and cannot be recovered by the 
employee. Please refer to Human Resources for more information on the HCSA Program. 

 

13. Dependent Care Assistance Program 

 

Full time and part time (20/40 or greater) employees may elect to participate in a 
Dependent Care Assistance Program (DCAP) designed to qualify for tax savings under 
Section 129 of the Internal Revenue Code, but such savings are not guaranteed. The 
program allows employees to set aside up to five thousand ($5,000) of annual salary 
(before taxes) per calendar year to pay for eligible dependent care (child and elder care) 
expenses. According to IRS regulations, any unused balance is forfeited and may not be 
recovered by the employee. Please refer to Human Resources for more information on 
DCAP. 

 

14. Premium Conversion Plan 

 

CCCERA offers the Premium Conversion Plan (PCP) designed to qualify for tax savings 
under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code, but tax savings are not guaranteed. The 
program allows employees to use pre-tax salary to pay health and dental premiums. Please 
refer to Human Resources for more information on the PCP. 

 

15. Vision Insurance 

 

CCCERA will pay 100% of the employee only premium for EyeMed Option 2 vision 

coverage and up to two hours of CCCERA paid time for exam and to obtain glasses. 

Employees may obtain spouse and dependent coverage at their own cost.  

 

16. Retirement: 

 

CCCERA Membership: 

Contributions: Employees are responsible for the payment of one hundred percent of 
the employees’ basic retirement benefit contributions determined annually by the 
Board. Employees are also responsible for the payment of the employee’s contributions 
to the retirement cost-of-living program as determined annually by the Board. 
CCCERA is responsible for payment of one hundred percent of the employer’s 
retirement contributions as determined annually by the Board. 

A. Employees who are not classified as new members under PEPRA will be enrolled in 
Retirement Tier 1 enhanced. For more information on retirement tiers please refer to 
the CCCERA member handbooks. 

B. Employees who are classified as new members under PEPRA will be enrolled in 
Retirement IV (3% COLA). For more information on retirement tiers please refer to 
the CCCERA member handbooks. 

C. CCCERA will implement Section 414(h) (2) of the Internal Revenue Code which 
allows CCCERA to reduce the gross monthly pay of employees by an amount equal to 



BOR Reso. No. 2020-1 

15 | P a g e  
 

the employee’s total contribution to the CCCERA Retirement Plan before Federal and 
State income taxes are withheld, and forward that amount to the CCCERA Retirement 
Plan. This program of deferred retirement contribution will be universal and non-
voluntary as required by statute. 

 

Deferred Compensation: 

A. CCCERA will contribute eighty-five dollars ($85) per month to each employee who 
participates in CCCERA’s Deferred Compensation Plan. To be eligible for this 
Deferred Compensation Incentive, the employee must contribute to the deferred 
compensation plan as indicated below: 

 

Employees with Current 
Monthly Salary of: 

Qualifying Base 
Contribution Amount 

Monthly Contribution 
Required to Maintain 
Incentive Program 
Eligibility 

$2,500 and below $250 $50 

$2,501 – 3,334 $500 $50 

$3,335 – 4,167 $750 $50 

$4,168 – 5,000 $1,000 $50 

$5,001 – 5,834 $1,500 $100 

$5,835 – 6,667 $2,000 $100 

$6,668 and above $2,500 $100 

 

Employees who discontinue contributions or who contribute less than the required 
amount per month for a period of one (1) month or more will no longer be eligible for 
the eighty-five dollars ($85) Deferred Compensation Incentive. To reestablish 
eligibility, employees must again make a Base Contribution Amounts as set forth above 
based on current monthly salary. Employees with a break in deferred compensation 
contributions either because of an approved medical leave or an approved financial 
hardship withdrawal will not be required to reestablish eligibility. Further, employees 
who lose eligibility due to displacement by layoff, but maintain contributions at the 
required level and are later employed in an eligible position, will not be required to 
reestablish eligibility. 

 

B. Regular employees hired on and after January 1, 2009 will receive one hundred and 
fifty dollars ($150) per month to an employee’s account in the Contra Costa County 
Deferred Compensation Plan or other tax-qualified savings program designated by 
CCCERA, for employees who meet all of the following conditions: 

1. The employee must be hired by CCCERA on or after January 1, 2009. 

2. The employee is not eligible for a monthly premium subsidy for health and/or dental 
upon retirement as set forth in Section 8. 

3. The employee must be appointed to a regular position. The position may be either   
full time or part time (designated at a minimum of 20 hours per week). 

4. The employee must have been employed by CCCERA or Contra Costa County for at 



BOR Reso. No. 2020-1 

16 | P a g e  
 

least 90 calendar days. 

5. The employee must contribute a minimum of twenty-five dollars ($25) per month to 
the Contra Costa County Deferred Compensation Plan, or other tax-qualified savings 
program designated by CCCERA. 

6. The employee must complete and sign the required enrollment form(s) for his/her 
deferred compensation account and submit those forms to Human Resources. 

7. The employee may not exceed the annual maximum contribution amount allowable 
by the United States Internal Revenue Code. 

8. Employees are eligible to apply for loans from the Contra Costa County Deferred 
Compensation Plan loan program. For more information on the loan program refer to 
Human Resources. 

 

17. General Training 

 

CCCERA periodically provides training to employees on its harassment prevention and 

equal opportunity/discrimination policies.  The purpose of these training sessions is to 

inform and remind employees of CCCERA’s policies on these matters.  These training 

sessions are mandatory. 

Employees also receive safety training as part of CCCERA’s Injury and Illness Prevention 

program. 

18. Other Job-Related Training  

 

Employees may request to attend training sessions on topics that are directly related to the 

employee’s current job and that are likely to improve the employee’s job knowledge and 

skills.  Requests to attend training must be submitted to the employee’s department 

manager.  It is within the sole discretion of CCCERA whether or not to grant a training 

request. 

 

19. Professional Development Reimbursement 

 

To encourage personal and professional growth which is beneficial to both CCCERA and 

the employee, CCCERA reimburses for certain expenses incurred by employees which are 

related to an employee’s current work assignment. 

Expenses that may be eligible for reimbursement include certification programs and courses 

offered through accredited colleges, universities and technical schools. 

Guidelines:  Prior to registering for a course, the employee must provide appropriate 

information to Human Resources to begin the approval process. 

If granted, reimbursement may be used to defray actual costs of tuition, registration, testing 

materials, testing fees and books only and is limited to $2,000 per year.   



BOR Reso. No. 2020-1 

17 | P a g e  
 

Course attendance, study, class assignments and exams must be accomplished outside of the 

employee’s regular working hours. 

Reimbursement:  Reimbursement will only be provided for course work in which the 

employee achieves a grade of C or better. Reimbursement will be provided only to 

employees who are employed by CCCERA at the time CCCERA receives evidence of 

satisfactory completion of the course or certification exam. 

If the employee does not successfully complete the course or certification exam, no 

reimbursement will be provided. 

Exceptions: For classifications which require a certification or technical license, CCCERA 

will reimburse the entire cost of certification fees and membership dues without reducing 

the maximum annual Professional Development Reimbursement amount.  

20. Salary 

 

Attached hereto as Attachment A, is the salary schedule for all classifications of 

unrepresented employees. 

21. Overtime 

 

Unrepresented employees who are exempt from the payment of overtime are not entitled to 

receive overtime pay, flexible compensatory, or overtime compensatory time. 

Unrepresented employees who are non-exempt from the payment of overtime will receive 

overtime for hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the workweek and paid at a rate of time 

and one-half their hourly rate of pay. 

22. Differential Pay 

 

A. Longevity 

 

Ten Years of Service: 

Employees who have completed ten (10) years of service for CCCERA* are eligible to 

receive a two and one-half percent (2.5%) longevity differential effective on the first day of 

the month following the month in which the employee qualifies for the ten (10) year service 

award.  

Fifteen Years of Service: 

Employees who have completed fifteen (15) years of service for CCCERA* are eligible to 

receive an additional two and one-half percent (2.5%) longevity differential effective on the 

first day of the month following the month in which the employee qualifies for the fifteen 

(15) year service award. 

Twenty Years of Service: 



BOR Reso. No. 2020-1 

18 | P a g e  
 

Employees in the General Counsel classification who have completed twenty (20) years of 

service for CCCERA* will receive an additional two percent (2%) longevity differential 

effective on the first day of the month following the month in which the employee qualifies 

for the twenty (20) year service award. 

*For employees hired prior to January 1, 2019 upon completion of required years of service 

for Contra Costa County and/or CCCERA will qualify. 

B. Certificate Differentials 

 
NOTE: No employee may receive more than one certificate differential at one time, 
regardless of the number of certificates held by that employee. 

 

➢ Accounting Certificate Differential 

Incumbents of unrepresented professional accounting, auditing or fiscal officer positions 
who possess one of the following active certifications will receive a differential of five 
percent (5%) of base monthly salary:  

 

(1) a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) license issued by the State of California, 
Department of Consumer Affairs, Board of Accountancy;  

(2) a Certified Internal Auditor (CIA) certification issued by the Institute of Internal 
Auditors;  

(3) a Certified Management Accountant (CMA) certification issued by the Institute of 
Management Accountants; or  

(4) a Certified Government Financial Manager (CGFM) certification issued by the 
Association of Government Accountants. 

 

➢ Associate of the Society of Actuaries (ASA) 
Employees who possess an active ASA certification will receive a differential of five 
percent (5%) of base monthly salary. Verification of eligibility for any such differential 
must be provided to Human Resources.  

 

 



Effective April 1, 2020

Class Title Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5

Accountant Exempt (Monthly) $6,037 $6,339 $6,656 $6,989 $7,338

Accounting Manager Exempt (Monthly) $10,326 $10,842 $11,384 $11,953 $12,551

Accounting Supervisor Exempt (Monthly) $7,705 $8,091 $8,495 $8,920 $9,366

Administrative/HR Manager Exempt (Monthly) $10,080 $10,584 $11,113 $11,669 $12,252

Administrative/HR Supervisor Exempt (Monthly) $7,705 $8,091 $8,495 $8,920 $9,366

Communications Coordinator Exempt (Monthly) $7,164 $7,522 $7,898 $8,293 $8,707

Compliance Business Analyst Exempt (Monthly) $7,898 $8,293 $8,707 $9,143 $9,600

Deputy General Counsel Exempt (Monthly) $14,529 $15,256 $16,019 $16,820 $17,661

Executive Assistant Non-Exempt (Hourly) $36.57 $38.40 $40.32 $42.34 $44.45

Information System Programmer/Analyst Exempt (Monthly) $7,338 $7,705 $8,091 $8,495 $8,920

Information Technology Coordinator Non-Exempt (Hourly) $38.40 $40.32 $42.34 $44.45 $46.68

Information Technology Manager Exempt (Monthly) $12,252 $12,865 $13,508 $14,183 $14,893

Investment Analyst Exempt (Monthly) $10,584 $11,113 $11,669 $12,252 $12,865

Investment Officer Exempt (Monthly) $14,893 $15,637 $16,419 $17,240 $18,102

Member Services Manager Exempt (Monthly) $10,080 $10,584 $11,113 $11,669 $12,252

Member Services Supervisor Non-Exempt (Hourly) $44.45 $46.68 $49.01 $51.46 $54.03

Retirement Services Manager Exempt (Monthly) $10,080 $10,584 $11,113 $11,669 $12,252

Retirement Services Supervisor Non-Exempt (Hourly) $44.45 $46.68 $49.01 $51.46 $54.03

Executive Class Title

Chief Executive Officer                               

Chief Investment Officer

Compliance Officer

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

General Counsel

Internal Auditor $10,276 - $13,359

$17,574 - $22,846

$22,525.85

Monthly Salary Range

$19,883 - $25,848

$10,276 - $13,359

$15,941 - $20,722

Resolution of the Board of Retirement 

Salary Range

Attachment A

(BOR Reso. No. 2020-1)

CCCERA Resolution for Salary and Benefits for Unrepresented Employees

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/26/20Agenda Item#8a.



Attachment B 

 

Health and Dental Coverage Monthly Premium Subsidy 

Effective: January 1, 2019 

 

CalPERS Health Plans - For 2019, CCCERA’s employer monthly premium subsidy is a set 

dollar amount and is not a percentage of the medical plan premium charged by CalPERS.  

Below are the employer monthly premium subsidies provided for each medical plan for 2019 

only: 

 

CalPERS Health Plans 

Employee Only Employee & 1 

Dependent 

Employee & 2+ 

Dependents 

 

Employer Monthly 

Premium Subsidy 

Employer Monthly 

Premium Subsidy 

Employer Monthly 

Premium Subsidy 

Anthem HMO Select  $782.95 $1,565.89 $2,035.66 

Anthem HMO Traditional $746.47 $1,492.94 $1,940.82 

BSC Access + $746.47 $1,492.94 $1,940.82 

HealthNet SmartCare $804.97 $1,609.95 $2,092.93 

Kaiser Permanente $763.16 $1,526.33 $1,984.23 

PERS Choice $746.47 $1,492.94 $1,940.82 

PERS Select $543.19 $1,086.38 $1,412.29 

PERSCare $746.47 $1,492.94 $1,940.82 

Western Health Advantage $746.47 $1,492.94 $1,940.82 

 

Delta Dental - For 2019 CCCERA’s employer monthly premium subsidy is a set dollar amount 

and is not a percentage of the dental plan premium charged by Delta Dental.  Below are the 

employer monthly premium subsidies provided for 2019: 

  Employee Only: $46.21 

  Employee and Spouse: $103.72 

  Employee and Children: $103.41 

  Family: $169.38 

 

Effective January 1, 2020, any change in the monthly medical plan premiums charged by CalPERS or 

the monthly dental plan premiums charged by Delta Dental in the plan year 2020 compared to the plan 

year 2019, will be shared equally by the employee and CCCERA.  This change in monthly medical 

plan premiums or dental plan premiums will be added to or subtracted from the 2019 employer 

monthly premium subsidy listed in the table above.  

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/26/20Agenda Item#8a.



R
e

v
is

io
n

 D
a

te
s

: 
4
/1

/2
0

2
0

, 
1

/1
/2

0
2

0
, 

7
/1

/1
9

, 
4

/1
/1

9
, 
7

/1
/1

8
, 

7
/1

/1
7

, 
7

/1
/1

6
, 
2

/1
/1

6
, 

7
/1

/1
5

, 
1

/1
/1

5

U
n

re
p

re
s
e
n

te
d

 p
o

s
it

io
n

s
:

1
0
 y

e
a
r 

L
o

n
g

e
v
it

y

1
5
 y

e
a
r 

L
o

n
g

e
v
it

y

2
0
 y

e
a
r 

L
o

n
g

e
v
it

y

C
P

A
, 
C

G
F

M
, 

C
IA

, 
C

M
A

A
S

A

C
la

s
s
if

ic
a
ti

o
n

 T
it

le
S

te
p

 1
S

te
p

 2
S

te
p

 3
S

te
p

 4
S

te
p

 5
2
.5

0
%

2
.5

0
%

2
.0

0
%

5
%

5
%

H
o

u
rl

y
 (

N
o

n
-E

x
e
m

p
t)

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 A

s
s
is

ta
n

t
$
3
6
.5

7
$
3
8
.4

0
$
4
0
.3

2
$
4
2
.3

4
$
4
4
.4

5
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e
s

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 T
e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

r
$
3
8
.4

0
$
4
0
.3

2
$
4
2
.3

4
$
4
4
.4

5
$
4
6
.6

8
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e
s

M
e
m

b
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

u
p

e
rv

is
o

r
$
4
4
.4

5
$
4
6
.6

8
$
4
9
.0

1
$
5
1
.4

6
$
5
4
.0

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e
s

R
e
ti

re
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 S

u
p

e
rv

is
o

r
$
4
4
.4

5
$
4
6
.6

8
$
4
9
.0

1
$
5
1
.4

6
$
5
4
.0

3
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 (

E
x
e
m

p
t)

A
c
c
o

u
n

ta
n

t
$
6
,0

3
7

$
6
,3

3
9

$
6
,6

5
6

$
6
,9

8
9

$
7
,3

3
8

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

$
1
0
,3

2
6

$
1
0
,8

4
2

$
1
1
,3

8
4

$
1
1
,9

5
3

$
1
2
,5

5
1

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 S

u
p

e
rv

is
o

r
$
7
,7

0
5

$
8
,0

9
1

$
8
,4

9
5

$
8
,9

2
0

$
9
,3

6
6

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

v
e
/H

R
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

$
1
0
,0

8
0

$
1
0
,5

8
4

$
1
1
,1

1
3

$
1
1
,6

6
9

$
1
2
,2

5
2

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e
s

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

v
e
/H

R
 S

u
p

e
rv

is
o

r
$
7
,7

0
5

$
8
,0

9
1

$
8
,4

9
5

$
8
,9

2
0

$
9
,3

6
6

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e
s

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

s
 C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

r
$
7
,1

6
4

$
7
,5

2
2

$
7
,8

9
8

$
8
,2

9
3

$
8
,7

0
7

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e
s

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 A

n
a
ly

s
t

$
7
,8

9
8

$
8
,2

9
3

$
8
,7

0
7

$
9
,1

4
3

$
9
,6

0
0

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e
s

D
e
p

u
ty

 G
e
n

e
ra

l 
C

o
u

n
s
e
l

$
1
4
,5

2
9

$
1
5
,2

5
6

$
1
6
,0

1
9

$
1
6
,8

2
0

$
1
7
,6

6
1

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e
s

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 S
y
s
te

m
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
r/

A
n

a
ly

s
t

$
7
,3

3
8

$
7
,7

0
5

$
8
,0

9
1

$
8
,4

9
5

$
8
,9

2
0

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e
s

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 T
e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

$
1
2
,2

5
2

$
1
2
,8

6
5

$
1
3
,5

0
8

$
1
4
,1

8
3

$
1
4
,8

9
3

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e
s

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
A

n
a
ly

s
t

$
1
0
,5

8
4

$
1
1
,1

1
3

$
1
1
,6

6
9

$
1
2
,2

5
2

$
1
2
,8

6
5

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e
s

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
r

$
1
4
,8

9
3

$
1
5
,6

3
7

$
1
6
,4

1
9

$
1
7
,2

4
0

$
1
8
,1

0
2

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e
s

M
e
m

b
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

$
1
0
,0

8
0

$
1
0
,5

8
4

$
1
1
,1

1
3

$
1
1
,6

6
9

$
1
2
,2

5
2

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e
s

R
e
ti

re
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

$
1
0
,0

8
0

$
1
0
,5

8
4

$
1
1
,1

1
3

$
1
1
,6

6
9

$
1
2
,2

5
2

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e
s

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e
s

C
h

ie
f 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
r

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e
s

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e
s

D
e
p

u
ty

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

N
o

Y
e
s

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
C

o
u

n
s
e
l

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

Y
e
s

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
o

r
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

N
o

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

C
C

C
E

R
A

 P
o

s
it

io
n

 P
a
y
 S

c
h

e
d

u
le

 -
  
E

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
 4

/1
/2

0
2
0

$
1
0
,2

7
6
 -

 $
1
3
,3

5
9

*N
O

T
E

: 
C

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 D
if
fe

re
n
ti
a
ls

 c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

c
e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 d
if
fe

re
n
ti
a
ls

E
li
g

ib
le

 f
o

r 
D

if
fe

re
n

ti
a
l*

M
o

n
th

ly
 S

a
la

ry
 R

a
n

g
e
 (

E
x
e
m

p
t)

$
2
2
,5

2
5
.8

5

$
1
9
,8

8
3
 -

 $
2
5
,8

4
8

$
1
0
,2

7
6
 -

 $
1
3
,3

5
9

$
1
5
,9

4
1
 -

 $
2
0
,7

2
2

$
1
7
,5

7
4
 -

 $
2
2
,8

4
6

 P
a
g
e
 1

 o
f 
1

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/26/20Agenda Item#8b.



sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/26/20Agenda Item#9a.

















 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/26/20Agenda Item#9b.



 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date02/26/20Agenda Item#9c.


	agenda 02.26.2020
	Item 3
	Item 4
	Item 5
	Item 6
	Item 7
	Item 8
	Item 9



